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MADHYA PRADESHACT"
No. 27 OF 2017

THE COURT-FEES (NIADHYAPRADESHAMENDIWENT) ACT, 2017

[Recetved the assent of the Governor on the 29th August, 2017} assent
first published in the Madhya Pradesh Gazette (Extra-ordinary)”, dated
the 1st September 2017 page No. 954(1) to 954(3)]

An Act further to amend the Court-fees Act, 1870 in its
application to the State of Madhya Pradesh.

Be it enacted by the Madhya Pradesh Legislature in the Slxty-elghth
year of the Republic of India as follows :-

" 1. Short title. This Act may be called the Court-fees (Madhya
Pradesh Amendment) Act, 2017.

2. Amendment of Central Act No. VII of 1870, in its application
to the State of Madhya Pradesh. The Court-fees Act, 1870 (No. VII of
1870) (hereinafter referred to as the principal Act), shall in its application to
the State of Madhya Pradesh, be amended in the manner hereinafter provided.

_ 3. Amendment of Section 13. In section 13 of the principal Act,
for the words “the Appellate Court shall grant to the appellant a certificate,
authorising him to receive back from the Collector the full amount of fee paid
on the memorandum of appeal”, the words “the Appellate Court shall grant to
the appellant a certificate, authorising him to receive back from the Collector
or by way of electronic transfer in such manner as may be prescribed, the full
amount of fee paid on the memorandum of appeal” shall be substituted.

4. Amendment of Section 14. In section 14 of the principal Act,
for the words “grant him a certificate authorizing him to receive back from the
Collector so much of the fee paid on the application as exceeds the fee which
would have been payable had it been presented before such day”, the words
“grant him a certificate authorising him to receive back from the Collector or
by way of electronic transfer in such manner as may be prescribed, so much
.of the fee paid on the application as exceeds the fee which would have been
payable had it been presented before such day” shall be substituted.

5. Amendment of Section 15. In section 15 of the principal Act,
for the words “the applieant shall be entitled to certificate from the court
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authorizing him to receive back from the Collector so much of'the fee paid on
the application as exceeds the fee payable on any other applicationto such
Court under the second schedule to this Act, No. 1, clause (b) or clause (d)”,
the words “the applicant shall be entitled to certificate from the court authorizing
him to receive back from the Collector or by way of electronic transfer in
such manner as may be prescribed, so much of the fee paid on the application -
.as exceeds the fee payable on any other application to such court under the
second schedule to this Act, No. 1, clause (b) or clause (e) or clause (f)” shall
he substituted. ) : n

6. Amendment of Section 16. In section 16 of the principal Act, for
the words “the plaintiff shall be entitled to a certificate from the Court authorizing
. him to receive back from the Collector, the full amount of the fee paid in
respect of such plaint™, the words “the plaintiff shall be entitled to a certificate
from the Court authorizing him to receive back from the Collector or by way -
electronic transfer in such manner as may be prescribed, the full amount of
the fee paid in respect of such plaint” shall be substituted.

7. Amendment of Section 25. In section 25 of the princij)al Act, for
the words “stamps”, the words “stamps or electronic transfer of payment to
State Government in such manner asmay be prescribed” shall be substituted.

8. Amendment of Section 27. In section 27 of the.principal Act,
clause (a) shall be renumbered as clause (aa) and before clause (aa) as so
renumbered, the following new clause shall be inserted, namely :-

“(a) the manner-of electronic transfer of payment of coutt-fee and-
refund thereof:”. :

9. Amendment of Section 30, In section 30 of the, pl"incipal Act,
"in second paragraph, for full stop, colon shall be substituted and thereafter .
the following proviso shall be added, namely :- - )

© “Provided that, where court-fee is paid by electronic transfer

of payment, the officer competent to cancel stamp shall verify
the genuineness of the payment and after satisfying himself that-

* the court-fee is paid, shall lock the entry in the computer and
make an endorsement under his si gnature on the document that
the court-fee is paid and the entry is locked.”. '

e
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MADHYA PRADESH CONTRACTUALAPPOINTMENT TC
’ CIVIL POST RULES, 2017

[Published in Madhya Pradesh Gazette (Extra- -ordinary) dated 28th
September, 2017, page Nos. 1052(6) to 1052(14)]

No. C-5-1-2017-1-3:~ In exercise of the powers conferred by the
proviso to article 309 of the Constitution of India, the Governor of Madhya
Pradesh, after consultation with the Madhya Pradesh Public Service
Commission, hereby, makes the following rules relating to contractual
appointment, narnely -

RULES
1. Short title and commencement.-

(1) These rules niay be called the Madhya Pradesh Contractual
Appointment to Civil Post Rules, 2017.

'(2) These rules shall come into force from the date of their
publication in the Gazette.

2. Definitions.- In these rules, unless the context otherwise requires,-

(1) Inrelation to any service or - post “Appointing Authority” means
the Government or such authority which has been conferred with
the powers to make appointment on that service or post under
the recruitment rules related to that service or post or conferred
by the Government by general or siJecial order or which maybe
conferred hereafter,;

(2) “Departmental Recruitment Rules” means service recruitment
rules in force for appointment to the concerned service or posts;

(3) “Retired Government Servant” means Government servant
retired from the Government Service after completing the age
‘of superannuation; .

(4) “State” means the State of Madhya Pradesh;
- (5) “State Government” means the Government of Madhya Pradesh.

3. Scope and Application.- These rules shall apply in relation to every
stich post/posts and to such persons appointed or who may be
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appointed under these rules, on the post/posts declared or may be
declared as contract appointment post by the State Government under
rule 4. '

Posts of contract appointment.- The following posts shall be called
the contract appointment post, namely :-

(1) Such posts which are sanctioned as contract appointment post
inthe departmental setup. '

(2) Notwithstanding anything contained in the Departmental
recruitment rules, such post, which requires speciality, experience
and specific qualification etc. may be declared contract

* appointment post by general or special order by concerning
departments of the State Government, in exceptional cases, for
the purpose of maintaining efficiency in the public administration,
excluding the post which requires in the field of judicial service
under any law or rule for the time being in force.

(3) Such sanctioned posts of class Il and IV in the personal

establishment of Chief Minister/Ministers on which appointments

" are to be made till the tenure of Chief Mmlster/Mlmsters (co-
terminus). -

Methods of Appointment.- Contractudl appointmerits in the
concerned department of State Government may be made in the
following manners, namely :-

* (1) on the posts mentmned under Rule 4(1) by way of public
advertisement;

(2) on the posts mentioned in Rule 4(2) by way of contract
~-appointment of non-government persons retired government
servant, on exceptional specific cases, on the basis of
‘specialization, experience, special qualification and his smtablhty

for the post after approval of the Finance Department;

(3) on the posts mentioned under rule 4(3) by the person
_ recommended by the Chief Minister/Ministers on the basis-of
prescribed qualification/eligibility and suitability for the post.
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Selection Committee.-

(1) Selection committee for contract appointment to the posts
prescribed under rule 4(1) shall be same as prescrlbed in the
-departmental recruitment rules.

(2) The provisions of section 8 of the Madhya Pradesh Lok Sewa
(Anusuchit Jatiyon, Anusuchit Janjatiyon Aur Anya Pichhade
Vergon Ke Liye Arakshan) Adhiniyam, 1994 (No. 21 0f 1994)
shall also be applicable for the constltutlon of the selection
committee.

Age Limit.-

(1) Age limit for contract appointments shall be the same as
prescribed in the departmental recruitment rules for the
¢oncerned postor service: N

Provided that orders/instructions 1ssued by the General
Administrative Department from time to time relating to
exemption in age limit-shall also be applicable for contract
appointment.

(2) Inthe case of retired government servant, contract appointment
may be given up to the age of 65 years where age of
superannuation is 60 years and where the age of superannuation
is 65 years, it may be given up to the age of 70 years.

. Qualifications and eligibility criteria for appointment.-

In cases of contract appointment the quélliﬁcaitions and eligibility

~ criteria shall be the same as prescribed in rule 5 and 6 of the Madhya
Pradesh Civil Services (General Conditions of Service) Rules, 1961.

For contract appointment minimum educational and other qualification
shall be the same as prescribed in departmental recruitment rules per
the said post. '

Ineligibilities for contract appointment of retired government

" servants.-

(1) Ifconfidential service record of the concemed officer/employee
is not “very good” or above category in total;
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- (2)

e

. (4)

&)

\zd

Where there any doubt or charge has been raised at any time
during his service period regarding the integrity of concerned
officer/employee and his reputation regarding his honesty and
efficiency has not been good in general; ) -

On being dismissed or removed from the service or pending
departmental enquiry/prosecution against him;

If concerned officer/femployee has been punished during the last
10 years; )

If his health is not sound;

" Reservation.- The provisions of Madhya Pradseh Lok Sewa

(Anusuchit Jatiyon, Anusuchit Janjatiyon Aur Anya Pichhade Vergon
Ke Liye Arakshan) Adhiniyam, 1994 (No. 21 of 1994) and ruies/

“ instructions issued thereunder from time to time shall apply to the posts

of contract appointment, along with rules/instructions issued for
reservation of women and disabled etc. from time to time, shall also

.. beapplicable.
11.

Period of Appointment.-

(1)

@

3)

@

On the contract appointment posts mentioned under rule 4(1),
the contract appointment for the first time shall be made for the
period of not more than one year however, the State Government
may, take decision of renewal of contract appointment by
extending the period of contract appointment for a period of
maximum one year at one time depending on the necessity and
assessing suitability of person appointed on contract.

Except the post specified in rule 4(1), the total period of contract
appointment shall not be more than five years.

Either of parties may terminate the contact appointment during
the period of contract appointment by giving one month's notice
in advance or paying one month's salary in lieu thereof.

Contract appointment shall be deemed terminated automatically

"on expiry of the period of the contract appointment and no

separate order shall be needed for terminating the services.
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13.

14.

Contract pay and other facilities.-

(1)

3)

, In the case of contract appointment on the posts prescribed

under rule 4 (1), payable monthly lump-sum honorarium shall
be such as may be fixed by the Finance Department by a general
or special order issued from time to time.

Regarding retired employees, contract pay shall be the lump-
sum amount payable after deducting the payable pension (prior
to commutafion) and dearness relief thereupon, from basic pay
admissible in the pay structure (pay scale as amended) and
dearness allowance admissible, at the time of retirement and
apart from this he shall be entitled for house rent allowance (if
they do not possess government accommodation) and city
compensatory allowance on the basic pay at the time of
retirement and shall also be entitled for pension and dearness
relief on pension. '

The contract appointment on higher post under rule 8(2), in cdse
of appointment being given to non-government person in
exceptional specific cases in rule 5(2) and for personal
establishment of Chief Minister/Ministers, in cases of contract
appointment of other persons beside the retired employees, the
pay scale for the time being in force shall be payable for the
period of contract and other incidental benefits may be given
with the consent of Finance Department.

Applicability of Leave.- Under these rules, the employee appointed
on contract shall be entitled for leave in the same manner as a temporary
Government Servant.

Travelling Allowance and other facilities.-

(1)

2)

3)

Person appointed to the post sanctioned as contract post in the
departmental setup, shall be eligible for travelling allowance and
other facilities. o

In the case of contract appointment of retired persons, they shall
be eligible for travelling allowance and other benefits as payable
to government servant for the concerned post/equivalent post.

If for any contract appointment post, travailing allowance and
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other benefits are not prescribed in the rules then the
eligibility of travelling allowance and other benefits to the
person appointed on such post shall be same as that of the
government servant of the same or equivalent post.

Other conditions, -

0

)

- (3)

“4)

(5)

(6)

Persons appointed on contract shall be governcd by the.
Madhya Pradesh Civil Services (Conduct) Rules, 1965.

Persons appointed on contract shall not be eligible for any
kind of pension, gratuity or death benefit or the period of _
contract and the annual increment 'shall not be payable as
well. -

Confidential Report/PAR (Performance Appraisal Report)
of the employee appointed on contract shall be recorded so
that his work may be assessed in case he is to be given
appointment on contract for the next year.

During the contract appointment of retired government
servants, he/they may be transferred to equivalent post in
other offices and he/they may also be given additional -
responsibility in additjon to the work of contract post which

‘'shall be mandatory for him/them to accept.

Person appoinfed on contract shall have to deposit minimum
of 10 percent of his contrdct pay in life insurance pension
scheme or PPF for social security of his family and he shall
intimate this fact to the appointing authority as to which of
the scheme he has opted: '

Provided that this provision shall not be applicable to
retired government servants.

Retired government servant appointed on contract, shall be
eligible to retain the government accommodation if he is
occupying the government accommodation at the time of
retirement and license fee shall be recovered from him as -
per rule 45-A of Madhya Pradesh Fundamental Rules.

Interpretation.- If any question arises relating to the interpretation
of these rules, it shall be referred to the General Administration
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17.

Department on which decision of the General Administration
Department shall be final.

Repeal and savings.- All the rules and instructions corresponding
to these rules which were in force immediately prior to the
commencement of these rules, are hereby repealed:

_ Provided that all contract appointments on the date of coming
into force of these rules shall be deemed to have been made under
these rules, service condition of previous appointment order shall
be applicable as it is for the remaining period of contract.

By order and in the name of the Governor of Madhya Pradesh,
’ C.B. PADWAR, Dy. Secy.

ay
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Short Note
. %*(123)
Before Mr. Justice Subodh Abliyankar
.W.P. No. 19123/2016 (Jabalpur) decided on-6 September, 2017

ASHRAF KHAN ' ....Petitioner
Vs. ’
STATE OF ML.P. & ors. ...Respondents

Service Law — Retired Employee — Recovery of Excess Payment
— Ground — Excess amount paid to petitioner (z; retired employee) was
deducted from his pension payment order — Challenge to — Held - In
view of the ratio laid down by Apex Court in case of Jagdev Singh and
the undertaking given by petitioner regarding recovery of excess
payment made, same may be recovered from his pensionary benefits
—Recovery made is proper — Petition dismissed.
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Cases referred:

. 2015 (4) SCC 334, W.P. No. 4854/2016.(S) order passéd on
20.10.2016, R.P. No. 862/2016 decided on 27.03.2017. . .

Sachin Pandey, forit_'}le petitioner.
Gaurav Pathak, G.A. for the respondents/State.

Short Nofe

" *(124)(DB)
Before Mr. Justice R.S. Jha & Mr. Justice A.K. Joshi
W.P. No. 4316/2017 (Jabalpur) decided on 1 May, 2017

BRIJESH YADAV (DR.) & ors. ...Petitioners
Vs. . _ _ '
STATE OF M.P. & ors. " ...Respondents

(Alongwith W.P. Nos. 4512/2017 & 4526/2017)
Post Graduate Medical Education Regulations, 2000,
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Regulations 9(iv) & 9(vii), M.P. Government Autonomous Medical and
Dental Post Graduate Course (Degree/Diploma) Admission Rules,
2017, Rule 2(vii) and Constitution — Article 14 ~ Definition —
Amendment — Constitutional Validity — In-service Doctors —
Reservation and additional/incentive marks for serving in rural and
notified areas — Held — Vide amendment government deleted provision
for granting benefit to rural services alone and have restricted the same
to services rendered in difficult and/or remote areas — Such amended
definition is declared ulitra vires, unconstitutional and is violative of
Article 14 of Constitution ~ Rule 2(vii) of Rules of 2017 quaéhed -
Writ petition allowed to such extent.
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The order of the Court was delivered by : R.S. Jua, J.
Cases referred:

_ (2016) 9 SCC 749, (2003) 7 SCC 83, C.A. No. 11270-11271/2016
order passed on 25.11.2016 (Supreme Court), (1992) 2 SCC 26,(2012) 8
SCC 203, (2001) 8 SCC 694, (1997) 8 SCC 191, AIR 1958 SC 538,
C.W.P. No. 581/2017 & connected matters decided on 12.04.2017
{Himanchal Pradesh High Court), (2000) 1 SCC 44. )

Sidharth Gupta and Ashish Trivedi, for the petitioners.
Deepak Awasthi, G.A. for the respondeni/State.

Indira Nair with Rajas Pohankar, for the respondent MCI.
Aditya Sanghi, for the respondent No. 6.
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Short Note
*(125)(DB}
Before Mr. Justice Hemant Gupm, Chief Justice &
; Mr. Justice Vijay Kumar Shukla
" W.A.No. 326/2017 (Jabalpur) decided on 25 September, 2017

M.P.ELECTRICITY BOARD,

NOW-M.P.P.K.V.V. CO.LTD.,JABALPUR & ors. ...Appellants
Vs. "
CHANDRABOSH TRIPATHI : .. .Respondent

Service Law — Compassionate Appointment — Grounds &
Criteria - Held - — Application for compassionate appointment has to
be considered as per policy prevailing at the time of consideration of
the application — Full Bench of this Hon’ble Court has held that
compassionate appomtm"nt is neither a vested right which can be
considered at any time even after the crisis created by death of the
earning member is over nor it is a hereditary right which can be
bequeathed — Impugned order set aside — Writ Appeal allowed.
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The judgment of the Court was delivered by : Visay KuMaR SHUKLA, J.
Cases referred: )

2010 (3) MPLI 213 (FB), (2007) 9 SCC 571, (2015) 7 SCC 412,
2003 (1) MPHT 226 (FB).

Anoop Nair, for the appellants.
P.K.S. Sengar, for the respondent.
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Short Note
- *(126)
Before Mr. Justice S.K. Awasthi
Cr.R:No. 946/2015 (Gwalior) decided on 25 July; 2017

M.P.MADHYAKSHETRAVIDYUT VITRAN CO.LTD. ...Applicant
Vs. .
DEEPENDRA BHATE @ DEEPENDRA GHATE ...Non-applicant

Electricity Act (36 of 2003), Sections 138, 151 & 153 and
Criminal Procedure Code, 1973 (2 of 1974), Section 251 — Jurisdiction
— Case registered and summons issued against respondent for offence
punishable u/S 138 of the Act of 2003 — Case was dropped by Magistrate
exercising power u/S 251 Cr.P.C. — Challenge to — Held — Once the
summons have been issued to accused, the Special Court constituted
u/S 153 of the Act of 2003 does not have jurisdiction to drop legal
proceedings by exercising powers u/S 251 Cr.P.C. thereby discharging .
the accused — Impugned order set aside — Application allowed.
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Cases referred :

2004 (7) SCC 338, 2012 (5) SCC 424,(2004) 13 SCC 324, 2003
(1) MPLJ 513,2014 SCC online Del 212,

Vivek Jain, for the applicant.
Sanjay Kumar Mishra, for the non-applicants.
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Short Note
“*(127)(DB) _
Before Mr. Justice S.K. Seth & Smt. Justice Anjuli Palo
W.A. No. 451/2017 (Jabalpur) decided on 27 June, 2017

MUNICIPAL CORPORATION, JABALPUR & anr. ...Appellants
Vs. : .
STATE OF M.P. & anr. ...Respondents

Service Law — Civil Services (Classification, Control and
Appeal) Rules, M.F. 1966, Rule 9(2)(a) — Suspension — Charge Sheet —
Issuance & Service of — Limitation — Suspension order of Respondent
No. 2 was quashed in writ petition on the ground that charge sheet was
issued beyond the period of 45 days — Challenge in appeal — Held — As
per records available and the Register of Dispatch produced by
appellant, charge sheet was issued on 45" day from date of issuance
of suspension order — Apex Court concluded that issuance of charge
sheet means its dispatch to government servant and further fact of its
service is not a-necessary required part — “Issue” of charge sheet
does not mean service of the same — Charge sheet timely issued —
Impugned order set aside — Appeal allowed.

. W@ R — Rifder @ar (a7fevor, Faar giv aftea) Faa 4.
1966, T 9(2)(5) — FaaT — arvig v — it fsar arer 7 ardler —
gt — uaaeff . 2 @ fadea sy # 39 qmRr w Re nfrer §
FfrEtea fear ™ % aRIT o3 45 A @Y srafr @ R S Ry
o7 — arfid 9 g4t — sfafaiRa — Svas aft@at qur sfareff grr
UG WEE g9 3 our, e sy W fRd W @ faftr @ 4s
7 2 w AT o3 o e T o — walwE e 3 fPresifa fear
g 5 oy 7 W Bt B1.9ef Tee 99w B gwe g9 @ @ qer
FUS! anflag @1 AT @1 a2y, Aravae AifE wer ad € — eIy u=m
"SI fed e w1 a1l Saw B anfle 9 9E @ - aRiu—um W W
S feur T — e arde s — el we(R

The judgment of the Court was delivered by : S.K. SeTm, 1.

Cases referred:

AIR 1966 SC 1313, (1994) 4 SCC 468, 1993 (3) SCC 196, 1991
(4) SCC 109.
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Saurabh Sunder, for the appellants. :
A.P. Singh, G.A. for the respondent No. 1/State.
Vipin Yadav, for the respondent No. 2.

Short Note
*(128) .
Before Mr. Justice J.P. Gupta
M.Cr.C. No. 12878/2011 (Jabalpur) decided on 18 April, 2017

NATHTHIBAI (SMT.) ...Applicant
Vs. '
STATE OF M.P. & anr. - ...Non-applicants

Criminal Procedure Code, 1973 (2 of 1974), Section 125 —
Maintenance — Entitlement — Term “wife” — Application u/S 125 filed
by applicant was dismissed by Courts below — Challenge to — Held —
Concurrent findings of Courts below that applicant/wife was divorced
by respondent as per the prevailing customs and thereafter wife was
remarried to another person — She does not comes within the purview
of definition “wife” and is not entitled to receive maintenance u/S 125
Cr.P.C. from respondent No.2/earlier husband.

avg giFar Uiedl 1973 (1974 @7 2), ST 125 — RUOYT —
swedl — e CIEf) — ANTE R ORI 125 B Awid URT AEST
ﬁﬁm'm@ﬁﬁmwm—aﬁﬂﬁfﬁ—ﬂﬁlﬁafﬁa—
ﬁaﬁwaﬁ$ma?ﬁﬁrﬁsf§'ﬁimﬁaﬂ/qsﬁaﬂmﬁmmﬂ-
a?aﬁ,wuﬁaﬁﬁﬁﬁwﬁiéagmmﬁmamqﬁaﬂﬁﬁﬁm
afr | affare gar or — @ ol @Y aRereT @7 aRfer ¥ T i
qerr weefi*w. 2/qd wfy | =wve ufpwr wiewr ® anr 125 @ aua
AROMGIEOT YT HRA B THIR AE B

Cases referred: -

(2005) 9 SCC 407, 2004 (4) MPL1J 455, (2008) 2 JLJ 437, (2002)
CRIL.J. 3418, 2002 CRLL.J. 1397, 2002 CRLL.J. 1173, 2000 CRLL.J.
1498. '

K.S. Rajput, for the applicant. .
Amod Gupta, P.L. for the non-applicant No. 1/State.
Pankaj R. Soni, for the non-applicant No. 2.
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Short Note
*(129)
Before Mr. Justice S.K. Gangele
C.R. No:439/2015 (Jabalpur) decided on 7 September, 2017

NIRMALA DEVI (SMT.) & ors. ~ ...Applicants
Vs. g
SMT. BHARTIDEVI & ors. B Non—apphcants

Partnership Act, (9 of 1932), Section 69(2) and Civil Procedure
Code (5 of 1908), Order 7 Rule 11 — Maintainability of Suit - Revision
against dismissal of application filed by petitioner/defendant under Order
7Rule 11 CPC - Held - It is pleaded in plaint that agreement is in nature
of Partnership deed — It is also admitted that such partnership deed is not
registered, thus as per Section 69 of the Act of 1932, suit based on such
unregistered partnership deed is not maintainable — —Application under
order 7 Rule 11 CPC allowed — Suit dismissed — Petition allowed.

AR AT (1932 3T 9), grer 69(2) T fifder afvar wiear
(1908 BT 5), 37739 7 Frrt 11 — 17 #1 wyofigar — arh /ufyard) gRT sy
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Cases rei‘erred :
_ AIR 1977 SC336,(2003) 1 SCC 557, (2015)4SCC371,2011 MPILR 2305.

Ashish Shroti and Sanjay Malviya, for the applicant.
Avinash Zargar and Amit Bhurrak, for the non-applicant No.1 & 3.
B.D. Singh, G.A. for the non-applicant No. 4/State,

Short.Note
*(130) -
Before Mr. Justice PK. Jaiswal -
Cr.R. No. 1643/2015 (Indore) decided on 6 April, 2017

RAKESH S ' ...Applicant
Vs. '

SUBODH & ors. ' . - ...Non-applicants
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 Criminal Procedure Code, 1973 (2-of 1974),-Section 227 & 228
- — Framing of Charge — Quashing of criminal proceedings — Held —
Framing of charge is not a stage at which final test of guilt is to be -
- applied — Apex Court has held that at the stage of framing of charge,
Court is not concerned with proof of allegation rather it has to focus on
the material in hand and form an opinion whether there is strong
suspicion that accitsed committed an offence, which if put to trial, could
prove his guilt — Power of quashing criminal proceedings particularly
at such stage u/S 228 should be exercised very sparingly and with
circumspection and that too in rarest of rare cases — In instant case,
once the order of this Court was upheld by the Supreme Court, Trial
Court acted illegally with material irregularity in discharging
respondents — Impugned order set aside — Revision allowed.

. evg giyar Wiar 1973 (1974 @7 2), €T 227 T 228 — WY
fria frar T — ifse sradaneal & afreiea f&ar ara —
aRifERe — aRty RRf w31 a1 wpa Y ol [ifar @ AR
' qﬁmmﬁmm—‘ﬁﬁlwﬁmﬁrﬁﬂfﬂam%ﬁimq ’
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fraTeeT Frar oTe qt Swat ST R @ wed @ - iy wu W 9
qET URERT 228 ® A aives sRiAA affEfsa w3 @ ufw a1
qﬁwgﬁrﬁm%qﬁmm?ﬁﬁmvagrﬁﬁﬂaﬁﬁmquwﬁ'ﬁ
fFar W AIEY — qdArd geRel § TP AR SwEdd Jrardad g 'Y
Wﬁmmaﬁﬁgﬁaaﬁﬁaﬁ,ﬁﬁmﬂw#uaeﬁwaﬁ
mﬁﬁﬁ.mﬁﬁaﬂﬁﬂ?aﬁwﬁﬂmﬁﬂmﬁamﬁm{mﬁaﬁ—
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Cases referred :
AIR 1992 SC 604, AIR 2014 SC 1400, JT 2017 (2) SC 98.

PK. Saxena with A.K. Saraswat, for the applicant..

Ramesh Gangore, for the non-applicants No. 3 & 4.

S.K. Vyas with G Chouhan, for the non-applicant No. 5.

R.-Shrivastava, for the non-applicant No. 6.

Swathi Okhale, for the non-applicant No. 7.

Sudhanshu Vyas, P.L. for the non-applicant No. 8/State.
. None, for the non-applicants No. 1 & 2, though served.
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LL.R. [2017] M.P., 2299
! SUPREME COURT OF INDIA
quore Mr. Justice Ranjan Gogoi & Mr. Justice Navin Sinha
Cr. A No. 1292/2017 dec1ded on 1 August, 2017 -

RAJKISHORE PUROHIT ' ...Appellant
Vs. ' .
STATE OF M.P. & ors. ...Respondents

A. Penal Code (45 of 1860), Section 302 & 302/34 and Arms
Act (54 of 1959), Section 25(1)(a) — Murder —Conviction — Common’
Intention — Acquittal of 1n accused Rajendra by High Court — Appeal
against — Held — Conduct of the accused reveals nothing to.draw
inference that he was taken by surprise when co-accused opened fired
the deceased — He immediately escaped from place of occurrence,
- indicative of his awareness of common intention — Sequence of events
shows pre-concerted plan and prior meeting of minds — If common
intention is established in the facts and circumstances, no overt act or
possession of weapon is required — Order of acquittal passed by High
Court is set aside — Order of conviction restored. (Para12 & 14)

. U8 glear (1860 BT 45), ST 302 T 302/ 34 ;751 AT
IR (1959 FT 54), &INT 25(1)(%) — §T — TR — GATT v
— 9T A g U AfgE Teiww B qiegfer — 3 freg s —
affEiRa — Al @ smavo @ ¢ar g yse. 79 s R a®
.ﬁw#ﬁmmmwﬁiagmaﬁaﬁﬁrmmw—mﬁgﬁ#ww
M FAqE — 9% HeARd ¥ doaTd AT fredn, W SHd WEe e
‘a#slﬁaﬁmﬁfamm%—mq\a‘ﬁmqu\a‘ﬁ
sl @ dd &t gofar 2 — ﬁmwa@wuﬁm#
il wtar 2, SI¥ vwd o a1 Ay o ser aifig ad — wea

-‘wmmﬂﬂﬁﬁmaﬁwm Tiufafg &1 s g
RGN ;

-

B. Constitution — Article 136 — Discretionary Jurisdiction
— Held - In’exercise of discretionary jurisdiction under Article 136,
this Court may not interfere with an order of acquittal, reversing a
conviction, yet if it finds that High Court has completely erred in
‘appreciation of evidence, has applied wrong principles to negate
common intention and has based its conclusions on speculative
reazsoning beyond the defence of accused himself, justice w1ll demand

.
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that acquittal is reversed. , ' (Para 14)

& FIEIT — JIBT 136 = 3fF% sfrmRar — aftfeaiRyq
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C. Penal Code (45 of 1860), Section 34 — Common Intention

— Determination — Held — Existence or non-existence of common
intention amongst accused has to be determined cumulatively from their
conduct and behaviour in the facts and circumstances of each case —
. There can be no straight jacket formula — Absence of any overt act of
assault, exhortation or possession of weapon cannot be singularly
determinative of absence of common intention. (Para 10)

T . §U€ Wear (1860 T 45), €T 34 — WIHIRT 79T —
gagrer — afifeiRa — sfgaarT € 7=0 9= I 3 afaa o
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Cases referred:
(2013) 14 SCC 732, ('1976) 3 SCC 779.
JUDGMENT

The Judgment of the Court was delivered by :
NAVIN SINHA, J. :- Leave granted.

2. - Theconviction of respondent no.2, under Section 302/34 IPC, by the
Sessions Judge, Sagar, in Sessions Trial No. 369 of 1997, has been reversed
by the High Court in appeal, acquitting him. The appellant, brother of the
: deceased assalls the acquittal, :

*

3. Lokman Khatik, accused no.3, was peeved with the meetmg being
held for his removal from the post of Mayor. The deceased was the President
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of the Congress Sewa Dal, spearheading the campaign. The trial court from
the evidence arrived at the finding that all the four accused came together to
the place of occurrence in a white ambassador car. Accused no.3 identified
the deceased to Jitendra @ Jittu, accused no.2. Thereafter, respondent no.2
accompanied by the latter and accused no.4, Bhupendra, proceeded towards
the deceased. Accused no.2 took out arevolver from his waist and fired at
the deceased while the other two accused provided cover. All the four accused
then left the place of occurrence in the ambassador car. The deceased died
on the way to the hospital. The plea of alibi by respondent no.2 was

_ disbelieved.

4, Accused no.2 was convicted under Section 302, IPC tb Life
imprisonment and rigorous imprisonment for one year under Section 25(1)(a)
of the Arms Act. He is stated to have served out his sentence. Respondent

no.2 and the other accused were convicted to Life imprisonment under Section
302/34 IPC.

5. The High Court, in the appeal preferred by respondent no.2, acquitted
him, on the reasoning that no overt act of assault was attributed to him, neither

' was he armed, much less gave any exhortation. His mere presence was not

sufficient to sustain the conviction, attributing common intention. It was further
reasoned that respondent no. 2 may have had no knowledge that accused
no.2 was carrying a revolver.

6. The submission on behalf of the appellant was that the High Court has
grossly erred in acquitting respondent no.2. There existed sufficient evidence
to decipher commonintention. Overt act by a co-accused or possession of
weapons by him was not necessary to conclude the existence of common

. intention. There has been inadequate appreciation of evidence to erroneously

conclude Jack of common intention. A well reasoned order of the Trial Court
has erroneously been set aside on a presumptive reasoning based on

+conjectures and surmises beyond the defence of respondent no.2 himseif,

that he may have been unaware of the fact that the co-accused was possessed
of a revolver. It has resulted in grave miscarriage of justice, warranting
interference by this Court.

7. Learned counsel for respondent no. 2 submitted that his mere presence
at the place of occurrence along with other co-accused was not sufficient to
infer common intention. The fact that they may have come together to the
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place of occurrence was also not sufficient. There is no positive evidence that
they all left together after the assault in the same car. No overt act had been
attributed to him and neither was he possessed of any weapon. The High
Court has held that he was not aware of the fact that the co-accused was
carrying arevolver. There was inadequate evidence that he had moved forward
with co-accused towards the deceased after which the assault took place.

8. We have considered the respective submissions, and the materials on
record. The order of acquittal, in the facts and circumstances of the case, is
unsustainable, and deserves to be set aside for reasons discussed hereinafter.

9. Respondent no.2 was the nephew of accused no.3. The meeting had
been called to protest for removal of accused no.3 from the post of Mayor on
. allegations of corruption, with the slogan “Lokman Hatao Congress Bachaao™.
The deceased was the President of the Congress Sewa Dal. Apparently the
accused were peeved with the summoning of the meeting. The evidence of
PWs 1,4, 5, 13 and 23 are consistent that the four accused came together
and alighted from a white Ambassador Car. Accused no.3 identified the
deceased. Respondent no. 2, along with accused nos.2 and 4 moved forward
towards the deceased. Accused no.4 and respondent no.2 then exhorted to
kill the deceased, at which stage accused no.2 pulled out arevolver and fired
at the deceased. In the melee that followed the shooting, the accused persons
fled together in the car. The appellant, PW-1 was the own brother of the
deceased and PW-5, the brother-in-law. There is no reason why they should
be lying and falsely naming another as the assallants shielding the real accused,

especially when they were eye witnesses to the occurrence. Respondent no.2
has not urged false implication, and on the contrary took the defence of alibi,
which has been disbelieved by the trial court and affirmed by the High Court.
The taking of a false plea is an additional aggravating factor against the accused.

10.  Common intention is a state of mind. It is not possible to read a person’s
mind. There can hardly be direct evidence of common intention. The existence
or non-existence of a common intention amongst the accused has to be
deciphered cumulatively from their conduct and behavior in the facts and
circumstances of each case. Events prior to the occurrence as also after, and
during the occurrence, are all relevant to deduce ifthere existed any common
intention. There can be no straight jacket formula. The absence of any overt
act of assault, exhortation or possession of weapon cannot be singularly
determinative of absence of common intention.
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11.  Though judicial precedents with regard to common intention stand
well.entrenched, it will be sufficient to refer State of Rajasthan vs. Shobha
Ram, (2013) 14 SCC 732, observing as follows :-

“10. Insofar as common intention is concerned, it is a state of
mind of an accused which can be inferred objectively from his
conduct displayed in the course of commission of crime and
also from prior and subsequent attendant circumstances. As
observed in Hari Ram v. State of U.P.6 (SCC p. 622, para
21), the existence of direct proof of common intention is seldom
available and, therefore, such intention can only be inferred -
from the circumstances appearing from the proved facts of -
the case and the proved circumstances. Therefore, in order to"
bring home the charge of common intention, the prosecution
has to establish by evidence, whether direct or circumstantial,
that there was plan or meeting of mind of all the accused
persons t0 commit the offence before a person can be
vicariously convicted for the act of the other.” .

12.  Motive for the assault existed because the accused were aggrieved
by the meeting summoned. The assault was planned in a gathering, where

escape would have been easy, in the chaos that would follow the assault, The
accused persons came together in a car to facilitate a quick get-away.
Exhortation was made by respondent no.2, when the accused were at very
close quarters to the deceased. The firing was done from a distance of about
6 inches. The respondent no.2 and accused no.4 provided cover at this time.
There is nothing in the conduct of respondent no.2 to draw any inference that
he was taken by surprise, when the co-accused opened fire. Rather than
provide help to the deceased and his relatives, respondent no.2 immediately
escaped from the place of occurrence in the chaos that followed, indicative of
his awareness of the common intention. The sequence of events, and the manner
in which the occurrence took place, manifests a pre-concerted plan and a
prior meeting of minds. It was not the case of respondent no.2 that he was
taken by surprise and was unaware that the co-accused was carrying a revolver
or that they had no intention to kill the deceased. If common intention by
meeting of minds is established in the facts and circumstances of the case,

there need not be an overt act or possess1on of weapon required, to establish
common intention.
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- 13, In Ramaswami Ayyangar vs. State of Tamil Nadu, (1976) 3 SCC
779, explaining the essence and purport of common intention, it was observed
as follows :- )

“12.....The acts committed by different confederates in the

.criminal action may be different but all must in one way of the
other participate and engage in the criminal enterprise, for
instance, one may only stand guard to prevent any person
coming to the relief of the victim, or may otherwise facilitate
the [commission of crime]. Such a person also commits an
‘act’ as much as his co-participants actually committing the
planned crime.”

14.  Though this Court, in exercise of discretionary jurisdiction under Article
136 of the Constitution, may not interfere with an order of acquittal, reversing
a conviction, yet if it finds that the High Court has completely erred in
appreciation of evidence, has applied the wrong principles to negate common
intention, and has based its conclusions on speculative reasoning, beyond the
defence of the accused himself, justice will demand that the acquittal is reversed.
We, therefore, set aside the order of acquittal passed by the High Court and
restore the order of conviction of respondent no.2 under Section 302/34 IPC
passed by the Sessions Judge. Respondent no.2 has remained in custody only
for 3 years, 10 months and 7 days. He is directed to surrender forthwith for
serving out the remaining period of his sentence.

15.  Theappeal is allowed.

Appeal allowed.

I.L.R. [2017] M.P., 2304
SUPREME COURT OF INDIA
Before Mr. Justice Dipak Misra, Mr. Justice Amitava Roy &
Mr. Justice A.M. Khanwilkar
Cr.A. No. 1279/2017 decided on 9 August, 2017 _

VASANT RAO GUHE ' ...Appellant
Vs. _
STATE OF M.P. ' ...Respondent

A, Prevention of Corruption Act (49 of 1988), Section
13(1)(e) & 13(2) — Disproportionate Assets -~ Hypothetical
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‘Quantification — Presumptions — Public servant convicted for
possessing disproportionate assets — Held — Prosecution admitted that
appellant’s agricultural income and pay for certain months were omitted
while calculating total income — Courts below indulged in voluntary
exercise to quantify/compute the same bremised on presumptions —
Any adverse inference prejudicial to appellant cannot be drawn when
he was not confronted with altered imputation — Appellant subjected to
a trial and was convicted for a charge different from one originally
framed against him and that too on basis of calculations by applying
guess work — Entitled for benefit of doubt — Conviction set aside —
Appeal allowed. - (Paras 12,17, 18 & 22)
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B. Prevention of Corruption Act ( 49 of 1988), Section
13(1)(e) & 13(2) — Conviction — Criminal Trial — Grounds and Principle
— Held —To succeed in criminal trial, prosecution has to pitch its case
beyond reasonable doubt and lodge it in the realm of “must be true”
category and not leaving it in domain of “may be true” — In present
case, prosecution failed to prove beyond reasonable doubt the charge
of criminal misconduct u/S 13(1)(e) and punishable u/S 13(2) of the Act
of 1988. _ (Para 22)

[ geTFIY AT SfEagT (1988 &7 49), €T 13(1)(F) T
13(2) — SI9RIfE — TPs% fiaro — g ve Rigra — athafaifa —
giftss framor 4 W 31 @ fag, afm@ies & soer gewer gfeagaa
HeE ¥ W IR ®Er @7 9o, 9 B 9adT 2 @ afer 83 F
T Bigd gy W gir Afey svhl & R <9 @ g — wwdhae



2306  Vasant Rao Guhe Vs. State of M.P. (SC) LL.R.[2017]M.P.

gHERT N, FIAITT 1988 B Ay B aRr 1301)(F) B AwTd amuNIRere
HIAR AT ORT 13(2) & ATq sve-g JNIY & yfrgaa w28 9§ W
wifga & A faee ver 2 -

Case referred:
(2009) 15 SCC 200.
' JUDGMENT

The Judgment of the Court was delivered by -
Amitava Roy, J. :- The appellant hereby seeks to overturn the judgment
and order dated 09.01.2014 rendered by the High Court of Madhya Pradesh
at Jabalpur in Criminal Appeal No.1573 of 2000 thereby affirming his conviction
under Section 13(1)(e) read with Section 13(2) of the Prevention of Corruption
Act, 1988 (for short, hereinafter to be referred to as the “Act™) and sentence
to undergo R.I. for two years with fine of Rs.20,000/- with default sentence
of R.I. of six months as recorded by the learned Special Judge (Prevention of
Corruption Act) in his verdict dated 07.06.2000 rendered in Special Case
No.2/1996.

2. We have heard Mr. Harsh Parashar, learned counsel for the appellant . -

and Ms. Sakshi Kakkar, learned counsel for the respondent.

3. The genesis of the prosecution lies in a complaint lodged by one Khuman '

Singh, resident of Betul Ganj alleging that the appellant, who at the relevant
time was holding the office of Sub-Engineer, Irrigation Department, Mahi
Project Patelabad, Jhabua, by abusing his post, had acquired assets
disproportionate to his known sources of income. FIR No.136 Dated
27.10.1992 was registered by Inspector, S.P. Establishmment, Divisional
Lokayukt, Office Bhopal and on the completion of the investigation, charge-
sheet was laid to the effect that during the check period between 1970 to
1992, after adjusting the income and expenditure of the appellant, he was
found to have acquired, by applying corrupt and illegal means while acting as
a public servant, assets valued Rs.7,94,033/- which was disproportionate to
his known sources of income and had thereby committed an offence under
Section 13(1)(e) read with Section 13(2) of the Act.

4, The Trial Court framed charge under the aforementioned sections of —

law, punishable under Section 19 of the Act to which the appellant pleaded
“not guilty” and demanded trial.

=
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5. As the charge would disclose, the appellant during the check period
was shown to have eared total income of Rs.1,95,637/- and after accounting
for an expenditure of 60% thereof towards household needs, he had a saving
of Rs.79,045/-. However, having regard to his bank deposits and his
investments in plots and a house that he had built on one of those, he had
expended thereby an amount of Rs.9,89,670/- during the said period and
thus was possessed of assets to the tune of Rs.7,94,033/- which was
disproportionate to his known sources of income.

6. At the trial, the prosecution adduced oral as well as documentary
evidence. Its witnesses included amongst others Inspector A.J. Khan (PW6),
the investigating officer and Inspector, Roop Singh Solanki (PW2) who did
follow up the investigation taking the baton from PW6. As the testimony of
these two witnesses is of decisive bearing and demonstrable from the analysis
of the evidence as embarked upon by the Courts below, reference thereto is
indispensable. -

7. " AlJ. Khan (PW6) stated that after the registration of the First
Information Report, he conducted the preliminary investigation and ascertained
amongst others, the sources of income of the appellant during the check period
and most unportantly admitted not to have added his agricultural income and
the pay for various periods, before handing over the i 1nvest1gat10n to PW2.

8. Roop Singh Solanki (PW2) who took over the investigation from PWé
stated that particulars of the income and expenditure for the check period
were drawn up by him and were handed over to the Superintendent of Police,
Vigilance Commissioner, Bhopal. According to him, the total income of the
appellant from pay during the check period was Rs.1,94,365/- which together
“ with the interest on the amount deposited in the bank was Rs.1,95,637/-.
According to this witness, if 60% expenditure towards household necessities
of the appellant and his family is deducted therefrom, his saving would be of
Rs.79,045/-. In that premise, the expenditure of the appellant having been
recorded to be Rs.9,89,670/-, the charge of disproportionate asset unrelatable
to his known sources of income stood established. This witness in his cross-
examination however admitted that from records, the annual agricultural income
“of the appellant appeared to be Rs.1,25,000/- which for the check period
would amount t6 Rs.27,00,000/-. He conceded further that the appellant’s
salary for the period October 1970 to June 1974, September 1979 to October
1979 and March 1982 to August 1990 had not been accounted for by the
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earlier investigating officer and admitted as well to have notadded the same
to'the income of the appellant. This witness testified as well the agricultural
annual income of Rs.10,000/- from village Baghoda which for the check period
was quantifiable at Rs.2,22,000/- and thus his total agricultural income over
the check period was Rs.29,22,000/-. He admitted as well that this agricultural
income and the omitted amount of pay, if added, there would be no
disproportionate assets qua the appellant.

9. The Trial Court while assessing the evidence on record with particular
reference to the testimony of the aforementioned two witnesses came to a
categorical finding that the prosecution version that the appellant had income
of Rs.1,95,637/- during the check pefiod was patently incorrect. It referred
to documents on record and worked out for itself the pay which the appellant
was supposed to earn during the pefiods omitted by the prosecution and
computed the same to be Rs.1,93,208/- and adding the amount so calculated
concluded that the appellant’s income from pay during the check period was
Rs.3,06,335/- which together with interest on the amount deposited in the
bank came to be Rs.3,07,652/-. It deducted 60% therefrom towards expenses
‘for the family needs and determined Rs.1,23,061/- to be his savings under
‘that head.

10.  Similarly, the Trial Court referred to the documents on record produced
by the prosecution with regard to the agricultural lands at Devbhilai and
Baghoda villages in the name of the appellant, his father and two brothers
which disclosed an annual income of Rs.1,35,000/- including the cost of
agriculture etc. Though the Trial Court initially was reluctant to accept this
figure in absence of any clarification offered by the appellant albeit the evidence
to that effect was produced by the prosecution, it eventually acted on the
same-and after déducting 60% therefrom towards the expenses/investments
was of the view that annually an amount of Rs.54,000/- was available to the
appellant, his father and the two brothers as agricultural income. The Trial
Court quantified 1/4* of this figure in the share of the appellant and computed
it to be Rs.13,500/- per annum which for 22 years i.e. the check period was
calculated at Rs.2,97,000/-. According to it, thus at the end of the check
period the appellant had at his disposal, from agricultural income and saving
from pay Rs.4,20,061/-.

11.  Theleamed Trial Court thereafter adverted to the expenditures incurred
by the appellant towards purchase of plots and construction of house. It also
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did-take account of the deposits.in bank. Referring to the sale. deeds of the
purchase of two plots from Tapti-Housing Cooperative Society Limited in
Multai in the name of his wife and at Gandhi Nagar Colony, Betul, it recorded
that those acquisitions had been made for Rs.7728/- and Rs.18,000/- -
respectively. It accepted the valuation of the house constructed over the land
at Betul at Rs.1,48,918/- and together with the amounts deposited in the
bank in various accounts computed the quantum of expenditure during the
check period to be Rs.6,35,259/-. Though as the Trial Court’s narrative would
reveal, that in defence, the appellant had produced documents in connection
with his immovable property, those were not taken note of in absence of any
clarification in connection therewith. The learned Trial Court was thus of the
view, having regard to the difference in the figures representing the income -
and expenditures, that the charge of acquisition of assets by the appellant
disproportionate to his known sources bf income as levelled stood established
and consequently retumed a finding of guilt under Section 13(1)(¢) and Sectlon
13(2) of the Act and sentenced him as above.

12.  Aswould be evident from the rendition of the learned Trial Court on
the two major heads of income i.e. pay and agricultural earnings, the learned
Trial Court not only of its own embarked on an inquiry to ascertain and compute
‘the figures, it wholly resorted to inferences in calculating the pay for the periods
omitted by the prosecution as well as in fixing 60% expenditure from pay
towards household needs. Its assessment of agricultural income of the appellant
to say the least is also wholly presumptive in absence of any basis whatsoever
in support thereof. This is noticeably in the face of the admission of the
prosecution that while levelling the charge against the appellant of acquisition
of assets disproportionate to his known sources of income, it had not accounted
for his income from pay vis-a-vis the periods omitted as well as from agricultural
earnings. The figures ultimately arrived at by the Trial Court are thus patently
different from those mentioned in the charge framed against the appellant and
on which he was put on trial: In other words, the appellant was convicted by
the Trial Court on a charge different from the-one framed against him and that

too on the basis of ca]culatlons made by it by applying inferences and guess
works.

13.  TheHigh Court in turn, while noticing the aspect that the prosecution
while laying the charge-sheet had not accounted for the income of the appellant
by way of pay for the aforeméntioned periods as well as receipts from
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agricultural lands, reduced the household expenditure from 60% to 50%
thereby generating for the appellant, savings of Rs.1,53,826/-. Qua the
agricultural income as well, the cost of production and other investments were
scaled down to 50% but agreed with the Trial Court that the agricultural lands
being the joint family property of the appellant, his father and two brothers, he
was entitled to only 1/4™ share from the ineome therefrom at the rate of
Rs.16,875/- which was worked out to be Rs.3,71,250/- for the check period.
The High Court thus computed the savings from the salary and the agricultural
earnings to be Rs.5,25,076/-. It endorsed the price of the plots of land as
accepted by the Trial Court but fixed the value of the construction of the
house at Rs.1,63,660.44/-. It then proceeded to decide on the charge by
accepting the total income of the appellant to be Rs.5,25,076/- and the
expenditure as Rs.6,11,121/-, The other segments of the expenditures, as
accepted by the Trial Court, were affirmed by it. Based on this computation,
the High Court having found the appellant to be in possession of Rs.86,045/-
which was in excess of 10% of his income from known sources i.e.
Rs.5,25,076/- affirmed his conviction and sentence as awarded by the learned
Trial Court. It however dismissed the appeal of the State seeking forfeiture of
this amount which the Trial Court too had declined.

14, Inessence, thus the High Court fell in error in the lines similar to that
of the Trial Court, the only variation in approach being reduction in the
percentage of expenditure in household exigencies and investments in agricultural
yields. The vitiating infirmity of speculative assumptions in favour of the
prosecution and against the appellant therefore afflicted its eventual
determination as well.

15.  The learned counsel for the appellant has insistently impeached his
conviction and sentence contending that the prosecution had utterly failed to
adhere to and prove the charge levelled against him and thus the impugned
judgments are liable to be set aside, lest there would be travesty of justice.

Accordmg to the learned counsel, not only the Courts below have grossly
erred, in absence of any admissible basis, to calculate the pay of the appellant
for the periods omitted as well as his-agricultural income, the unfounded
assumption of 60/50% expenditure towards household needs and field
investments have rendered the findings on his income from the known sources
as disclosed by the prosecution patently unsustainable in law and on facts.
This is more so as the relevant witnesses of the prosecution have conceded
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that the income of the appellant from the pay for the periods excluded as well
as agricultural gains, if included, would render the charge of disproportionate
assets non est, he urged. As on the basis of the materials on record, the
prosecution had failed to prove/establish that the appellant during the check
period was in possession of pecurniary resources or property disproportionate
to.his known sources of income, he in law was not called upon to offer any
explanation therefor and on that premise as well, the adverse inference drawn
against him on that count is indefensible.

16.  Per contra, the learned counsel for the respondent/State has urged
that the prosecution having proved the charge beyond all reasonable doubt as
has been endorsed by the concurrent findings of the Courts below, no -
interference with the conviction and sentence is warranted.

'17.  The materials on record and the rival assertions have received our
due attention. The accusations on which the charge under Section 13(1){e)
read with Section 13(2) of the Act were framed against the appellant have
been set out hereinabove. Admittedly, having regard to the ultimate figures as
calculated by the Courts below, the charge has undergone a metamorphosis.
This assumes immense significance in view of the fact that no fresh charge had
been framed on the allegations for which the appellant was eventually convicted
and sentenced. Any adverse inference prejudicial to the appellant was thus
not available in law, he not having been confronted with the altered imputations.
To reiterate, the charge for which the appellant finally has been convicted
wears a new complexion different from the one with which he had been
arraigned at the initiation of the trial. The appellant thus for all practical purposes
was subjected to a trial involving fleeting frames of accusations of which he

was denied prior notice. This is clearly opposed to the fundamental precepts
of a criminal prosecution.

18.  Apart therefrom, both the Courts below indulged in voluntary exercises
to quantify the pay of the appellant for the periods excluded by the prosecution
as well as his agricultural income and that too premised on presumptions with
regard to his possible expenditures/investments and his share in the agricultural
receipts, having regard to the nature of the charge cast on the appellant and
the inflexible burden on the prosecution to unfailingly prove all the ingredients
constituting that same, there could have been no room whatsoever of any
inference or speculation by the Courts below. A person cannot be subjected’
to a criminal prosecution either for a charge which is amorphous and transitory
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and further on evidence that is conjectural or hypothetical. The appellant in
the determinations before the Courts below has been subjected to a trial in
which both the charges and evidence on aspects with vital beanng thereon
 lacked certitude, precision and unambiguity. .

19.  Section 13(1)(e) of the Act deserves extraction at this juncture:
“13. Criminal misconduct by a public servant

—(1) A public servant is said to commit the offence of criminal
misconduct, —

(¢) ifhe or any person on his behalf, is in possession or has,
at any time during the period of his office, been in possession
for which the public servant cannot satisfactorily account, of
pecuniary resources or property disproportionate to his known

sources of income.

Explanation. — For the purposes of this section, “knovwn sources
of income” means income received from any lawful source
and such receipt has been intimated in accordance with the
provisions of any law, rules or orders for the time bemg
applicable to apubhc servant.”

20.  Asordained by the above statutory text, a public servant chargcd of
criminal misconduct thereunder has to be proved by the prosecution to be in
possession of pecuniary resources or property disproportionate to his known
* sources of income, at any time during the period of his office. Such possession
of pecuniary resources or property disproportionate to his known sources of
income may be of his or anyone on his behalf as the case may be. Further, he
would be held to be guilty of such offence of criminal misconduct, if he cannot
satisfactorily account such disproportionate pecuniary resources or property.

The explanation to Section 13(1)(e) elucidates the words “known sources of
income” to mean income received from any lawful source and that such receipt
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has been intimated in accordance with the provisions of law, rules,"orders for
the time being applicable to a public servant. ’

+ 21. From the design and purport of clause (¢) of sub-clause (1) to Section
13, itis apparent that the primary burden to bring home the charge of criminal
misconduct thereunder would be indubitably on the prosecution to establish
beyond reasonable doubt that the public servant either himself or through
anyone else had at any time during the period of his office been in possession
of pecuniary resources or property disproportionate to his known sources of
income and it is only on the discharge of such burden by the prosecution, ifhe
fails to satisfactorily account for the same, he would-be in law held guilty of
such offence. In other words, in case the prosecution fails to prove that the
public servant either by himself or through anyone else had at any time during
the period of his office been in possession of pecuniary resources or property
disproportionate to his known sources of income, he would not be required
in law to offer any explanation to satisfactorily account therefor. A public
servant facing such charge, cannot be comprehended to furnish any explanation
in absence of the proof of the allegation of being in possession by himself or.
+ through someone else, pecuniary resources or property disproportionate to
his known sources of income. As has been held by this Court amongst others
in State of Maharashtra Vs. Dnyaneshwar Laxman Rao Wankhede', everi -
in a case when the burden is on the accused, the prosecution must first prove
the foundational facts. Incidentally, this decision was rendered in a case
involving a charge under Sections 7, 13 and 20 of the Act.

22.  Inview of the materials on record and the state of law as above, we
are thus of the considered opinion that the prosecution has failed to prove.
beyond all reasonable doubt the charge of criminal misconduct under Section
13(1)(e) of the Act and punishable under Section 13(2) thereof against the.
appellant. He is thus entitled to the benefit of doubt. The prosecution to succeed
in a criminal trial has to pitchits case beyond all reasonable doubt and lodge
it in the realm of “must be true” category and not rest contended by leaving it
in the domain of “may be true”, We are thus left unpersuaded by the charge
laid by the prosecution and the adjudications undertaken by the Courts-below.
The conviction and sentence, thus is set aside. The appeal is allowed.

Appeal allowed.

L (2009) 158CC200
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FULL BENCH
Before Mr. Justice Hemant Gupta, Chief Justice,
Mr. Justice C.V. Sirpurkar & Mr. Justice Vijay Kumar Shukla
W.A. No. 581/2017 (Jabalpur) order passed on 4 September, 2017

NITIN PATHAK _ _ ...Appellant

Vs. .

STATE OF M.P. & ors. ...Respondents
A. Constitution — Article 226 — Recruitment Examination

—Answer Key — Judicial Review — Held — In exercise of judicial review,
Court should not refer the matter to Court appointed expert as Courts
have a very limited role particularly when no malafides have been
alleged against the experts constituted to finalize answer key -1t would

normally be prudent, wholesome and safe for Courts to leave the
~ decisions to the academicians and experts. (Para31)
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B. Constitution — Article 226 — Expert Opinion - Judicial
Review — Jurisdiction — Held ~ This Court should not act as a Court of
Appeal in matter of opinion of experts in academic matters - Power of
judicial review is concerned not with the decision but with decision
making process — Court should not under the guise of preventing abuse
of power be itself guilty of usurping power. (Para 32)
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JUDGMENT

The Judgment- of ‘the Court was delivered by :
HEMANT GuPTaA, C.J. :- The matter has been placed before this Bench in
terms of an order passed by a Division Bench of this Court on 29.06.2017
for opinion of the Larger Bench on the following questions:-

“(1) Whether this Court in exercise of power of judicial review
+canrefer the matter to a Court chosen Expert? - ’

(2) Whether in exercise of power of judicial review, this Court
can act as Court of appeal to take a different view than what

has.been finalized as the model answer key by the Examining
Body?

(3) Any other question, which the Larger Bench may think it
appropriate at the time of hearing on the basis of assistance of
the learned counsel for the parties.”

2, The said questions arises out of the fact that a Division Bench of this
Court in a judgment réported as 2014 (3) MPLJ 84 (Chanchal Modi v.
State of M.F. And another) substituted the Model Answer Key finalized by
the Public Service Commission on the basis of opinion of a Former Chief
Justice of this Court after the matter was referred for his opinion.

3. - Aperusal of the judgment of this Court in Chanchal Modi's case
shows that the Public Service Commission sbught opinion of a Former Judge
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of this Court, who did not find any error in the Model Answer Key. But this
Court sought an opinion from a Former Judge of the Supreme Court for the
reason that the opinion of the former Judge is not supported by reasons.
However, the Hon'ble Judge refused to give opinion. Thereafter, this Court
referred the matter to a Former Chief Justice. The former Chief Justice opined
that the Model Answer Key finalized by the Public Service Commission on
certain questions is not correct. The Court directed to correct answer key of
some questions and directed revaluation of the answer sheets. It is in this
background, the Court has held as under:-

“17.  These twojudgments are somewhat direct on the point
in regard to the power of the Court to interfere in correctness
of the answers provided by the expert body. In earlier case,
quoted above, which is.a decision of three Judge bench, the
Court has specifically answered that if the answers provided
by the examiner or expert body are incorrect to the extent that
no reasonablé body of men well versed in the particular subject
would regard as correct, then the Court can interfere. In our
opinion, the principle of law laid down by the Hon'ble Supreme
Court in Kanpur University (supra) [Kanpur University vs.
Samir Gupta (AIR 1983 SC 1230)] is correct and has to be
followed in the present case.

I8, xxx xox o

9. 1tis further well settled principle of law that an opinion
of the expert is not beyond the peril of judicial review and it
would certainly not be so when the statutory authority
transgresses its jurisdiction. It is held by the Hon'ble Supreme
Court in the case of ICFAI vs. Council of the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India, reported in (2007) 12 SCC

210 and in the case of Vasu Dev Singh vs. Union of India,

reported in 2006 (12) SCC 753.”

4. Itis in this background, the Division Bench was not in agreement with
the view expressed by the Bench in Chanchal Modi's case and therefore the
matter has been referred to the Larger Bench.

5. The challenge in the writ petition is to the result of the post' of Taxation
Assistant for which an advertisement was issued in the month of March, 2010

¥
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for filling up of 275 posts, as up-dated, by Madhya Pradesh Public Service:
Commission (for short “the Commission™). As per the Scheme of examination,
there were two question papers of objective type; one in the subject of General
Studies of 150 marks and other of Commerce of 300 marks. The examination
was conducted on 25.07.2010. The appellant was successful in the examination
and was called for viva-voce teston 18.01.2011.

6. Since the appellant was not appointed in terms of the final result
declared, he sought information in respect of his atternpt in the examination,
which was accepted and total marks in both the written papers were supplied.

7. The appellant filed a writ petition before this Court. In terms of direction
issued, the answer-sheets of the appellant and model answer sheets have
been provided on 06.06.2012. The grievance of the appellant is that after
cross-checking and comparing the answers attempted by the appellants with
authentic books and literature in this regard, he found that some of the Answer
Keys have been wrongly set in the médel answer sheet and thus he has
sustained loss of 18 marks. He has disputed the answer key of eight questions
in the subject of General Studies and 5 in Commerce.

8. The stand of the Public Service Commission in the reply is that originally
Model Answer Keys are prepared by setters and Committee of Experts in all

_subjects. The model answers have been examined and have been found to be
correct except question No.99 in the subject of Commerce Second Paper
and Question No.49 in General Studies. The answer-sheets have been
examined as per corrected model answers after verification from a Committee
of Experts. It was stated tHat the report of Committee will be placed for
perusal of the Court at the time of final hearing. It is also pointed out that
there was no negative marking; therefore, final result is not affected.

9. The writ petition filed by the appellant was dismissed on 15.07.2016
wherein, the appellant relied upon a judgment of this Court in Chanchal Modi's
case. The writ petition was dismissed inter alia on the ground the persons
appointed in pursuance of the selection process have not been impleaded as
party as vitally affected person and secondly that there is no report of expert
that the model answers were palpably wrong and that the life of the panel has
exhausted much before the filing of the petition therefore upsetting settled
position will not be in the interest ofjustice:

10.  Learned counsel for the appelh;mt relies upon an interim order passed
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in W.A. No.439/2012 in Chanchal Modi's case on24.01.2013. The Division
Bench remitted the matter to a Former Judge of Supreme Court holding that if
answers finalized by the Public Service Commission is per se illegal, then this
Court has jurisdiction to intervene in the matter as laid down by the Hon'ble
Supreme Court in Kanpur University, Through Vice-Chancellor and Others
v. Samir Gupta and Others (1983) 4 SCC 309. It is thus contended that
similar direction is required to be issued in the present appeal as well.

11.  Itiscontended that the appellant is seeking intervention of this Court
for finalization of Model Answer Key by an Expert or Committee of Experts
so that a candidate who has answered the questions correctly is not deprived
of the selection. Reliance is placed upon Samir Gupta's case wherein, while
examining the multiple choice questions, the Court held as under:-

“16.  Shri Kacker, who appears on behalf of the University,
contended that no challenge should be allowed to be made to
the correctness of a key answer unless, on the face of it, it is
wrong. We agree that the key-answer should be assumed to
be correct unless it is proved to be wrong and that it should
not be held to be wrong by an inferential process of reasoning
or by a process of rationalisation. It must be clearly
demonstrated to be wrong, that is to say, it must be such as no
reasonable body of men well-versed in the particular subject
would regard as correct. The contention of the University is
falsified in this case by a large number of acknowledged text-
books, which are commonly read by students in U.P. Those
text-books leave no room for doubt that the answer given by
the students is correct and the key answer is incorrect.

17. KX COXXX ploed

18.  Ifthe State Government wants to avoid a recurrence
of such lapses, it should compile under its own auspices a text-
book which should be prescribed for students desirous of
appearing for the combined Pre-Medical Test. Education has
more than its fair share of politics, which is the bane of our
Universities. Numerous problems are bound to arise in the
compilation of such a text-book for, various applicants will
come forward for doing the job and forces and counter-forces
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will wage a battle on the question as to who should be
commissioned to do the work. If the State can succeed in
overcoming those difficulties, the argument will not be open to
+ the students that the answer contained in the text-book which
is prescribed for the test is not the correct answer. Secondly,
a system should be devised by the State Government for
moderating the key answers furnished by the paper setters.
Thirdly, if English questions have to be translated into Hindi, it
is not enough to appoint an expert in the Hindi language as a
translator. The translator must know the meaning of the scientific
terminology and the art of translation. Fourthly, in a system of
'Multiple Choice Objective-type test', care must be taken to
see that questions having an ambiguous import are not set in
the papers. That kind of system of examination involves merely -
the tick-marking of the correct answer. It leaves no scope for
reasoning or argument. The answer is 'yes' or 'no'. That is
why the questions have to be clear and unequivocal. Lastly, if
the attention of the University is drawn to any defect in a
key answer or any ambiguity in a question set in the
examination, prompt and timely decision must be taken
by the University to declare that the suspect question will
be excluded fiom the paper and no marks assigned to it. "

(Emphasis supplied)

12.  Itisargued that in view of the aforesaid judgment, in exercise of power:
of judicial review, this Court should refer the matter to the Committee of
Experts to examine the model answer key finalized by the Public Services
Commission as some of the answers are palpably wrong. It is contended that
the appellant was given time to submit objections to the model answer key
finalized by the Commission but such objections could not be supported by
any reason or document and therefore an appropriate opportunity of hearing
should have been granted to the Objectors to explain that the model answer
is not correct. It is also argued that in terms of Section 45 of the Evidence
Act, the opinion of Experts on a question of science and art is relevant,
therefore, the opinion of Expert is required to determine the correctness of
the answer key finalized by the Commission. It is also argued that keeping in
view the provisions of Order 26 Rule 10A of Code of Civil Procedure, the
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Court should refer the matter for scientific investigation as such investigations
in the matter of correctness of answer key cannot be conveniently conducted
by the Court. The appellant relied upon the judgments reported as (2007) 12
SCC 210 (Institute of Chartered Financial Analysis of India and others
v. Council of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and others);
and, (2006) 12 SCC 753 (Vasu Dev Singh and Others v. Union of India
and Others) in support of the contention. The reliance has also been placed
be upon a Single Bench judgment of this Court in Rekha Sachdev vs. State
of Madhya Pradesh and Others passed in W.P.No.1506/2012(5) on
07.12.2012 wherein this Court has directed re-tabulation of entire result of
the preliminary examination as there were wrong questions and marks have
been awarded on the basis of wrong answers to the candidates. The selection
in the said case was of M.P. Civil Services Commission 2010.

13.  Onthe other hand, learned counsel for the State refers to a judgment
(2001) 3 SCC 328 (Buddhi Nath Chaudhary and others v. Abahi Kumar
and others); (2010) 6 SCC 759 (H.P. Public Service Commission v.
Mukesh Thakur); 2003 (3) MPLJ 368 (Neha Indurkhya v. M.P. Board of
Secondary Education, Bhopal)”; (2000 MPHT 95) Pranshu Indurkhya
vs. State of MP and others; Karnataka High Court Judgment reported as
'2004 (3) Karnataka Law journal 218 (Dr. Praveen Kumar 1. Kusubi Vs.
Rajiv Gandhi University of Health Sciences and Others) ; and, 2 judgment
of Division Bench of Patna High Court in L.P.A. No.1235/2016 decided on
4th October, 2016 reported in 2016 SCC Online Pat 5800 (Ashutosh Kumar
Jha and others vs. The of Bihar & Others) in support of the plea that the
answer key finalized by the experts should not be interfered with in exercise
of power of judicial review as the opinionrof the experts has to be respected
"and this Court in exercise of power of judicial review under Article 226 of the
Constitution of India cannot substitute the opinion of Experts either by itself
or seeking an opinion of a Court appointed Expert. It is contended that neither
Court has expertise or the resource to choose experts of the subject and to
seek an opinion when the Commission, a specialized examining body having a
pool of experts in different subjects, is competent to'verify the correctness of
Model Answer Keys. In the present case, the Model Answer Key was
examined by Committee of Experts and such Committee of Experts has found
two questions to be incorrect; one in General Studies and one in Commerce.
Therefore, in exercise of power of judicial review this Court is not called upon
to appoint another expert to examine the Model Answer Key finalized by the



LLR.[2017]M.P. Nitin Pathak Vs. State of MP. (FB) 2321

Commission. In addition thereto, the reliance is placed upon Supreme Court
judgment report as (2008) 1 SCC 683 (Divisional Manager, Aravali Golf
Club and Another v. Chander Hass and Another), wherein the scope of
interference in exercise of writ jurisdiction has been delineated.

14. Wehave heard learned counsel for the parties.

15. Learned counsel for the appellant could not refer to any judgment of

the Hon'ble Supreme Court wherein the Court has interfered with the model
answer key on the basis of opinion of a Court appointed Expert. However, it
is argued that in terms of Section 45 of the Evidence Act and the provisions of
Order 26 Rule 10A of CPC and also in exercise of inherent writ jurisdiction
of this court, to do complete justice, this Court has jurisdiction to appointan .
Expert and direct the Commission to re-tabulate result on the basis of opinion
of such Expert. As mentioned above, the appellant derives support in Samir
Gupta's case,

16.  The reliance of the Appellant is upon the Judgment in Institute of
Chartered Financial Analysts of India case (Supra), wherein the court held
as under:- ’

“35. Interpretation of law is the job of the superior court.

Anopinion of an expert is not beyond the pale of judicial review.

It would certainly not be so when the statutory authority
transgresses its jurisdiction. A decision taken in excess of
jurisdiction would render the same a nullity. (See: Vasu Dev

Singh v. Union of India — (2006) 12 SCC 753)

17. InBuddhi Nath Chaudhary s case (supra), the appointment as Motor
Vehicle Inspector conducted by Bihar Public Service Commission was subject
matter of challenge before the Patna High Court. The High Court directed the
matter to be considered by the Transport Commissioner. The Supreme Court
held that if the selection of the candidates was improper, the same should
have been set aside with appropriate directions to redo the process of
selection, but the Transport Commissioner cannot be entrusted with the process
of examining the qualification of the candidates. It was held as under:-

“5.'We fail to understand as to how the matter of selection
and appointment to a post could have been entrusted to the
Transport Commissioner when the Commission had been
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specifically entrusted with such a job and such Commission,
which is an autonomous authority having a constitutional statizs,
has selected the candidates whose appointments were in
challenge. If the selection of these candidates was improper
the same should have been set aside with appropriate directions
to redo the process of selection or at best, the High Court
could have directed the Government, which is the appointing
authority, to take appropriate steps in the matter. However, in
the facts and circumstances of this case, we need not dilate on
‘this aspect nor do we need to examine various elaborate
contentions addressed by either side. Suffice to say that all the
selected candidates, who are in employment, except one, -
possess necessary qualification and in regard to that one
excepted candidate, it cannot be disputed that he possesses
-equivalent qualification. Thus the dispute narrows downto one
aspect, that is, the selected candidates may not possess
necessary experience which is now required to be examined
by the Transport Commissioner.”

18.  In Mukesh Thakur's case, one of the question examined was whether
it is permissible for the Court to take upon itself the task to examine
discrepancies and inconsistency in question paper and evaluation thereof
assigned to examiner — selection board. The Supreme Court held that the
Court cannot take upon itself the task of statutory authority. It was held as
under:- ' '

“20. In view of the above, it was not permissible for the High
Court to examine the question paper and answer sheets itself,
particularly, when the Commission had assessed the inter se
merit of the candidates. If there was a discrepancy in framing
the question or evaluation of the answer, it could be for all the
candidates appearing for the examination and not for
respondent no.1 only. It is a matter of chance that the High
Court was examining the answer sheets relating to law. Had it
been other subjects like physics, chemistry and mathematics,

- ‘we are unable to understand as to whether such a course could
have been adopted by the High Court,

19.  The Court also held that in the absence of any provisions under the

»
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Statute or statutory Rules and Regulations, the Court should not generally
direct re-evaluation. Reference was made to (1984) 4 SCC 27 (Maharashira
State Board of Secondary and Higher Secondary Education v. Paritosh
Bhupeshkumar Sheth); and, (2004) 6 SCC 714 (Pramod Kumar Srivastava
* v, Bihar Public Service Commission) and other judgments.

20.  Inajudgment reported as (2014) 14 SCC 523 (Central Board of
Secondary Education through Secretary, All India Pre-Medical/Pre-Dental
Entrance Examination and others v. Khushboo Shrivastava and others),
the Supreme Court held that the High Court in exercise of power under Article -
226 of the Constitution could not have substituted its own views of the answers
of the candidates for that of the examiners and thus High Court has exceeded
its power of judicial review under Article 226 of the Constitution. The Court
held as under:-

“11. In our considered opinion, neither the leamed Single Judge
nor the Division Bench of the High Court could have substituted
his/its own viwes for that of the examiners and awarded two
-additional marks to Respondent 1 for the two answers in
exercise of powers of judicial review under Article 226 of the-
Constitution as these are purely academic matters. This Court
in Maharashtra State Board of Secondary and Higher
Secondary Education v. Paritosh Bhupeshkumar Sheth
(1984) 4 SCC 27) has observed: (SCC pp. 56-57, para 29)

“29. ........As has been repeatedly pointed out
by this Court, the court should be extremely
reluctant to substitute its own views as to what
is wise, prudent and proper in relation to
academic matters in preference to those
formulated by professional men possessing
technical expertise and rich experience of actual
day-to-day working of educational institutions -
and thie departments controlling them. It will
be wholly wrong for the court to make a
pedantic and purely idealistic approach to the
problems of this nature, isolated from the actual
realities and grassroots problems involved in
the working of the system and unmindful of the

1
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consequences which would emanate if a purely
idealistic view as opposed to a pragmatic one
were to be propounded.”

-

21.  In another judgment reported as (2007) 8 SCC 242 (Secy. W.B.
Council of Higher Secondary Education v. Ayan Das and others)
considering the Samir Gupta's case it was found that revaluation is ararity and
can be done only in exceptional cases. The Court held as under:- '

“I1.  Same would be a rarity and it can only be done in
exceptional cases. The principles set out in Maharashira
Board case.[(1984) 4 SCC 271 has been followed
.subsequently in Pramod Kumar Srivastava v. Chairman,
Bihar Public Service Commiission [(2004) 6 SCC 714],
" Board of Secondary Education v. Pravas Ranjan Panda
[(2004) 13 SCC 383] and President, Board of Secondary
Education v. D. Suvankar [(2007) 1 SCC 603], '

12.  Inview ofthe settled positionin léw, the orders of the
learned Single Judge and the Division Bench cannot be
sustained and stand quashed.”

22.  The Division Bench of this Court in a case reported in 2012 (4) MPLJ
388 (Radika d/o Vinay Kumar Dubey and others v. Professional
Examination Education Board, Bhopal and another) followed the earlier
judgment of Division Bench reported as 2003 (3)MPLJ 368 (Neha Indurkhya
v M.F. Board of Secondary Education, Bhopal) that when an Expert body
has already examined the questions, it is not open for the Court to interfere
into the matter. The Court held as under :-

"12. Thus, in our considered view, when an expert body
has already examined the questions, it is not open for the Courts
to interfere into the matter. A Division Bench of this Court at
Jabalpur in the case of Ankit Tiwari vs. State of M.P. and
another (supra) has already dealt with the matter and has
reached to the conclusion that in view of the law laid down by
the Supreme Court in the case of Secretary, All India Pre-
Medical/Pre-Dental Examination, C.B.S.E. and others vs,
Khushboo Shrivastava and others, Civil Appeal No. 7024 of
2011 decided on 17-8-2011 no interference is needed in the
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matter. We find no'ground to take a different view. It is now
well settled that the Court should not interfere in matters
involving academic expertise. It would not be right for the Court
to sit in judgment over the decision of the University relating
to the academic question because it is not a matter on which
the Court possesses any expertise. It is wise and safe for the
Courts to leave the decision of academic matters to experts
who are more familiar with the problems they face than the
Courts generally are. See — Rajendra Prasad Mathur vs.

. Karnataka University and another, 1986 (supp!) SCC 740.
The University of Mysore vs. C:D. Govinda, AIR 1965 SC .

491, Tariq Islam vs. Aligarh Muslim University, 2001(8) SCC
546."

2325

The Division Bench of Patna High Court in Ashutosh Kumar Jha's
case held that it is not permissible for the High Court in exercise of powers of
judicial review to take upon itself a task of constitutional/statutory bodies.
The appointment of an Expert is for aid of the Court and therefore, the question
whether the High Court reexamines a question itself or through an Expert, itis

impermissible for the High Court to take upon the task of a Commission. The
Court held as under:- .

“30. Mr. Lalit Kishore, learned Senior Counsel, appears .

to be right in his submission while placing his reliance on the
Supreme Court's decision, in Mukesh Thakur (supra), in order
to make out a case that this Court, in exercise of power of

* judicial review under Article 226 of the Constitution of India,
_ may not got into the correctness or otherwise of the wisdom

of the Experts Body, which has been accepted by the
Commission. In our considered view, it is not permissible for
the High Court, in exercise of power of judicial review under.
Article 226 of the Constitution of India, to take upon itself the
task of the constitutional/statutory bodies.”

The Court conc;luded asunder:

“43, Inthe background of aforementioned discussions, we
conclude as follows: ' '

@  The éppellants have failed to plead and mgke out a
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case that the action of the respondent-Commission of deletion
of certain questions, which, according to them, were wrongly
deleted and Model Key Answers, which, according to
appellants, were incorrectly suggested by the Expert Body, in
any manner, prejudiced their chance of being selected inasmuch
as they have maintained silence with respect to their own
response to such questions in the examination hall or at the
time of availing opportunity of raising objections invited by the
Commission after the preliminary test was held.

i) x pod X
() xx I ¢ pi'e

(iv) In view of Supreme Court's decision, in Mukesk
Thakur (supra) and the decision of this Court, in Ravindra
Kumar Singh (supra), we are of the considered view that it is
not permissible for this Court to take upon itself the task of
examiner/Selection Board and examine discrepancies and
- Inconsistencies in the question papers and evaluation thereof,
The said decision of the Supreme Court, in Mukesh Thakur
(supra), went unnoticed by the Division Bench of this Court,
in Kumod Kumar (supra), relied upon on behalf of the
appellants.” - '

24.  ASingle Bench of Karnataka High Courtinaj udgment in the case of
Dr. Praveen Kumar I, Kusubi (supra) examined the scope of interference in
the answer-key finalized by the University. It was held that in academic matter
the University’s word is the last word. The Court has neither the necessary
expertise nor infrastructure to go into the correctness of such decision. It was
held as under in paragraph 20:-

“20. As long as the procedure adopted in evaluation of these
answer scripts are not arbitrary, reasonable, consistent, then
the system cannot be found fault with. As long as all the students
who took the examination are treated equally, then they cannot
have any grievance whatsoever, It is settled law that in academic
matter, the University’s word is the last word. Court neither
has the necessary expertise nor infrastructure to go into the
correctness of such decision. This Court cannot sit in judgment
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over those findings and examine the material on record and -

arrive at its own conclusion as a Court of appeal. It is also not
possible in such circumstances to go on appointing the
committees after committees to go into the correctness of the
decision of the committee. There won’t be any end to this
exercise. Therefore, a key answer should be assumed to be

2327

correct unless it is proved to be wrong.-It should not be held -

to be wrong by an inferential process of reasoning or by a
process of rationalization. It must be clearly demonstrated to
be wrong, that is to say, it must be such as no reasonable
body of men well-versed in the particular subject would regard
as correct. If it is a case of doubt, unquestionably key answer

is to be preferred. Only if it is beyond the realm of doubt, .

possibly judicial review-is permissible.”

The argument of learned counsel for the appellant that in view of
“Section 45 of the Evidence Act and on the basis of prm01p1es of Order 26
Rule 10A of CPC, the Court is enjoined to seek opinion of the experts is not”
tenable. The role of this Court while exercising the power of judicial review is
not to collect evidence for and against any party. This Court in exercise of
power of judicial review examines the decision making-process and not the
decision itself. Reference may be made to Tata Cellular v. Union of India,
(1994) 6 SCC 651, wherein, it is inter-alia held that the power of judicial
- review is in respect of decision making process. The Court held as under:-

“74. Judicial review is concerned with reviewing not the merits
of the decision in support of which the application for judicial
review is made, but the decision-making process itself.

75.In Chief Constable of the North Wales Police v. Evans
[(1982) 3 AIlER 141, 154] Lord Brightman said;

“Judicial review, as the words imply, is not an
appeal from a decision, but a review of the
manner in‘which the decision was made.

*° * *
Judicial review is concerned, not with the
decision, but with the decision-making process.
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Unless that restriction on the power of the court

is observed, the court will in my view, under

the guise of preventing the abuse of power, be
- itself guilty of usurping power.”

In the same case Lord Hailsham commented on the purpose
of the remedy by way of judicial review under RSC, Ord. 53
in the following terms:

“This remedy, vastly increased in extent, and
rendered, over a long period in recent years,
of infinitely more convenient access than that
provided by the old prerogative writs and -
actions for a declaration, is intended to protect
the individual against the abuse of power by a
wide range of authorities, judicial, quasi-
judictal, and, as would originally have been
thought when I first practised at the Bar,
administrative. It is not intended to take away
from those authorities the powers and
discretionis properly vested in them by law and
to substitute the courts as the bodies making
‘the decisions. It is intended to see that the
relevant authorities use their powers in a proper
manner (p. 1160).”

InR. v. Panel on Take-overs and Mergers, ex p Datafin plc
(1987) 1 All ER 564, Sir John Donaldson, M.R. commented:

“An application for judicial review is not an appeal.”

In Lonrho plc v. Secretary of State for Trade and Industry
(1989) 2 All ER 609, Lord Keith said:

“Judicial review is a protection and not a weapon.”

It is thus different from an appeal. When hearing an appeal the - -
Court is concerned with the merits of the decision under appeal.

In Amin v. Entry Clearance Officer (1983) 2 All ER 864,
Lord Fraser observed that:

“Judicial review is concemed not with the merits



LL.R.[2017]M.P, Nitin Pathak Vs. State of M.P. (FB) 2329

of a decision but with the manner in which the
decision was made.. .. Judicial review is ennrely
different from an ordinary appeal. It is made
effective by the court quashing the
- administrative decision without substituting its -
own decision, and is to be contrasted with an
appeal where the appellate tribunal substitutes
its own decision on the merits for that of the
administrative officer,”

76. In R. v. Panel on Take-overs and Mergers, ex p in
Guinness plc (1990 1 QB 146: (1989) 1 All ER 509, Lord

" Donaldson, ML.R. referred to the judicial review jurisdiction
as being supervisory or ‘longstop” jurisdiction. Unless that
restriction on the power of the court is observed, the court
will, under the guise of preventing the abuse of power, be itself
guilty of usurping power.”

- 26. Thereforc while exercising the power ofjudicial review, this Court is
not to take upon itself the revaluation of Model Answer Key either itself or
through Court appointed Expert, who is none else buta delegate of the Court.
The Court in exercise of power of judicial review, if sufficient material exists
to return a finding that Model Answer Key is palpably incorrect that no .
reasonable person would find the same to be acceptable, than the Court could
direct the examining body to re-examine the answer key but cannot take over
the function of the Commission in finalizing the answer key itself.

27.  The Hon’ble Supreme Court in a judgment reported as Aravalz Golf
Club v. Chander Hass, (2008) 1 SCC 683 that in the name of judicial activism
judges cannot cross their limits and try to take over functions which belong to
another organ of the State. The Court held as under -

“17.  Before parting with this case we would like to make
some observations about the limits of the powers of the
judiciary. We are compelled to make these observations
because we are repeatedly coming across cases where judges
are unjustifiably trying to perform executive or legislative
functions. In our opinion this is clearly unconstitutional. In the
name of judicial activism judges cannot cross their limits and
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try to take over functions which belong t6 another organ ofthe-
State,

18.  Judges must exercise judicial restraint and must not
encroach into the executive or legislative domain, vide Indian
Drugs & Pharmaceuticals Ltd. v. Workmen (2007) 1 SCC
408; and S.C. Chandrav. State of Jharkhand (2007) 8 SCC
279 (see concurring judgment of M. Katju, J.).

19.  Under our Constitution, the legislature, the executive

and the judiciary all have their own broad spheres of operation.

Ordinarily it is not proper for any of these three organs of the-
State to encroach upon the domain of another, otherwise the

delicate balance in the Constitution will be upset, and there

will be a reaction.

20.  Judges must know their limits and must not try to run
the Government. They must have modesty and humility, and
not behave like emperors. There is broad separation of powers
under the Constitution and each organ of the State—the
legislature, the executive and the judiciary—must have respect
for the other and must not encroach into each other’s domains:

21.  Thetheory of separation of powers first propounded
by the French thinker Montesquieu (in his book The Spirit of
Laws) broadly holds the field in India too. In Chapter X1 of
his book The Spirit of Laws Montesquieu writes:

“When the legislative and executive
powers are united in the same person, or in the
same body of Magistrates, there can be no
liberty; because apprehensions may arise, lest
the same monarch or senate should enact
tyrannical laws, to execute them in a tyrannical

manner.

Again, there is no liberty, if the
judicial power be not separated from the
legislative and executive. Were it joined with
the legislative, the life and liberty of the
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subject would be exposed to arbitrary
control; for the judge would be then the
legislator. Were it joined to the executive
power, the judge might behave with violence
and oppression.

There would be an end of everything,
were the same man or the same body, whether
of the nobles or of the people, to exercise those :
three powers, that of enacting laws, that of
executing the public resolutions, and of trying
the causes of individuals.”

- (Emphasis supplied)

We fully agree with the view expressed above. Montesquieu’s
warning in the passage abovequoted is particularly apt and
timely for the Indian judiciary today, since very often it is rightly
criticised for “overreach” and encroachment into the domain
of the other two organs.”

28.  Thescope of interference in academic matters has been examined by
the Supreme Court in many cases. In Basavaiah (Dr.) v. Dr. H L. Ramesh,
(2010) 8 SCC 372 : (2010) 2 SCC (L&S) 640, the Court held as under:-

“38.  Wehave dealt with the aforesaid judgments to reiterate
and reaffirm the legal position that in the academic matters,
the courts have a very limited role particularly when no mala
fides have been alleged against the experts constituting the
Selection Committee. It would normally be prudent,
wholesome and safe for the courts to leave the decisions to
the academicians and experts. As a matter of principle, the
courts should never make an endeavour to sit in appeal over
the decisions of the experts. The courts must realise and
appreciate its constraints and limitations in academic matters.

29.  Supreme Court in another judgment reported as University Grants
Commission v. Neha Anil Bobde, (2013} 10 SCC 519, held that in academic
matters, unless there is a clear violation of statutory provisions, the regulations
or the notification issued, the courts shall keep their hands off since those
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issues fall within the domain of the experts the Court. The Court held as under:

“31. We are of the view that, in academic matters, unless
there is a clear violation of statutory provisions, the regulations
or the notification issued, the courts shall keep their hands off
since those issues fall within the domain of the experts. This
Court in University of Mysore v. C.D. Govinda Rao AIR
1965 SC 491; Tarig Islam v. Aligarh Muslim University
(2001) 8 SCC 546; and, Rajbir Singh Dalal v. Chaudhary
- Devi Lal University (2008) 9 SCC 284, has taken the view
that the court shall not generally sit in appeal over the opinion
expressed by the expert academic bodies and normally it is .
wise and safe for the courts to leave the decision of the academic
experts who are more familiar with the problem they face, than
the courts generally are. UGC as an expert body has been
entrusted with the duty to take steps as it may think fit for the
determination and maintenance of standards of teaching,
examination and research in the university. For attaining the
said standards, it is open to UGC to lay down any “qualifying
criteria”, which has a rational nexus to the object to be
achieved, that is, for maintenance of standards of teaching,
examination and research. The candidates declared eligible for
Lectureship may be considered for appointment as Assistant
Professors in universities and colleges and the standard of such
a teaching faculty has a direct nexus with the maintenance of
standards of education to be imparted to the students of the
universities and colleges. UGC has only implemented the
opinion of the experts by laying down the qualifying criteria,
which cannot be considered as arbitrary, illegal or

discriminatory or violative of Article 14 of the Constitution of
India.”

30. Thus, we are of the opinion that the judgment of this Court in Chanchal
Modi’s case (supra) does not lay down correct law.

31.  Inview ofthe discussion above, we hold that in exercise of power of
Judicial Review, the Court should not refer the matter to court appointed
expert as the courts have a very limited role particularly when no mala fides
have been alleged against the experts constituted to finalize answer key. It
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would normally be prudent, wholesome and safe for the courts to leave the
decisions to the academicians and experts.

32.  Inrespect of the second question, this Court does not and should not
act as Court of Appeal in the matter of opinion of experts in academic matters
as the power of judicial review is concerned, not with the decision, but with
the decision-making process. The Court should not under the guise of
preventing the abuse of power be itself guilty of usurping power. |

" 33.. The third question does not arise as no other question was said to be
arising in the present reference.

34.  The matter be placed before the Bench as per roster in view of the

opinion of this Court on the questions of law having been rendered in the
above manner.

Order accordingly.
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WRIT PETITION
Before Mr. Justice Vijay Kumar Shukla
W.P. No. 24669/2003 (Jabalpur) decided on 9 May, 2017

RUDRAPAL SINGH CHANDEL ....Petitioner

Vs. )

STATE OF M.P. & ors. ...Respondents
A. Service Law — Civil Services (Classification, Control

and Appeal) Rules, M.P. 1966, Rule 14(23) and Police Regulations,
M.P., Regulation 226 & 228 — Dismissal from Service — Opportunity of
Hearing — Natural Justice — Petitioner, a police constable was
dismissed from service under a departmental enquiry — Appeal by
. petitioner was also dismissed — Challenge to — Held — Although the
victim girl turned hostile, conduct of petitioner who was a member of
disciplinary force, uttering obscene and indecent words, causing
physical and mental harassment to the victim girl in a drunken condition
in public domain has certainly damaged the image of Police Department
—In the instant case, there was proper consideration of statement of
prosecution witnesses and medical evidence - Punishment of dismissal
is not shockingly disproportionate— No interference warranted under
Writ Jurisdiction — Petition dismissed. - (Paras 17, 24 & 25)
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B. Departmental Enquiry — Degree of Proof — Doctrine of
Preponderance of Probabilities — Past Conduct & Service Record —
Held — It is established law that in departmental enquiry, degree of
proof as required in a criminal case whére prosecution has to prove the
charge beyond doubt is not required to prove misconduct —In the instant
case, inebriation of petitioner was proved by Doctor — Doctrine of
preponderance of probabilities is applied in such cases — Apex Court
held that in case of misconduct of grave nature or indiscipline, authority
may consider the past conduct and service record of the delinquent
employee. (Para 19 & 23)
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C. Constitution- Article 226 — Jurisdiction of Court — Held — It
is trite law that Courts are not to act as an appellate authority and scope
of interference in matter of departmental enquiry is limited, unless it is
established that there is violation of statutory provisiens or principles of
natural justice, or the findings are manifestly perverse. (Para 16)
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ORDER

Vuay KuMAR SHUKLA, J. :- This petition was originally filed under
Section 19 of the State Administrative Tribunal Act, 1985 before the erstwhile
M.P. State Administrative Tribunal, Bhopal and after abolition of the Tribunal
the matter was transferred to this Court and got registered as a writ petition.

2. In the instant petition, the petitioner has challenged the legal propriety
of the order dated 7-4-1999 (Annexure-A/1) whereby he has been removed
from the services from the post of Constable in the Police Department and

has also challenged the order passed by the Appellate Authority (Annexure-
" A/2) whereby the appeal has been dismissed and the order of removal passed
by the Superintendent of Police has been maintained.

3. The facts lying in a narrow compass, succinctly stated are that the
petitioner was appointed as a Constable in the District Force on 22-12-1995,
He was sent for training which was successfully completed. It is pleaded that
while he was working as a Constable.in the Police Station, Seoni Malwa,
District Hoshangabad a departmental enqu1ry was initiated against him and
the petitioner was charge-sheeted.

4. Reply to the said charge-sheet was filed by the petitioner refuting the
charges levelled against him. The respondents had taken a decision to conduct
a departmental enquiry against the petitioner and the Range Inspector was
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appointed as an Enquiry Officer. It is submitted that on the basis enquiry report,
the disciplinary authority passed an order of removal taking into consideration
the enquiry report and the past track record of the petitioner. The appellate
Authority dismissed the appeal without proper appreciation of the facts and
the evidence. Counsel for the petitioner submitted that the enquiry officer,
disciplinary authority and the appellate authority have acted in the present
case in violation of the provisions of Rule 14 of the M.P. Civil Services
(Classification, Control and Appeal Rules), 1966 [hereinafter referred to as
‘the 1966 Rules'] and also the provisions envisaged in the .P. Police
Regulations (for short “The Regulations'). It is submitted that in the present
case the Enquiry Officer has failed to prepare the report as required under
Sub-rule (23) of Rule 14 of the ' 1966 Rules'. The Enquiry Officer is required
to assess the evidence in the light of the aforesaid provision as regards the
article of charges as the provisions of Rule 14 especially, Sub-rule (23) of the
Rule is parimateria with the provisions of the Police Regulation 228 and the
Enquiry Officer is under obligation to assess the evidence and to record reasons
before coming to the conclusion in regard to the alleged charges.

5. Learned counsel for the petitioner further submitted that in the present
case the enquiry officer had reproduced the charges and without assessing the
evidence and ascribing any reason held that the charges No.1 to 3 framed -
against the petitioner are proved. It is strenuously urged by him that in the
present case the victim-girl has not supported the case of the department and
there was no material to establish the charges. However, on the basis of
surmises and conjectures the Enquiry Officer held the charges proved because
the petitioner being a police constable had influenced the complainant who
had turned hostile and did not corroborate the allegations. It is also submitted
that the enquiry officer further mentioned in the report that the acts of the
. petitioner in the present case has tarnished the image of the Police and also
created disturbance in law and order of the town. On the basis of the aforesaid
illegal enquiry report the disciplinary authority without application of mind and
appreciation of facts and evidence of the case in proper perspective, passed
the impugned order on the basis of the past record. It is submitted by him that
as per judgment passed by the Apex Court in the case of the State of Mysore
vs. K. Manche Gowda, AIR 1964 SC 506 and M. V. Bijlani vs. Union of
India and others, (2006) 5 SCC 8 the past record of a delinquent cannot be
a basis to prove the charges and to pass an order of punishment. The report
of Enquiry Officer is not as per requirement of sub-rule (2) of Rule 14 of the
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0. To bolster his submissions in this regard he placed reliance on the
" judgment passed by a Division Bench of this Court in the case of Stare of
M.P. and others vs. Dev Vrat Mishra and others (W.A. No.43/2017) and
also referred to the judgments passed by the Apex Court which have been
referred by the learned Single Judge in the case of Dev Vrat Mishra (supra). -
It is apt to mention here that the learned Single Judge has allowed the writ
petition filed by Dev Vrat Mishra [W.P. No.18465/2012/2002 (S)] by setting
aside the order of punishment and directing that the petitioner shall get all
- consequential benefits. The said judgement passed by the learned Single Judge
was affirmed by the Division Bench while dismissing the Writ Appeal No.43/
2017 by its judgement dated 8-02-2017.

7. It is further contended that the appellate authority also without proper
appreciation of the facts and evidence held that the charges are proved. It is
contended by him that without there being sufficient evidence regarding
consumption of alcohol by the petitioner, the finding has been recorded that
the petitioner after consuming alcohol, in an inebriated condition had harassed
the complaint. It is submitted by him that though blood sample of the petitioner
was taken by the department but it failed to produce the FSL report to prove
presence of alcohol in his blood sample hence; merely on clinical examination
and on the basis of statement of the doctor, the prosecution could not establish
alleged consumption of alcohol by the petitioner, Thus, the finding of the
Enqlliry Officer in this regard, is perverse and contrary to the record. The
petitioner submitted that the appellate authority also did not appreciate the
evidence available on record in proper perspective.

8. Counsel for the petitioner further submitted that the punishment of
removal from service is highly disproportionate and shocking to the alleged
charges levelled against the petitioner. He strenuously urged that the punishment
of “removal' is a last resort by virtue of the provisions envisaged in Regulation
226, and in the present case the same has been passed in violation of the
provisions of Police Regulation 226 and settled principles of law. Counsel for
the petitioner submitted that the report of the Enquiry Officer is based on
preliminary enquiry and, therefore, thé enquiry report as well consequential
order of punishment and dismissal of appeal are vitiated in law.

9. Combating the aforesaid submissions, counsel for the State submitted
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that there is no illegality or impropriety in the departmental enquiry conducted
and the same was in accordance with the provisions of Rule 14 of the Rules
1966 and the Police Regulation 228. It is also submitted that the disciplinary
authority and the appellate authority have passed the orders impugned after
due consideration of the facts and evidence available on record. He further
submitted that scope of interference in the departmental enquiry under Article
226 of the Constitution is limited. This Court cannot appreciate the facts and
evidence as an appellate authority: It is submitted that the punishment is not
disproportionate or shocking to the conscience of the Court, as the petitioner
was working as a Constable in disciplinary force like police and high level
character and conducts are expected from a member of disciplinary force.
The charges levelled against the petitioner, which are proved, had certainly
tarnished the image of the department. Hence, there is no illegality or perversity
of approach in the impugned orders and the petition is liable to be dismissed.

10.  Regard being had to the submissions advanced on behalf of the parties,
it is condign to refer the charges levelled against the delinquent-petitioner,
they are reproduced hereunder:

/ /3RS /
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11. From a perusal of the record it is seen that the petitioner has been
afforded full opportunity of adducing oral and documentary evidence and also
cross-examination of the witnesses. In regard to Charge No.l — that the
delinquent employee did not report on duty after his return and also in an
inebriated condition he uttered lewd and obscene words to harass the
complainant and pulled her hand at a public place. The prosecution examined
PW-1, A.S. Narbariya, Sub-Inspector, who deposed that on 15-11-1998 a
written complaint was given by Ku. Rashmi Kaushal making the aforesaid
allegations. The petitioner was caught at the spot and he was brought to the
Police Station by the brothers of the complainant along with a mob. There
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. 'was public agitation against the conduct of the petitioner, as a police personnel
was alleged to have teased a girl in a publicplace. The application has been
marked as Exhibit-1 and the statement of the complainant is marked as
Exhibit-2 whereas the statements of the brothers of the victim Makhan, Gabbar
Singh and Sunil Kaushal are marked as Exhibits-3, 4 and 5 respectively. The
blood sample taken by the doctor was sealed and marked as Exhibit-6. The
brothers of the victim-girl have supported the evidence of Shri A.S. Narbaria
to the effect that the complainant had told them about the utterances of lewd
and obscene words used by the petitioner and thereafter they had caught him
and brought him to the Police Station concerned. They have also corroborated
his statement that the written complaint was made to the Station House Officer.
In the cross-examination they have stated that they did not know the petitioner
. personally and they did not hear the utterances of the alleged words. So far
as consumption of alcohol by the delinquent-petitioner is concerned, his
drunkenness was proved by the doctor. PW-3, Dr. G.R. Karode, who stated
that on clinical examination of the delinquent-petitioner, he found that the
petitioner was in an inebriated condition after consuming liquor. PW-4, Arjun
Singh has stated that he was on duty and the report was recorded by him in
‘Rojnamcha’. The department witness — Ku. Rashmi Kaushal, the complainant
~ changed her version and stated that there was some confusion out of which
she had lodged the report but now, she did not want to initiate any action
against the petitioner. The Enquiry Officer after taking into consideration the
ocular and documentary evidence came to the conclusion that though the
complainant turned hostile and did not support the case of the prosecution,
but since the petitioner in drunken state harassed the victim-girl in a public.
place followed by a prompt report in writing by the brother and mob resulting
into disturbance of law and order, therefore, the prosecution case cannot be
disbelieved. He has taken note of the fact that at the spot itself the petitioner
was caught by the public and was brought by them at the Police Station. He
considered that the situation was so much panic and for medical examination
the doctor was required to be called at the Police Station itself. '

On the basis of the aforesaid consideration and totality of the facts
and circumstances, the Enquiry Officer found that all the three charges levelled
against the delinquent-employee are proved. It is apt to reproduce the relevant
portion of the enquiry report. The same is reproduced hereunder:

“JutEr gl m-ﬂwma%amﬁ.ﬁﬁﬁﬂmm-
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12.  Thereafter, the disciplinary authority issued a notice to the petitioner
and areply to the said notice was submitted by the petitioner. The disciplinary -
authority after taking into consideration the enquiry report and also the fact
that in the first report which was made by the complainant in writing it was
stated that the petitioner had misbehaved with her and pulled her hands uttering
the words “a@ AR wrer”. The aforesaid utterance of the words-with the
physical action of pulling hands of the complainant in a public place has been
considered sufficient to prove charges levelled against the delinquent-petitioner.
The disciplinary authority had taken note of the facts that the incident had
occurred at a public place, created nuisance and panic within public view,
which ultimately tarnished the image of the Police Department. The relevant
portion of the discussion of the disciplinary authority, which is marked as
Exhibit-A-1, is reproduced hereunder:

“IRIT AR W THeT F franiia et 8q ) PrRer
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At this juncture before considering the assertions made by the counsel
for the petitioner, I think it condign to survey the authority on the point of
scope of judicial interference in the matter of departmental enquiry by the
High Court under Article 226 of the Constitution of India. In the case of State
of. Andhra Pradesh and others Vs Sree Rama Rao, AIR 1963 SC 1723 the
Apex Court in para 7 of the order held as under:

“7... The High Court is not constituted in a proceeding
under Article 226 of the Constitution of a court of appeal
over the decision of the authorities holding a departmental
enquiry against a public servant; it is competent in that
behalf, and dccording to the procedure prescribed in that
behalf, and whether the rules of natural justice are not
violated. Where there is some evidence, which the authority
entrusted with the reasonably support the conclusion that
the delinquent officer is guilty of the charge, it is not the
fiinction of the High Court in a petition for a writ under
Article 226 of to review the evidence and to arrive at an

~
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| independent finding on the evidence.”

14, In the case of B.C. Chaturvedi Vs Union of India, (1995)6 SCC
749, the Apex Court considered the scope of judicial review by the High
Court under Article 226 and held as undet:

. “d review of the above legal position would establish that
the disciplinary authority, and on appeal the appellate
authority, being fact-finding authorities have exclusive
power to consider the evidence with a view to maintain
discipline. They are invested with the discretion to impose
appropriate punishment keeping in view the magnitude or
gravity of the misconduct. The High Court/Tribunal, while
exercising the power of judicial review, cannot normally
substitute its own conclusion on penalty and impose some
other penalty. It the punishment imposed by the disciplinary
authority or the appellate authority shocks the conscience
of the High Court/Tribunal, it would appropriately mould
the relief, either directing the disciplinary/appellate
authority to reconsider the penalty imposed, or to shorten

.the litigation, it may itself, in exceptional and rare cases.
impose appropriate punishment with cogent reasons in
support thereof.”

It was held that if the punishment imposed by the disciplinary authority
or the appellate authority shocks the conscience of the High Court or Tribunal,it
would appropriately mould the relief, either directing the disciplinary/appellate
authority to reconsider the penalty imposed, or to shorten the litigation, it may
itself, in exceptional and rare cases, impose appropriate punishment with cogent
reasons in support thereof.

15.  The scope of judicial review in the matters of administrative action
pertaining to disciplinary proceedings is no longer res infegra as it has been
held in number of cases by the Apex.Court that the judicial review in such
matters has limited scope. In this regard it is useful to refer judgment of the
Apex Court rendered in the case of 8. R. Tiwari vs. Union of India, (2013)
6 SCC 602. In para 19 and 20 of the aforesaid judgment, the scope of judicial
review has been crystallized in the following manner :-

“19. In Commissioner of Income Tax, Bombay & Ors. Vs.
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Mahindra & Mahindra Ltd. & Ors.. AIR 1984 SC 1182,
this Court held that various parameters of the court's
power of judicial review of administrative or executive
action on which the court can interfere had been well settled
and it would be redundant to recapitulate the whole catena

of decisions. The Court further held:

“It is a settled position that if the action or decision
is perverse or is such that no reasonable body of persons,
properly informed, could come to, or has been arrived at
by the authority misdirecting itself by adopting a wrong
approach, or has been influenced by irrelevant or
extraneous matters the court would be justified in
interfering with the same.”

20. The court can exercise the power of judicial review
if there is a manifest error in the exercise of power or the
exercise of power is manifestly arbitrary or if the power is
exercised on the basis of facts which do not exist and which
are patently erroneous. Such exercise of power would stand
vitiated. The court may be justified in exercising the power
of judicial review if the impugned order suffers from mala
fide, dishonest or corrupt practices, for the reason, that
“the order had been passed by the authority beyond the
limits conferred upon the authority by the legislature. Thus,
_ the court has to be satisfied that the order had been passed
by the authority only on the grounds of illegality,
irrationality and procedural impropriety before it
interferes. The court does not have the expertise to correct
the administrative decision. Therefore, the court itself may
be fallible and interfering with the order of the authority
may impose heavy adminisirative burden on the State or
may lead to unbudgeted expenditure. (Vide:Tata Cellular
Vs. Union of India, AIR 1996 SC 11; Peopleas Union for
Civil Liberties & Anr. Vs. Union of India & Ors., AIR 2004
.SC 456; and State of N.C.T. Of Delhi & Anr. V. Sanjeey
alias Bittoo, AIR 2005 SC 2080). “(Emphasis Supplied)}

16.  Further, after considering various judgments including the judgment in
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the case of Union of India Vs. Bodupalli Gopalaswami, (2011) 13 SCC
553 and Sanjay Kumar Singh Vs. Union of India, AIR 2012 SC 1783,
relied upon by the learned Writ Court in para 28, the principle is so laid down:-

“28. The role of the court in the matter of departmental
proceedings is very limited and the court cannot substitute
its own views or findings by replacing the findings arrived
at by the authority on detailed appreciation of the evidence
on record. In the matter of imposition of sentence, the scope
for interference by the court is very limited and restricted
fo exceptional cases. The punishment imposed by the
disciplinary authority or the appellate authority unless
shocking to the conscience of the court, cannot be subjected
to judicial review. The court has to record reasons as to
why the punishment is disproportionate. Failure to give
reasons amounts to denial of justice. The mere statement
that it is disproportionate would not suffice.”

(Emphasis Supplied)

Thus, it is trite law that the courts are not to act as an appellate authority

and the scope of interference in the matter of departmental enquiry is limited, .

unless it is established that there is violation of the statutory provisions or the
principles of natural justice, or the findings are manifest perverse.

17.  The contention of the petitioner that the enquiry report has not been

submitted in accordance with the provisions of Sub-rule (23) of Rule 14 of .

the 1966 Rules which makes it obligatory for the enquiry officer to assess the
evidence and give findings with cogent reasons'therefor, in respect of each
article of charges. Upon perusal of the enquiry report in the present case, as
reproduced in the preceding paragraphs, it is evident that there was proper
consideration of statements of prosecution witnesses and medical certificates
and ultimately the conclusion was recorded. The enquiry report further reveals
that for each charge there is consideration by the Enquiry Officer and it cannot
be held that the enquiry report in the present case is not in conformity with the
provisions of Sub-rule (23) of Rule 14 of the 1966 Rules.

18.  The next plank of submission of the learned counsel for the petitioner
is that the disciplinary authority has failed to discuss the charges and the material
variable, before passing the order of removal from services. If the order passed
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by the disciplinary authority is scanned, it is manifest that there is due
application of mind. He has taken into account the nature of charges, statement
of the victim-complainant; the statement of the Head Constable, Arjun Singh;
and the plight of the alleged charges committed by the petitioner within public
domain, who is a police constable posted in a disciplined force. The contentions
of the petitioner that the order of punishment was passed on the basis of past
conduct; and the punishment of ‘removal' is a last resort by virtue of the
provisions envisaged in Regulation 226, have no merit. Before passing an
order of removal, the disciplinary authority has taken into consideration the
entire service record of the petitioner which is ostensible from the order of
the disciplinary authority. Relevant portion of the order passed by the
disciplinary authority is reproduced hereunder:
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19.  The delineation made by the disciplinary authority demonstrates that
before passing the order of punishment the disciplinary authority had bestowed
his anxious consideration on all the facts and evidence of the present case,
therefore, the order of removal passed by the disciplinary authority cannot be
held to be passed only on account of past track record. The consideration of
the past record in the case of a member of a disciplinary force like police
cannot be held to be illegal or irrelevant. It is useful to refer the judgment
rendered in the case of Union of India and others vs. Bishambher Das
Dogra, AIR 2010 SC 3769 where the Apex Court declined to interfere with
the punishment of removal passed in a case of a member of a disciplinary
force and held that in the case of misconduct of grave nature or indiscipline,
the authority may take into consideration the indisputable past conduct and



2346 R.S. Chandel Vs. State of M.P. LL.R.[2017IM.P.

. service record of the employee for adding weight to the decision of imposing
the punishment. The relevant part of the judgment is reproduced hereunder:

“It is desirable that delinquent employee may be informed
by the disciplinary authority that his past conduct would
be taken into consideration while imposing the punishment.
But in case of misconduct of grave nature or indiscipline,
even in absence of statutory rules, the authority may taken
into consideration the indisputable past conduct/service
record of the employee for adding weight to the decision
of imposing the punishment if the facts so require.” [quoted
from the placitum].

20.  Inthe present case the order passed by the appellate authority cannot
be held to be a cryptic.or unreasoned order. The appellate authority has taken
into consideration each of the charges and the oral and documentary evidence
available on record. After extensive consideration of the facts and evidence,
the following conclusion has been recorded by the appellate authority while
affirming the order of removal :
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21, The next contention of the counsel appearing for the petitioner was
that the prosecution could not establish that the petitioner had consumed alcohol
and he was in an inebriated condition at the time of the alleged incident. He
placed reliance upon the judgment passed in the case of Prem Singh Jhala
vs. State of M.P.,, 2007(4) MPLJ 129.
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22, This Court by order.dated 02-3-2017 summoned the record pertaining
to the departmental enquiry of the petitioner. On perusal of the record it is
found that the petitioner was examined by Dr. GP. Karode who has stated

. that he had examined the accused-petitioner clinically and there was smell of

alcohol. Blood sample of the accused was taken and the same was sent for

- chemical examination.In the cross-examination a question was posed that as

to whether the petitioner was drunk and smell of alcohol was there. PW-3,
Dr. G.P. Karode affirmed his statement stating that the petitioner was in a
drunken condition and there was smell ofalcohol from his mouth. The relevant
portion of deposition of Dr. G.P. Karode is reproduced hereunder;
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23.  Inview of the facts and circumstances of the case, the ratio laid down
by this Court in Prem Singh Jhala (supra) would not apply in the present
case. Inebriation of the petitioner was proved by the doctor. It is established
law that in the departmental enquiry the degree of proof as required ina criminal
case where the prosecution has to prove the charge beyond doubt is not
required to prove misconduct ina departmental enquiry. The doctrine of
preponderance of probabilities is applied in such cases. The view of this Court
gets fortified in the judgment of the Apex Court in the case of , as held by the
Apex Court in the case of Commissioner of Police, New Delhi and another
vs. Mehar Singh, (2013) 7 SCC 685.

24.  Inview of the obtaining factual matrix and taking into consideration
nature of charges levelled against the petitioner, whoisa member of disciplinary
force. The police force is a disciplined force. It shoulders the great responsibility
of maintaining law and order and public order in the society. Peoplé repose
great faith and confidence in it. It must be worthy of that confidence. This
Court does not find any illegality or perversity of approach in the impugned
orders of the disciplinary authority and affirmation thereof by the appellate
authority. Since the conduct of the petitioner uttering obscene and indecent
words, causing physical and mental harassment to the victim-girl in public
domain, has certainly impaired the image of the Police department, therefore,
the order of imposition of punishment of his removal from service, cannot be
held to be disproportionate and no interference is warranted on the quantum
of the punishment. It is established law, that the courts can interfere in the
quantum of punishment, only where the imposition of punishment is shockingly
disproportionate, as propounded by the Apex Courtinthe judgments rendered
in the cases of Commandant, 22 th Battalion Central Reserve Police Force,
Srinagar vs. Surinder Kumar, (2011) 10 SCC 244; Chandra Kumar
Choupra vs. Union of India and others, (2012) 6 SCC 369; and Delhi
Police through Commissioner of Police and others vs. Sat Narayan
Kaushik, (2016) 6 SCC 303.

25.  Thus, in view of the aforesaid enunciation of law discussed in preceding
paragraphs, I do not find any illegality and perversity of approach in the
impugned order warranting interference of this Court in writ jurisdiction and
the same being impregnable deserves stamp of approval of this Court.

26.  Accordingly, the writ petition being sans merit, is dismissed.

Petition dismissed.
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KAM-AVIDAENVIRO ENGINEERING
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Constitution — Article 226 — Tender — Cancelldtion — Grounds —
Promissory Estoppel — Under a tender by Municipal Corporation, Road
Sweeping Machine/Vehicle was supplied by petitioner which was not found
as per technical specifications — Tender was cancelled and bank guarantee
was invoked by ¢ ‘orporation — Challenge to — Held — It is contractual
obligation of petitioner to supply machines as per specification and standard
enumerated in tender conditions — 47 defects were pointed out by
corporation —If machine is not as per tender conditions, Corporation was
" well within its jurisdiction to reject the machine - There is no question of
Promissory Estoppel - Corporation has paid Rs, 1 Crore of public money
to petitioner whereby he failed to perform his part of contract—Decision
to invoke bank guarantee and to cancel the contract is based upon the
economic interest of corporation so as not to purchase something which is
not likely to serve public purpose — Such decision cannot be held fo be
arbitrary, unreasonable or invalid which warrants interference - Petition
dismissed. (Paras 20, 24 & 30)
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Kushwaha, for the petitioner.
Arun Pandey, for the respondent No.1.

ORDER

The Order of the Court was passed by :
HeMANT GueTa, C.J. :- The challenge in the present writ petition is to the
~ communication (Annexure-P/31) dated 17-11-2016 whereby Road Sweeping
Machine supplied by the petitioner was not accepted to be in terms of the
tender conditions, thus the petitioner was not entitled to any’amount from the
Municipal Corporation on account of failure of the petitioner to perform
contract as per contract of acceptance dated 3.12.2015 acceptlng the bid
offered by the petitioner,

2. The brief facts leading to the present petition are that a tender was
issued by the Municipal Corporation, Rewa [for short “the Corporation'] on
10-9-2015 for supply and delivery of Truck Mounted Johnston Sweepers
Ltd., UK make road sweeper Model — VT — 561 E Duel Sweeper Skid Unit
or equivalent make (as per specification attached to the tender documents) on
Truck Chassis for Municipal Solid Water Management at Rewa City. The bid
was to be submitted in two parts, (i) qualification criteria and technical bid,;
and (i1) financial bid. The petitioner offered the option of 100% advance payment
against proforma invoice for supply of chassis whereas for supply of equipment
was against 100% advance payment to be made against submission of a valid
bank guarantee for six months.

3. The financial bid of the petitioner was opened on 15.10.2015. The
same was accepted by the Corporation in its resolution on 02-11-2015.
Thereafter, the letter of acceptance was issued whereby the petitioner was
asked to submit bank guarantee for a value of Rs.18,20,000/- ,i.e. 10% of
the contract value which would be valid for a period of 36 months., The work
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order was issued on 3.12.2015 with delivery period of four months with
contract value of Rs.1,82,00,000/- (Annexure-P/7). As per the petitioner,
the cost of chassis was Rs.18,04,430/- and the cost of equipment was
. Rs.1,63,95,570/-. The latter amount was to be released on payment of bank
guarantee which was to be valid for a period of six months.

4. The stand of the petitioner is that it sought shipment of the Road
Sweeper Model - VT — 651E on 02-03-2016 and, therefore, it sought 100%
payment on furnishing of advance bank guarantee on immediate basis in order -
to avoid demurrage charges of custom and clear the consignment without any
delay. It was on 15-03-2016 partial advance of Rs.1,00,00,000/- (Rupeces
One Crore) was released in favour of the petitioner. The petitioner sought
release of balance advance payment of Rs.63,95,570/- before 31.3.2016.
The stand of the petitioner is that it received a message from Shri A.P. Shukla,
Assistant Engineer of the Corporation that the balance advance payment of
Rs.63,95,970/- will be released only after delivery of Road Sweeping Machine
at Rewa. Such condition was said to be in violation of the terms and conditions
of the tender document by the petitioner. The petitioner informed the
‘Corporation on 26-4-2016 that it has initiated the chassis procurement process
by placing purchase order on chassis supplier — Eicher. On receipt of the
chassis, the petitioner will complete mounting and integration and will send
the pre-despatch inspection call to the Corporation.

5. It was on 9.5.2016, the petitioner informed the Corporation that the
chassis is reaching the factory of the petitioner by 31-05-2016 and sought
information of exact date of visit, name of the visiting officials so as to enable
it to make necessary arrangement for inspection of the machine. The petitioner
is said to have despatched the Road Sweeping Machine from Pune on
16.5.2016 which reached Rewa on 20.5.2016. The petitioner also informed
the RITES Ltd. that it has supplied KAMSWEEP Model VT-651 special
purpose vehicle mounted Johnston Make Machine mounted on 16 Ton Gross
Vehicle Weight Chassis to the Corporation. The third party agency RITES
Ltd. is said to have carried out inspection of the Road Sweeper Machine on
26th & 27th of May, 2016.

6. As per petitioner, the machine was found to be as per technical
specifications mentioned in the tender document by M/s RITES Ltd. However,
the petitioner was informed on 6.6.2016 that during the joint inspection, the machine
was found to be leaving some dust on road surface and it escapes a lot of dust
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through dust collection tank mounted on the machine. The Corporation also found
some part/components of the machine without seal and identification of manufacturer
to show that these parts were supplied by Johnston Sweepers Ltd UK and
some alteration has been done before delivery.

7. The stand of the petmoner is that the Machine has been supplied in
total compliance to the technical specifications mentioned in the tender
- document and issue of non-mentioning of the name, seal, serial, identification,
make for the components etc. will be forwarded to Johnston Sweepers Ltd.
for clarification. Thereafter, the Johnston Sweeper Ltd. is said to have clarified
on 9.6.2016 that the Machine in question was supplied to the petitioner fully
built and tested from the UK and it does not label every single comporient.
Thereafter, on 22.7.2016, the Corporation found performance of the Road
Sweeper Machine unsatisfactory and decided to invoke the advance bank
guarantee and performance bank guarantee.

8. The petitioner then filed a civil suit for injunction in the Court of Civil
“Judge, Senior Division, Pune on 28.7.2016, but before any interim order could

be communicated, the bank guarantee was encashed. It is thereafter the

petitioner filed the present writ petition after it received a letter of cancellation
_of contracton 17.11.2016.

9. Counsel appearing for the Corporation has raised preliminary objection
that the instant writ petition is not maintainable, as the petitioner has filed a suit
on the same cause of action claiming similar reliefs from the Civil Court as
have been claimed in the present writ petition. For ready reference the prayer
made in the civil suit by the petitioner reads thus:

(a)  Thedefendant No.1 Corporation either personally or
through its officers, servants, employees or agents ectc. be
restrained by order of temporary injunction from acting on the
basis of the letter dated 22.7.2016 invoking the Advance Bank
Guarantee and Performance Bank Guarantee as well as from
taking any steps or coercive action for encashment of the said
Bank Guarantee.

(b)  The defendant No.2 and 3 banks, its agents assigns
or officers be restrained by an order of interim injunction from
acting on the basis of the'letter dated 22.7.2016 releasing or
" honouring the Advance Bank Guarantee and Performance Bank
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Guarantee to the defendant No.1, Corporation.

(c) The defendant may kindly be restrained by order of
stay in the form of interim relief from taking any coercive action
and/or from taking any steps on the basis of impugned letter
dated 22.7.2016 from invoking, encashing or releasing the
payment under the Bank Guarantee.

{d)  The plaintiff be allowed to amend and or alter the plaint
if necessary.”

10.  After filing of the suit, the contract was cancelled by letter dated
17-11-2016 which is the subject-matter of challenge in the present writ petition.
The petitioner has claimed the following reliefs:

“7.1 To issue a writ, order or direction in the nature of
certiorari, quashing and setting aside the order dated
22-7-2016 and invocation or encashment of Bank Guarantee
by the respondent No.1 hereinabove;

7.2 To direct the respondent No.1, Corporation to pay an
interest at the rate of 18% per annum on Rs.1,00,00,000/-
(Rs. One crore only) w.e.f. The date of invocation of the Bank
Guarantee up to the actual date of payment; :

7.3  To direct the, respondent No.1, Corporation to pay
the legally due and payable amount of Rs.63,95,570/- (Rupees
Sixty three lacs ninety five thousand five hundred seventy only)
towards the arrears of consideration for the agreed price of
Truck Mounted Johnston Make Road Sweeper Model VT —
651E Duel Sweeper Skid unit machine;

7.4  To direct the respondent No.1, Corporation to pay an
interest at the rate of 18% per annum on the amount of
Rs.63,95,570/- (Rupees Sixty three lacs ninety five thousand five
hundred seventy only) mentioned hereinabove w.e.f. 25-5-2016 -
the date of supply of the requisite Truck Mounted Johnston Make
Road-Sweeper Model VT — 651E Duel Sweeper Skid unit
Machine up to the actual date of payment aforesaid; '

75 To quash or set aside the order dated 17.11.2016
passed by respondent No.1 and .c_ancel the contract/agreement
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dated 2.12.2015 delivery of Johnston Make Road Sweeper
Model VT-651E Duel Sweeper Skid unit Machine.”

11. Itisadmitted by the petitioner that an advance bank guarantee for a
sum of Rs.16395570/- towards the supply of Road Sweeper machine valid
for a period of six months was submitted to the Corporation. .

12.  Inthereturn, the stand of the Corporation is that the Corporation paid
a sum of Rs.1,00,00,000/- and that the petitioner has not stated the facts
correctly in the petition. The petitioner, as per the agreement, was to supply
Truck Mount Johnston Make Road Sweeper Model VT-651E Duel Sweeper
Skid unit machine. During course of trial, it was found that the machine was
. extremely defective and unable to sweep the road; and that the parts of the
machine were not manufactured by the Johnston Sweeper Limited, UK. It is
asserted that 47-such defects were pointed out to the petitioner vide
communication dated 3-6-2016, Annexure-P/23. It is denied in the reply that
the bank guarantee was to be returned immediately on delivery of the Machine.
[t is stated that the petitioner was interested in getting the public money from
the Corporation without supplying the machine as per the standard specifications
enumerated in the tender document. It is pointed out that the petitioner was
informed that the balance payment will be made only after supply of the Machine
which is not at all any deviation and infringement of tender document but in the
consonarnce of the tender document. The petitioner was only interested to
obtain public money without performing the contract, It is also asserted that
the petitioner has not placed any purchase order to Johnston Sweeper Ltd.,
UK. Itis denied that the petitioner paid any international freight, custom duty
and insurance for the Machine in question because the Corporation
endeavoured hard to contact M/s Johnston Sweeper Ltd. through telephone
provided by the petitioner but the Corporation did not receive any response
in that behalf. The specific reply of the Corporation is as under :-

“32.  That, the contents of the para 5.27 of the writ petition
is vehemently denied. It is denied that the machine was found
as per the technical specification mentioned in the tender
documents. 1t is also denied that the petitioner has also
conducted any trials commissioning for 13 days, 125 hours
sweeping hours 61 and 201 K.M. It is submitted that the
answering respondent was not at all satisfied with the machine.
The answering respondent has stated in the letter dated .

"
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03/06/2016 by which‘i_t has pointed out as many as 47 defects.
It is also mentioned in the letter dated 03-06-2016 that at the
time of joint inspection from 26-5-2016 to 28-05-2016 it came
into the notice that the delivered machine was. leaving dust
under surface, also it escapes a lot of dust collection tank
mounted with the machine and the parts of the machine do not
appear from the Johnston manufacture. The answering
respondent has also written to the Manager, RITES.Ltd.,
Western Region, Church Gate, Mumbai in connection with
the vague report submitted by Inspector Mr. Puran Singh,
Raipur, Chhattisgarh and to issue necessary orders for re-
inspection through Senjor Officers of your organization. Thus,
the answering respondent has never accepted the machine
supplied by the petitioner. A copy of the letter dated 03-6-2016
is already filed as Annexure-P/23. All other adverse allegation
in the instant para is denied.

33.  That, the contents of the para 5.28 of the writ petition is
admitted to the extent that by letter dated 03-6-2016 the
answering respondent pointed out the defects. All other adverse
litigation in the instant para is denied, The answering respondent
simultaneously wrote a letter dated 3-6-2016 to M/s Johnston

- *Sweeper Ltd. UK., regarding the supply and delivery of the
machine in question. The answering respondent also sought
various clarifications regarding the status of authorized dealer of
the company in India and whether the company has allowed the
alternation.of machine and its parts. It is submitted that the -
answering respondent has not received any communication
regarding the letter and its queries. It is submitted that the officials
of the answering tried to contact the Johnston Company through
telephone provided by the petitioner the answering respondent
did not receive any response. Hence, the machine supplied by
the petitioner is not the machine as pefthe specification mentioned
in the tender. A copy-of the letter dated 03- 06-201 6 is filed
herewith as Annexure-R- 1/4 o

34. That, the contents of the para 529 of the writ petition
is specifically denied. It is vehemently denied that the machine
was total compliance of technical specification mentioned in
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the tendér documents, It is submitted that the machine is sub-
standard and is not purchased from M/s Johnston Sweeper
Ltd. UK. The machine is unable to sweep the road and in the
parts of the machine the seal and serial number and its
identification number of M/s Johnston Sweeper Company do
not appear. The petitioner has not taken any action to rectify
the mistake of the machine. All other adverse allegation in the
instant para is denied.

35.  That, the contents of the para 5.30 of the writ petition
is vehemently denied. It is denied that the petitioner had made
any communication regarding the machine to M/s Johnston
Sweeper Ltd. UK. It is also denied that the M/s Johnston
Sweeper Ltd. UK has confirmed vide letter dated 9-6-2016
that the machine was supplied to the petitioner fully built and
tested from the UK. The letter dated 9-6-2016 (Annexure-P/
25) appears to be fabricated as the answering respondent is
preceding paragraphs has mentioned that it has not made any
contact to M/s Johnston Sweeper Ltd., UK regarding the
authenticity of the machine. All other adverse allegations in the
instant para are denied.” -

13.  Counsel for the petitioner vehemently argued that the respondents are
bound to make payment of the machine on the principle of promissory estoppel,
as the petitioner has supplied the machine as per tender conditions. The
petitioner has undertaken to remove the defects as pointed out by the
Corporation, but still the Corporation has proceeded to invoke the bank
guarantee. Counsel for the petitioner has placed reliance upon the judgments
rendered in M/s Motilal Padampat Sugar Mills Co. Ltd. vs. The State of
Uttar Pradesh and athers, AIR 1979 SC 621 and M/s Gangotri Enterprizes
Ltd. vs. Union of India and others, AIR 2016 SC 2199, He submitted that
on the basis of doctrine of promissory estoppel, the petitioner is entitled to
payment of the price of the Machine in question and invocation of the bank
guarantee is illegal. The argument of the counsel for the petitioner regarding
promissory estoppel is based on the fact that there was limited time limit for
supply of the machine of 120 days; therefore, in advance the petitioner imported
" the machine so that it could comply with the tender conditions. Since the
machine was imported in terms of the tender submitted by the petitioner,
therefore, the petitioner is entitled to entire payment of the machine in question;

”n



LL.R.[2017]M.P. Kam-Avida Enviro Vs. Municipal Corporation(DB) 2357
and that invocation of the bank guérantee of Rs.1,00,000,00/- is not justified.

14.  Relying on the judgment in M/s Gangotri Enterprizes Ltd. (supra),
learned counsel for the petitioner urged that the Corporation is the purchaser
of the machine and had to quantify the damages from a competent Court or
through arbitration before it could invoke the bank guarantee.

15.  Counsel for the petitioner also relied upon the judgment of the Supreme
Court reported in Monnet Ispat and Energy Ltd. vs. Union of India and
ors., (2012) 11 SCC 1 and also invoked the doctrine of legitimate expectation
as discussed in J. P. Bansal vs. State of Rajasthan and another, AIR 2003
SC 1405.

16.  Some of'the terms and conditions of the contract entered into between
the parties, being relevant for the present purpose, are extracted hereunder:

“15. Ifany dispute arises about the contract or any terms
of contract, Municipal Corporation Rewa shall be the sole
arbitration and his decision would be final and binding to all
the parties.

16.  Testand inspect prior to dispatch/shipment and field
test after delivery the following inspection and test shall be
carried at manufacturer's plant by third party (Rites Ltd., Govt.
of India Enterprizes) and purchaser's representative. All
inspection charge would be scope of bidder.

a) Inspection and checking of details of various
component specified in the specification and agreed by the .
bidder, particularly the details of engine, drive system, brakes,
hydraulic system, electrical system, vacuum system, brushing
system etc. including their capacity, make, dimension etc. The
bidder shall also produce documents of import along with test
certificate of manufacturer,

b) Functional test of Mechanical Sweeper to check its
specified/guaranteed capacity by operating the machine
continuously for four to six hours.

¢)  The following test shall be carried out after delivery of
the equipment. ‘

d) Field trial for 7 days (8 hours in two shifts running per

a
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day) by operating the machine at all major roads to assess
functional performance of the machine. Machine shall be
inspected/verified by authorized representative/s of MCR and
third party (if required) with the specification. All the expenses
in field trial shall be born by bidder.

XXX XXX XXX
X000 XXX XXX
300K XXX XXX
31.  Warranty clause

(i) The tender would give warranty that the Machines/

" Equipments would continue to confirm to the description and
quality as specified for a period indicated in the table given
below from the date of delivery of the Machine/Equipment to
be purchased and that notwithstanding the fact that the
Corporation may have expected and/or approved the said
Machine/Equipments, if during the guarantee/warrantee period
the said Machine/equipment be discovered not to confirm to
the description and quality aforesaid or have determined (and
the decision of the Municipal Commissioner, MCR in that behalf
will be final and conclusive) the corporation will be entitled to
reject the Machmes/Eqmpmcnt or such portion thereof as may
be discovered not to confirm to the said description and quality,
on such rejection the Machines/Equipment will be at the seller's

 risk and all the provision relating to rejection of goods, etc. or
such portion thereof as is rejection by the Corporation,
otherwise the Tenderer shall pay such damage as may arise by
reason of the breach of the condition herein contained. Nothing
herein contained shall prejudice any other right of the in that
behalf under this contract or otherwise.,

S. | Name of Warranty/guarantee

No.| Machine/Equipment | period

1 - Mechanical Power Three year from the’
sweeper Machine date of commissioning

* Truck mounted.
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The Commissioner, MCR and/or his duly authorized
representative shall at all reasonable time have access to the
suppliers premises and shall have the power at all reasonable
time to inspect and examine the materials and workmanship
of the equipment/machineries during manufacturing process or
afterwards as may be decided.

(i) The tenderer shall furnish completer (sic:complete) address
of premises of his office, godown and workshop where
inspection can be made together with name and address of
the person who is to be contacted for the purpose.

(i) The firm is liable to execute any minor change/modification
suggested at the time of inspection for which no extra paymcnt
shall be paid.

32. Rejection.- Articles not approved during inspection or
testing shall be rejected and will have to be replaced by the
Tenderer at his own-cost with the time.

X XX

34. - Ifany dispute arises out of the contract with regard to
the interpretation, meaning and breach of the terms of the
contract, the matter shall be referred to by the parties to the
Municipal Corporation, Rewa (MCR) whose decision shall
be final.” :

17.  We do not find any meritin the argument raised by learned counsel
for the respondent that the writ petition is on the same cause of action as is
raised by the petitioner before the Civil Court. The challenge in the present
writ petition is of an order of cancellation of contract on 17.11.2016 and also
of an action of invoking bank guarantee, whereas the challenge in the civil suit
is to the decision of invocation of the bank guarantee alone, The challenge in
the present writ petition includes the challenge to the bank guarantee, but it
cannot be said that the writ petition itselfis not maintainable.

i8. We have heard cotinsel for the parties and find that there is no merit
in the present petition. The tender conditions were spec1fic to supply the Truck
Mounted Johnston make road sweeper. The chassis price of Rs.18,20,000/-
was to be Iﬁaid in advance whereas a sum of Rs.1,63,95,570/- was to be
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paid against 100% amount of bank guarantee towards advance payment of
equipment. Apart from such conditions, the petitioner was required to furnish
performance bank guarantee of 10% contract value valid for a period of six
months. But the machine itself has not been accepted as conforming to the
tender conditions.

19.  As per letter dated 3.6.2016 (Annexure-P/23) the petitioner was
informed as many as 47 defects in the Machine. By letter dated 7.6.2016
(Annexure-P/24) the petitioner was communicated by the Corporation in
respect of the defect that the machine is leaving some dust on road surface
and also it escapes a lot of dust through dust collection tank mounted on the
machine. Response of the petitioner is that there are over 50 Nos. of such
machines working in India and majority of them have come in the form of
repeat orders from renowned companies. It is pointed out that the Machine is
fully imported skid unit complying with tender conditions; however, it was not
in a position to answer as to why M/s Jonhston Sweeper Ltd. was mentioned
. onthe seal; serial number; identification name and components.

20.  Admittedly, 47 defects, as pointed out by the Corporation were neither
removed by the petitioner nor it was possible to remove the defects. As many
as 35 defects were mentioned, as manufacture's name, seal, identification and
make were not found. The stand of the Corporation is that the petitioner has
given false document as if it is from M/s Johnston Sweeper Ltd. but the said
company could not be contacted to verify the assertions of the petitioner. The
Corporation has taken a decision that the Machine in question is not as per
the tender conditions, therefore, in exercise of power of judicial review, this
Court will not examine the terms & conditions of the contract as a court of
appeal —as to whether the Machine supplied is in terms of the tender documents
or not.

21.  The scope of judicial review in the matter of termination of services
was considered by the Hon'ble Supreme Court in the case of Gridco Limited
and another Vs. Sadnanda Doloi and others reported as (2011) 15 SCC*
16. It was held that the judicial review and resultant interference is permissible
where the action of the authority is mala fide, arbitrary, irrational,
disproportionate or unreasonable but impermissible ifthe petitioner’s challenge
is based only on the ground thar the view taken by the authority is less
reasonable. The judicial review is not so much concerned with the correctness
of the ultimate decision as it is with the decision making process. The relevant
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- extract reads as under :- -

“25. ltis true that _]lldlClal review-of matters that fall inthe -
realm of contracts is also available before the superior courts,
but the scope of any such review is not all pervasive. It does

_not extend to the Court substituting its own view for that taken
by the decision-making authority. Judicial review and resultant
interference is permissible where the action of the authority is
mala fide, arbitrary, irrational, disproportionate or
unreasonable but impermissible if the petitioner's challenge is
based only on the ground that the view taken by the authority
may be less reasonable than what is a possible alternative.
The legal position is settled that judicial review is not so much
concerned with the correctness of the ultimate decision asitis
with the decision-making process unless of course the decision

- itself'is so perverse or irrational or in such outrageous defiance
of logic that the person taking the decision can be said to have
taken leave of his senses.

28.  Recognizing the difference between public and private
law activities of the State, this Court reasoned that unlike private
individuals, the State while exercising its powers and
discharging its functions, acts for public good and in public
interest. Consequently every State action has an impact on
the public interest which would in turn bring in the minimal
requirements of public law obligations in the discharge of such .
functions. The Court declared that to the extent, the challenge
to State action is made on the ground of being arbitrary, unfair
and unreasonable hence offensive to Article 14 of the
Constitution, judicial review is permissible. The fact that the
dispute fell within the domain of contractual obligations did
not, declared this Court, relieve the State of its obligation to
comply with the basic requirements of Article 14.

39. A writ Court is entitled to judicially review the action
and determine whether there was any illegality, perversity,
_ unreasonableness, unfairness or irrationality that would vitiate
the action, no matter the action is in the realm of contract.
Having said that we must add that judicial review cannot extend

~
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to the Court acting as an appellate authority sitting in judgment

. over the decision. The Court cannot sit in the arm chair.of the
Administrator to decide whether a more reasonable decision
or course of action could have been taken in the circumstances.
So long as the action taken by the authority is not shown to be
vitiated by the infirmities referred to above and so long as the
action is not demonstrably in outrageous defiance of logic, the
writ Court would do well to respect the decision under
challenge.” ' '

22.  Inthe judgment in the case of State of Kerala and others Vs. M. K.
Jose reported as (2015) 9 SCC 433, the Court was examining the action of
the State terminating the contract and forfeiture of the security deposit placed
by the contractor. The Court has held as under :-

“19.  Inthis regard, a reference to Noble Resources Ltd. v.
State of Orissa, (2006) 10 SCC 236, would be seemly. The
two-Judge Bench referred to the 4BL International Ltd. Vs,
Export Credit Guarantee Corpn. Of India Ltd. (2004) 3
SCC 553,, Dwarkadas Marfatia & Sons v. Port of Bombay,
(1989) 3 SCC 293, Mahabir Auto Stores v. Indian Oil ‘
Corpn., (1990) 3 SCC 752 and Jamshed Hormusji Wadia
v. Port of Mumbai, (2004) 3 SCC 214 and opined thus:
(Noble Resources case, SCC p. 246, para 29)

“29.  Although the scope of judicial review or.the
development of law in this field has been noticed hereinbefore
particularly in the light of the decision of this Court in 4B[.
International Ltd. v. Export Credit Guarantee Corpn. Of
India Ltd. (2004) 3 SCC 553 each case, however, must be
decided on its own facts. Public interest as noticed

hereinbefore, may be one of the factors to exercise the power
of judicial review. In a case where a public law element is
involved, judicial review may be permissible. (See Binny Ltd.

v. ¥. Sadasivan, (2005) 6 SCC 657: 2005 SCC (L&S) 881
and G.B. Mahajan v. Jalgaon Municipal Council, (1991)3

SCCI1.* ‘

Thereafter, thé Court in Noble Resources Ltd. v. State of
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Orissa, (2006) 10 SCC 236, proceeded to analyse the facts
and came to hold that certain serious disputed questions of
facts have arisen for determination and such disputes ordinarily
could not have been entertained by the High Court in exercise
of its power of judicial review and ultimately the appeal was
dismissed. ) N

20.  Wehavereferred to the aforesaid authorities to highlight
under what circumstances in respect of contractual claim or
challenge to violation of contract can be entertained by a writ
court. It depends upon facts of each case. The issue that had
arisen in ABL International Ltd. v. Export Credit Guarantee
Corpn. Of India Ltd. (2004) 3 SCC 553 was that an
instrumentality of a State was placing a different construction
on the clauses of the contract of insurance and the insured
was interpreting the contract differently. The Court thought it
apt merely because something is disputed by the insurer, it
should not enter into the realm of disputed questions of fact.
Ini fact, there was no disputed question of fact, but it required
interpretation of the terms of the contract of insurance.
Similarly, if the materials that come on record from which it is-
clearly evincible, the writ court may exercise the power of -
judicial review but, a pregnant one, in the case at hand, the
High Court has appointed a Commission to collect the
-evidence, accepted the same without calling for objections from
the respondent and quashed the order of termination of
contract, i

21.  The procedure adopted by the High Court, if we permit.

. “ourselves to say so, is quite unknown to exercise of powers
under Article 226 in a contractual matter. We can well
appreciate a Committee being appointed in a Public Interest
Litigation to assist the Court or to find out certain facts. Such
an exercise is meant for public good and in public interest.
For example, when an issue arises whether in a particular State
there are toilets for school children and there is an assertion
by the State that there are good toilets, definitely the Court
can appoint a Committee'to verify the same. It is because the -
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lis is not adversarial in nature. The same principle cannot be
taken recourse to in respect of a contractual controversy. It is
also surprising that the High Court has been entertaining series
of writ petitions at the instance of the respondent, which is
nothing but abuse of the process of extraordinary jurisdiction
of the High Court. The Appellate Bench should have applied
more restraint and proceeded in accordance with law instead
of making a roving enquiry. Such a step is impermissible and
by no stretch of imagination subserves any public interest.”

23.  We have gone through the pleadings arid find that the decision-making
process adopted by the Corporation does not suffer from any illegality which
may warrant interference of this Court exercising writ jurisdiction under Article
226 of the Constitution of India. In fact none was pointed out.

24,  The judgments referred by the.counsel for the petitioner are'not
applicable to the facts of the present case. In Morilal Padampat Sugar Mills
Co. Ltd. (supra) the question was for benefit of tax wherein it was laid down
that a party who has, acting on a promise made by the Government, altered its
position, is entitled to enforce the promise against the Government, even though
the promise is not in the form of a formal contract as required by Article 299
and that Article does not militate against the applicability of the doctrine of
promissory estoppel against the Government. In the present case, it is
contractual obligation of the petitioner to supply the Machine in question as
per the specification and standards enumerated in the tender conditions. If the
machine is not as per the tender conditions, then the Corporation is within its
_ jurisdiction to reject the machine. There is no question of promissory estoppel
in the present case, as the Corporation has refused to accept the Machine for
the reason that it does not conform to the specification standards enumerated
in the tender document.

25.  In Gangotri Enterprizes Ltd.’ case (supra) the Court has quoted
with approval the judgment of the Bombay High Court rendered in fron and
Hardware (India) Co. vs. Firm Shamlal and Bros, AIR 1954 Bom 423
wherein the Bombay High Court was examining the right of creditors claiming
to be displaced persons entitled to damages under Displaced Persons (Debts
Adjustment) Act, 1951. The Court was examining the debt as defined under
the Act, which was different than the damages on account of breach of contract.
The Court has held as under: '
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i T Now, in order that there should be a debt there
must be an existing obligation. The payment may be due-
immediately or it may be due in future, but the obligation must
arise in order that the-debt should be due. It may even be that
the actual amount due in respect of the debt may require
ascertainment by some mechanical process or by the taking
of accounts. But even when the actual amount is to be
ascertained the obligation must exist. It is well settled that when
there is a breach of contract the only right that accrues to the
person who complains of the breach is the right to file a suit
““for recovering damages. The breach of contract does not give
rise to any debt and therefore it has been held that a right to
recover damages is not assignable because it is not a chose in
action. An actlonable claim can be assigned, but in order that
thcre should be an actionable claim there. must be a debt in the -
sense of an existing obligation. But inasmuch as a breach of
contract does not result in any existing obligation on the part
of the person who commits the breach, right to recover
damages is not an actionable claim and cannot be assigned.”

26. - The judgment in Gangotri Enterprizes Ltd. 'case (supra) has no
applicability to the facts of the present case nor the argument raised by the
counsel for the petitioner that the Corporation in order to claim damages

. have to seek quantification of the damages from the competent Court. The

issue raised and decided by the Supreme Court was that the arbitration

. proceedings in relation to the contract were pending and that the sum claimed

by the respondents from the appellant does not relate to the-contract for
which the bank guarantee had been furnished but it relates to another contract
for which no bank guarantee had been furnished. In the present case, the
Corporation has cancelled the contract on account of failure of the petitioner

- to supply sweeping machine as per tender condition. The Corporation has

paid a sum of Rs. 1 Crore of public money to the petitioner but the petitioner
has failed to perfprm its part of the contract to supply the sweeping machine

 as per the tender conditions. Therefore, it is net a question of damages but to

seek restitution of the amount paid in advance for the unfulﬁlled contract.

27. Counsel appeanng for the petitioner relied in para 188 of Monnet
Ispat and Energy Ltd. (supra), however the said para deals with a contempt
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petition and not the issue raised in the present writ petition. We do not find
any relevancy of the said case as regard the issue raised in the present petition.

. 28.  InJ.P. Bansal (supra) the petitioner was removed from the post of

Chairman of the Rajasthan Taxation Tribunal which was abolished. The erstwhile

Chairman claimed that he has legitimate expectation and such a claim was

declined by the Supreme Court. We find that the said judgment i is of no any
assistance to the pet1t1oner

29. In respect of law of bank guarantee, a recent judgment reported in the
case of Gujarat Maritime Board vs. Larsen and Toubro Infrastructure
Development Projects Limited and another, (2016) 10 SCC 46, the
Supreme Court held that a bank guarantee is an independent and separate
contract. The relevant extract from the judgment is reproduced hereunder:

“12. An injunction against the invocation of an absolute and an
unconditional bank guarantee cannot be granted except in -
situations of egregious fraud or irretrievable injury to one of
the parties concerned. This position also is no more res
integra. In Himadri Chemicals Industries Limited v. Coal
Tar Refining Company —(2007) 8 SCC 110, at paragraph -

. 148

“14. From the discussions made hereinabove -
relating to the principles for grant or refusal to grant of
injunction to restrain enforcement of a bank guarantee
or a letter of credit, we find that the following principles
should be noted in the matter of injunction to restrain

_ theencashment of a bank guarantee or a letter of credit:

() While dealing with an application for injunction in
the course of commercial dealings, and when an
unconditional bank guarantee or letter of credit is given
or accepted, the beneficiary is entitled to realise such
a bank guarantee or a letter of credit in terms thereof
irrespective of any pending disputes relating to the
terms.of the contract.

(ii) The bank giving such guarantee is bound to honour
. "itasperits ' “-ms irrespective of any dispute raised by
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(iii) The courts should be slow in granting an order of
injunction to restrain the realisation of a bank guarantee
or a letter of credi\t.

(iv) Since a bank guarantee or a letter of creditisan
independent and a separate contract and is absolute
in nature, the existence of any dispute between the -
parties to the contract is not a ground for issuing an
order of injunction to restrain enforcement of bank
guarantees or letters of credit.

(v) Fraud of an egregious nature which would vitiate
the very foundation of such a bank guarantee or letter
of credit and the beneﬁcxary seeks to take advantage
of the situation.

(vi) Allowing encashment of an unconditional bank
guarantee or a letter of credit would result in-

irretrievable harm or m_]ustlce to one of the parties
concerned.”

13.  The guarantee giv_en by the bank to the appellant
contains only the condition that in case of breach by the lead
promoter, viz., the first respondent of the conditions of Lo,
the appellant is free to invoke the bank guarantee and the bank
should honour it ... “without any demur, merely on a demand
from GMB (appellant) stating that the said lead promoter failed '
to perform the covenants...”: It has also been undertaken by
the bank that such written demand from the appellant on the
bank shall be ... “conclusive, absolute and unequivocal as
regards the amount due and payable by the bank under this

- guarantee”, Between the appellant and the first respondent, m .
the event of failure to perform the obligations under the LoI‘
dated 06.02.2008, the appellant was entitled to cancel the.
Lol and invoke the bank guarantee. On being satisfied that
the first respondent has failed to perform its obligations as
covenanted, the appellant cancelled the Lol and resultantly

*invoked the bank guarantee. Whether the canceilation is legal
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and proper, and whether on such cancellation, the bank
guarantee could have been invoked on the extreme situation
of the first respondent justifying its inability to perform its
obligations under the Lol etc., are not within the purview of
an inquiry under Article 226 of the Constitution of India.
Between the bank and the appellant, the moment there is a
written demand for invoking the bank guarantee pursuant to

- breach of the covenants between the appellant and the first
respondent, as satisfied by the appellant, the bank is bound to
honour the payment under the guarantee.”

30.  Thedecision to invoke bank guarantee and to cancel the contract is
based upon the economic interest of the Corporation so as to not to purchase
something which is not likely to serve-public purpose. Such decision of the
Corporation cannot be said to be arbitrary, unreasonable, invalid which may -
warrant interference in the writ jurisdiction of this Court.

31.  Inview ofthe above discussion, we find that the present writ petition
sans substance and the same is hereby dismissed. There shall be no order as
to costs.

Petition dismissed.
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WRIT PETITION
: Before Mr. Justice J. K. Maheshwari
W.P. No. 9297/2017 (Jabalpur) decided on 8 August, 2017

ANEK @ ANIL NAGESHWAR ... Petitioner
Vs. : : '
STATE OF M.P. & ors. . ...Respondents

Rajya Suraksha Adhiniyam, M.P. 1990 (4 of 1991), Section 5(a) &
(b) — Externment Orders — Grounds — S.P. submitted its report dated
18.12.2012 referring number of cases against petitioner — Collector passed
externment order of petitioner in 2017 — Appeal was also dismissed by
Commissioner — Challenge to — Held — Nothing is brought on record to
show that petitioner “is engaged or is about to engaged” in commission of
offences in proximity to earlier cases — Other offences committed by him
years or months back cannot be a ground to pass externment erdér — No
material on record to believe that witnesses amongst public are not turning
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. up to depose against petitioner before the Court out of fear or on account

of danger to person and property — No such finding is recorded by
competent authority — Relying on the report of S.P. 02012, after4 Y2 yrs,
passing an externment order is without application of mind — Requirements
of Section 5 (b) are not fulfilled - Iinpugngd orders are set aside — Petition -
allowed. - (Paras 13,15 & 16)

v e aifeE, wy. 1990 (1991 &7 4), &1 5(%) 7 (f}) —
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Cases referred :

2009 (4) MPLJ 434, 2011 (3) MPLJ 367, 2014 (2) MPLJ 621, 2014
(4) MPLJ 654, AIR 1952 SC 221, AIR 2005 SC 2080, AIR 1973 SC 630.

Sanjay Sharma, for the petitioner. - y
Girish Kekre, G.A. for the State.

ORDER

J.K. Mangsawari, J. :- Seeking quashment of the order of
externment dated 10.1.2017 Annexure P/5 passed by the respondent No.2
the Collector cum District Magistrate, Balaghat so also the order Annexure
P/7 dated 3.5.2017 rejecting the appeal passed by the respondent No.3
Commissioner Jabalpur Division Jabalpur; this petition has been preferred
under Article 226 of the Constitution of India.

2."  Onperusal of the facts unfolded to the present case and looking to
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the findings recorded in the order impugned Annexure P/5 dated 10.1.201 7,
it reveals that nineteen cases were registered agamst the petitioner, The
. Superintendent of Police, Balaghat submitted its report on 18.12.2012 refetring
the registration of the said offences against the petitioner and also referring
~ two other cases pertaining to Crime No.51/2014 under Sections, 323, 294,
324, 147, 148, 149, 506B of the Indian Penal Code (hereinafter referred to
as ".LP.C") and Crime No.227/2015 the offence under Sections 294 and 506
-of the 1.P.C. In the order, it is observed, even on filing the Ishtagasa under
Sections 107 and 116(3) of the Code of Criminal Procedure (hereinafier shall
be referred to as "Cr.P.C"), the petitioner is involved in commission of the
offences, however, preventive action against the petitioner has become
ineffective. It is also mentioned that the certified copies of the Court order
regarding closure of the cases referred have not been produced despite
opportunities. However, to maintain the public order and peace and because
the conduct of the petitioner has not been improved and he is continuously
involved in commission of the offences, therefore, sufficient ground is available
to take action as per Section 5(b) of the Madhya Pradesh Rajya Suraksha
Adhiniyam, 1990 (hereinafter shall be referred to as "Adhiniyam"). Thus, order
of externment of the petitioner has passed to extern him from District Balaghat
.and the nearby Districts Seoni, Mandla, Dindori for a period of one year. On
filing the appeal, it is dismissed confirming the order of district magistrate and
approving the findings vide order Annexure P/7 dated 3.5.2017. Being
dissatisfied by both the orders, this petition has been preferred.

3. Leamed counsel for the petitioner has filed coples of some of the judgments
passed by the Criminal Courts acquitting the petitioner in those cases, while some
of'the cases are pending in the courts. It is also contended that as per Section 5 of
the Adhiniyam, the movements or acts of any person are causing or calculated to
cause alarm, danger or harm to the person or property and reasonable ground 1s
available to believe that the persori is engaged or is about to be engaged in

- commission of the offence, andmtheoplmon of the District Magistrate the witnesses

are not willing to come forward to give evidence against such person by reason of
apprehension as regards the safety of their person or property, the order of' removal
_of such person from the district may be passed. But in the present case no
reasonable ground is available to make out a case that the petitioner is engaged or
is about to be engaged in commission of the offence. Merely relying upon the old
offences during the period of 1998 till 2012, and to pass the order after about four
and a half years from the report of the Superintendent of Polite in the year 2017
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is wholly without application of mind and it do not fulfill the requirement as’,
* contemplated under Section 5(b) of the Adhiniyam. It is also contended that the
" District Magistrate, Balaghat has not recorded any finding that the witnesses
. amongst the public are not willing to come and to give evidence against the
" petitioner; in absence of such finding, the order impugned cannot be sustained in
law.

4., In support of the said contention, reliance has been placed by the’
petitioner on the Division Bench Judgment of this Court in the case of 4shok
Kumar Patel Versus State of Madhya Pradesh & Others reported in 2009
'(4) MPLJ 434 so also three other judgments of this Court in the cases of
Ashu alias Assu alias Ashish Jain alias Ankush Versus State of Madhya
Pradesh & Others reported in 2011 (3) MPLJ 367, Pappu alias Pramod
Versus State of Madhya Pradesh reported in 2014 (2) MPLJ 621 and
Ramgopal Raghuvanshi Versus State of Madhya Pradesh & Others
reported in 2014 (4) MPLJ 654. In view of the law laid down by the aforesaid
pronouncements, it is urged that the order of externment dated 10.1.2017
Annexure P/5 passed by the respondent No.2 District Magistrate, Balaghat
so also the order Annexure P/7 rejecting the appeal dated 3.5.2017 passed
by the respondent No.3 Commissioner Jabalpur Division Jabalpur may be
set aside and the petitioner may be set free to move within the District Balaghat
and the nearby Districts Seoni, Mandla, Dindori.

5. Per contra, learned Government Advocate for the respondent/State
has filed their reply interalia contending that there were nineteen cases registered
against the petitioner from the year 1998 till 2012 as apparent from the report
submitted by the Superintendent of Police; Balaghat on 18.12.2012. However,
considering the past conduct of the petitioner the order impugned has rightly
‘been passed in view of the provisions as contained in Section 5(b) of the
Adhiniyam. Learned Government Advocate has produced the original record
and submitted that not only the offences mentioned in the order are registered,
but two other offences have also been registered against him in the year 2014-
2015, therefore, the power conferred under Section 5(b) of the Adhiniyam
has rightly been exercised by the competent authority while passing the order .
impugned, which is confirmed by the Appellate Authority, however, the scope
of judicial review warranting interference by this Court is narrower, therefore,
this petition may be dismissed.

6.  After having heard learned counsel for the parties and to appreciate
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the arguments in the facts of the case, first of all the Section 5(a), 5(b), 5(c) of
the Adhiniyam is required to be seen which is reproduced as.under:-

""5.  Removal of persons about to commit offence—
Whenever it appears to the District Magistrate —

() that the movements or acts of any person are causing or
calculated to cause alarm, danger or harm to person or

property; or

(b) that there are reasonably grounds for believing that such
person is engaged or is about to be engaged in the commission
of an offence involving force or violence or an offence
punishable under Chapter XII, XVI or XVII or under Section
506 or 509 of the Indian Penal Code, 1860 (45 of 1860)) or
in the abetment of any such offence, and when in the opinion
of the District Magistrate witnesses are not willing to come
forward to give evidence in public against such person by

" reason of apprehension on their part as regards the safety of
their person or property; or '

(c) that an outbreak of epidemic disease is likely to result from
the continued residence of an immigrant;

the District Magistrate, may by an order in writing duly served
on him or by beat of drum or otherwise as the District
Magistrate thinks fit, direct such person or immigrant —

(a) so as to conduct himself as shall deem necessary in order
to prevent violence and alarm or the outbreak or spread of
such disease; or

(b) to remove himself outside the district or any part thereof.
or such area and any district or districts or any part thereof,
contiguous thereto by such route within such time as the District
Magistrate may specify and not to enter or return to the said
district or part thereof or such area and such contiguous -
districts, or part thereof, as the case may be, from Whlch he
was directed to remove himself."

7. Looking to the provisions as contained in Section 5 of the Adhiniyam,
it throws light under what circumstances the order of externment of a person
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who is about to commit the offence may be passed. Section.5(a) of the
Adhiniyam deals about an act of the person who is causing or calculated to
cause alarm, danger or harm to any person or property. On visualizing the
said contingencies, as per Section 5(b) if reasonable ground to believe such
facts are available to the competent authority that "the person is engaged or:is
* about to be engaged” in the commission of an offence involving force or violence
or an offence punishable under Chapter XII, XVI or XVII or under Section
506 or 509 of the I.P.C or in the abetment of any such offence and also
having the contingency that looking to the antecedents of the person, the
witnesses amongst the public are not willing to come and to depose in the
* Court against him due to apprehension of the safety of the person or property;
the District Magistrate on having satisfaction may pass the order of externment,
-hampering personal liberty of such person, putting check on his movements in
the district or nearby districts. Meaning thereby while passing the order of
externment by the competent authority, which affects the personal liberty, the
order may be passed but following the proceduré prescribed after recording
satisfaction looking to the antecederits, that such person is engaged or about
to be engaged in the offences specified in Section 5(b) of the Adhiniyam, and
also looking to the material that the witnesses are not coming to depose in
Courtagainsthim. : ‘

8. The Division Bench of this Court in dshok Kumar Patel (supra) was
having an occasion to consider the connotation "is engaged or is about to be
engaged” contemplated in Section 5(b) of the Adhiniyam and while dealing
with the same, it is observed that if any person was engaged in the commission
of the offence or in abetment of an offence of the type mentioned in Section
5(b) of the Adhiniyam, several years or several months back, it cannot be a
reasonable ground for believingthat the person is engaged is or about to be-
engaged in comrhission of the offence, The Court referring the description of
the offences committed by the petitioner held that if the offence is registered
.in between 1995 to 2007 in the facts of the said case and the order of
externment has been passed in November, 2008 and in case the plea taken
by the respondent regarding commission of the offence in July 2008, is also’
taken into consideration even then it would not constitute a reasonable ground
to believe on the date of passing the order i.e. 18.11.2008 that "petitioner is
engaged or is about to be engaged" in commission of the offence as to satisfy
the requirement of Section 5(b) of the Adhiniyam. While considering the second
part of Section 5(b) of the Adhiniyam, the Court has referred the judgment of
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Hon'ble the Supreme Court rendered in the case of Gurbachan Singh Versus
State of Bombay reported in AIR 1952 SC 221, which deals with Section 27
of the City of Bombay Police Act, 1902 having pari materia provision. In the
said case, Hon'ble the Apex Court has observed as under:-

"The law is certainly an extra-ordinary one and has been made
only to meet those exceptional cases where no witnesses for
fear of violence to their person or property are willing to depose
publicly against certain bad characters whose presence in
certain areas constitute a menace to the safety or the public
residing therein." ) '

0. In the said case, the Division Bench has further relied upon the judgment
of Hon'ble the Supreme Court in the case of State of N.C.T of Delhi &

" Another Versus Sanjeev alias Bittu reported in AIR 2005 SC 2080. In the
said case Apex Court in Paragraph No.25 has held as under-

"It is true that some material must exist but what is required is
not an elaborate decision akin to a judgment. On the contrary,
the order directing externment should show existence of some
material warranting an order of externment. While dealing with
question mere repetition of the provision would not be sufficient.
Reference to be made to some material on record and if that is
done the requirements of law are met. As noted above, itis .
‘not the sufficiency of material but the existence of material which
1s sine qua non."

10.  The Division Bench in Ashok Kumar Patel (supra) has also considered
the judgment of Hon'ble the Supreme Court rendered in the case of
Pandharinath Shridhar Rangnekar Versus Deputy Commissioner of Police,

State of Maharashtra reported in AIR 1973 SC 630. whereby the Apex
Court considering the provisions of Section 56 of the City of Bombay Police
Act in the context of personal liberty of a person has observed as under:-

"It is true that the provisions of Section 56 make a serious inroad

on personal liberty but such restraints have to be suffered in the

larger interests of society. This Court in Gurbachan Singh Versus

State of Bombay 1952 SCR 737=AIR 1952 SC 221 had upheld

the validity of Section 27(1) of the City of Bombay Police Act,
- 1902, which corresponds to Section 56 of the Act. Following
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that decision, the challenge to the constitutionality of Section 56
was repelled in 1956 SCR 533=AIR 1956 SC 585, We will
only add that care must be taken to ensure that the terms of Sections
56 and 59 are strictly complied with and that the slender safeguards

which those prowsmns offer are made available to the proposed
externee."

11.  Inview of'the aforesaid three judgments of Hon'fale the Supreme Court,
~ the Division Bench of this Court while clarifying the later contingency concluded
that it is incumbent on the competent authority to record the reason showing”
the material that the witnesses from public are not coming forth to deposeina
Court 4gainst such person on account of apprehension of their life or to person
and their property referring the instances but it cannot be directed merely
repeating the language as written in Section 5(b) of the Adhiniyam. It has
been held by the Division Bench that the compliance of twin condition; the
person"is engaged or is about to be engaged" and by producing the material,
or due to his activities the witnesses of the case are not coming forth, however,
existence of material to record satisfaction thereof is sine qua non to pass
the order of externment otherwise such an order passed by the District
Magistrate confirmed by the Appellate Authority may be quashed.

12.  Thejudgment delivered by the Division Bench in Ashok Kumar Patel
(supra) has been followed by this Court in the case of Ashu alias Assu alias
Ashish Jain alias Ankush (supra) reiterating the same principle aslaid down .
in the case of Ashok Kumar Patel (supra). In the case of Pappu alias Pramod
(supra), the similar proposition of law has been laid down considering the

‘judgment rendered in'the case of Ashu alias Assu alias Ashish Jain alias
Ankush (supra) and recently in the case of Ramgopal Raghuvanshi (supra), -
this Court considering the judgment renderend in the cases of Ashok Kumar
Patel (supra) and dshu alias Assu alias Ashish Jain alias Ankush (supra)
quashed the order of externment due to non-compliance of the said twm
condition, contemplated i in Sec. 5(b) of the Adhnnyam

3. Inviewofthe foregoing legal posmon the facts of the present case
" arerequired to be analyzed. As per pleadings and the documents it is apparent
that the respondent No.2 District Magistrate, Balaghat while passing the
impugned order Annexure P/5 dated 10.1.2017 has referred the registration
of nineteen cases against the petitioner and further made a reference of two
more cases, though it was not a part of the show cause notxce but all those
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cases were of the year 1998 till 2015, As per the return filed by the respondent/
State, the report submitted by the Superintendent of Police, Balaghat dated
18.12.2012 has been considered to pass an order of externment in J anuary,
2017. The reference is made regarding two other cases of the year 2014-
20135, and from the record produced before this court, two more cases have
been referred that too are of the year 2014-2015. On perusal of those cases
and the order of externment, it is nowhere reflected that the past act committed
by the petitioner is having any proximity to the act done for which the order of
externment is passed. Nothing is brought on record to show that "the petitioner
is engaged or is about to be engaged" in commission of the offence in proximity
to the earlier cases. Thus, the other offences committed by him years or months
back, referred in the order cannot be a ground to pass an order of externment.
It is to observe here, that having an antecedent against a person may be a
reason to initiate the action as per Section 5(a) of the Adhiniyam. But to pass
the order satisfaction of the authority must be on the material that the petitioner
is engaged or about to engage in commission of the offence having proximity
to his antecedents from the offence, which may be committed to fulfill the first
requirement of Section 5(b) of the Adhiniyam. Until the existence of the material
to believe the said fact is on record, as per the Division Bench Judgment in the
case of 4shok Kumar Patel (supra), such action is bad in law. Looking to
the facts of the case, it is held that for an offence committed by the petitioner
during the year 1998 to 2015, years back or months back referred in the
order impugned would not be counted in proximity to commission of the offence
on the date of passing the order bringing the material to show that the act of
petitioner fall in connotation "is. engaged or is about to be engaged”. In absence
of such findings, the order impugned do not satisfy the first requirement of
Section 5(b) of the Adhiniyam.

14, Thesecond requirement is also necessitated to pass an order of externment
that on account of the actiyities of a person, who is externee, the witnesses amongst
public are not coming forth to depose in the criminal cases against him either under
apprehension of person or property. But in the order impugned existence of such
material is not on record, more so, no such finding has been recorded by the
competent authority to record satisfaction. Therefore, the order impugned do not
fulfill the second requirement of Section 5(b) of the Adhiniyam.

15.  Inview of the foregoing discussion, it can safely be concluded that
passing an order of externment relying upon the offences registered against _
the petitioner from the year 1998 till 2012 and two otheér offences as referred
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in the year 2014-2015, to pass an order in the year 2017 cannot be said to
be in close proximity in absence of existence of any material. In addition to
the aforesaid, on perusal of the list of the cases, it reveals that nine cases have
been registered against the petitoiner for the offence under Sections 107,
110, 116 of the Cr.P.C for breach of peace; four cases have been registered
against him for the offence under Sections 4, 7K, 18 of the Madhya Pradesh
Parivahan Adhiniyam to bring the cattles into a slaughter house and out of the
remaining cases, in three cases the copies of the judgments thereof have been
filed including the offence of Section 307 of the LP.C wherein the petitioner is
acquitted by the competent court and in one case he is convicted against
which appeal is filed in High Court and the jail sentence is suspended. No
material is available to believe that the witnesses amongst public in those cases
are not turning up to depose against him in the Court on account of having any
danger to them in person or property. In addition, the finding in this regard
has not been recorded by the competent authority.

16.  Thus, considering all these aspects, in my considered opinion, the order
of externment of the petitioner Annexure P/5 dated 10.1.2017 passed by the
respondent No.2 District Magistrate, Balaghat relying upon the report of the
Superintendent of Police, Balaghat dated 18.12.2012 after four and a half
years and further referring some other cases not mentioned-in the show caise
notices, of the year 2014-2015, is without application of mind and without
recording a finding regarding proximity of the act done by the petitioner from
his antecedents to bring such material on record. No material exists to show
that the witnesses amongst public are not coming forth to depose in those
- cases against him. Therefore, the order of externment do not fulfill the
requirement of Sec.5(b) of the Adhiniyam. The Appellate Authority/Respondent
No.3 Commissioner Jabalpur Division Jabalpur without considering those
aspects dismissed the appeal filed by the petitioner vide order Annexure P/7
dated 3.5.2017, therefore, both the orders are liable to be set aside.

17.  Accordingly, this petition succeeds and is hereby allowed; the order of
.externment Annexure P/5 dated 10.1.2017 passed by the respondent No.2
Collector-cum-District Magistrate, Balaghat so also the order Annexure P/7 -
rejecting the appeal dated 3.5.2017 passed by the respondent No.3 Commissioner
Jabalpur Division Jabalpur are hereby set aside. In the facts and circumstances of
the case, the parties are directed to bear their own costs. -

Petition allowed.
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LL.R.{2017] M.P., 2378
WRIT PETITION
‘Before Mr. Justice Sujoy Paul -
W.P. No. 19503/2016 (Jabalpur) decided on 10 August, 2017

PREETIJAIN (SMT.) & ors. ...Petitioners
Vs. '
MANISH JAIN ...Respondent

A. Criminal Procedure Code, 1973 (2 0of 1974), Section 125
& 125(3) — Recovery of Arrears of Maintenance — Limitation — On
14.05.13, Family Court directed husband to pay Rs. 15,000 p.m. to wife
as maintenance — Amount not paid by husband— On 14.11.15, wife filed
application u/S 125(3) Cr.P.C. whereby family Court held the wife
entitled to receive maintenance amount for a period of preceding one
year only -- Challenge to-— Held — Apex Court concluded that it is
unreasonable to insist on filing successive applications when liability
to pay maintenance as per order passed is a continuing liability —
Respondent directed to pay entire unpaid amount of maintenance from
date of order i.e. 14.05.13. (Para 14)

# TS AIFAT Gledl, (1973 (1974 BT 2) 4RT 125 T 125(3) —
WU @ Fera B age! — R — RAiE 14052013 W, wEE
NrATEd 3 N B 15,000 /- . UfrTE AROTOIY @ Wy ¥ Er ae eq
yfr @ FRRm fear — oft gmr ol @1 Werm = frar mr — e 14,
11.2015 I, U=f F gvs wlpar GRear @ g 125() @ ST adET TweE
frar it Bge =rare = a7 afifefRa feo 5 ool d9a @ af o
¥V Al B AROGIr AT UTE FRA B FBER & — B g — affeiR
— Walw <armer 7 Freafifa f5ar @ 1% wwe: smes w=aqa oot o Wik 3=
HRYT ¢ o IIRT IRY F ITER WU P AE B AR TP
PR wifie @ — et &t s favie arerfq 14.05.2013 ¥ ARogiSor o)
gl sreGcd RN @1 TaaE ex 2g FRRW fe

B. ' Criminal Procedure Code, 1973 (2 of 1974), Section
125(3) — Arrears of Maintenance —~ Mode of Recovery — Limitation ~
Held — U/S 125 Cr.P.C. two methods/alternatives are available to

Magistrate in case of non-compliance of order, one is to issue warrant -

for levying the amount due and second is to sentence such person for
whole or any part of each month’s default - Even second alternative
can be used by Court after execution of warrant — Since limitation of

.
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one year is prescribed as per proviso for issuance of warrant, second
alternative can also be exercised only within time frame prescribed in
the proviso. (Para9 & 14)

- . TvE FiHar Giear, 1973 (1974 &7 2), €T 125(3) — TX0T9977T
' BT §FIT — A 7 & — g — atafraiRa — gvs wiwar Afear
F O 125 B AdHd ARY B I B GG 7 ARRGE & U b
¥ /ey syaw €, vz, 27 AR &7 IZTE HYT ¥Y INE TR
s ¢d gy, O @ Bt udE Aw @ afwd @ Wt A fod A
AT @ fav gvsifie ¥R — INT @ frsred @ uvET ey N
frfra fagen o1 ft wdtwr fear o1 9@ar @ — g% T W B B
wWaF @ AgUR o a9 @7 gRer fafew @ o 2, fadw Rreew o1 A
g dad wqe # fafxa wiw et @ AR fe o wear 21

Cases referred :

1980 Crl.L.J. 1212, 2005 (4) SCC 468, 2013 (10) SCC 618, 1989
(1) SCC 405, 1999 (5) SCC 672.

Sushil Sharma, for the petitioners.
- Neeraj Dubey, for the respondent.

ORDER

Susov Pauw, J. :- This petition filed under Article 227 of the
Constitution takes exception to the order dated 13.05.2016 (Annexure-P/1),
whereby the application preferred by the petitioners under Section 125 (3) of
Cr.P.C. is partly disallowed by the Family Court.

2. ° Briefly stated, the admitted facts are that in a Matrimonial Case No.126/ ~
2016, the Court below vide order dated 14.05.2013 directed the respondent-
husband to pay Rs.15,000/- per month as maintenance amount. The said

direction was issued by the Court below in exercise of powers under Sectlon
125 Cr.P.C.

3. Shri Sushil Sharma, learned counsel for the petitioner submits that
when the amount of maintenance was not depositea in consonance with the
requirement of Section 125 Cr.P.C., the petitioners filed an application under
Section 125(3) of Cr.P.C. on 14.11.2015. The respondent filed his reply .
containing a preliminary objection. The Court below, after hearing the parties
on the said application, decided it by order dated 13.05.2016. Shri Sharma
submits that the Court below has etred in giving a finding that the application
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under Section 125 (3) of Cr.P.C. is filed on 05. I 1 201 5 and, therefore, as per
the proviso to Section 125 (3), the petitioners are entitled to get the amount
only for a period of one year. In other words, the petitioners are only entitled
to get the amount of maintenance from November, 2014 to November, 2015.
Shri Sharma submits that the Court below has erred in disallowing the
application for a period before November, 2014. He placed heavy reliance
on the language employed in Section 125 (3). In support of his contention, he
relied on the judgment of Allahabad High Court in the case of [flekhar Husain
Vs. Smt. Hameed Begum, 1980 Crl. L.J. 1212. In addition, he relied on the
judgment of Supreme Court in the case reported in 2005 (4) SCC 468
(Shantha alias Usha Devi and another Vs. B.G Shivana Nanjappa)and
another judgment of Supreme Court in Poongodi and another Vs
Thangavel, 2013 (10) SCC 618.

4.  Percontra, Shri Neeraj Dubey, learned counsel for the respondent
opposed the said contention. He submits that the petitioners stayed with the
respondent for quite some time. During this period, expenses of petitioners
were taken care of by the respondent. Thus, the question of payment of
maintenance amount during this period does not arise. The petitioners' claim
prior to November; 2014 was clearly barred by limitation. As per Section
125 (3), the petitioners are only entitled to get the maintenance amount for
preceding one year.

5. No other point is pressed by learned counsel for the parties.
6. I'have heard learned counsel for the parties and perused the record.
7. Before dealing with rival contentions, it is apposite to quote relevant

portlon of Section 125 (3) Cr.P.C. which is as under:

"125. (3) If any person so ordered fails without
sufficient cause to comply with the order, any such
Magistrate may, for every breach of the order, issue a
warrant for levying the amount due in the manner provided
for levying fines, and may sentence such person, for the
whole or any part of each month's allowances for the -
maintenance or the interim maintenance and expenses of
proceedings, as the case may be, remaining unpaid after
the execution of the warrant, to imprisonment for a term
which may extend to one month or until payment if sooner

A\l
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made:

Provided that no warrant shall be issued for the recovery

" of any amount due under this sectzon unless application
be made to the Court to-levy such amount within a period
of one year from the date on which it became due.

(Emphasis supplied)

8. The first contention of Shri Sushil Sharma, learned counsel for the
petitioner is based on the judgment of Allahabad High Court in the case of
Iftekhar Husain (supra). In the said case, the Court opined that as per the
plain readmg of aforesaid section, the Court has two alternatives for the purpose
of recovery of arrears of maintenance. The first is by issuance of warrant for
realization of amount in the manner prescribed for levying the fine. The second -
is by sending the defaulter to imprisonment for one month for unpaid amount.
The restriction placed as per proviso to sub section (3) is that warrant for
recovery of any amount cannot be done if application in this'regard i is not
made within a period of one year from the date the amount becomes due, The
Allahabad High Court opined that there is no such limitation prescribed in
sub-Section (3) of Section 125 Cr.P.C. which limits the power of Magistrate
to sentence the defaulter for the whole or any part of each month's allowance
remaining unpaid, after the execution of the warrant to imprisonment for a
term which may extend to one month or until payment is made. In other words,
though the property of the defaulter can be attached and sold for the realization
of arrears of maintenance for a maximum period of one year from the date of
application, yet the defaulter can be sentenced to imprisonment for recovery

of arrears which may extend beyond this period.

0. I respectfully disagree with the aforesaid view taken in the case of
Iftekhar Husain (supra). A microscopic reading of aforesaid reproduced
Section 125 shows that two methods/alternatives are available to the
Magistrate in cases of non-compliance of earlier order passed under Section”

' 125 Cr.P.C. First one, as noticed by Allahabad High Court is to issue a warrant

for levying the amount due in the manner provided for levying fines and second
is to sentence such person for the whole or any part of each month's allowance

* remaining unpaid. A careful reading of this provision makes it clear that even

second alternative can be used by the Court after the execution of the warrant.
The expression "after the execution of the warrant” in the second part of
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aforesaid provision is very important and significant. As per my judgment, the
second alternative can be exercised only "after the execution of the warrant”.
The proviso makes it clear that no warrant shall be issued for the recovery of
any amount due under this section unless application is made to the Court to
levy such amount within a period of one year from the date on which it becomes
due.

10. .Thaveno scintilla of doubt that second alternative can also be exercised
after the execution of warrant. Since a limitation of one yearis prescribed as
per the proviso aforesaid for issuance of warrant, second alternative can also
be exercised only within the timé frame prescribed in the said proviso. For
this reason, I respectfully disagree with the view taken in Iftekhar Husain

(supra).

1. Pertinently, in Poongodi (supra), the Apex Court held that "what the
proviso contemplates is that the procedure for recovery of maintenance under
Section 125(3) Cr.P.C., namely, by construing the same to be and the detention
of the defaulter in custody would not be available to a claimant who liad slept
over his/her rights and has not approached the Court within a period of one
year commencing from the date on which the entitlement to receive maintenance
has accrued"”. For this reason also, I am unable to follow the view taken in
Iftekhar Husain (supra).

12. 'In 1989 (1) SCC 405 (Kuldip Kaur Vs. Surinder Singh and
another), it was held that sentencing a person to jail is a "mode of
enforcement". It is not a "mode of satisfaction" of the liability. The liability can
be satisfied only by making actual payment of the arrears. The whole purpose
of sending to jail is to oblige a person liable to pay monthly allowance who
refuses to comply with the order without sufficient cause, to obey the order
and to make payment. It was further held that sentencing fo jail is the means
for achieving the end of enforcing the order by recovering the amount of arrears,
It is not amode of discharge liability. The order for monthly allowance can be
discharged only upon the monthly allowance bein g recovered. Their Lordships
considered the judgment of Kuldip Kaur (supra) and judgment of 2005 (4)
SCC 468 (Shantha alias Ushadevi and another Vs. B.G Shivananjappa)
and 1999 (5) SCC 672 (Shahada Khatoon and others V. Amjad Ali and
others) in the case of Poongodi (supra) and held thus:

"7 e, -.The application dated 05.02.2002 filed by
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the appellants under Section 125(3) was in continuation
of the earlier applications and for subsequent periods of
default on the part of the Respondent. The first proviso to
Section 125(3), therefore did not extinguish or limit the
entitlement of the appellants to the maintenance granted L
by the learned trial court, as has been held by the High
Court.

8. In view of the above, we are left in no doubt that
the order passed by the High Court needs to be interfered
with by us which we accordingly do. The order dated
21.04.2004 of the High Court is set aside and we now issue
directions to the respondent to pay the entire arrears of
maintenance due to the appellants commencing from the
date of filing of the Maintenance Petition (M.C.No.1/1993)
ie. 4.2.1993 within a period of six months and current

. maintenance commencing from the month of September,
2013 payable on or before 7th of October, 2013 and
thereafter continue to pay the monthly maintenance on or
before the 7th of each successive month. If the above order
of this Court is not complied with by the Respondent, the
learned Trial Court is directed to issue a warrant for the
arrest of the respondent and ensure that the same is
executed and the respondent taken into custody to suffer
imprisonment as provided by Section 125(3) CrPC".

The Apex Court in the case of Shantha(supra) opined that it must be
borne in mind that S.125 Cr. P.C. is a measure of social legislation and it has
to be construed liberally for the benefit of the wife. It is unreasonable to insist
on filing successive applications when the liability to pay the maintenance as
per the order passed under said section is a continuing liability.

13.  So far argument of Shri Neeraj Dubey, learned counsel for the
respondent, is concerned, suffice it to mention that the very same argument of
the respondent was not accepted by the court below. The court below rejected
the said contention in the impugned order. The respondent has not assailed
the impugned order by filing appropriate proceedings. Apart from this, in view
of legislative mandate ingrained in Section 125 Cr.P.C., the said contention
cannot be accepted.
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14. Thefacts of the present case have great similarity with that of Poongodi
(supra). The maintenance amount not been paid by the husband for some period
for which the present petitioner preferred applications. Hence, I deem it proper to
follow the course adopted by the Supreme Court in Poongodi (supra). Accordingly,
the respondent is directed to pay the entire unpaid amount of maintenance due to
the petitioner commencing from the date of basic order of the Court below dated
14.05.2013.The arrears of such amount shall be paid to the petitioner within six
months from today. The amount shall be paid till the date it is due in accordance
with law. If this order is not complied with by the respondent, the learned trial
Court shall issue a warrant for the arrest of respondent and ensure that the same is
executed and the respondent is taken into custody to suffer imprisonment as
mandated in Section 125 (3) of Cr.P.C.

I5. - This petition, to the extent indicated hereinabove, is allowed.

Petition allowed.

LL.R. [2017] M.P., 2384
WRIT PETITION
Before Mr. Justice Hemant Gupta, Chief Justice &
Mr. Justice Vijay Kumar Shukla
. W.P.No. 12432/2017 (Jabalpur) decided on 18 August, 2017

RENEW CLEAN ENERGY PRIVATE LTD. ...Petitioner -
Vs.
M.P. POWER MANAGEMENT COMPANY LTD. & anr. - .Respondents

A. ' Constitution — Article 226/227 — Writ Jurisdiction —
Contractual Matters — Alternate Re‘medy — Held — Availability of
alternate remedy is a rule of discretion ~ It does not bar exercise of
writ jurisdiction of this Court in appropriate cases, moreso when there
is no dispute about the question of fact, this Court can interfere in
exercise of writ jurisdiction even in contractual matters. (Para12)

3 WIRETT — ST 226/ 227 — Re IfrFIRar — whzrers aret
—Ww—m—mwaﬁmﬁﬂmww
e @ — e wfaa Tweol F gu <o @ Re afreRar @ wi wt affg
Tl IR 2, 9w 59 72w B B N N B Rare W 2w e
wfaerors amrel ¥ @ Re afeRer 3 @ ¥ ewEy o wwar 2

B. Constitution - Article 226/227 — Writ Jurisdiction —
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Termination of Contract — Ground — Held — There is a delay of only
16 days in completing the first part of the agreement, for which there
isa provisioﬁ of penalty but action of termination of contract is not
sustainable — Order of termination is set aside and action of invocation
of bank guarantee as per agreement is maintained. (Para 13 & 14)

[ -wﬁm—agrza‘a'zzs/zw—ﬁaa;ﬁwﬁm—wﬁww
W—W—aﬁﬁaﬁﬂ—m%ummaﬁuymﬁmm
Wmﬁaﬁg,mﬁ--ﬁmmﬁﬁmwémﬁﬁﬂa%qﬂmﬁaﬁ
mwwmmﬁﬁ—ﬁmmmmﬁmwm
Wmﬂé'afnﬁﬁa%aaafﬁaﬁmmmﬁﬁl

Case referred :
(2015) 9 SCC 433.

Naman Nagrath with Jubin Prasad,. Mazag Andrabi and Varun
Kumar, for the petitioner. |
PK. Kaurav, A.G. with Adifya Khandekar, for the respondent No.1.

ORDER"

The Order of the - Court wds passed by :
HEMANT GUPTA, C.J. :- The challenge in the present petition is to an order
dated 11.08.2017 (Annexure P/18), whereby the respondent No.1 has decided
to terminate the Power Purchase Agreement executed on 10.11.2015 for the
reason that petitioner has failed to complete the milestone of procuring Iand
within the extended period of nine months after 210 days from the date of
execution of the agreement.

2. The brief facts leading to the present petition are that New and
Renewable Energy Department, Government of Madhya Pradesh introduced

"the Solar Policy for encouraging generation of power through solar power
projects in Madhya Pradesh on 70.07.2012. The respondent No. 1, the M.P.
Power Management Gompany (for short "the Company") issued a request
for proposal for long term procurement of 300 MW power from Grid
connected Solar Energy Sources through tariff based competitive bidding for
meeting Renewable Purchase Obligation. The petitioner participated in such
tender process.

3. The petitioner was issued a Letter of Intent on 23.10.2015 informing
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it that it is successful bidder and was allotted 51 MW capacity at quoted tariff
of INR 5.457 per kilowatt, Subsequently the power purchase agreement was
executed on 10.11.2015. Some of the conditions of the agreement, which are
relevant for the purposes of present petition, read as under:-

"2.1 SATISFACTON OF CONDITION S SUBSEQUENT
BYTHE SELLER

2.1.1. The Seller agrees and undertakes to duly perform and
complete all of the following activities at the Seller's
own cost and risk within 210 days from the Effective
Date, unless such completion is affected by any Force
Majeure event, orifany of the activities is specifically
waived in writing by MPPMCL:

XX XX XX XX

-

XX XX XX XX

€) The Seller shall produce the documentary evidence
of the clear title and possession of the acquired/
allotted land for Solar Project in the name of Seller;

1) The Seller shall fulfil] the technical requirements
according to criteria mentioned in REP and produce
the documentary evidence of the same. The Seller
would also provide evidence that the requisite
technical criteria have been fulfilled and required
land for project development @ 2 Hectares/MW
for Solar PV and 3 Hectares/MW for Solar
Thermal is under clear possession of the Seller. In
this regard the Seller shall be required to furnish
the following documentary evidences:-

® Ownership orlease hold rights (for at least 30
years) orright to use permission (for revenue land
in Madhya Pradesh) in the name of the Seller and
possession of 100% of the area of land required
for the allotted project. ‘

"

® Requisite documents from the concerned and
competent revenue/registration authority for the
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acquisition/ ownership/ vesting of the land in the
name of the Seller and in case prlvate land clear
title for ownership,

(Note: (i) Change i in the location of land from one place
to other location is not permitted after 210 days of
signing of PPA or at financial closure, whichever is
earlier. (ii} The land should be free from-all
encumbrances. (iii) The land should neither have been
proposed for.other purposes & nor should have been
mortgaged).

- 2.5 DELAY IN ACHIEVING CONDITIONS
SUBSEQUENT

' 2.5.1. Incase of delay in achieving any of the Conditions
Subsequent under clause 2.1 (a to h),as may be
applicable, MPPMCL shall encash CPG (submitted
by Seller @ Rs.30 Lakhs/MW) as under, subject to
Force Majeure:

a) Delay from 0-3 months - 1% per week.

b) Delay from 3-6 months - 2% per week for the
period exceeding 3 months, apart from (a) above.

¢) Delay from 6-9 months - 3% pér week for the
period exceedmg 6 months, apart from (a) and (b)
above.

d) Incaseofdelay of more than 9 months, MPPMCL
shall terminate PPA and release balance amount
of CPG, :

2.6 COMMISSIONING

In case of Solar Project of capacity up to 50 MW,
commissioning of plant shall be within 12 months from the date
of financial closure subject to Force Majeure. In case of Solar
Project of capacity beyond 50 MW and up to 100 MW,
commissioning of plant shall be within 15 months from the date
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of financial closure subject to Force Majeure. For capacity
beyond 100 MW, commissioning period shall be within 18

_ months from the date of financial closure subject to Force
Majeure.

In case of failure to achieve this milestone, provision of PPA
as mentioned below shall apply:-

MMPMCL shall encash the CPG in the following manner for
the capacity not commissioned, subject to Force Majeure:-

a) Delay from 0-3 months - 1% per week.

b) Delay from 3-6 months - 2% per week for the period
exceeding 3 months, apart from (a) above.

c) Delay of more than 6 months - 3% per week for the
period exceeding 6 months, apart from (a) and (b)
above.

Part Commissioning: In case of Solar PV Projects, Part
commissioning of the Project shall be accepted by MPPMCL
subject to the condition that the minimum capacity for

. acceptance of part commissioning shall be 5 MW or in multiples
of 5 MW. a

COD means the commissioning date of last Unit(s) of the Power
Project where upon the Seller starts injecting power from full
contracted capacity of the Power Project to the Delivery Point;
as approved by Competent Authority of the Transco/Discom. The
" PPA will remain in force for a period of 25 years from the COD.”

4. Though the land was to be provided by the petitioner, but, the State
Govemment allotted 41.811 hectares of land to the petitioner for installation of the
solar power energy system. Howéver, such land was found to be under
encroachment and consequently a letter was issued by the Company to the
Petitioner on 29.12.2016 substituting Note (I} of Clause 2.1.1 to read as under:-

"Change in the Jocation of land may be permitted after 210
days of signing of PPA, by MPPMCL" however subject to
provision 2.5 and 2.6 of said PPA."

5. Subsequently, the petitioner procured the land from its resources and
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informed the Company on 22.03.2017 that it has acquired 253 acres of land
at Ashok Nagar. The relevant sale deeds were attached with the said
communication. It is thereafter, on 11.08.2017, the Company communicated
the termination of the contract and ordered encashment of contract
performance guarantee in the sum 0f Rs.1195.542 Lakhs. The letter dated
11th August 2017 reads as under:-

A Power Purchase Agreement (PPA) was executed between -
you and MPPMCL, on 10-11-2015 for supply of Power from
your proposed, 51 MW. Solar PV plant located at Village-
Jaitpur, District Rajgarh and subsequently location was
changed to Village-Bhensarwas, District Ashoknagar at a rate
of Rs.5.457 per unit, under Phase-III solar bidding.

Whereas, for guarantee to fulfilment of contractual

obligations within timeline as per PPA, you had submitted a

. Bank Guarantee amounting Rs.15,30,00,000/- (Rs. Fifteen

Crore thirty lakhs only), bearing Sr.No0.002GM01153090001,

dated 05-11-2015, Drawn on Yes Bank Ltd., Fortune Global

Arcade, Sikanderpur Mehrauali Gurgaon Road, Gurgaon,

. Valid upto 31.12.2017, as contract performance guarantee
(CPG) to MPPMCL.

Whereas, as stipulated in the PPA (ARTiCLE 2:
PRECOMMISSIONING ACTIVITIES), time line for
scheduled commencement of supply is, mentioned hereunder-

Effective Date* (Date of PPA) 10/11/15
Last date of fulfilling Conditions Subsequent | 07/06/16
(210 days from PPA)

Completion of 9 months of penalty period for | 07/03/17
CS (Clause 2.5 of PPA) .

Actual date of fulfillment of Conditions 23/03/2017
subsequent

Delay in achieving condition subsequent 16 days
form the dead line

Whereas, clause 2.5 of PPA - DELAY IN ACHIEVING
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CONDITION SUBSEQUENT., states that,

'2.5.1 Incase of delay in achieving any of the Conditions
Subsequent under clause 2.1 (a to h), as may be applicable,
MPPMCL shall encash CPG (submitted by seller @ Rs.30
‘Lakhs/MW) as under, subject to Force Majeure.

a) Delay from 0-3 months - 1% per week.

b) Delay from 3-6 months - 2% per week for the period
exceeding 3 months, apart from (a) above.

¢) Delay from 6-9 months - 3% per week for the period
exceeding 6 months, apart from (a) and (b) above.

d) In case of delay of more than 9 months, MPPMCL shail
terminate PPA and release balance amount of CPG'

Whereas, your representations and submissions vide
letters dated 23.03.2017 and 28.03.2017, were examined and
considered in light of the PPA, by the competent authority of
the Company. It is observed that you have failed to achieve
fulfiliment of conditions subsequent, even during the permissible
delay period with penalty (9 months after 210 days from signing
of the PPA) i.e. upto 07.03.2017.

Whereas, contentions mentioned in your representation/

~ submissions pertaining to delay in land acquisition because of
ROW problems at original site and demonetization during the
land acquisition at new site, for considering as Force majeure,
does not come under Force Majeure as provided in Article I
of the PPA. The Condition Subsequent requirement of the
clause 2.1.1 of the PPA pertains to (i) Obtaining all consents,
clearances and permits required for supply of power to
MPPMCL, (ii) Financial closure, (iii) Transmission Agreement
with CTU/STU, and (iv) Documentary evidence of the clear
title and possession of the acquired/allotted land. The PPA
provides for a period of 210 days and a maximum delay of 9
‘months after the completion of 210 days (thus a total of 210
days - 9 months) to complete the condition subsequent. As it
‘is evident from the RFF, Bid documents and PPA that the Seller
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(M/s ReNew Clean Energy Pvt, Ltél.) was free to arrange
suitable land for the project and the PPA provides options of
acquiring private land or getting Govt land allotted.

Further, change in the location of land is not permitted
after 210 days of signing of PPA or at financial closure,
whichever is earlier (please refer note (i) under clause 2.1.1
of the PPA). However, on your request, the Board of Directors
of MPPMCL permitted the change in location after 210 days
of signing of PPA, in the interest of implementation of the .
project, subject to clauses 2.5 and 2.6 of the PPA. In light of
the above facts and the provisions of the PPA, it is concluded
that your justification for delay in achieving condition
subsequent is not tenable, and therefore not accepted.

Therefore, as per sub-clause (d) of clause 2.5.1 of
PPA, the PPA signed on 10-Nov. 2015, between M/s ReNew
Clean Energy Pvt. Ltd., Haryana, (SPV of Bidding Company
ReNew Solar Power Pvt. Ltd.) and MPPMCL, for Supply of
Power from the proposed, 51 MW, Solar PV plant located at
Village-Jaitpur, District Rajgarh and subsequently location was )
changed to Village-Bhensarwas, District Ashoknagar, at a rate
of Rs.5.457 per unit, to MPPMCL, is hereby terminated.

Further to above, as per clause 2.5.1, Penalty due to
* delay in achieving condition subsequent, stands recoverable
from you, same is tabulated as under-

Sr. Delay slab Applicable Penalty amount
rate of penalty [ Rs, In Lac
1 Upto210days Nil Nil

from execution of
PPA) (From 10.11.2015

t007.06.2016)

| 2 Delay from 0-3 months 1% per week 201.042 Lakh
{from 00:00 Hrs of (13.14x51x
08.06.2016 to 24:00 30x0.01)

Hrs. 0f07.09.2016 =
233 1+31407=(92/7)
=13.14 weeks
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3 Delay from 3-6 months 2% perweek | 397.80lakh
(from 00:00 Hrs. of {13X51x30x0.02)
08.09.2016 t0 24:00 Hrs. of
07.12.2016=23+31+30+07
=91 days = 91/7 = 13 weeks.

4 Delay from 6-9 months 3% per week 596.70 Lakh
(from 00:00 Hrs. of (13X51x30x0.03)
08.12.2016 t624:00 Hrs. of :

07.03.2017 =24+31+29+07
=91 days=91/7=13 weeks

Total Penalty 1195.542 Lakh

As mentioned above, an amount 0f Rs.1195.542 lakh (Rupees
eleven crore ninety five lakh fifty four thousand and two hundred
only) is beingrecovered through encashment of Bank Guarantee
held with MPPMCL as CPG."

6. Learned Advocate General raised preliminary objection against the
entertainment of the present writ petition inter alia on the ground that petitioner
has alternative statutory remedy under Section 86(1)(f) of the Electricity Act,
2003, therefore, disputed questions of fact should not be examined in the writ
petifion. Itis also contended that the time limit contemplated in Clause 2:5.1
is mandatory and sacrosanct, therefore, any violation of the time limit entitles
the Company to terminate the contract and to take action as is permissible in
law. It is also argued that as against tariff quoted by the petitioner at Rs.5.457
per kilowatt, the subsequent tariff offered by other tenderers in other contracts

.is as low as Rs.3.30 per kilowatt and, therefore, the payment of higher tariff
to the petitioner will cost the State exchequér, may be to the tune of Rs.450
Crores for the entire duration of 25 years of the contract period. After raising
arguments on the maintainability of the petition, learned Advocate General
seeks time to file return on the merits of the petition.as well.

7. On the other hand, Mr, Nagrath, learned counsel for the petitioner,
submits that petitioner has incurred a capital expenditure of Rs.350 Crores
for generation and sale of power to the Company. Therefore, it is a legitimate
expectation of the Petitioner that the Company shall deal with the petitioner in
a fair and reasonable manner. It is contended that though there was delay of
16 days in terms of Clause 2.5.1, but, the petitioner has maintained the ultimate
time line of handing over the project on 07.09.2017 when petitioner submitted
notice of commissioning of 51 MW solar plant on 10.07.2017 (Annexure
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P/17), whereas, the petitioner is expected to commission the plant on or before
31.08.2017. Therefore, the delay of 16 days in terms of Clause 2.5.1.isnot a
good and reasonable cause with the Company to terminate the contract and
put the petitioner to financial loss. :

8..  Before coming to the discussion on the prelxmmary objections, we
may state that we heard the arguments of the learned counsel for the parties
at length and when we tentatively conveyed that the order passed by the
Company on 11.08.2017 is not sustainable and we intend to allow the writ
petition, it was at that stage, the learned Advocate General stated that the
Company would like to file the return. But we find that there is no dispute on
the question of fact, therefore, we decline the request of the learned Advocate
,General to file return and proceed to decide the writ petition including
preliminary objections raised by thé learned Advocate General.

9. The contract is in two parts. One is procurement of land within 210
days and with a condition that the location of the land will not be permitted to
be changed after 210 days. The other part is the installation of the power
project in another 15 months. Clause 2.1.1 of the agreement is clear that the
. selleri.c. the present petitioner has to perform and complete all of the following:
activities on its cost and risk within 210 days from the Effective Date, unless
such completlon is affected by any Force Majeure event, or if any of the
activities is specifically waived in writing by the Company. The condition
2.1.1(e) is in respect of the production of the documentary evidence of the
clear title and possession of the acquired land.-However, such condition has
been changed on 29.12.2016, when change in location of land was permitted
even after 210 days of signing of the agreement, however, subject to provisions
of clause 2.5 and 2.6 of the agreement. Clause 2.5.1 empowers the Company
to encash the contract performance guarantee if there is a delay in achieving
any of the conditions under Clause 2.1( a to h), as the Company is competent
to encash Bank Guarantee for the delay of first three months at the rate of 1%
per week; for a delay of 3-6 months at the rate of 2% per week; for a delay
of 6-9 months at the rate of 3% per week, but, in case of delay of more than
9 months, the Company has been given right to terminate the agreement and
i release the balance amount of contract performance guarantee.

1

10.  Though, the timeline given in Clause 2.5.1 is expected to be
maintained, but, the delay in procuring land ipso facto will not entitle the
Company to terminate the agreement. The Company permitted the petitioner
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to proceed ahead with the execution of the power plant project after expiry of
nine months after 210 days. The Company allowed the petitioner to invest
substantial cost in erection of the power plant project after 07.03.2017;
therefore, the delay of 16 days, in these circumstances, disentitles the Company
to terminate the agreement. The condition of termination of the agreement
after the Company has allowed the petitioner to proceed with the installation
of the solar power plant project cannot be treated to be a mandatory condition.,
The Company could very well be justified in terminating the agreement soon
after the period of default even on payment of penalty expired. But, having
allowed the petitioner to proceed with the installation of solar power project,
then the termination of the contract is unreasonable and arbitrary action.
However, since the contract permits imposition of penalty, therefore, in terms
of the said condition, the petitioner shall be liable to pay penalty in terms of
clause 2.5.1 of the agreement. However, the action of the Company in
terminating the Contract in these circumstances is unreasonable, arbitrary and
not sustainable in law, '

11.  The preliminary objection raised by the learned Advocate General is
that since there is statutory alternate remedy available to the petitioner,
therefore, such remedy is required to be availed. We do not find any meritin
the objection raised by the learried Advocate General since there is no dispute
of question of fact raised in the present petition,

12.  Asperthe Company itself, there is a delay of 16 days in completion of
the first condition of the agreement. We find that such preliminary objection
does not merit any consideration. The availability of alternate remedy is a rule
of discretion. It does not bar the exercise of the writ jurisdiction of this Court
in appropriate cases. More so, when there is no dispute about the question of
fact, this Court can interfere in exercise of writ jurisdiction even in contractual
matters. Reference be made to judgment reported as State of Kerala and
others v. M.K. Jose, (2015) 9 SCC 433, where the Court held as under:-

"13. A writ court should ordinarily not entertain a writ petition,
if there is a breach of contract involving disputed questions of
fact. The present case clearly indicates that the factual disputes
are involved.

00X XXKX

17.  In ABL International Lid. v. Export Credit
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Guarantee Corpn. of India Ltd., (2004) 3 8CC 553, a two-
Judge Bench after referring to various judgments as well as
the pronouncement in Smi. Gunwant Kaur And Ors. vs
Municipal Committee, Bhatinda, (1969) 3 SCC 769 and
Century Spg. and Mfg. Co. Ltd. v. Ulhasnagar Municipal
Council, (1971) 1 SCC 582, has held thus: (ABL
International case, SCC pp. 568-69 & 572, paras 19 & 27) -

“19. Therefore, it is clear from the above
enunciation of law that merely because one of the
parties to the litigation raises a dispute in regard to the
facts of the case, the court entertaining such petition
under Article 226 of the Constitution is not always
bound to relegate the parties to a suit. In the above
case of Gunwant Kaur this Court even went to the
extent of holding that in a writ petition, if the facts
require, even oral evidence can be taken. This clearly
shows that in an appropriate case, the writ court has
the jurisdiction to entertain a writ petition involving
disputed questions of fact and there is no absolute bar

“for entertaining a writ petition even ifthe same arises
out ofa contractual obligation and/or involves some
disputed questions of fact.

* % %

27. From the above discussion of ours, the
following legal principles emerge as to the
maintainability of a writ petition:”

(@) In an appropriate case, a writ petition as
against a State or an instrumentality of a State arising
. outofa contractual obligation is maintainable.

'(b) Merely because some disputed questions of
| fact arise for consideration, same cannot be a ground
' to refuse to entertain a writ petition in all cases as a

" matter of rule.

(¢) Awrit petition involving a consequential relief
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of monetary claim is also maintainable.”

While laying down the principle, the Court sounded a word of
caution as under: (ABL International case, SCCp. 572, para
28)

"28. However, while entertaining an obj'ection as
to the maintainability of a writ petition under Article
226 of the Constitution of India, the court should bear
in mind the fact that the power to issue prerogative
writs under Article 226 of the Constitution is plenary
in nature and is not limited by any other provisions of
the Constitution. The High Court having regard to the
facts of the case, has a discretion to entertain ornotto -
entertain a writ petition. The Court has imposed upon
itself certain restrictions in the exercise of this power.
(See Whirlpool Corpn. v. Registrar of Trade Marks,
(1998) 8 SCC 1.) And this plenary right of the High
Court to issue a prerogative writ will not normally be
exercised by the Court to the exclusion of other
available remedies unless such action of the State or -
its instrumentality is arbitrary and unreasonable so as
to violate the constitutional mandate of Article 14 or
for other valid and legitimate reasons, for which the
Court thinks it necessary to exercise the said '
jurisdiction.”

20. We have referred to the aforesaid authorities to hlghllght
under what circumstances in respect of contractual-claim or
challenge to violation of contract can be entertained by a writ
court. It depends upon facts of each case. The issue that had
arisenin ABL International was that an instrumentality of a
State was placing a different construction on the clauses of the
contract of insurance and the insured was interpreting the
contract differently. The Court thought it apt merely because
something is disputed by the insurer; it should not enter into
the realm of disputed questions of fact. In fact, there was no
disputed question of fact, but it required interpretation ofthe
‘terms of the contract of insurance. Similarly, if the materials
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; that come on record from which it is clearly evincible, the writ_
court may exercise the power of judicial review but, a pregnant

one, in the case at hand, the High Court has appointed a

Commission to collect the evidence, accepted the same without

calling for objections from the respondent and quashed the

order of termination of contract."

13.  Inviewofthe above, we do not find any merit inthe arguments raised

by the learned Advocate General that the petitioner has alternative remedy,

therefore, be directed to avail such remedy. Sinee there is no dispute on the

question of fact and that the delay is of 16 days only in completing first part of

. the agreement, therefore, we find that the action of termination of contract is
- not sustainable, ' '

14.. Consequently, we allow the writ petition partly and set aside the order -
of, termination of the contract dated 11.08.2017 (Annexure P/18) while
maintaining the action of invocation of bank guarantee in terms of clause 2.5.1
of the agreement.

15.  The writ petition is disposed of. -

Petition partly allowed,

LL.R. [2017] M.P., 2397
WRIT PETITION
Before Mr. Justice Rohit Arya
W.P. No.2176/2017 (Indore) decided on 18 August, 2017

SOMESHWAR PATEL . ‘ . ...Petitioner

Vs. .

STATE OF M.P. & ors. ' ...Respondents
|

: A. Krishi Upaj Mandi Adhiniyam, M.P. 1972 (24 of 1973), -
Section 55(1) & 55(2) - Applicability — Removal of Chairman —
Irregularity in auction proceedings — Held — Both sections deal with
different class of persons, Members u/S 55(1) and Chairman/Vice
Cl:nairman wS 55(2) with different nature of punishments — Allegations
against petitioner are of period when he was Chairman and show cause-
notice also issued when he is a Chairman, thus Section 55(1) is not
applicable - Impugned order to the extent, it debars petitioner w/S 55(1)
is in excess of jurisdiction and is hereby quashfd — However as per
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records/evidence, allegations of irregularities proved and hence order
u/S 55(2) of removing him from post of Chairman for remainder of his
term is affirmed — Petition partly allowed. (Paras 18,20 & 21)

7. FI¥ gywr qvst JIEfaE, 4.H. 1972 (1973 BT 24). E77TeT 55(1)
7 55(2) — wgiewar — Jege ' Eergr WAl — el erdarfeal &
afrafar — sffEiRa - S g e o 3 sfa’ 4 @9Rm
2 T ss(1) B ofad WA U ORI 55(2) B AT IAAE / IUTAE | .
i 2, BT wEfT @ g @ Wil — Al @ Rreg afteed 9w aafy
@ ¥ o9 9% aedd o1 Tl HIROT qare A i aw W fear man g we
qe @ege 2, o g 55(1) A 9@ @ — anatfra amew ew w99
SEl OF 4T =N 55(1) @ saa arh B faafd swan @ aftreTiar 4
a%%ammmaﬁna‘ﬁmmﬁm—amﬁm@/mma%
FER, afrataael @ af@e wifed gy SR gaiay o 55(2) @
gafa 9@ srdwd @ AN aafy ® fay o JeaE F UR | M P
Ay A afgie ¥ ¥ — AT I q9RI

B. Krishi Upaj Mandi-Adhiniyam, M.P. 1972 (24 of 1973),
Section 55(1) & 55(2) — Removal of Chairman — Proceedings and
- Procedure — Principle of Natural Justice — Held — Adhiniyam of 1972
does not provide any express rules or procedure for proceeding u/S
55(1) and (2) thereof — Section 55 itself contemplates that before action
is taken against delinquent, show cause notice and reasonable |
opportunity of hearing shall be afforded to him —In present case, show
cause notice was issued, documents were supplied as well as opportunity
for personal hearing was granted to petitioner —No violation of principle
of natural justice — Aims and objects of the Act of 1972 discussed.

(Para 15 & 18)

4 Iy duor Fvst JRAFIT, 7H. 1972 (1973 BT 24), €T 55(1)
* g 55(2) — T P ECTAT WA — FIAANRAT TT 9FA — FaFE =T BT
Rrera — afnfmiRa — 1972 &1 aftifm ar1 ss5(1) @ (2) & swid
Frfadl W 3q oig aftreraa frw ar ufsar swEf@ 9 eear @ -
oY 55 XG0 Tg AT DA 2 5 awE @ fed aRad 5 e @
qf, w9 TRVl T Mfw U6 gard o Sfaw saen ua fear sren
— adam weRer ¥, BRU gaen few W fear T e Al @
TERE @ w9 5l OF 3, gy AR g @1 sauy
g far AT o — Suife < 8 Rigia o1 gedud @ — 1972 @
aftifram & o= iy sgRwE feEfua :
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AIR 2009 Gujarat 171, 1983 JLI 757, (2012) 4 SCC 407, W.P.
No. 3750/2016 decided on 13.12.2016, W.P. No. 3332/2016 decided on
11.05.2016, 1991 MPLJ 835, (1995) 4 SCC 201, (1999) 8 SCC 741, (2010)
9 SCC 642, (2006) 13 SCC 295, (2005) 8 SCC 351, (2001) 8 SCC 151,
(1993) 3 SCC 499, AIR 1964 SC 395, AIR 1964 SC 364.

A.K. Sethi with Arpit Oswal, for the petitioner.
Rohit Mangal, G.A. for the respondent No. 1/State.
Sunil Jain with Kamal Airen, for the respondent No. 2.

JUDGMENT

Rourr ARrva, J. :- This writ petition, under Article 226 of the
Constitution of India, is directed against the order dated 28/3/2017 {(Annexure
P/1), whereby Managing Director, M.P. State Agricultural Marketing Board,
exercising powers under section 55(1) and 55(2) of the Madhya Pradesh
Krishi Upaj Mandi Adhiniyam, 1972 (for short "the Adhiniyam of 1972") has
removed the petitioner from the post of Chairman and Member of Krishi
Upaj Mandi Samiti (hereinafter referred to as "Market Committee"), Indore
. with further disqualification debarring him from contesting elections or re-
nomination for the post of Member of the Market Committee for six years.

2. Before tracing the contours of factual matrix, it will be proper to refer
to few provisions of M.P.Krishi Upaj Mandi (Allotment of Land and
Structures) Rules, 2009 (hereinafter referred to as Rules of 2009). Rule 3
deals with general principles ofallotment and sub- Rule 4 provides that no
person shall be alloted more than one plot or structure. Rule 4 provides for
reservation of plots and structures to the extent of 10% for SC, ST etc. Rule
5 provides for Publication of advertisement. Rule 8 provides for constitution
of auction committee, whereunder for the purpose of conduct of auction and
scrutiny of the offers received the auction committee is empowered consisting
of Chairman and three Members. In the instant case auction committee
consisted of following persons. ;-

. (1)  Shri Someshwar Patel - Chairman(Chairperson) Auction
President, Committee
Krishi Upam Mandi Samiti,

Indore.
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(2) Shri Mahendra Singh Chouhan -Member Auction Committee
Joint Director, : :
Regional Office,
Indore.

(3) Shri O.PMalviya - Member, Auction Committee
Assistant Engineer,
Regional Office,
Indore. . :

* (Representative of Executive Engineer)

(4) Shri R.S.Mandloi : - Member-Secretary,Auction
Dy.Collector/Secretary, Commiittee
Krishi Upaj Mandi Samiti
Indore. '

Rule 10(6) provides for third auction if the market committee does
not accept the bid/offer received in the first and second attempt.

3. Ttis deducible from record that petitioner, consequent upon his election
as Member of the Market Committee, was elected as Chairman for the period
22/7/2007 to 22/7/2011; five year térm. Thereafter, he has been re-elected
as Chairman with effect from 7/1/2013 for five years upto January, 2018.

4. Intheyear 2009, 88 shops in the premises of Mandi were available -
for auction and 9 shops out of the said 88 shops i.e. 10% were reserved for
SC, ST and OBC class of people, as provided for under Rule 4 of the Rules
0f2009. . ' ) '

Market Committee conducted the auction on 14/10/2009 for 88 shops
fixing the upset price at Rs.1.834 lacs. Bids offered for unreserved shops
ranged from 20.32 lacs to 31.54 lacs per shop. Bids offered for reserved
shops ranged from 22.26 lacs to 33.51 lacs per shop by 44 bidders. Only 55
successful bidders for un-reserved shops deposited the requisite amount within -
time prescribed. Remaining 33 shops (24 of un-reserved.and 9 of reserved
category) were available for re-auction.

Advertisement was issued for second auction and the auction was
conducted on 7/3/2011 for aforesaid 33 shops with the upset price fixed at
Rs.7.64309 lacs. The bids offered for unreserved 24 shops fanged from 23.31
lacs to 29.05 lacs, while the bids offered by 14 bidders for 9 reserved shops
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ranged from 8.95 lacs to 9.75 lacs. Thereafter, the nine reserved shops were
finalized for nine bidders by the Auction Committee.

5. It appears that a complaint was made by one Bablu Kumar Suresh
Kumar Birhe to.the Lok Ayukta alleging favoritism, nepotism and glaring
irregularities in the matter of conducting auction by the Auction Committee on
7/3/2011 in relation to 9 shops reserved for SC, ST-and OBC category, in
the context of sharp contrast in bid prices offered for such shops in the auctions
held in the years 2009 and 2011, as detailed above. Thereafter, the said
complaint was forwarded by the Lokayukta vide letter No./1650/Ja.Pra. 121/
2011 dated 6/7/2011 to M.P. State Agricultural Marketing Board (Annexure
R/1) and on the orders of the Deputy Director, Mandi Board, a fact finding
énquiry was held. In the fact finding enquiry, it was found on the basis of
record of Market Committee that there had been serious 1rregular1t1es inthe
auction so held.

. One Sunil Birhe, Proprietor, Sai Nath Vegetable Company, though

_ filed an affidavit with the stipulation that he is annexing the caste certificate,
but, the same was acknowledgment of application made to Collector, Indore
for obtaining caste certificate and not caste certificate as such. Without caste -
certificate though he was ineligible to bid, yet, was permitted.

Likewise, one Santosh Kumar Jairam Das Bagwar filed an affidavit to
the effect that he belonged to reserved category, but he filed caste certificate
of one Rupesh Kumar Bagwar and not of himseif and the caste certificate of
1991 presented by him in respect of his caste status was not attested by
gazetted officer. Therefore, he was also not eligible to participate in the bid.

Besides, three members of the same family namely Nitin Bhola Singh
Bhatkariye, Sachin Bhola Singh Bhatkariye, Vipin Bhola Singh Bhatkariye
and Shriram Vegetable Company, Indore, had all participated in the bidding
without submitting details of annual turnover of their finms, giving rise to serious
suspicion that the aforesaid three members though bidding independently were
in fact of the same family involved in joint and common business.

6. However, the aforesaid fact finding enquiry was not finalized, at that
point of time, due to pendency of writ petitions before this Court in the context
of aforesaid auction. However, no sooner the W.P. Nos. 2705/11 and 2905/
11 were dismissed by this Court, the fact finding enquiry report was submitted
to the respondent no.2-Managing Director on 7/4/201 5. The Enquu'y Officer
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therein found that irregularities and illegalities in the auction held on 7/3/2011,
as detailed above, were in contravention to the Rules of 2009, as allotment of
shops to three members of the same family engaged in common business was
in violation of Rule 3(4) thereof, Besides the Market Committee was found to
be negligent in the matter of verification of caste status of bidders. It was also
found that though the Secretary of Market Committee had drawn attention
about the sharp difference/contrast in the bids offered for 9 reserve category
shops in the auction held in 2009 vis-a-vis those received for the same shops
in the auction held in 2011, yet the Market Committee remained unmindful of
the same. The report further stated that, as a matter of fact, Auction Committee,
looking to the aforesaid glaring difference in bid amounts, instead of taking
guidance from the higher Authorities and deciding to conduct third re-auction
under Rule 10(6) of the Rules 0f 2009, finalized the auction.

7. On the basis of aforesaid fact finding enquiry, a show-cause notice
was issued to the petitioner on 15/7/2015 (Annexure P/3). Petitioner filed
reply (Annexure P/4) thereto on 1/9/15. After submission of reply, petitioner
was also afforded personal hearing on 9/1/17 and 30/1/17. It appears that
during the course of enquiry, a joint report of Dy. Director and Executive
Engineer, Indore dated 2/7/16 as regards market value of the shops based on
their sfrategic location, as well as, enquiry report of Collector dated 5/11/16
. based on Collector Guidelines of 2009 as regards valuation of the nine reserved
shops were also obtained. Copies of aforesaid both the reports were also
supplied to the petitioner. Besides, commercial rates of plots of land as per
Government Guidelines were also obtained from Dy.Registrar, Indore and
copy thereof was also supplied to the petitioner. .

8. Respondent no.2, upon due consideration of the reply, submitted by
the petitioner, contentions advanced during the course of hearing and material
placed on record by both the parties including the aforesaid reports of Dy.
Director, Collector and Dy.Registrar, has recorded comprehensive findings to
the effect that there is a sharp contrast in the bids offered for 9 reserved shops
in the years 2009 and 2011. As such, there was unfairness in the conduct of
auction by the Auction Commiittee; favoritism and nepotism had been extended
to members of the same family; there was ignorance/avoidance of note of
Secretary in the deliberations of the Market Committee on 15/3/11; and in
view of substantive difference in bid prices in respect of 9 reserved shops in
-the auctions held on 14/10/2009 and 7/3/2011 i.e. in the range of 22.26 lacs

LI
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" 10 33.51 lacs obtained in the year 2009 offered by 44 bidders vis-a-vis 8.95
lacs to 9.75 lacs obtained in the year 2011 offered by 14 bidders, the Auction
Committee, in all fairness, ought to have resorted to third auction as
contemplated under Rule 10(6) of the Rules of 2009. That was not done and
in a hurried manner the auction of 2011 was finalized in favour of 9 bidders

~ for the reserved category shops. It has also been observed in clause 5.5 of

the order that all Committee members since are jointly and severally responsible
for the serous (sic:serious) negligence and misconduct, therefore, departmental
action was initiated against all the members of the Auction Committee
summoned on 7/3/2011 by the M.P. State Agricultural Marketing Board.

Thereafter, the impugned order was passed under sections 55(1) and 55(2) -

of the Adhiniyam of 1972, against the petitioner, Enquiry on complaint filed

‘before the Lokayukt is still pending consideration.

9. It further transpires from the record that at a later stage the aforesaid
allotment of shops was cancelled by the Market Committee on the directions
of Joint Director, M.P. State Agriculture Marketing Board made vide
communication dated 29/12/16 (Annexure P/9). The corresponding
communications to respective shop holders are annexed to the writ petition
as Annexure P/10 (Colly). It also transpired during the course of arguments
that the aforesaid orders of cancéllation of allotments are subject matter of -
writ petition pending consideration before this Court.

10, Learned counsel for the petitioner, takmg exception to the impugned
order has made following submissions:- -

(@) Petitioner is an elected Chairman of the Market Committee for a term
of 5 years (7/1/13 to January, 2018). The allegations in the show-cause notice
dated 15/7/15 are of the period between 2009 to 2011 while petitioner was
Chairman of the Market Committee in his previous tenure which had already
expired on 22/7/2011. As such, the show-cause notice itself is bad in law and
without jurisdiction for the reason that petitioner, as Chairman in the second
. term, could not have been subjected to show-cause notice containing
allegations of his prior term. To bolster his submission, learned counsel placed
reliance on decision of Gujrat High Court in the case of 4jitsinh R. Jadeja
Vs. State of Gujrat (AIR 2009 Gujarat 171).

(i) In the alternative, it is submitted that the show-cause notice dated
15/7/2015 served upon the petitioner, while working as Chairman of the
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Market Committee, contain allegations while he was Chairman of the Market
Committee in his earlier term. As such, action, if any, could have been taken
only under section 55(2) and not 55(1) of the Adhiniyam of 1972. Therefore,
petitioner has been subjected to double jeopardy by invocation of powers not
vested in respondent no.2. For this, reliance has been placed on decision of
Division Bench in the case of Biharilal Vs. State (1983 JLI 757).

(i)  The proceedings initiated against the petitioner under sections 55(1)
and 55(2) of the Adhiniyam are of the nature of quasi judicial proceedings
and this is settled position of law. Learned counsel refers to judgment of Hon'ble
Apex Court in the case of Ravi Yashwant Bhoir Vs. Collector ((2012)4
SCC 407) and submits that it was imperative and obligatory on the part of
respondent no.2 to have strict adherence to provisions of the Adhiniyam of
-1972 and appropriate safeguards and protection akin to principles of natural
justice. Besides, looking to the serious consequences flowing from exercise
of powers under section 55(1) and 55(2) of the Adhiniyam of 1972, respondent |
no.2 was obliged to apply its mind to the allegations, reply thereto and material -
placed on record meticulously before reaching a decision. Petitioner since
was not allowed to participate in the enquiry held before submission of report
by the Collector dated 5/11/16 and the joint report dated 2/7/16, though
copies thereof were supplied to him, before the same was acted upon by
respondent no.2, the said enquiry was vitiated.

(iv)  Thedecision for allotment of 9 reserved shops to 9 reserve category
bidders was upon the deliberations of entire Auction Committee and not of
 the petitioner alone. Likewise, the finalization thereof on 15/3/11 was by all
the members of the Market Committee. Hence, petitioner cannot be singled
out in attributing misconduct and negligence on his part to justify penalty under
sections 55(1) and 55(2) of the Adhiniyam of 1972. Even otherwise, the
allegation of loss to respondents in the matter of finalization of bids of 9 reserved
. shops has no foundation, as comparison of bids of 2009 and 2011 is totally
misconceived and misdirected as none of the bidders of 2009 came forward
to deposit the bid amount for their bids against 9 reserved shops. Therefore,
the alleged loss is self styled notional loss and could not have been pressed
into service for invoking the provisions of section 55(1) and 55(2) of the
Adhiniyam of 1972. In any case, sinte the allotments made by the Auction
Committee and approved by the Market Committee on 15/3/2011 have been
cancelled on 27/1/17 though on the orders of M.P. State Agriculture Marketing
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~ Board dated 29/ 12/201 6, the impugned order, even otherwise, cannot be
allowed to stand.

11.  Percontra, Shri Sunil Jain, learned Senior Counsel and Additional
Advocate General has made following submissions:-

(@  Inthelight of provision under section 59 of the Adhiniyam of 1972,
petitioner has an alternative, efficacious and expeditious remedy of filing an
appeal, therefore, the writ petition deserves to be dismissed. Leamed counsel
relied upon order of the co-ordinate Bench dated 13/12/16 passed in
W.P.N0.3750/16 and that dated 11/5/16 in W.P. No.3332/16.

(i) Since petitioner held the post of Chairman in his first term and also in
second term by virtue of being member of Market Committee, therefore,
even if allegations levelled against him relate to his tenure as Chairman,
respondent no.2 is not precluded from taking action against the petitioner
under sections 55(1) and 55(2) of the Adhiniyam of 1972, as 55(1) deals
with removal of members imposing disqualification of re-election or re-
nomination as Member of Market Committee for six years and 55(2) provides
for removal of Chairman or Vice Chairman with further disqualification of re-
election as Chairman or Vice Chairman during the remainder of his term. In
" this behalf, learned counsel relied upon decision of Division Bench of'this
Court in Ram Singh Vs. State of M.P.(1991 MPLJ 835).

(i)  Inthe enquiry initiated against the petitioner by the Additional Director,
M.P.State Agricultural Board concluded vide his report dated 7/4/15, he was
given due opportunity of submission of reply and opportunity of hearing and

. documents viz. enquiry reports detailed above were supplied to him and it

was only upon due consideration of the entire material placed on record, that
the impugned order under sections 55(1) and 55(2) of the Adhiniyam of 1972
was passed. As such, there has been strict compliance of principles of natural

~ justice and fair play.

(iv)  Petitioner has not been discriminated in action for misconduct and

negléct in the matter of finalization of bids pursuant to auction dated 7/3/2011

and all the members of the Auction Committee have been departmentally
. proceeded against. In this regard, learned counsel referred to para 5.5 of the -

impugned order and para 6 of the counter affidavit, as well as, Annexure R/6,
to which there is nothing ir the rejoinder.
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(v)  Petitioner, as Chairman of the Auction Committee and also that of
Market Committee, despite having been pointed out by the Secretary of the
Market Committee the factum of glaring difference in bid prices received for
9 reserve category shops in the years 2009 and 2011, maintained blissful
silence and did not deliberately act upon the same. Conduct of the petitioner
tantamount to "remiss in discharge of duty" as well within meaning of Section
55(2) of the Act. As amatter of fact, instead of approving the aforesaid auction
sale, petitioner ought to have resorted to the provisions of Rule 10(6) of the
Rules 0f 2009 and conducted re-auction (third auction), but no such steps
were taken,

(vi)  That apart, the factum of favoritism and nepotism has also come on
record in the fact finding enquiry relating to three members of the same family
offering bids with marginal difference touching the upset price replacing a well
concerted and organized method adopted by such persons in offering bids to
defeat the fair auction tantamounting to carte] formation and also being contrary
to the provision as contained in Rule 3(4) of the Rules of 2009. Therefore,
looking to the gravity and seriousness of allegations and its repercussion in the
public eyes tantamouning (sic:tantamounting) to grave misconduct'and
negligence, it was considered fit to remove the petitioner from the post of
Chairman of Market Committee and also disqualify him from being re-elected
or re-nominated as Member for 6 years under sections 55(1) and 55(2) of
the Adhiniyam of 1972. As such, no illegality has been committed and the
judgment in the case of Ravi Yashwant Bhoir (Supra) relied on by the
petitioner, being distinguishable on facts, has no application to the facts in
hand.

(vii)  The fact of cancellation of shops on 27/1/17 itself shows that the auction
finalized by the Auction Committee and Market Committee chaired by the
petitioner was vulnerable and not liable to be accepted. That apart, merely
cancellation of allotment of shops subsequently, shall not provide a ground to
the petitioner to gain premium against misconduct and negligence committed
by him while finalizing the shops under auction sale.

12, Heard, learned counsel for the parties.

13. Beforc adverting to contentions advanced by either party on merits, it
is expedient to deal with objection as against maintainability of this petition.
Learned counsel for the respondent state contends that in view of section 59,
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© petitioner has alternative, expeditious and efficacious remedy of filing revision -
against the impugned order passed under section 55 of the Adhiniyam of 1972.
The objection, as a-matter of fact, may not detain us any longer in view of
division bench judgment of the Court in the case of Biharilal ( Supra) wherein
the Division Bench held that section 59 does not contemplate remedy to
delinquent intending to question an otder passed against him under Section
55 of the Adhiniyam of 1972. It appears that the learned Single Judge while
disposing of W.P. Nos.3750/16 and 3332/16 relegating the petitioners therein
to file revision under section 59 before the competent Authority prescribed
therein was not apprised of the judgment of the Division Bench in the case of
Bihari Lal ( Supra). Besides, it appears that the learned Single Judge has not
addressed on the issue of availability of remedy of appeal against merits of
the order passed under Section 55 of the Adhiniyam. It is settled law that
scope of jurisdiction of revision and appeal are distinct in character and in
substance {Lachhman Dass Vs. Santokh Singh (1995) 4 SCC 201, State
of U.P. Vs. Udai Narayan and another (1999) 8 SCC 741, James Joshph
Vs. State of Kerala(2010) 9 SCC 642 and Kamla Devi Vs. Kushal Kanwar
and another-(2006) 13 SCC 295 referred to} and, by no stretch of
imagination, they can be construed to be substitute to each other. Under such
circumstances, the orders of learning single judge are per incurim in nature
and of no assistance to the respondent-State. In the opinion of this Court,
power under section 59 of the Adhiniyam of 1972 conferred upon the
Managing Director and the State Governmentare of limited nature to adjudge
legality or propriety of the decision taken or order passed and to regulate the
proceedings of the Committee in the hands of Managing Director and that of
the Managing Director in the hands of State Government. Such provision
cannot be construed to have scope of appellate jurisdiction as the appellate
authority is required to examine the merits of the order impugned on facts and
in law with due advertence to the material place onrecord, as well as, legality,
justifiability, propriety of the findings/conclusions drawn by the Authority
passing the impugned order, whereas revisional authority has no power to re-
assess and re-appreciate the evidence unless the statute specifically confers
on it that power. This limitation is implicit in the concept of revision itself.
Hence, this Court is in respectful agreement with the ratio laid down in the
case of Bihari Lal ( Supra). Accordingly, the objection against maintainability
of the petition is hereby overruled and rej ected. :

14.  The first contention of petiﬁqner questions the legality, validity and -
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propriety of the show-cause notice dated 15/7/15 on the premise that
imputations therein are not of the present tenure of the petitioneri.e. 7/1/2013
to January 2018, but, in fact, are of his previous tenure i.e. 22/7/2007 to
22/7/2011. According to the petitioner, action under Section 55(1) canbe
taken only in the matter of misconduct or neglect in performing duties as member
and under Section 55(2), in the matter of misconduct-or rieglect or remiss in
.discharge of duty as Chairhan or Vice Chairman but only of the current tenure
and not otherwise.

15. To address on this contention it is considered apposite to reiterate
nature and purpose of Mandi Adhiniyam, 1972 in furtherance of its aims and
objects; The Mandi Adhiniyam, 1972 has been enacted to provide benefit to
the agriculturists and also to regulate the sale and purchase of agricultural
produce in order to save the exploitation ofagriculturists. The Act, as a matter
of fact, is a beneficiary législation and the purpose thereof is to improve the
standard of marketing services; to provide fair trading in the markets and to
safeguard the health and sanitation of the users of market. Besides, to ensure
that Commission agents do not have any opportunity to exploit there dominating
- position and to make illegal and excessive commission at the cost of the
producers.

To achieve the aforesaid purpose, the Adhiniyam of 1972, inter alia,
makes provision for establishment of markets (Chapter I), constitution of
market committees (Chapter IIT); conduct of business and powers and duties
of the Market Committee (Chapter IV). Chapter X provides for control of
the Managing Director into the affairs of the Market Committee, removal of
members, Chairman and Vice Chairman of Market Committee and
supersession of Market Committee etc. including the power to call for
proceedings of the Market Committee. Section 58 in this chapter provides
for liability of present or past chairman, vice chairman etc. for loss, waste or
iniss-application etc. and empowers the Managing Director to conductenquiry
either himself or through other officer subordinate to him, by order in writing,

in that behalf'to enquire into, amongst others, in the matter of conduct relating

to application of money or other property belonging to or under the control of
such Market Committee, resulting into loss or deficiency or gross negligence
or misconduct or misappropriation etc. etc. Section 59 provides for power of
the Managing Director to call for proceedin gs of Market Committee either on
own motion or on application made to him and examine the proceedings of

al
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any Market Committee as to the illegality proprietary of any decision taken
or order passed and as to the regularity of the proceedings the Committee. If
in any case, it appears to the Managing Director that such decision or order
or proceeding so called for should be modified, annulled, reversed or remitted
for reconsideration, he may pass such order as he may deem fit. Provided
that the aforesaid power is subject to proviso that no order shall be passed
under sub-section (1) without giving reasonable opportunity of hearing to the -
parties affected thereby. The aforesaid power is same in the hands of state
government with regard to the proceedings conducted by the Managing -
Director. As such there is effective and pervasive control of the Managing
Director over the affairs of the Market Committee and on the conduct of
business and activities of the members constituting the Market Committee
including the Chairman or the Vice Chairman. ‘

Section 17 in cliapter IV provides for power and duties of the Market
Committee. Sub-section (2) inter alia empowers to construct, manage and
maintain market yards in the market area amongst other duties contained therein
to ensure effective working of the Market Committee.

The Rules of 2009 have been framed to regulate activities of the
" ‘market committee in the matter of allotment of land and structures in the context
ofits duties under sub-section 2 of section 17, under which Auction Committee
headed by the petitioner has accepted and finalized bids of nine shops
earmarked for reserved category in the auction held on 7/3/2011 for the bids
ranging from 8.95 lacs to 9.75 lacs.; genesis of the controversy involved in
this petition. '

16.  Now turning to facts of the éase, a complaint was filed in the office of
Lokayukt in the year 2011 in the matter of auction of fine reserve shops
conducted on 7/3/2011. The complaint was processed and thereafter made
over to M.P. State Agricultural Marketing Board. Thereafter, a fact finding
enquiry was though held but was not further processed/finalized due to
pendency of W.P. Nos. 2705/11 and 2905/11. However, no sooner the
aforesaid writ petitions got dismissed, the-enquiry report was furnished to
respondent no.2 whereafter show-cause notice was issued to the petitioner.
As such, petitioner's conduct has been under investigation since 2011. The
Managing Director has power and authority to examine, on his own motion,
and call for proceedings of any Market Committee as to legality or propriety
of any decision taken even in the cases of past and present Chairman. Hence,-

Y
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no exception to the show-cause notice can be allowed to be taken as
canvassed by the petitioner. As discussed above, the underlying policy of the
Adhiniyam of 1972 is to ensure regulation of markets for sale or purchase of
market produce in a fair manner within the market yard, with a paramount -
object to protect the agriculturists from exploitation. The aforesaid policy
further extends to securing a market yard by the Market Committee as
contemplated in sub-section (2) of section 17 of the Adhiniyam of 1972,
whereunder Market Committee is required to construct, maintain and manage
market yards and sub-market yards etc. etc., as well as, provide facilities for
the marketing of agricultural produce, in furtherance whereof the Rules of
2009 have been framed. If the conduct of the Chairman of Market Committee
and Auction Committee is found to be vulnerable in conducting and finalizing
auction sale of markeét shops prejudicial and detrimental to the interest of
Mandi, the same can always be inquired into for appropriate action, albeit the
same needs to have reasonably close proximity with the tenure of such person
being a member, Vice Chairman or Chairman of the Market Committee. That
apart, Section 55 of the Adhiniyam of 1972 does not expressly provide that
misconduct or neglect should be of the present tenure. As such, judgment of
Gujarat High Court in the case of 4 {fitsinh (Supra) is found to be distinguishable
in nature particularly regard being had to provisions of section 58 and 59 of
the Adhiniyam of 1972, as no such provision appears to be involved therein
and dealt with. However, the first contention is rejected.

17.  Thesecond contention relates to justifiability of invocation of powers
under section 55(1) and 55(2) of the Adhiniyam of 1972.

According to the petitioner, the imputation in the impugned showcause
notice dated 15/7/2015 are of the period when the petitioner was chairman of
the Market Committee and the show-cause Notice has also been issued when
the petitioner is chairman of the Market Committee. None of the allegations in
the impugned show-cause notice relate to misconduct or neglect of the
petitioner as member of the Market Committee. As such Section 55(1) hasno
application to the facts of the case, therefore, the punishment debarring the
petitioner for 6 years from being re-elected or re-nominated as member of the
Market Committee from the date of his removal is patently illegal and without
jurisdiction., '

For ready reference, sections 55 (1) and 55(2) are quoted thus:-
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' 55. Removal of Mémber, Chairman and Vice- Chairman

of Market Committee. - [(1) The Managing Director may

_on his own motion or on aresolution passed by a majority of

two-third of the members constituting the Market Committee

for the time being remove any member of the Market

Committee for misconduct or neglect of or incapacity to

perform his duty and on suchremoval he shall not be re-elected

or re-nominated as a member of the Market Committee fora
period of six years from the date of such removal :

Provided that no order of such removal shall be passed unless
such member has been given a reasonable opportunity of
showing cause why such order should notbe passed.

(2) The Managing Director may remove any Chairman or Vice-
Chairman of a Market Committee from his office, for

. misconduct, or neglect of or incapacity to perform his duty or
for being persistently remiss in the discharge of his duties and
on such removal the Chairman or Vice-Chairman, as the case
may be, shall not be eligible for re-election as Chairman or
Vice-Chairman during the remainder of his term of office as
member of Market Committee :

Provided that no order of removal shall be passed unless the
Chairman or Vice-Chairman, as the case may be, has been
given a reasonable opportunity of showing cause why such
order should not be passed.

18. - Intheopinion of this court, for application of section 55(1) or section
55(2) of the Adhiniyam of 1972, the followmg twofold test is required to be
applied:-

(1)  relatability of the allegations to the i:ost of the delinquent i.e. whether
the allegations pertain to the period when he was Member, or, whether pertain
to the period when he was Chairman/ Vice chairman of the Market Committee.

(2)  the status of the delinquent on the date of issuance of show Cause
Notice.

For example, if the allegations égainst delinquent are of the period
when he held the post of Chairman, but show-cause notice was served upon
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him while he was a member, he may be proceeded under Section 55(1) in
terms of Division Bench judgment in the case of Ram Singh (Supra). On the
other hand, if allegations made against a delinquent are of the period when he
held post of Chairman and show Cause Notice was also served upon him
when he was a Chairman, then he can only be proceeded under section 55(2)
in terms of judgment in the case of Bikari Lal (Supra) and not under Section
55(1) of the Adhiniyam 0f 1972,

Now, in the instant case allegations against the petitioner are of the
period when he was Chairman and show-cause notice has also been issued
when he is Chairman, therefore, section 55(1) has no application to the facts
of the case. The contention of learned counsel for the respondent-State that
as the petitioner is Chairman of the Market Committee by virtue of being
member of the Market Committee, therefore, even if the show-cause notice
covers the tenure of petitioner as Chairman and notice is also served upon
him when he is Chairman, it shall not make any difference, cannot be
countenanced, as both sections deal with different class of persons viz.
Members under section 55(1) and Chairman and Vice Chairman under Section
55(2) of the Adhinyam of 1972 with different nature of punishments. Hence,
the impugned order, to the extent, it debars the petitioner from being re-elected

.or renominated as a member of the Market Committee for a period of six
years from the date of such removal, is held to be in excess of authority and
jurisdiction and, therefore, cannot be sustained in law and on facts.

18.  The third and fourth contentions of the petitioner relate to justifiability
of the action under section 55(2) of the Adhiniyam of 1972 on the ground of
non observance of principles of natural justice while removing the petitioner
from the post of Chairman and also holding him ineligible for re-election as
Chairman or Vice Chairman during the remainder of his term of office as member
the Market Committee on three broad propositions - (i) denial of equality
before law and equal protection of law; discrimination under Article 14 of the
Constitution (ii) no loss to the Market Committee having been caused due to
cancellation of Auction 0f 2011 subsequently and (iii) Looking to nature of
power under Section 55(1) and 55(2) of the Adhiniyam, 1972 and serious
consequences flowing therefrom in the matter of removal of elected member
and the Chairman or Vice Chairman of Market Committee proceedings
thereunder are quasi judicial in nature. (2012) 4 SCC 407 relied upon.

The Adhiniyam of 1972 does not provide for any express rules or
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procedure to be followed for proceeding under section 55(1) and (2) thereof,
Nevertheless, section 55 itself contemplates that before action is taken against
adelinquent, show-cause and reasonable opportunity of hearing is required
to be afforded to him.

: As discussed in the preceding paragraphs unfolded facts emanating
from the record, petitioner was issued show-cause on 15/7/15 calling upon
him to file reply. Reply has been filed by the petitioner on 1/9/15. Petitioner
has been afforded opportunity of personal hearings on 9/1/17 and 30/1/17.
He has also been supplied copies of report of Dy.Director dated 2/7/16 as
regards market value of the shops based on their strategic location and that of
5/11/16 based on Collector Guidelines as regards valuation of the nine reserved
shops. Thereafter, on detailed submission of the reply submitted by the
petitioner, the impugned order has been passed. In the opinion of this Court,
there is no violation of principles of natural justice in the matter of action
taken against the petitioner under section 55(2) of the Adhiniyam of 1972.
Hence, challenge in that behalf is hereby rejected. - -

Further, contention of the petitioner that he has been discriminated in
the matter of imposition of pinishment on the premise that decision of
acceptance of bids and allotment of shops of 9 reserved category shops was
a joint decision of the Auction Committee constituted under section 8 of the
Rules 0f 2009 and the same has also been resolved by the Market Committee
in its meeting dated 15/3/11 cannot be countenanced as the same is dehors -
the facts onrecord in the light of the facts relating to action taken against the
other Committee members as detailed in paragraph 5.5 of the impugned order
and para 6 of the counteraffidavit. Therefore, as all the members since have
been proceeded against, Hence, plea of discrimination and violation of Article
14 of the Constitution is hereby rejected. Besides, the Lokayukt enquiry is
also in contemplation/pending in that behalf.

To deal with the contention that there was no loss to the Market )
Committee, it is expedient to reiterate that section 55(2) of the Adhiniyam of
1972 does not contemplate financial loss to Market Committee as condition
precedent for initiating action of removal of Chairman or Vice Chairman of
the Market Committee from his Office for misconduct or neglect or remiss in
discharge of his duties.

The words misconduct and negligence are not defined in the Act,
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therefore, the dictionary meaning in law/judicial dictionaries and judicial
precedences are taken help of to appreciate import thereof under Section 55
of the Act. The Black's Law Dictionary, 6th Edition at Page 999 defines
misconduct thus :-

"A transgression of some established and definite rule of action,

a forbidden act, a dereliction from duty, unlawful behaviour,

willful in character, improper or wrong behavior; its synonyms

are misdemeanor, misdeed, misbehavior, delinquency,

impropriety, mismanagement, offense, but not negligence or
. carelessness."

In P.Ramanatha Aiyar's Law Lexicon, 3rd Edition, at Page 3027, the
term misconduct has been defined as under :-

"The word "misconduct" is a relative term, has to be construed
with reference to the subject-matter and the context wherein
the term occurs, having regard to the scope of'the Act or statute
which is being construed. "Misconduct" literally means wrong
conduct or improper conduct.”

In the case of M.M.Malhotra Vs. Union of India, (2005) 8 SCC
351 (Paras 17 and 22), the Hon'ble Supreme Court has defined the misconduct
in an inclusive manner as follows :--

....... The range of activities which may amount to acts which
are inconsistent with thé interest of public service and not
befitting the status, position and dignity of a public servant are
so varied that it would be impossible for the employer to

_exhaustively enumerate such acts and treat the categories of
misconduct as closed. Thus the word "misconduct” is not
capable of precise definition. But at the same time though
incapable of precise definition, the word "misconduct” on
reflection receives its connotation from the context, the
delinquency in performance and its effect on the discipline and
the nature of the duty The act complained of must bear a
forbidden quality or character and its ambit has to be construed
with reference to the subject-matter and the context wherein

. the term occurs, having regard to the scope of the statute and
the public purpose it seeks to serve. .............. !
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The word "Negligence" M.S.Grewal Vs. Deepchand Sood, (2001)
8 SCC 151, the Hon'ble Supreme court has given lucid inclusive meaning of
negligence to the following effect :-

....... Negligence in common parlance means and implies
"failure to exercise due care, expected of a reasonable prudent
person". It is.a breach of duty and negligence in law ranging
from inadvertence to shameful disregard of the safety of others.
In most instances, it is caused by heedlessness or inadvertence,
by which the negligent party is unaware of the results which
may follow from his Act. .........."

19.  Petitioner being Chairman of the Market Committee and Auction
Committee, not only had an onerous responsibility and accountability for
securing financial interests of the Market Committee, but also for ensuring
fairness in auction proceedings in the eyes of public thus safeguarding the
process from allegations of favoritism and nepotism as well as extended area
of vulnerability. A bare perusal of the self contained comprehensive impugned
order suggests that while in the first auction held on 14/10/2009 as against
upset price of Rs.1.834 lacs for 88 shops including 9 reserved shops, 44
_bidders had made the bids for 9 reserved shops with bid amount ranging from
22.26 lacs to 33.51 lacs, whereas, in the second auction held on 7/3/2011 as
against upset price of Rs.7.64309 lacs, 14 bidders had made the bids for 9
reserved shops with bid amount ranging from 8.95 lacs to 9.75 lacs. As such,
there was sharp contrast or substantial difference in the bid offers 0f 2009
and 2011 for the 9 reserved shops and this difference in price of bids could
not have been blinked away by the petitioner. Besides, market value of shops
did rise with passage of time as well informed reports referred in the 1mpugned
order explicitly spell out. In all fairness, he ought to have resorted to third-
auction as contemplatéd under Rule 10(6) of the Rules of 2009, as rightly
pointed out in the impugned order. There is no reply forthcoming in the reply
submitted by the petitioner that why he has not taken recourse to third auction
under the aforesaid provision of Rules 0f 2009. That apart, the pctitioner
ignored and maintained a blissful silence on the aforesaid difference of prices
of bids though pointed out by the Secretary of the Market Committee while
approving the bids in 2011 Besides, even in the deliberations of the Auction
Comnmittee, the aforesaid glaring fact is not found to have been discussed
before finalization of the bids of such 9 persons (the Auction Committee
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deliberations are at Page 126 onwards annexed to the counter affidavit of
respondent no.2). Respondent no.2 has also taken note of the fact that three
members of the same family having common business, had in fact, formed a
cartel to control the bid prices of shops by marginally increasing the same
from upset price giving rise to unfair trade practice (Union of India v.

Hindustan Development Corporation (1993) 3 SCC 499 referred to) .

Petitioner was obliged to verify as to whether such persons could be considered
in the light of Rule 3(4) of the Ruiles of 2009, That was not done. It was
incumbent upon the petitioner and other Committee members to ensure that
such conceérted attempts on the part of members of one family among the nine
bidders are not allowed to be encouraged and precipitated.

The judgment reported in (20 12) 4 SCC 407 (Ravi Yashwant Bhoir
Vs. District Collector, Raigad & Anr. ) relied upon by learned counsel for
the petitioner in support of his contention against action under Section 55 )
has been carefully perused. The principle underlying the decision is beyond
the pale of any doubt as consistently it has been held that nature of power
under a statute empowering the authority to remove an elected member is
quasi judicial in nature and required to be examined with care and caution.
Bachhittar Singh Vs. State of Punjab (AIR 1963 SC 395), Union of India
Vs. H.C.Goel (AIR 1964 SC 3 64). However, the aforesaid judgment is
distinguishable on facts looking to the nature of the allegations against the
petitioner and the scope of Section 55(2) qua the facts of the case in the
judgment in reference and the relevant provisions of Maharashtra Municipal
Council Act, 1965. Scope under Section 5 5(2) is wider dealing with
misconduct, negligence and persistent remiss in discharge of official
duty as against misconduct and disgraceful conduct under the Mabharashtra
Municipal Council Act, 1965; contours of powers to examine facts of a given
case.

20.  Consequently, this Court is of the opinion exercise of powers by
respondent No.2 under Section 55(2) is in conformity with settled principles
of law with due advertence to relevant material on record and the impugned
order dated 28.3.2017 passed is impeccable in nature. .

21.  Upshot of aforesaid discussion results in success of the writ petition
partly to the extent that the impugned order removing the petitioner as member
of the Market Committee and debarring him from being re-elected or re-
nominated as member of the Market Committee for a period of six years form
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the date of such removal under section SS(T) of the Adhiniyam of 1972, is
hereby quashed. However, the impugned order removing the petitioner from
‘the post of Chairman of Market Committee and further holding him ineligible
for re-election as Chairman or Vice Chairman for remainder of his term of
office as member of Market Committee under section 55(2) of the Adhiniyam
is hereby affirmed.

) Interim order granted on 4.4.2017 stands vacated. No order as to
Ccosts.

Petition partly allowed.

LL.R. [2017] M.P., 2417
WRIT PETITION
Before Mr. Justice Subodh Ablhyankar
W.P. No. 2310/2016 (Jabalpur) decided on 24 August, 2017

MOHAN SINGH THAKUR ... Petitioner
Vs. :
STATEOFM.P. & ors. ...Respondents

Swatantrata Sangt:am Sainik Samman Nidhi Rules, M.P,; 1972,
" Rule 3(6) — Samman Nidhi/Pension — Entitlement — Arrears & Interest —
Application seeking “Sarizman Nidhi”/Pension was rejected in 1993 for
want of relevant documents/proof but later, on 28.03.14, same was allowed
—Claim of arrears and interest from initial date of rejection was disallowed
— Challenge to — Held — Rules were amended in 1999 and Rule 3(6) was.
added according to which a person shall be entitled to get Samman Nidhi
from date of passing of order —In absence to any challenge to Rules, the
same governs the field and have to be complied with — Rejection of 1993
was also never challenged by petitioner —No case of interference—~ Petition
dismissed. (Paras 5,7 & 9)
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Case referred:
W.P. No. 2320/1996 order passed on 02.07.2013 (DB).

R.K. Samaiya, for the petitioner.
Naveen Dubey, G.A. for the respondent/State.

(Supplied: Paragraph numbers)
ORDER

SUBODH ABIYANKAR, J. :- The present petition has been preferred
under Article 226-of the Constitution of India against the order dated 28.3.2014
* asalso against the order dated 28.12.2015, both passed by respondent No.1
State. Vide order dated 28.3.2014 the petitioner was declared as Freedom
Fighter and was entitled to get the benefits of freedom fighters w.e.f. 28.3.2014
itself, whereas vide order dated 28.12.2015 (Annexure P/8), it is further held
that the petitioner is not entitled to receive the arrears of “Samman Nidhi”.

2. In brief'the facts of the case are that the petitioner is 91 years old and
as claimed by the petitioner, he had participated in the freedom movement,
for which he was underground for a period moge than six months and as per
the law enacted by the State Government for granting benefits to the freedom
fighters; which is known as M.P. Swatantrata Sangram Sainik Samman Nidhi
Rules, 1972, he is entitled to receive pension. Admittedly the petitioner was
trying to get the benefit of the aforesaid Rules but his claim was initially rejected
on 18.10.1993 on the ground that the petitioner did not produce any proof of
his remaining underground during the freedom struggle. When the petitioner
produced the satisfactory evidence in support of his claim, his name was
recommend by the Collector to the Secretary of General Administrative
Department (GAD) on 08.03.2001 but the Secretary-of General Administrative
Department vide its order dated 2.2.2002 again rejected the recommendations
of the Collector stating that there is no sufficient proof'that the petitioner
remained underground or that he remained in jail during the freedom struggle.
However, the petitioner again made a representation to the government and
filed the proof of his involvement in the freedom struggle, hence the Collector,

LT

wt
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vide its letter dated 25.1.2008 recommend the case of the petitioner for
providing “Samman Nidhi” under the relevant rules of 1972 and subsequently,
the claim of the petitioner was sanctioned by the Deputy Secretary of General
Administrative Department, Bhopal vide his order dated 28.03.2014 and was
given the pension of Rs.15,000/- per month till his death and after his death,
the same was ordered to be given to his wife Smt. Chandra Kunwar throughout
her entire life. ‘

3. The petitioner’s contention is that his pension has been sanctioned
after a period of 21 years and despite his entitlement, due to the inordinate
delay to grant the'same, other benefits like interest and other facilities have
not been provided to him under the Scheme hence many representations were
made by the petitioner but the final order was passed only on 28.12.2015
whereby the petitioner’s claim for arrears was dismissed and he was informed
that as per the Rules of 1972, “Samman Nidhi” is to be provided from the
- date of the order only and there is no provision of payment of arrears. The
petitioner’s contention is that his case is squarely covered by the order dated
2.7.2013 passed by the Division Bench of this Court in the case of Sheel
Chand Jain v. State of M.P. & another passed in W.P. No.2320/1996. It is
submitted by the petitioner that he is entitled to get the “Samman Nidhi®
w.e.f. the date of order of first rejectioni.c.18.10.1993 with interest @ 12%
per annum within a period of two months. Petitioner’s further contention is
that he is fighting for “Samman Nidhi” since last 27 years and his first application
to obtain the same was rejected on 18.10.1993 and that too after a period of
six years and as decided by this Court in the case of Sheel Chand ] ain, the
application should have been decided within a period of one year and the
freedom fighter whose application is allowed, would be entitled to get the
benefit atleast from the date of rejection of his application. Being aggrieved,
the petitioner submitted a representation on 16.11.2015 to the respondents
but the same was rejected vide order dated 28. 12.2015 hence this petition.

4, On the other hand, in the reply submitted by the respondent/
Sate(sic:State), the contentions of the State are that the petition is liable to be
dismissed as no case is made out by the petitioner for the reason that none of
his rights have been infringed and the order passed by the respondent on
28.11.2015 is just, proper and is in accordance with law hence is not required
to be interfered with,

5. The respondent’s.contention is that vide Gazette Notification dated
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8.3.1999 (Annexure R/2), Rules of 1972 have been amended and Rule 3(6)
has been added to the aforesaid rules, which clearly mentions that the incumbent
would be entitled to get the benefit of “Samman Nidhi” from the date on
which such order is passed. Under such ¢ircumstances, it is submitted by the
respondents that the respondents are bound by the aforesaid law of the land
and in the absence of any challenge to the aforesaid notification, the impugned
order cannot be quashed or interfered with. It is further submitted that merely
dismissal of the petitioner’s application in the year 1993, would not entitle him
to get the arrears of “Samman N1dh1” since 1993 and that too with the interest
@ 12% per annum, :

6. Heard the learned counsel for the parties and perused the record.

7. From the record, it is apparent that uhder the Rule 3(6) of the amended
Rules of 1972, it is clearly provided that a person shall be entitled to get the
“Samman Nidhi” from the date of passing of the order. Thus, in the absence of
any challenge to the aforesaid Rules, the same governs the field and have to
be complied with. The respondents cannot deviate from the provision of the
aforesaid Rules and so far as the judgment passed in Sheelchand Jain s case
is concerned, the facts of the same are clearly distinguishable. :

8. In the case of Sheel Chand Jain, the question before this court was
that whether the rejection of the petitioner’s application to get the Samman
Nidhi was proper or net, and after appreciating the documents filed on record
it was held that his rejection was not proper, hence, in these circumstances, he
was granted the benefit of Samman Nidhi from the date of his rejection.and
with interest. In para 3 of the said order, it is observed as under:-

« 3. A Full Bench of this Court consisting of 5 Judgeson a
reference vide order dated 11.3.2010 has held that Rule 3(6)
of the Rues (sic:Rules) of 1972 is a valid piece of legislation
and it has been further held that the term “Sanction order”
(Swikriti Aadesh) would also mean the date on which order is
passed by the State Government rejecting the applicationina
case where such an order is set aside by higher forum holding
the Swatantrata Sangram Senani would be entitled for pension
(samman nidhi)” )
9. Thus, applying the aforesaid principle to the present case, itisnota
case where the petitioner’s application was wrongly rejected by the State, in
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fact, in the present case, it is only after submission of the proper documents
to the satisfaction of the State, that the petitioner was grated Samman Nidhi
on 28.03.2014 despite the fact that his earlier application was rejected on
18.10.1993. The order dated 18.10.1993 was never challenged by the
petitioner hence it does not lie in his mouth that he should have been granted .
the Samman Nidhi from the initial date of his rejection i.e. from 18.10.1993.

Thus, the petitioner has not been able to make out any case for interference

by this court. In the circumstances, the petition fails and is hereby dismissed.
.No costs. '

Petition dismissed,

LL.R. [2017] M.P., 2421
WRIT PETITION .
Before Mr. Justice Hemant Gupta, Chief Justice &
Mr. Justice Vijay Kumar Shukla
W.P. No. 18886/2016 (Jabalpur) decided on 13 September, 2017

RAGHVENDRA SINGH YADAV - : ...Petitioner
Vs. .
UNION OF INDIA & ors. . : ...Respondents

(Alongwith W.P. Nos. 19005/2016, 1902472016, 19101/2016,
19170/2016, 19184/2016, 20318/2016, 8324/2017, 8357/2017, 8359/
2017, 8362/2017, 8365/2017, 8367/2017 & 8371/2017)

A. Constitution — Article 226 — Cancellation -of
Appointment — Opportunity of Hearing — Principle of Natural Justice
— Held - Principle of natural justice are not required to be followed
whiere large number of candidates have been selected on basis of forged
and tampered mark sheet — Admittedly, original interview marks of
candidates are not available, therefore tainted and untainted candidates
cannot be segregated — Decision of the Samiti to re-advertise the post
is not justified as it will put the earlier candidates to a disadvantageous -
position —Samiti directed to conduct interview of all candidates and on
. the basis of marks assigned, make appointment — Petition disposed of.
' (Para 8 to 12)
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B. Constitution — Article 226 — Prescribed Rules for Process
of Appointment — Jurisdiction - Held — By judicial order, the Central
Administrative Tribunal cannot issues direction to conduct interview ina
manner otherwise than prescribed by Recruitment Rules — Direction of
Tribunal to conduct interview in a particular manner is set aside.(Para 12)
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Cases referred :

(2015) 6 SCC 573, (2006) 11 SCC 356, (2016) 7 SCC 615, (2017)
4 SCC 1.

Shashank Shekhar, for the petitioners.
Rajesh Chand, for the petitioner in W.P. No. 19184/2016.
Pankaj Dubey, for the Union of India.

ORDER

The Order of the Court was passed by :
HEeMANT Gurta, C.J. :- The challenge in the present writ petitions is to an
- order passed by the Central Administrative Tribunal, Jabalpur Bench, Jabalpur
(for short “the Tribunal™) on 17.10.2016 whereby the cancellation of
appointment of the applicants before the Tribunal was maintained, but the
merit list was ordered to be drawn on the basis of educational qualification,
performance in qualifying examination, extracurricular activities, work
experience etc. without conduct of interview.

2. The Original Applicants before the Tribunal have filed writ petitions
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against the said ordeér passed by the Tribunal as also Navodaya Vidyalaya
Samiti (for short “Samiti”) against the direction given in para 14 in respect of
manner of fresh preparation of merit list.

3. The brief facts are that an advertisement was published for filling up

of 62 posts in different disciplines called Miscellaneous Teachers. Such
advertisement was published on 24.04.2012 (Annexure-P/1). The
appointment process was in two parts. One is written examination of 140
marks followed by interview of 60 marks. In pursuance of the merit list
prepared after conduct of written test and the interview, the appointment letters
were issued on 12.09.2013. Admittedly, there is no irregularity in the marking
of the written examination, but it is the mark-sheets of interview which were
found to be forged and tampered. The allegation of forgery in the interview
mark-sheets was referred to the Central Bureau of Investigation and on the
basis of report of the Central Bureau of Investigation, the appointment letters
issued to the applicants were cancelled/withdrawn on 14.01.2016 and
18.01.2016 but before an order of confirmation of the services of the Original
Applicants was passed. Such order of cancellation was challenged in different
applications before the Tribunal.

4. The Tribunal has found that it is impossible to segregate bad from.
good candidates as none of the original mark-sheets of the interview are
available. Therefore, relying upon the Supreme Court judgment in the case of
Tanvi Sarwal v. Central Board of Secondary Education and others, (2015)
6 SCC 573, the action of withdrawing the appointment of all the candidates
was not found to be faulty, However, the Tribunal directed that fresh merit-list
be prepared by granting 60 marks assigned for interview only on the basis of

. documents submitted by the candidates on the basis of educational

qualification, performance in qualifying examination, extracurricular activities,
work assessment, work experience in terms of the relevant Recruitment Rules
as well as advertisement.

5. The argument of learned counsel for the Original Applicants before
the Tribunal is that the allegation of tampering the mark-sheets was inrespect
of 29 candidates and not the applicants, therefore, cancellation of their result
is not justified. It is also argued that before cancelling or withdrawing the
appointment, no opportunity of hearing was granted to the applicants nor the
apphcants were confronted with adverse material if any in the process of
assigning marks in the interview. Therefore, the tainted candidates have to be
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segregated from the nontainted ones in view of the judgment of the Supreme
Court in the case of Inderpreet Singh Kahlon and others v. State of Punjab
and others, (2006) 11 SCC 356.

6. On the other hand, the argument of Samiti is that since the entire
appointment process is tainted inasmuch as there is no original mark-sheets of
interview available onrecord, therefore, it has been decided by the Samiti to -
re-advertise the posts rather than to re-assess the suitability of the candidates
by interviewing them again. It is also contended that the process of interview
could not be re-defined by the Tribunal ds the conduct of the interview is part
of the statutory rules. Therefore, the statutory rules cannot be superseded by
an order passed by the Tribunal to conduct interview in a particular manner.

7. We have heard learned counsel for the parties. The primary argument
of the learned counsel for the applicants is that opportunity of hearing was not
provided to the applicants before cancelling or withdrawing the offer of the
appointment. We do not find any merit as the said issue has been examined by
the Supreme Court in the case of Nidhi Kaim vs. State of Madhya Pradesh
and Others, (2016) 7 SCC 615. The relevant extract reads as under:-

“38. The students in Sinha case [Bihar School Examination
Board v. Subhas Chandra Sinha, (1970) 1 SCC 648] relied
upon an earlier judgment of this court in Ghanshyam Das Gupta
Case [Board of High School and Intermediate Education v.
Ghanshyam Das Gupta, AIR 1962 SC 11 10]. It was held
. therein that the students (only 3 in number) whose examination
was cancelled on the ground that they had resorted to copying
ought to have been given an opportunity to defend themselves.
This court distinguished Ghanshyam Das Gupta case holding
' that the said judgment did not imply that the rule of ands alteram
partent must be followed in cases

“...where the examination as a whole was vitiated, say
by leakage of papers or by destruction of some of the
answer books or by discovery of unfair means practised
ona vast scale ...” (Sinha case, SCC p.652, para 14).

This Court further held that in Ghanshyam Das Gupta

“the Court was then not considering the right of an
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examining body to cancel its own examination when it was
satisfied that the examination was not properly conducted
or that in the conduct of the examination the majority of
the examinees had not conducted themselves as they should
have” (Sinha case, SCC p.652, para 14)...............

39. Sinha case judgment, in my view, yields the following
principles:

XXX B +.¢ .4
39.4 To insist on the observance of the principles of natural -
justice, i.e. giving notice to each student and holding enquiry
before cancelling the examination in such cases would “hold
up the functioning” of the educational institutions which are

responsible for maintenance of the standards of education, and
. “encourage indiscipline, if not, also perjury:

39.5 Compliance with the rule of audi alteram partem is not
necessary not only in the cases of employment of “unfair means
on large scale” but also situations where there is a “leakage of
papers” or “destruction of some of the answer books”, etc.

39.6 This Court drew a distinction between action against an
individual student on the ground that the studerit had resorted
to unfair means in the examination and the cancellation of the
examination on the whole (or with reference to a group of
students) because the process itself’is vitiated.

XXX XXX

42. From an analysis of the above decisions, the following
principles emerge:- :

42.1 Normally, the rule of audi alteram partem must be
scrupulously followed in the cases of the cancellation of the
examinations of students on the ground that they had resorted
to unfair means (copying) at the examinations.

42.2 But the abovementioned principle is not applicableto
the cases where unfair means were adopted by a relatively
large number of students and also to certain other situations
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where either the examination process is vitiated or for reasons
beyond the control of both students and the examining body, it
would be unfair or impracticable to continue the examination

process to insist upon the compliance with audi alteram partem
rule.

42.3 The fact that unfair means were adopted by students at
an examination could be established by circumstantial evidence. -

p.9,¢.4 XXX

. 43, Cases such as the one on hand where there are allegations
of criminal conspiracies resulting in the tampering with the
examination process for the benefit of a large number of .
students would be certainly one of the exceptional”
circumstances indicated in Sinha case provided there is some
justifiable material to support the conclusion that the
examination process had been tampered with. '

44, In thelight of the principles of law emerging from scrutiny
of the abovementioned judgments, we are of the opinion that
case on hand can fall within the category of exceptions to the
rule of audi alteram partem if there is reliable material to come
to the conclusion that the examination process is vitiated. That
leads me to the next question — whether the material relied
upon by the Board for reaching the conclusion that the
examination process was contaminated insofar as the appellants
(and also some more students) are concerned and the appellants
are the beneficiaries of such contaminated process, is tenable?”’

8. In Nidhi Kaim's case the Supreme Court was examining the
disqualification of the candidates conducted by the M.P. Professional Board
for the professional courses. Though, the said judgment pertains to adopting
of unfair means in the examination, but the principle laid down would be
applicable in respect of appointment to a public post as well. It has been held
that adherence to principle of natural justice for each and every students not
practical and would be wastage of time and lead to further litigation in Court.

The Court held that the principles of natural justice can be said to be applicable.

if there are one or two students but if there are large number of students, the
principle of natural justice cannot be applied. Though the members of the
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Bench differed in respect of the disqualification of the candidates but ina later
judgment reported in Nidhi Kaim and Another v. State of Madhya Pradesh
and Others (2017) 4 SCC 1, the Supreme Court has held that the candidates
who have got admission on the basis of fraud, cannot claim any equitable
indulgence. :

9. Tnview of the said judgment since admittedly original interview marks
of the candidates are not available, therefore, the tainted and untainted
candidates cannot be segregated as was directed in Inderpreet Singh's case.
Therefore, the action of the Samiti in withdrawing or cancelling the offer 6f
appointment cannot be said to be vitiated in any manner, ‘

10.  However, we are unable to agree with the decision of the Samiti is to
re-advertise the posts, which will give opportunity to the applicants to apply
and to be considered for appointment along with other eligible candidates.

11. "~ 'We find that the selection process should not be aborted for the reason
that the original interview sheets are not available with the Samiti. Theillegality
part can be cured by subjecting the candidates for fresh interview and assessing
their suitability in terms of the Recruitment Rules and the condition of
ac{vertisement. Issuing of advertisement will enlarge the number of candidates
eligible to apply for the posts to be advertised. Such process will diminish the
chances of the candidates who have applied in the year 2012 and appointed
in the year 2013. The applicants form a separate class who were appointed in
the year 2012 and their appointment has been withdrawn only for the reason-
that original mark-sheets of the interview are not availablec. Therefore, we
find that decision of the Samiti to re-advertise the posts is not justified as it
will put the candidates who applied in response to advertisement published in
the year 2012to a disadvantageous position. Consequently, the decision of
the Samiti to re-advertise the pasts, is not accepted.

12. The Tribunal has directed the interview to be conducted in the manner
which is contrary to the Recruitment Rules and conditions of the advertisement.
Such process cannot be accepted as 60 marks had to be assigned on the
basis of interview in the manner mentioned in the Recruitment Rules and/or
the advertisement. Consequently, we direct the Samiti to conduct interview of
all the candidates and on the basis of marks assigned, make appointment.
Such appointment shall take effect from the date of appointment. Since no
pension Scheme is available, the period spent by the applicants in pursuance
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of selection which has been set aside cannot be ordered to be counted for the
- purpose of pension, if any such candidate is re-selected.

13.  Inview of the said fact, all the writ petitions stand disposed ofinthe
manner mentioned above.:

Order accordingly.

LL.R. [2017] M.P., 2428
APPELLATE CIVIL ,
Before Mr. Justice V.K. Shukla
S.A. No. 459/2014 (Jabalpur) decided on 23 June, 2017

UMMED BAGHEL ...Appellant
Vs.
MOHD. ANEES KHAN ...Respondent

A. Accommodation Control Act, M.P. (41 of 1961}, Section
12(1)(a) — Eviction Decree — Arrears of Rent — Concurrent decree of
eviction u/S 12(1)(a) against Appellant/defendant (tenant) — Appeal
against — Held — Apex Court has concluded that once non-payment of
rent is established then Court has no option but to decree the suit on
the ground contemplated u/S 12(1)(a) of the Act 0f 1961 — Subsequent
payment of rent during the first and second appeal is of no relevance —
Courts below rightly decreed the suit of plaintiff — No substantial
question of law exists — Second Appeal dismissed. (Para8 & 9)

@ 7T Fra=vr afefray, a5 (1961 &7 41), 87 12(1)(T) —
et 7 R# — w8 #7 g#rar — adaef /ufEd (FREER) @
o amr 12(1)(@) @ Fadq daee ) gnadl fom — = freg srdla —
iR — waf=a <maeg 3 freffa fear 2 f5 @ IR T8 &1
e g 8 WM W, e U 1961 @ Afetad B ey
12(1)(8) @ sfoefa AgEATM AER W 91 B g o @ Aqerar Fg
fyped &Y @ — yory e fydiw arf@ @ <l w19 @ gwAaad] A
A IF gty 78 2 — Prad waeat A ard & 9w $ St w9 |
Rt frar — it &1 o1 | v Reem @ — fida srda =ie

B. Civil Procedure Code (5 of 1908), Section 100 — Second
Appeal — Concurrent Findings of Fact — Jurisdiction — Held -
Concurrent findings of Courts below are based on appreciation of
evidence which cannot be interfered by this Court u/S 100 CPC — Court
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u/8 100 CPC cannot re-appreciate the evidence even if another view is
possible - Jurisdiction of this Court wS 100 CPC is limited — Concurrent
findings of fact cannot be interfered until and unless the same. is
perverse or based on no evidence or contrary to material on record.
(Paras 10 to 12)

& ﬂﬁamwﬁéfﬁw& arrs), STV 100 — BT ardier —
mﬁmﬁﬁwf—m—ﬂﬁrﬁmﬁa—ﬁﬁww%
mﬁﬁmqua%q\aﬁaﬁwmﬁa?m#mwm

Cases referred:
I

2007 (5) MPHT 308, (2000) 4 SCC 380, (2005) 7 SCC 211, (2003)
1 SCC 123, (2000) 10 SCC 193, 1995 Suppl. SCC 418, 1994 Suppl (1)
SCC 437, (1990) 4 SCC 40, (1989) 4 SCC 612, (1988)'1 SCC 363, AIR
1967 SC 405, AIR 1965 SC 101, AIR 1964 SC 1341, AIR 1954 SO 758,
(2001) 1 JLL 351, 1996 JLJ 247, 2006 (2) MPLJ 484, (2009) 5 SCC 264,
QOH)?SCC18%(ﬂn2)SSCCl4&(mnl)ISCCIS&(HH2)7SCC
288, - _

S.K. Soni, for the appellant.
Vivek Mishra, for the respondent.

JUDGMENT

V.K. SnukwA, J. :- Heard on admission.

2. This is an appeal filed under Section 100 of the Code of Civil
Proceduire, challenging the Jjudgment and decree dated 25-02-20 14,passed
by First Additional District J udge, Balaghat, in Regular Civil Appeal No.34-
' Af2013, affirming the judgment and decree dated 23-08-2013, passed by
4th-Civil J udge Class-II, Balaghat, in Civil Suit No.136-A/201 3, whereby
the suit filed by the respondent/plaintiﬂ’ foreviction on the ground under Section
12(1)(b) of M.P. Accommodation Control Act,1961(hereinafter referred to
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as 'the Act') has been decreed.

3. Brief facts of the present case in short are that the plaintiff/respondent -
filed a suit for possession and arrears of rent. It was pleaded that the plaintiff
had purchased the suit land and house by registered sale deed on 29-03-
2011 from one Smt. Manjula Bai, W/o Viththal Rao Kothari. It is submitted
by him that the appellant was residing as a tenant in the suit house ona sum of
Rs.150/- per month before execution of the registered sale deed and thereafter
the appellant has become tenant of the respondent. A legal notice on 29-09-
2011 was sent by the plaintiff to the appellant. Since the appellant failed to
respond to the aforesaid notice, the tenancy was terminated from the midnight
of 31-10-2011 and informed the appellant to deliver the vacant possession of
the suit house on 01-11-2011. It is further pleaded that the appellant did not
deliver the vacant possession and therefore, the suit was filed for eviction on
the ground that the appellant has failed to pay the arrears of the rent .

4. The appellant filed the written statement and denied the case of the
plaintiff and submitted that prior to execution of the sale deed in favour of the
plaintiff, original owner Manjula Bai had executed an agreement dated 30-
06-2005 with one Dilip Kumar and therefore after the execution of the
agreement with Dilip Kumar, he ceased to be tenant of Manjula Bai. It is
further submitted that Dilip Kumar had also filed a suit for specific performance
on the strength of the aforesaid agreement. The trial court framed the issues
and Issue No.3 was that whether the appellant/defendant was tenant of the
plaintiffand the Issue No.4 was that whether the plaintiff failed to make payment
of the rent and he is in arrears of rent since April, 2011. The said issue was
also answered affirmatively.

5. The trial court after extensive evaluation of the oral and documentary
evidence recorded the finding that the appellant/ defendant is tenant of the
respondent/plaintiff and failed to make the payment of the rent and was in
arrears of rent. Paras 17 and 18 are reproduced as under :

"17.W&w$tﬁfﬁﬁwﬁu‘éawquﬂm%ﬁsa@§mmﬁ
T R 29.03.2011 & UoiTard fised o W B AT
mﬁsmwmzawﬁw&msm%%aﬁrmﬁﬁwm%
GRard @ frerd ) A @ g, Afw wdts fkaie 20.00.2011
afrard) T AR s T, S ST @ ey gan, e 9l &
g T fEAIE 29.03.2011 @ IMER W IGI HPTT I 4B
Wsﬁﬁ@mww.ﬁ.ﬂaﬁaﬁ?%mﬁa 2011 ¥ R



LLR.[2017]M.P. Ummed Baghel Vs. Mohd. Anees Khan

6.

7.
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Being aggrieved by the aforesaid Judgment and decree the appeal
was filed. The same was also dismissed and the findings of the trial court
were affirmed. The Lower Appellate Court found that after the execution of
the registered sale deed in favour of the plaintiff by Ex.P-1, the appellant had
become tenant of the plaintiff and did not make the payment of rent and
therefore, there was no illegality in the impugned judgment and decree of
possession and payment of arrears of rent. Para-22 of the Lower Appellate
Court is relevant to be extracted as under :

“22. 3@ fwa E AT @ IR aETw He Fw @
e gReTd) ¥ 819 ¥ W 39er fear T 8, v we €
AR AP [4F6T B BT B wiar 781 fhar Ta7 il iy 5o
g1 BT AR uftrger 3 Wl areg off 8T 6 T 2 1 ot W ERy
A AR A Sw qd qfy @l weEmeE @ Rt
Wrees ey vz ugeidi—1 g %9 o= anfdrue fvar ser wafer
v W & ok 59 Haw # ard gTer el wraTen § Rifted s
aen gaIra foar war 8| e 39 |ug ¥ sl e g
freeren Tar e ek Sws s w TiRke Pl Tur swe TR
ERIST Y B BIY avgHar e B[

Learned counsel for the appellant vehemently argued that during the
pendency of the first appeal and the second appeal, the appellant had deposited
the entire amount and therefore, no decree of eviction could have been passed
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against him.To buttress his submission, he relied on the judgment passed by a
Coordinate Bench of this court in the case of Vinod Kumar Agrawal Vs.
Chandrakant Pandey and another, 2007(5) MPHT 308 and seeks this court
to over turn the concurrent findings of both the courts.

8. In the present case after consideration of the evidence, the trial court
has passed the decree of eviction on the ground of arrears of rent. The Apex
Court in the cases of Jamnalal and others Vs. Radheshyam (2000)4 SCC
380, Atmaram Vs. Shakuntala Rani, (2005)7 SCC 211, E.Palanisamy
Vs. Palanisamy,(2003)1 SCC 123, Parmeshwar Prasad Vs. Parmeshwari
Devi, (2000)10 SCC 193, Mohammad Yunus Vs. Gurubux Singh, 1995
Suppl. SCC 418, Madan Mohan and another Vs. Krishann Kumar Sood,
1994 Suppl(1) SCC 437, J.L. Varandani Vs. Ashalata Mukherjee (1990) 4
SCC 40, Arjun Khiamal Mankhijani and other Vs. Jamnadas C. Tuliani
and other, (1989) 4 SCC 612, Mrs.Manju Choudhary Vs. Kulal Kumar
Chandra, (1988) 1 SCC 363, Vasumatiben Gaurishankar Bhatt Vs.
~ Naviram Mancharam Vora and Ors. AIR 1967 SC 405, Mungilal Vs.
Sirgan Chand Rathi(Deceased, AIR 1965 SC 101, Vora Abbasbhai
Alimahomed Vs. Haji Gulamnabi Haji Safibhai, AIR 1964 SC 1341,
Sheodhari Rai and Ors. Vs. Suraj Prasad Singh and others, AIR 1954 SC
758 and Smt. Sushila Shrivastava Vs. Nafees Ahmed Qureshi and another
(2001)1 JLL 351 held that once non payment of rent is established then the
court had no option but to decree the suit on the ground contemplated under
Seci:iox} 12(1)(b) of the Act. The reliance placed by the appellant in the case
of Vinod Kumar Agrawal(supra), the ratio laid down by the Coordinate Bench
- also not applied in the facts of the present case, as in the said case there was
no decree for eviction under Section 12(1)(a) of the Act. On the contrary the
suit was dismissed by the trial court and the question which was considered in
the said case was that whether the courts below had acted illegally in dismissing
the suit for arrears of rent. In the facts of the said case, the court found that
once the trial court had directed for deposit of the rent and the same was
deposited by the tenant, then the appellant is precluded from raising the ground
on eviction on the ground of arrears of rent. Thus, the said judgment would
not be of any help to the appellant in the facts of the said case and the present
case. No other point was argued by the learned counsel for the appellant.

9. Learned counsel for the respondents submitted that the appeal filed
by Dinesh who claimed of decree on the basis of so called agreement executed
by original owner Manjula Bai has also been dismissed. However, I am afraid
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that this is a ground for consideration of this appeal for admission.

10.  Inview of the aforesaid facts and considering the material on record,
in the opinion of this court, the arguments advanced by the appellant cannot
be countenance in exercise of jurisdiction under Section 100 of the Code of
Civil Procedure. The entire gamut of material is in the realm of facts. The
findings recorded by both the courts below are impregnable in nature. No
question of law much less substantial question of law arises warranting
interference under Section 100 of the Code of Civil Procedure.

, 11. Idonot find any iliegality or perversity in the concurrent findings -
recorded by the courts below. The question raised by the appellant could not
be held to be a question of law rather than substantial question of law as the
concurrent findings of the courts below are based on appreciation of evidence,
which cannot be interfered by this court at this stage under Section 100 of the
Code of Civil Procedure as laid down by the Apex Court in the cases of
Kalyan Singh Vs. Ramswaroop and another, 1996 J1.J 247 and Machalabai
Vs. Nanakram, 2006 (2) MPLJ 484.

12. Evenotherwise, it is well settled in law that the jurisdiction of this
Court to interfere with the findings of the fact under Section 100 of the C.P.C
* is limited where the findings is either perverse or based on no evidénce. This
Court cannot interfere with the findings of the fact until and unless the same is
perverse or based on no evidence or contrary to material on record. It is
equally settled [aw that the Court in exercise of power under Section 100 of
the C.P.C cannot re-appreciate the evidence even if another view is possible.
. (see-Narayan Rajendra and Anr. Vs. Lekshmy-Sarojini and Others (2009)
5 SCC 264, Hafazat Hussain Vs. Abdul Majeed and Others (2011)7 SCC
189, Union of India Vs. Ibrahim Uddin (2012) 8 SCC 148, D.R. Rathna
Murthy Vs. Ramappa (2011) 1 SCC 158 and Vishwanath Agrawal v. Sarla
Vishwanath Agrawal, (2012) 7 SCC 288).

13.  Inview of the aforesaid discussion, ] have not found any perversity or
infirmity in appreciation of evidence by the Courts below or any circumstances
giving rise to any question of law much less the substantial question of law requiring
any consideration at this stage under Section 100 of the C.P.C. Hence, this appeal
being devoid of any such question deserves to be and is hereby dismissed at the
stage of admission. There shall be no order as to costs.

Appeal dismissed.
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LL.R. [2017] M.P., 2434
APPELLATE CIVIL,
_ Before Mr. Justice Vivek Rusia
M.A. No. 2295/2014 (Indore) decided on 18 August, 2017

MOHD. YUNUS MUNSHI ' ...Appellant
Vs. ' i
PUBLICIN GENERAL " ...Respondent

A. Mental Health Act (14 of 1987), Sections 50, 51 & 76 —
Inquisition — Suit for ejectment and mesne profit against Mohd. Yunus
Munshi and Mohd. Kamar Hussain — An application u/S 50 of the Act
of 1987 was filed by Mohd. Kamar Hussain seeking declaration that
Mohd. Yunus Munshi is mentally ill person and is unable to manage
his property — Trial Court held that Mohd. Yunus Munshi is mentally ill
person but dismissed the application on the ground that details of

. properties had not been disclosed — Review application filed by applicant
which was also dismissed — Challenge to — Held — Only one application
- is required to be made u/S 50 of the Act, where District Judge is
required to conduct inquisition and give a declaration u/S 51 of the Act
—In the present case, trial Court wrongly dismissed the application on
technical ground and without giving any declaration —Application filed
by appellant was maintainable u/S 50 and Section 51 of the Act -
Impugned order set aside — Matter remitted back to District Court -
Appeal allowed. (Paras 4,6 & 7)

F AT W@y Ry (1987 #T 14) SRTE 50, 51 T 76
— wHlar —t. 479 40 @ Al R g4 9 freg dewd) d AaardN
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g wiwem ArEd 53 B 1. gaw g aefe sy 8 srawer sfa @ qer
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— foarer =marew 3 gw aftfeEifRe fvar 5 @ g =2 = s s
§ Iy |Afig @ Ry 39 AR W e wTRa o) faar fy wofeat
1 faavor ywe T frar @ — adws Ern gAfAleT IRET TR
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arRer fpar — ardtemeff gIT wsgd amdes aiftrrm @Y art 50 T 51 @
sTfa qieofr o — anefig ARy IurR — -ATHar e =mres @t
ghg g — arfla w9

B. Mental Health Act (14 of 1987), Sections 52, 53 & 54 —
Procedure for appointment of Guardian/Manager — Section 51
mandates that District Court shall record its findings regarding mental
illness of the person and if persen is declared mentally ill, another
inquiry is to be conducted u/S 52 of the Act for whether such person is
capable of taking carc of himself and managing his property — —Ifheis
incapable of taking care of himself, then guardian will be appomted
and if he is incapable to manage his properties, a manager will be
appointed u/S 54 of the Act —In the present case, if appellant wants
declaration that said person is incapable of managing his property,
District Court ought to have directed him to give a declaration about
details of his properties instead of rejecting the application — Further
held — Entire enquiry can be conducted in one application u/S 50 of the
Act, no separate application is required to be filed. (Para7)

. yTRrE wareey JRFrrT (1987 &T 14), SRIY 52, 53 T 54
— wvaw,/yIa F Fgfaa 8g vHar — )1 51 aRfug s ¢ 1w
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T wafrd WU F1 &5 @R U9 AUl wuftd @Y Ered s ® el
2 — afy a7 T we vEw A awwef 2, @ WRes frgaw e s
wa afy g8 agel gul 3 e o o aemef 2.t aftfe @t aw
54 @ saia UH wage frgEa fear sren — adwE weker R/, Al
arfrareff stwon wrEar 2 5 SR[ afid Sue) wulta 9 SEard a3 F
srawef 2, at Ryer aEeE @ =ity o % 97 I TG FE B
F9m, o) WuRaat @ faavn @ ¥R & wievm 29 g FRfm W —
affraifRa — wyof wma sffEs @ gxr so & Fada 1@ AT ¥
Fefera @ W1 God] 2, B1E YU AN 9Tgd fHar s adfdra

Akash Rathi, for the appellant.
None, for the respondents despite publication in newspaper.
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ORDER

VIvVEK Rusta, J. :- THE appellant has filed the present appeal under
Section 76 of the Mental Health Act, 1987 [in brief“the Act of 1987"] being
aggrieved by order dated 06.02.2013 by which his application under Section
50 of the Act of 1987 has been rejected. '

2. Facts of the case, in short, are as under :-

‘(@) That One Pakki Maszid through Intzamiya Committee filed a
suit for ejectment and mesne profit against Mohd. Yunus Munshi and Mohd.
Kamar Hussain Munshi from House No.22, Jawahar Marg, Indore. Since
Mohd. Yunus Munshi is of unsound mind, therefore, on his behalf Mohd, Kamar
Hussain Munshi has filed an application under Section 50 of the Act of 1987
before the District Court, Indore seeking declaration to the effect that he is a
mentally ill person and unable to manage his property.

(b) -Notice to General Public was issued by way of paper
- publication and thereafter statements of Mohd. Kamar Hussain Munshi, Naima
Banu and Mohd. Salman were taken by way of affidavit. The learned Trial
Court vide judgment dated 06.02.2013 has held that Mohd. Yunus Munshi is
mentally ill person but since the details of the properties have not been disclosed,
therefore, application under Section 50 of the Act of 1987 has been rejected.
However, the liberty has been granted that he can file an application in Civil
Suit No.9-A/2011 regarding his status of unsound of mind.

(¢) - Beingaggrieved by the aforesaid, the appellant preferred an
application under Order XLVII Rule 1 of CPC seeking review of order dated
06.02.2013. By order dated 07.10.2014 the learned 9th Additional District
Judge, Indore has rejected the same. Hence, the present appeal is filed before
this Court. :

3. I'have heard the arguments of Shri Akash Rathi, learned counsel for
the appellant.

4. ‘The appellant has filed an application under Section 50 of the Act of
1987 seeking declaration that he is a mentally ill person because one Pakki
Maszid through Intzamiya Committee has filed the suit against him for eviction.
That Section 50 of the Act of 1987 provides that where an alleged mentally ill
person is possessed of property, an application for holding an inquisition into
the mental condition of such person may be made either by his relatives or by
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Advocate General to the District Court within whose local limits mentally ill
-* person resides. On receipt of such application, the District Judge shall, by
-personal service or by such other mode of service, serve a notice on the -
"alleged mentally ill person to attend the procéedings. N

5. Under Section 51 of the Act of 1987, the District Court is required to
record its findings on two issues, namely (i) whether the alleged mentally ill
person is in fact mentally ill or not ? (ii) if such person is mentally ill, then
- whether he is incapable of taking care of himself or managing his property ?
Under Section 52 of the Act of 1987, where the District Judge records a
finding that the alleged mentally ill person is in fact mentally ill and is incapable
of taking care of himself or managing his property, he shall make an order for
the appointment of a guardian under Section 53 of the Act or of a manager
under Section 54 of the Act of 1987 for management of his property. Ifhe is
capable of taking care of himself but not capable of managing his property,
then he shall pass an order under Section 54 of the Act of 1987 regarding

management of his property. Section 50 to 54 of the Act of 1987 are
~ reproduced below :-

“30. Application for judicial inquisition.—(1)
Where an alleged mentally ill person is possessed of
property, an application for holding an inquisition into
the mental condition of such person may be made either—

(a) by any of his relatives, or '

(b) by a public curator appointed under the Indian
Succession A_ct, 1925 (39 of 1925), or

- (c) by the Advocate-General of the State in which
the a2lleged mentally ill person resides, or

(d) where the property of the alleged mentally ill
person comprises land or interest in land, or where the
property or part thereof is of such a nature as can
lawfully be entrusted for management to a -Court of
Wards established under any law for the time being in
force in the State, by the Collector of the District in which
such land is situate, to the District Court within the local
limits of whose jurisdiction the alleged mentally ill person
resides.
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(2) On receipt of an application under sub-section
(1), the District Court shall, by personal service or by
such other mode of service as it may deem fit, serve a
notice on the alleged mentally ill person to attend at such
place and at such time as may be specified in the notice
or shall, in like manner, serve a notice on the person
having the custody of the alleged mentally ill person to
produce such person at the said place and at the said
time, or being examined by the District Court or by any
other person from whom the District Court may call for
a report concerning the mentally ill person:

Provided that, if the alleged mentally ill person is
a woman, who according to the custom prevailing in the
area where she resides or according to the religion to
which she belongs, ought not to be compelled to appear
in public, the District Court may cause her to be examined
by issuing a commission as provided in the Code of Civil
Procedure, 1908 (5 of 1908).

(3) A copy of the notice under sub-section (2) shall
also be served upon the applicant and upon any relative
of the alleged mentally ill person or other person who, in
the opinion of the District Court, shall have notice of
jndicial inquisition to be held by it.

"(4) For the purpose of holding the inquisition
applied for, the District Court may appoint two or more
persons to act as assessors.

51._Issues on which finding should be given by
District Court after inquisition.—On completion of the
inquisition, the District Court shall record its findings
011,— ’ '

(i) whether the alleged mentally ill person is in
fact mentally ill or not, and

(ii) where such person is mentally ill, whether he
is incapable of taking care of himself and of managing
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his property, or incapable of managixig his property only.

52. Provision for appointing 2 uardian of mentally

ill person and for manager, of property.—(1) Where the

District Court records a finding thatthe alleged mentally

ill person is in fact mentally ill and is incapable of taking

* care of himself and of managing his property, it shall

make an order for the appointment of a guardian under

section 53 to take care of his person and of a manager
under section 54 for the management of his property.

(2) Where the District Court records a finding that
the alleged mentally ill person is in fact mentally ill and
is incapable of managing his property but capable of
taking care of himself, it shall make an order under
section 54 regarding the management of his property.

(3) Where the District Court records a finding that
the alleged mentally ill person’is not mentally ill, it shall
dismiss the application. .

(4) Where the District Court deems fit, it may
appoint under sub-section (1) the same person to be the
guardian and manager.

53. Appo_intnient of guardian_of mentally ill
person.—(1) Where the mentally ill person is incapable
of taking care of himself, the District Court or, where a
direction has been issued under sub-section (2) of section
54, the Collector of the District, may appoint any suitable
person to be his guardian.

(2) In the discharge of his functions under sub-
section (1), the Collector shall be subject to the
supervisidn and control of the State Government or of
any authority appointed by it in that behalf.

) 54. Appointment of manager for managen}em of _
propeity of mentally ill person.—(1) Where the property

of the mentally ill person who is incapable of managing itis
such as can be taken charge of by a Court of Wards under
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any law for the time being in force, the District Courtshall
authorise the Court of Wards to take charge of such
property, and thereupon notwithstanding anything contained
in such law, the Court of Wards shall assume the
management of such property in accordance with that Iaw.

(2) Where the property of the mentally ill person
consists in whole or in part of land or of any interest in
land which cannot be taken charge of by the Court of
Wards, the District Court may, after obtaining the consent
of the Collector of the District in which the land is
situated, direct the Collector to take charge of the person
and such part of the property or interest therein of
mentally ill person as cannot be taken charge of by the
Court of Wards.

(3) where the management of the property of the

. mentally ill person cannot be entrusted to the Court of

* Wards or to the Collector under sub-section (1) or sub-

section (2), as the case may be, the District Court shall

appoint any suitable person to be the manager of such
property.

6. In the present case the appellant has filed an application with a prayer
that inquisition be made and declare that he is mentally ill person and unable
to take care of his property. The learned District Judge on the basis of the
material available on record has held that he is mentally ill person but rejected
the application on technical ground that the details of properties have not
been filed. ' :

7. As per Chapter-VI of the Act of | 987, only one application is required
to be made under Section 50 of the Act 0f 1987 and under which the District
Judge is required to conduct inquisition and give a declaration under Section
51 of the Act 0f 1987. Therefore, the application filed by the appellant was .
very much mentainable (sic:maintainable) under Sections 50 and 51 of the Act
of 1987. The District J udge has wrongly rejected the application without giving
any declaration. That Section 51 of the Act of 1987 mandates that the District
Court shall record its findings whether the alle ged mentally ill person is in fact
mentally ill ornot. If the appellant is declared mentally ill person, then another
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enquiry is required to be conducted as contemplated under Section 52 of the
Act of 1987 whether he is capable of taking care of himself and managing his
property. If he is incapable of managing himself, then guardian would be
appointed and if he is not capable of managing his properties, then the manager
_ would be appointed under Section 54 of the Act of 1987. If the appellant
‘wants declaration that he is incapable of managing his property, then the District
Court ought to have directed him to give a declaration about the details of the
property instead of rejecting the application. For declaration under Sections
52,53 and 54 of the Act of 1987, no separate application is required to be
filed, entire enquiry can be conducted in one application filed under Section
50 of the Act of 1987. Therefore, the learned Court has wrongly rejected his
application. '

8. In view of the above, the impugned order dated 06.02.2013 is hereby
set-aside. The matter is remitted back to'the District Court to decide the
application as per Section 52 to 54 of the Act of 1987.

9. Theappealisallowed.

Appeal allowed.

I.L.R. [2017] ML.P., 2441
APPELLATE CIVIL
Before Mr. Justice Sheel Nagu & Mr. Justice Ashok Kumar Joshi
F.A.No. 196/2017 (Gwalior) decided on 30 August, 2017

REETA BAIS (SMT.) ~...Appellant
- Vs. - :
VISHWAPRATAP SINGH BAIS ...Respondent

A. Hindu Marriage Act (25 of 1955), Section 24 —
Maintenance Pendente lite — Grounds — Quantum — Family Court vide
interim order granted Rs. 2500 pm and Rs. 1500 pm as pendente lite
maintenance to wife and infant child respectively — Quantum challenged
by wife — Husband submitting that he is unemployed and totally -
dependent upon his father and elder brother — Held ~Notification of
2017 issued under Minimum Wages Act, 1948 prescribed Rs. 350 per
" day as minimum rate of wages for unskilled labour — Husband, an able
bodied man is legally responsible to maintain his wife who has no source
of income — Rs. 200 per day for wife and Rs. 100 per day for infant
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. child would suffice to enable them to sustain a life of dignity — Amount
of Rs. 6000 pm to wife and Rs. 3000 for child granted — Impugned
order modified. ~ (Paras 4.3,4.4.& 5)
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B. Hindu Marriage Act (25 of 1 955), Section 24 and Family
Courts Act (66 of 1984), Section 19— Maintenance Pendente lite - Appeal
~ Maintainability— Held —Full Bench of Allahabad High Court concluded )
that the nature, character and colour of an order u/S 24 of the Act of 1955
is of a final order as it decides rights and liabilities of wife in a substantial
manner therefore can be treated akin to judgment” — Appeal maintainable
—Objection raised by husband rejected. (Paras1,1.2 & 1.3)
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Case referred:
2005 (23) LCD page 1.

Vivek Khedkar, for the appellant.
Syed Momin Ali Shah, for the respondent.
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‘ JUDGMENT

- Learned counsel for thé respondent has raised préliminary objection-
as to maintainability of this appeal on the ground that the same filed under
Section 19 of the Family Court's Act is not maintainable having been filed
against an interlocutory order passed under Section 24 of the Hindu Marriage

Act granting interim mamtenancc to the wife less than what was sought by .
her.

Fi

1.2, . Leamed counsel for the appellant.rclying upon a decision of the Full
Benéh of Allahabad High Court in the case of Smt. Kiran Bala Shrivastava
Vs. Jai Prakash Shrivastava reported in 2005(23) LCD page 1 submits
that the nature, character and colour of an order under Section 24 of the-
Hindu  Marriage Actis of afinal order as it decides the riglits and liabilities of
the wife in a substantial manner and, therefore, can very well be treated akin
o “judgment”. By relying the Full Bench decision, it is submitted that the
mstant appeal under Section 19 of the Family Court Act} Is maintainable.

1.3. Inview ofthe decision of the Full Bench of the Allahabad High Court,

.this Court rejects the preliminary objection of mamtamablllty and hold that

the instant appeal is maintainable.

2., ¢ The present appeal is filed against the order of ad-interim maintenance
passed under Section 24 of the Hindu Marriage Act awarding pendente lite

. maintenance @ Rs.2500/- per month to appellant wife and @ 1500/- per -

month for the son aged about 1§ months along with composite htlgatlon cegt
of Rs.3000/-.

3. Learned counsel for the appellant wife seeking enhancement contends
that the husband, as per the application filed under Section 24 was earning
about Rs.1 lakh per month by indulging in sale and purchase of real estate. It
was submitted by the wife in the application that respondent-husband has'
agncultural land which is an add1t10nal source of income. In this factual

- backdrop, wife sought interim maintenance of Rs.45,000/- per month for
, herself and her son before-the Fa:mly Court. )

31. , In reply to thie aforesaid claim u/s 24 HMA, the rcspondent—husband
dcmed the contentions of the wife by stating that in business of sale and purchase
of immoveable property he suffered loss and thereafter opened a shop in thecity
which venture also could not succeed and now he hasno source of income and is
totally dependent on his 70 years old fathef and elder brother.

A3
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3.2.  Undeniably the respondent-husband has not challenged the order of
interim maintenance and, therefore, to the extent of this failure to challenge the
respondent-husband has admitted his liability to ad-interim maintenance to
the wife to the extent granted by the impugned order.

4. Thus the only question which now begs for an answer is about the
quantum of pendente lite maintenance awarded.

4.1.  Itisnot denied that the respondent-husband is an able bodied man
who is legally responsible to maintain his wife who has no source of livelihood.

4.2. This Court is of the considered view that from the current standard of
living and rising price index the amount of compensation of Rs.4000/- per
month is deﬁ01ent to sustam awoman as well as her infant child. .

4.3.  To prima facie ascertain the minimum essentials required to allow an
individual to survive and livea life of dignity, this court deems it appropriate to
seek guidance from the Notification No. S.0.2413(E) dated 28th July, 2017
of the Ministry of Labour and Employment issued under the Minimum Wages
Act, 1948 prescribing minimum rates of wages for unskilled Labourer as
Rs.350/- per day. '

4.4. -This Court is of the considered view that taking a modest figure of

Rs.200/- per day for the appellant-wife and Rs.100/- per day for her infant -

child would suffice to enable them to sustain a life of dignity allowing them to
meet the requirement of necessity and a little bit of comfort.

5. Consequently,anamount of Rs.6,000/- per month for wife and Rs. 3,000/-
per month for the child would be reasonable pendente lite maintenance.

6. Accordingly, the impugned order of grant of maintenance to the wife
“is modified to the extent indicated above and the respondent-husband is
directed to pay the enhanced amount from first February, 2017. The arrears
arising out of this order shall be paid to the wife within a period of two months
and the respondent-husband shall ensure payment of pendente lite
maintenance in future at the said enhanced rate till pendency of Section 13
divorce petition filed by the husband, by the tenth day of every month.

7. This order shall not prejudice the rights and liabilities of the rival parties

in the pending divorce petition.

Order accordingly.

3]
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APPELLATE CRIMINAL .
Before Mr. Justice' Ravi Shankar Jha &
Mr. Justice Ashok Kumar Joshi
Cr.A. No 1792/2003 (Jabalpur) decided on 18 May, 2017

SAKHARAM @BAGAD & ors. - - ...Appellants
VS , ] N
STATE OF M.P. : " ...Respondent

A. Penal Code (45 of 1860), Section 302/149 & 148 — Murder
— Conviction ~ Child Witness — Credibility — Appreciation of Evidence
.—Held — Solitary statement of child witness does not i inspire confidence
‘because of material contradictions, exaggeration, inconsistencies,
omissions andimprovements in the Court statements in comparison to
dehati nalishi and police statement — Such evidence is wholly unsafe
unless corroborated by independent witnesses — Absence of
corroboration even of departmental prosecution witness — Evidence
'not reliable and trustworthy Appellants acquitted of charge --Appeal
rallowed. - , - (Paras 31, 33,34 & 36)
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_ B. Penal Code (45 of 1860), Section 302/14 9 & 148 — Murder

. ~Seizure of Weapons — Circumstantial Evidénce— Proof—Held — Seizure

. of weapons from appellants not supported by witnesses—As per FSLreport,

no blood found on any seized weapon — Circumstantial evidence regarding

| seizure is inconclusive, immaterial and is unable to establish any link
between appellants and the incident of murder. 3 ‘(Para 35)

. Tv8 Wiedl (1860 BT 45). HINT 302,149 T 148 —~ Fear-—
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Cases referred:

1990 JLJ 401, 1990 J.L.J. 772, AIR 1976 SC 2423, AIR 1975 SC
1727, AIR 1953 SC 514, 2008 (1) M.P.L.J. (Cri.) 676, AIR 1979 SC 1408,
2012 (1) M.P.L.J. (Crl.) (SC) 19, 2003 (2) J.L.J. 129, 2012 (2) M.P.L.J.
(C1l.) 77, 2008 (2) MPLJ (Crl.) 561 (SC), AIR 1976 SC 560, AIR 1976 SC
989.

V.P. Singh, for the appellants.
~.-Vaibhav Tiwari, P.L. for the respondent/State.

JUDGMENT

The Judgment of the” Court was -delivered by =
AsHOK KuMAR Josmi, J. :- In this appeal filed under Section 374(2) of the -
Criminal Procedure Code, challenge is to the conviction and sentence recorded
on 19.9.2003 by the First Additional Sessions Judge, Balaghat in Sessions
Trial No.192/2002, whereby each of the original eight appellants has been
convicted and sentenced under Section 302/149 (on four counts) of the IPC .
for life imprisonment with a fine of Rs.500/- on each count and under Section
148 of the IPC to undergo rigorous imprisonment for one year. All the jail
sentences of each appellant have been directed to run concurrently and in
default of above mentioned fine, each appellant is directed to undergo one
year rigorous imprisonment additionally. According to written information
received from Central Jail, Jabalpur, original appellant No.5 Shobhelal S/o
Saradhya had died on 4.4.2015 during treatment in Medical College, Jabalpur
undergoing his life imprisonment.

2. Prosecution's case in briefis that before 15.8.2002, present appellant
No.l Sa.kharam alias Bagad had killed a dog of the family of 12 years old
complainant Sunil Kumar (P.W.6). On this issue, quarrel had occurred between
brothers of the complainant and appellant No.1 Sakharam alias Bagad and
his friends. On the date of incident 15.8.2002 at about 4-30 p.m., when about
12 years old complainant Sunil Kumar (P.W.6) was at his house in village:
Chhota Jagpura with his parents and brothers, then appellant No.1 Sakharam
alias Bagad and appellant No.2 Sukhlal each having tangia, appellants Madhu
-and Bhaulal each having an iron rod, appellant Somaji armed with axe and
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other appellants Baton, Sobhelal and Shivlal each having a stick in his hand
came before the house of complainant and after giving abuses called the
complainant's brothers to come out and appellants were saying that today
you will be disposed of. Thereafter, complainant's mother Chandrakala and
brothers Surendra and Gajendra came out from their house to pacify the
" appellants, thereafterall appellants started beating of Chandrakala, Surendra
and Gajendra with their arms. After hearing crying of injured, complamant'

father Sukhlal came out from his house and after looking the beating of
Chandrakala, Gajendra and Surendra on the spot started running towards the
‘hill, then all appellants chased him and surrounded Sukhlal and gave heavy
beating by iron rods, stick and other arms and the appellants killed above
. mentioned four members of complainant's family. Complainant Sunil Kumar
had seen the incident when he was near a tree of mango, but after seeing the
incident, he was much frightened and thus after running had entered into his
house and got himself hidden in inner room of his house and after much time,
he came out from the house, then saw that his mother, father and two brothers
. ‘have died, but being frightened, he got hidden in the house. On next morning,
i when his sister-in-law Shakuntala (P.W.11-wife of deceased Surendra) met
him, then complainant informed her about the incident.

3. The Sarpanch of Gram Jagpura, Thankar Singh (P-W.10) and village
Kotwar Devanand (P.W.7) after seeing dead bodies at 10.00 P.M. on spot
informed at police station Bharveli in the mid-night that in above mentioned
village, dead-bodies of Sukhlal, his wife and his two sons are lying in heavily
injured conditions in front of their house and they suspected that unknown
persons have committed the incident. Their information was registered at-
roznamcha sanha no.523 (Ex.P.47-A) on 16.8.2002 at 2-05 a.m. (mid-night).
The relating S.H.O., Bharveli Ashish Singh Pawar (P.W.14) intimated the
Police Superintendent about the incident and as the area being naxalites
affected and due to heavy rain in the mid-night, on the next morning, the
received information was confirmed. The S.H.O. of Police Station Bharveli
Ashish Singh Pawar (P.W.14), thereafter reached with police force to the
spot early in the morning on 16.8.2002. Four dead-bodies were lying in front
ofthe house of the deceased persons. Within some time, small boy complainant
Sunil Kumar and his sister-in-law (bhabhi) Shakuntala Bai came to him. Sunil
Kumar intimated him about the incident, which was recorded by the A.S.H.O.

" - inthe form of dehati nalishi (Ex.P.36), which was sent to police station Bharveli

for registration of crime. In presence of complainant, Ashish Singh (P.W.14)
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prepared a spot map (Ex.P.6) and took photographs of the scene of occurrence .
by government photographer and also got videography. The above mentioned
investigator prepared different inquest memos (Ex.P-1 to Ex.P-4) separately
in relation to each deceased. He also seized differently blood stained soil
nearer to each dead-body and prepared seizure memos (Ex.P-9 to Ex.P-12)
and by separate applications (Ex.P-48 to Ex.P-51), all the four dead-bodies
were sent to District Hospital, Balaghat for post-mortem.

"4, Dr.G.R.Brahma (P.W.4) on 16.8.2002 in above mentioned hospital -
conducted autopsy of these dead-bodies and recorded post-mortem reports
(Ex.P.31 to Ex.P.34) about deceased Surendra, Chandrakala, Gaj endra and
Sukhlal respectively.

5. Investigator Ashish Singh Pawar (P.W.14) on 17.8.2002 after receiving
four sealed packets from the district hospital, Balaghat prepared seizure memos
(Ex.P.14 and Ex.P.15). On 18.8.2002, appellants Shivlal and Bhaulal were
arrested and on disclosure statement (Ex.P.46) of Shivlal and on the basis of
this information after seizing relating articles, seizure memo (Ex.P-42) was
prepared. On disclosure statement (Ex.P-44) of appellant Bhaulal, and after
seizing relating articles, seizure memo (Ex.P.45) was prepared. The appellant
Madhu was arrested on 19.8.2002 and on the basis of his disclosure statement
(Ex.P.7), a stick was seized by seizure memo (Ex.P.8). With a draft (Ex.P-52)
prepared in the office of the Police Superintendent, Balaghat, the seized articles
. were sent for chemical analysis to F.S L., Sagar. During i investigation, outline
diagram (Ex.P-35) was got prepared from patwari Méghalal (P.W.5) after
completing investigation, a charge-sheet was filed in the Court of Chief Judicial
Magistrate, Balaghat, who committed the arisen criminal case to the Sessions
Court, Balaghat and arisen Sessions Trial was transferred by the Sessions
Judge to the above mentioned trial Court,

6. Each appellant denied the framed charges by the trial Judge under
Sections 302/149 (on four counts) of the IPC and section 148 of the IPC.
Fourteen prosecution witnesses were examined. It was defence of the
appellants/accused persons before the trial Court that they were falsely
implicated in the case. An additional specific defence was taken by the appellant
No.1 Sakharam alias Bagad that on the date of incident, when he returned
back to his house finishing his labour work, then complainant Sunil had
intimated him that his parents had been killed thereafter he gave food to the
complainant and kept him in the mght at his house and in the next morning, he
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handed over the complainant to the police. Appellant No.1 Sakharam alias
Bagad and appellant No.4 Somaji also took defence under their relating
examination under Section 313 of the Cr.P.C. that previously police officials
were regularly visiting the house of the deceased persons and the deceased
persons were informers of the police, who gave information about activities
of naxalites to the police. A neighbourer of the deceased persons, Kanhaiya
(D.W.1) was examined as defence witness for the accused persons before
the trial Court, who deposed that he had seen that the murders of deceased
were committed by eight to nine unknown persons who were wearing green
coloured dress and having guns, barchhi and bhala. The trial Court after
completing hearings believed on the eye witness account of complainant Sunil
Kumar and evidence of investigator Ashish Singh' Pawar (P.W.14) regarding .
some seizures on previous disclosure statements of some appellants and
convicted and sentenced each appellant as stated hereinabove.

7. Learned counsel for the appellants vehemently contended that the
statement of child witness Sunil Kumar (P.W.6) is substantially contradicted
by his signed dehati nalishi {(Ex.P.36) and placing reliance on the citations of
Mangilal and others Vs. State of M.P. (1990 JLJ 401), Chhakki Vs. State
" of M.P. (1990 1.L.J 772), Ishwar Singh Vs. State of U.P. (AIR 1976 SC
2423), Ram Narayan Vs. State’ of Punjab (AIR 1975 SC 1727) and
Mohinder Singh Vs. State (AIR 1953 SC 514), it has also been contended
that the statement of Sunil Kumar (P.W.6) is contradicted by medical evidence.
in relation to used weapons by some appellants and being a child witness, his
statement could not have been relied on looking to material contradictions
between his statement and his dehati nalishi (Ex.P.36) and material
exaggerations in its Court's statement and material omissions of important
_ facts in his alleged dehati nalishi (Ex.P.36) and his police statement (Ex.D.1).
" It was also argued that as according to F.S.L. report (Ex.P.53), himan blood
was not found on any of the articles allegedly seized from appellants, their
appeal should be allowed.

8. On the other hand, the learned panel lawyer for the respondent/State
had supported the impugned judgment and contended that conduct of the
child complainant Sunil Kumar (P.W.6) was natural and his evidence is totally
supported by his signed dehati nalishi (Ex.P-36) and complainant's presence
at his house could not be doubted, whereas the presence of the comriplainant
is confirmed by the defence witness Kanhaiya (D.W.1).
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9. It is not disputed that all the above mentioned four deceased persons'
death were homicidal. Dr.G.R.Brahma (P.W:4) deposed thiat on 16.8.2002
on conducting post-mortem of the deceased Surendra following external
-injuries were found:-

(1) Abdomen of the deceased was open and intestine,
liver, spleen and both kidneys were missing which mlght havc
been eaten by any animal.

(2) Lacerated wound of size 7 x 2 cms. over nose
horizontally placed under which nasal bone was appearing
broken, maxilla bone was also fractured, both eyes were
entangled in skull cavity and on dissection, it was found that
nasal bone has been broken in parts and some portions of
maxilla bone were dislocated and the _}omts of jaws were also
open. .

(3)  Lacerated wound of size 2.5 cm x 1 cm on left side of
forehead into bone deep.

(4)  Rightclavicle bone was fractured.

-10.  Inthe opinion of doctor, all external injuries of Surendra were ante-
mortem and caused by hard and blunt objects with sufficient force and on
dissection of the dead-body, a laceration of 8 cm. long was found on left
chest wall and ninth and tenth ribs were fractured and there was clotting of
blood and the broken rib had inserted in left part of the heart and thus incised
* wound of'size I x 1 cm. was found on left atrium of heart and some portions
of lungs were found in thoracic cavity and heart was bloodless and there was
100 ce blood collected in thoracic cavity. In opinion of above mentioned
doctor, reason of death of Surendra was assigned as shock because of injuries
to vital orgarisand Surendra had died within a period of 36 to 48 hours before
starting of post mortem. Dr.G.R. Brahma (P.W.4) proved relating post-mortem
report of deceased Surendra as Ex.P-31. -

11. Dr G.R.Brahma (P.W.4) found following external injuries on the dead-
body of deceased Chandrakala:-

(1) A stabbed wound size 3 x 1 cms. on left side of the
abdomen 6 cms. below the umbilicus and on its dissection, it
was found that there was a wound of 1 x 1 ¢m in interior
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portion of the abdomen where blood and food partlcles were

" mixed.
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(2) Right arm was found broken and deformed and on 1ts. :

dissection, it was found that there was, a huge colIeotlon of -

blood.

(3)  There was fracture of right humerus bone in its lower

two third region.

(4)  Lacerated wound size 5 x 3 cms on left ear pinna and

on its dissection, clotting-of blood was found and fracture of
jaw of left mandible was found and fracture of parietal bone
of skull and membrane of brain was also found inferior.

In opinion of Dr.GR.Brahma (RW.4),_ all the i injuries of Chandrakala
were ante-mortem and caused by hard and blunt and pointed weapons and
" reason of her death was assigned shock due to injuries to vital organs. She
had died within 36-48 hours before starting of her post-mortem.

Chandrakala as Ex.P-32.

13.

+ . Dr.GR.Brahma (P.W.4) proved post mortem report in relat1on to deceased

According to evidence of Dr.G.R.Brahma (P.W.4) on dead-bod_y-of
deceased Gajendra, followmg mJunes were found:- -

()  An 1n01sed wound of size 10x7 cms, over head was
obliquely placed where internal fracture was present and there
was laceration over membrane of the brain and brain was
oozing out and right parietal bone was fractured.

(2)  Lacerated wound of size 4 x 2 ¢ms. over ]eft eyebrow

into bone deep ‘ .

(3) Lacerated wound of size 2 x 1 cm. above the left
eyebrow into bone deep.

4) Incised and stabbed_ Wound of size 4 x. 1 cmon left

_side of the umbilicus and on dissection of abdomen, it was

found that below stabbed wound, blood was clotted due to

which a loop of the intestine had come out, over its one third A

. portion, there was perforation. . -
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14.  Inopinion of Dr.G.R.Brahma (P:W.4), all the injuries of Gajendra
were ante-mortem and were caused by different hard, cutting and pointed
weapons with sufficient force and in his opinion, Gajendra had died within 36
to 48 hours before starting of the post-mortem of his dead-body due to arisen
shock because of the injuries to vital organs. Dr.G.R.Brahma (P.W.4) proved
~ post mortem report in relation to deceased Gajendra as Ex.P-33.

15.  Onthe same date, Dr.GR.Brahma (P.W.4) found following injuries on
the dead-body of Sukhial:-

(1)  Lacerated wound of size 6 x 4 cms, just above the
right pinna of ear with crushing of pinna and depressing
underline of skull bone in an area of 10 x 10 cms.

(2)  Rightarm was deformed and on its dissection, large
haematoma (blood collection) was found beneath the deformity
site and there was fracture in the shaft bone and humerus bone.

(3)  Left arm was deformed and on its dissection, large-
haematoma (blood collection) was found beneath the deformity
site and there was fracture in upper 2/3rd portion of humerus
bone.

16.  InDr.GR.Brahma's opinion, all the injuries of deceased Sukhram were
ante-mortem and on its dissection below external injury found near right ear,
there was a large haematoma and beneath it, parietal bone was fractured and
brain membrane was having lacerated, through which membrane was oozing
and on further dissection, fracture was found at the joint of right mandible and
jaw. In his opinion, injuries of Sukhlal were caused by different hard, sharp
and blunt object with sufficient force and in his opinion, Sukhlal had died
within a period of 36-48 hours before starting of his post-mortem.
Dr.G.R.Brahma (P.W.4) also proved his post-mortem report as Ex.P.34.

17.  Itisclear from the medical evidence of Dr.G.R.Brahma (P.W.4) that
all the four deceased persons' death was homicidal and this fact has not been
challenged by the appellants’ learned counsel. It would be sigm'ﬁcfant to mention
here that except Sunil Kumar (P.W.6), Dr.G.R.Brahma (P.W.4), constable
Jitendra (P.W.2) patwari Meghalal (P.W.5), head-constable Indra Kumar
(P.W.9) and investigator Ashish Singh Pawar (P.W.14), all other prosecution
witnesses were declared hostile by the prosecution.
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18.  Sunil Kumar (P.W.6) stated before Court that he knew all the
appellants. Sunil had also deposed that on 15.8.2002, he was at his home at
about 4.00 p.m., then appellant Bagad alias Sakharam was abusing, then his
brother Gajendra, after im his younger brother Surendra and Chandrakala
‘went, then all the accused persons after running started beating of his brothers
and mother and appellants had beaten them by rods, sticks and tangia and at
.that time, his father was returning to the house after answering the call of
nature, then his father was also beaten by, the appellants by rods and in the-
result of beating by the appellants, his parents and brothers had died, then the
appellants chased him, but he got hidden behind his house and after much
searching by the appellants, he could not be traced out by the appellants, then
the appellants went away. Sunil Kumar (P.W,6) had deposed that he stayed
in his house in the whole night and in the morning, police came to village with
mukamdam (Patel) and dead-bodies were taken by the police through vehicles
to Balaghat. Sunil Kumar (P.W.6) deposed that one month prior to the incident,
their dog barked on the accused Bagad, theh appellant Bagad alias Sakharam
had cut all the four legs of their dog and thereafter their dog died and due to
this, the quarrel had started and on the date of incident, he lodged 4 report to
the police and after hearing Dehati Nalishi (Ex.P.36), he admitted that such
report was lodged by him and he proved his signature also on it and also
proved his signatures on spot map (Ex.P.5) prepared by the investigator and
an another outline map (Ex.P.35) prepared by patwari. Sunil Kumar (P.W.6)
deposed in cross-examination (para 4) that Kanhaiya (D.W.1) was also seeing

“the incident and at the time of incident, he had seen barchhi in hand of accused
Shobhelal. -~

- 19.  The wife of deceased Surendra, Shakuntala Bai (P.W.11) deposed
that on the date of incident, she had gone for her labour work to the place of
relating farmer and after completing the duty hours at about 6:00 p.m. when
she was returning to her house, in the way she was intimated that her all family

- members have been killed and shé was advised not to return to her house,
then she went to the house of mukadam Bhitwanlal (P.W.1) of village Manjara
and in the whole night she stayed there and on this point, her evidence is
supported by Bhuwanlal (P.W.1). Mahendra Katre (P,W.8) supported her
evidence and deposed that on the date of incident, in the night at about 8.30
p.m., widowed wife of one young man intimated him after reaching to his
house that four persons have been killed at her house. Mahendra Katre (P.W.8)
deposed that in the same night, he reached to village Jagpura and saw the
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dead-bodies and thereafter sent information to the sarpanch and thereafter
sent sarpanch to the relating police station.

20.  Shakuntala (P.W.11) and Mahendra (P.W.8) deposed that in next
morning at 8.00 a.m., Sunil (P.W.6) met them, but Sunil did not tell them
anything about the incident. Much emphasis has been given by the learned
counse] for the appellants on the deposition of Shakuntala Bai (P.W.11), who
was declared hostile by the prosecution on the ground that even the widowed
wife of murdered elder brother of complainant had not supported the statement
of Sunil Kumar (P.W.6) -

21.  After considering the total statement of Sunil Kumar (P.W.6), whose
statement was recorded by the learned trial Court without administering the
oath to him, it is clear that his statement is having material contradictions and
inconsistencies on points that at the time of beginning of incident where his
father was, wherefrom his father came to scene of occurrence, after seeing
the incident, where complainant had hidden himself and whether the appellants
have chased him or not and after the incident, where he remained in the whole
night till coming of the police in next morrung and on the point of weapon used
by accused Shobhelal. :

22.  Inreference to a child witness, it has been observed by a Division
Bench of this Court in case of Tulsi and others Vs. State of M. P, [2008 (1)
M.P.L.J. (Cri.) 676] as follows:-

""8.  'InAbbas Ali Shah Vs. Emperor reported in AIR 1933
Lahore 667, it has been observed that Children are a most
untrustworthy class of witnesses, for, when of a tender age
they often mistake dreams for reality, repeat glibly as of their
own knowledge what they have heard from others, and are
greatly influenced by fear of punishment; by hope of reward,
and by desire of notoriety. When considering the evidence of
child witnesses, these observations should not be lost sight of,
although each case would depend upon its particular facts.and
circumstances. Similar observations have been made in Arun
Lal Israel Vs. State, AIR 1955 TC 6."

23.  In the case of Suraj Mal Vs. State (Delhi Administration) (AIR
1979 SC 1408), the Apex Court said in para 2 that:
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"Para 2.......... It is well settled that where witnesses make
two inconsistent statements in their evidence either at one stage
or at two stages, the testimony of such witnesses becomes
unreliable and unworthy of credence and in the absence of
special circumstances, no conviction can be based on the
evidence of such witnesses." '

24.  Similarly in the case of State of U.P. Vs. Naresh [2012 (1)M.P.L.J.
(Crl.) (SC) 19], it has been observed in para 25 as follows:-

"25. Inallcriminal cases, normal dlscrepanc1es are bound
‘to occur in the depositions of witnesses due to normal errors-
of observation, namely, errors of memory due to lapse of time
or due to mental disposition such as shock and horror at the
time of occurrence. Where the omissions amount to a
contradiction, creating a serious doubt about the truthfulness
of the witness and other witnesses also make material
improvement while deposing in the Court, such evidence
cannot be safe to rely upon. However, minor contradictions,
inconsistencies, embellishments or improvements on trivial
matters which do not affect the core of the prosecution case,
should not be made a ground on which the evidence can be
rejected in its entirety. The Court has to form its opinion about
the credibility of the witness and record a finding as to whether
" - his deposition inspires confidence. "Exaggerations perse do -
not render the evidence brittle. But it can be one of the factors
to-test credibility of the prosecution version, when the entire
evidence is put in a crucible for being tested on the touchstone
of credibility." Therefore, mere marginal variations in the
statements of a witness cannot be dubbed as improvements
as the same may be elaborations of the statement made by the
witness earlier. The omissions which amount to contradictions
in material particulars i’e. go fo the root of the case/materially
affect the trial or core of the prosecuti(_)ri's case, render the
_ testimony of the witness liable to be discredited. [Vide: State
" Represented by Inspector of Police Vs. Saravanan and anr.,
. ATR 2009 SC 152; Arumugam Vs. State, AIR 2009 SC 331;
_ Mahendra -Pratap Singh Vs. State of U.P,, (20'09) 11 SCC
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. 334; and Dr.Sunil Kumar Sambhudayal Gupta and ors. Vs.
State of Maharashtra, JT 2010 (12) SC 287]."

25.  Itappears that on each material point, Sunil Kumar's (P.W.6) statement
given in Court is self-contradictory. His age at the time of recording of Court's
statement is shown to be 12 years. Sunil Kumar (P.W.6) stated in examination-
in-chief that the appellants assaulted his family members by rods, sticks and _
tangias whereas in his signed dehati nalishi (Ex.P.36), it was mentioned by him
that appellants Sakharam alias Bagad and Sukhlal were having tangias,
appellants Madhu and Bhaolal each was having an axe and three appellants
Baton, Shobhelal (now deceased) and Shivial were having sticks (lathis), but
in cross-examination (para 14), he stated that accused Shobhelal was having
a barchhi and this fact was mentioned by him in his dehati nalishi report and
police statement. but this fact is missing in his dehati nalishi (Ex.P.36) and
police statement (Ex.D.1). Dr. GR.Brahma (P.W.4) who conducted autopsy
of all the four deceased persons deposed in his cross-examination (para 26)
that two deceased persons Chandrakala and Gajendra each was having a
stabbed wound, and these stabbed wounds would have been caused by some
sharp edged and pointed weapons and these stabbed wounds could not be-
caused by an axe. Thus, it appears that to explain these stabbed wounds, _
Sunil Kumar (P.W.6) for the first time stated in Court that accused Shobhelal
was having a barchhi, which is a pointed as well as sharp edged weapon.
Thus, it appears that Sunil Kumar (P.W.6) has modified prosecution story in
his Court's statement to be analogous to medical evidence to explain these
stabbed wounds, Dr.G.R.Bramh (P.W.4) clearly stated in cross-examination
that two deceased persons Sukhlal and Surendra were not having any injury
‘caused by sharp edged and pointed weapon. -

26.  Sunil Kumar (P.W.6)'in his Court's statement made improvements
regarding reasons of the enmity of his deceased brothers with the appellants.
In his dehati nalishi (Ex.P.36), it was mentioned that before some days from
the date of incident, appellant no.1 Bagad alias Sakharam and his friends
have killed their dog and due to this reason, there was quarrel among his
brothers and appellant Bagad and his friends. But in Court's statement, in
para 15, Sunil Kumar (P.W.6) stated that since before the incident, all appellants
were throwing stones over his house and due to this reason, there was previous
enmity. Contrary to dehati nalishi (Ex.P.36) Sunil Kumar (P.W.6) stated before
Courtin para 3 that about one month prior to the incident, their dog barked
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on appellant No.1 Sakharam alias Bagad and appellant Bagad had severed
all the legs of their dog and hence their dog had died and this was only reason
. of enmity. Contrary to dehati nalishi (Ex.P.36), Sunil Kumar (P.W.6) stated in
Court that at the time of incident, the appellants had chased him, but after
running he had hidden behind his house and thereafter the appellants made
search for a long time, but he could not be traced out, thereafter the appeliants.
went away whereas in dehati nalishi (Ex.P.36) he had mentioned that at the
time of incident, he had after running hidden himself in a inner room of his
house because he was much frlghtened

27.  Contrary to dehatl nalishi (Ex.P.36), Suml Kumar (P.W.6) stated in
i Court (para 13) that appellants have entered into his house to search him. If
" in consonance with his dehati nalishi (Ex.P.36), Sunil Kumar (P.W.6) had
hidden himselfin his house just after the incident, then the appellafits would
have easily found him. Thus, it is clear that Sunil Kumar (P.W.6) had made
substantial changes in prosecution story at the time of his court's statemerit
and thus has made the facts mentioned in dehati nalishi most suspicious. In
cross-examination (para 13), he clearly stated that if facts are recorded in his
dehati nalishi and police statement that after some time from the incident, he
had come out from his hosue and then found that his parents and both brothers
have died, then these facts are totally wrong and he had not mentioned these
facts. Sunil Kumar (P.W.6) deposed in para 14 that his parents, brothers and
he himself had shouted at the time of the incident, but nobody came to save
the deceased persons and their neighbourer Kanhalya (D.W.1) was also seeing
the incident and all these facts Were stated by him to the police, but all these
facts are totally mlssmg in his dehati nalishi (Ex.P. 36) and police statement
(Ex.D.1). In dehati nalishi and police statement he stated that he remained in
village after the incident, but he stated before the Court that he remained in
his house in whole night, because if he would have come out from his house
then the appellants would have killed him also. It is clear that Sunil Kumar
(P W.6) is not stable on any material fact and there are material improvement
in his Court's statement in comparison to his dehati nalishi (Ex.P.36) and pohce
statement (Ex.D.1). . .

It

28. " Ttisclear from the ewdence of the mvest1gator Ashish Smgh Pawar
(P.W.14) and partlcularly from the map (Ex,P/35) prepared by patwari
"Meghalal (P.W. 5) that j just behind the house of murdered Sukhlal and Sunil
Kumar (P W.6), there are so ‘many houses situated behmd it, thus the statement
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of Sunil Kumar (P.W.6) that after chasing by the appellants, he had hidden
behind his house at about 4.30 P.M. appears to be impossible. The unlawful
assembly of murderers, who had killed both of his parents and two elder
brothers would not have left him alive. Sunil Kumar's modified version that he
“had hidden behind his house is totally falsified by his signed dehati nalishi
(Ex.P.36) and police statement (Ex.D.1). Looking to all these material
contradictions, improvements and omissions, the statement of Sunll Kumar
(P.W.6) does not appear to be trustworthy. -

29.  The learned trial Judge has commented that the contradictions,
inconsistencies and improvemerts regarding Court's statement of Sunil Kurnar
(P.W.6) are not material, but it is clear that contradictions, inconsistencies and
improvements appearing in his Court's statement in comparison to dehati nalishi
and police statement could not be termed as trivial, minor or unimportant. It
has been held by the Apex Court in the case of Bhagwan Singh and others
Vs. State of M.P. [2003 (2) J.L.J. 129].that where the statement of only eye
witness, a child is full of infirmities, his sole testimony cannot be relied upon
without adequate corroboration. In the saine citation, in para 21 of Apex
Court's dgcisipn; it has been observed as follows:-

"21. .....Mere presence of children in the house at the time of
the incidenit is no assurance to the case of the prosecution that
the eldest child got up on hearing hue and cries and had not
only seen the incident but also identified the accused. Taking

" into consideration child psychology, a lad of 6 years having
seen his mother being assaulted would have raised a cry; but
he says that he quietly went back to sleep. It is most unnatural
even for a child that after witnessing his mother being assaulted
by known persons, he would go back to sleep to wake up late
in the morning only when his maternal uncle Agyaram came to
fetch him and his younger brothers to his father's village
Alampur." '

30. Inthe casein hand, Sunil Kumar (P.W.6) stated in examination-in-
chief that he remained in whole night alone in his house and at next momning,
poliée’came to village alongwith mukadam, then he peeped from the house
and after seeing the police came out of his house at about 7.00 A.M. Sunil’
Kumar (P.W.6) stated in cross-examination (para 18) that after the incident in
the night, sarpanch, kotwar and 10-12 persons of his village had come on
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scene of occurrence and had seen all the four dead-bodies and these persons
had also come to his house, but they could not see him and at that time, he did
not think about intimating sarpanch and other persons regardlng accused
persons, whereas according to his dehati nalishi (Ex.P.36) and police statement
(Ex.D.1), after the incident, he remained in the village. Thus, it is clear that
Sunil's conduct and statement in light of the above mentioned citations totally
.appears to be unbelievable and unnatural also.

31.  ltiswell established that deposition of a witness who has made material
improvement in his version is wholly unsafe unless it is corroborated by some
other independent-evidence that may probablize his version. Sunil Kumar
(P.W.6) had clearly stated in his cross-examination that all the facts which he
stated in Court's statement previously he had stated to the police, but above
mentioned improvements are totally missing in his dehati nalishi (Ex.P.36) and
police statement (Ex.D.1). On the point when such omissions amount to
contradictions, in the case of Sampat Kumar Vs. Inspector of Police,
Krishnagiri [2012 (2) M.P.L.J. (Crl.) 77} in para 9, it has been observed as
under:-

"9, In Narayan Chetanram Chaudhary and anr. Vs. State
of Maharashtra, AIR 2000-SC 3352, this Court held that while
discrepancies in the testimony of a witness which may be caused
by memory lapses were acceptable, contradictions in the
testimony were not. This Court observed:

"Only such omissions which amount to contradiction
in material particulars can be used to discredit the
testimony of the witness. The omission in the police
statement by itself would not necessarily render the
testimony of witness unreliable. When the version given
by the witness in the Court is different in material
particulars from that disclosed in his earlier statements,
the case of the prosecution become doubtful and not
otherwise. Minor contradictions are bound to appear
in the statements of truthful witnesses as memory-
sometimes plays false and the sense of obsérvation
differ from person to person."

32, Sunil Kumar's (P.W.6) staternent is not supportcd by his sister-in-law
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Shakuntala Bai (P.W.11), who was declared hostile. According to evidence
of Shakuntala Bai (P.W.11), Bhuwanlal (P.W.1) resident of village Chhota
Jagpura, Shakuntala Bai (P.W.11) after the incident stayed in the house of
Bhuwanlal (P.W.1) who was resident of village Manjara because Bhuwanlal
(P.W.1) was mukadam (Patel) of village at relevant time. Shakuntala Bai
(P.-W.11) deposed that on next morning, his little devar Sunil came with police
to the house of mukadam of village Manjara and Sunil intimated her that his
father and others were killed by anyone but Sunil (P.W.6) had not disclosed
the names of murderers. Shakuntala Bai (P.W.11) was declared hostile by the
prosecution, but even the departmental witness Sub-Inspector and Investigator
Ashish Singh Pawar (P.W.14), who also recorded dehati nalishi (Ex.P.3 6) of
Sunil Kumar (P.W.6) had not supported the statement of Sunil Kumar (P.W.6)
on material points. Ashish Singh Pawar (P, W.14) deposed that in the mid-
night of 15th and 16th August, 2002, village Jagpura sarpanch Jhankar Singh
and Kotwar Devanand after reaching to police station Bharveli intimated that
the dead-bodies of residents of his village Sukhlal and his wife and both of
their sons are lying in front of their house, but as in the night, there was heavily

. raining and the area was naxalite affected, received intimation was verified in

next morning at about 6.00 A.M. through police constable Jai Dayal and after
verification, he had reached to the scene of occurrence, where he found that
in a open ground in front of house of the deceased persons, four dead-bodies
were lying and within few minutes, little boy of deceaseds’ family, Sunil and
Shakuntala Bai came nearer to him and the boy got lodged dehati nalishi
(Ex.P.36), but Ashish Singh Pawar (P.W.,14) clearly deposed in his cross-
examination (para 25) that Sunil did not state to him that at the time of the
incident, his father was retumning after answering the call of nature and similarly
Sunil (P.W.6) had not stated in his report and police statement that the appellants
had chased him and Sunil did not state that the appellants lad entered into his
house to search him and similarly Sunil did not disclose the facts that at the
time of incident, his parents and he had cried and Kanhaiya had witnessed the
incident and he had seen the barchhi in the hand of accused Shobhelal. Ashish
Singh Pawar (P.W.14) clearly deposed in para 25 that he did not ask to Sunil
that in the night where he remained and Sunil also did not state that wheré he
stayed in the night. Investigator Ashish Singh Pawar (P.W.14) clearly stated
that he did not know that wherefrom Sunil and Shakuntala had come to the
scene of occurrence in next morning after his reaching there, but Sunil and
.~ Shakuntala had not come out from their house. Thus, it is clear that Sunil
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Kumar's Court's statement is even not supported by the departmental
:prosecution witness Ashish Singh Pawar (P.W.14) on material points.

33.  Inthelight of citations of dnimireddy Venkataramana and others

Vs. Public Prosecutor [2008 (2) MPLJ (Crl.) 561 (SC)], Badri Vs. State

of Rajasthan (AIR 1976 SC 560 and Muluwa and others Vs. State of
MP (AIR 1976 SC 989), itis clear that the solitary statement of child witness

Sunil Kumar (P.W.6) does not inspire confidence because of above mentioned

material contradictions, inconsistencies, omissions and improvements and in
absence of corroboration even of departmental prosecution witness

investigator. In our considered opinion, the learned trial Court had erred in
‘believing Sunil Kumar's (P.W.6) statement and overlooking of above mentioned

* infinmities, :

34, Inthe light of the above referred citations, it is clear that the statement
of child witness Sunil Kumar (P.W.6) does not appear to be of category of -
wholly reliable and thus in our considered opinion, the learned trial J udge

jerred in placing reliance on his such infirm, exaggerated, self-contradictory

Jand his unnatural statement, ) ‘

35.  Inrelation to recovery of various weapons and blood stained clothes
of some of the appellants, on the basis of previous disclosure statemernts of
relating appellants, the evidence of investi gator Ashish Singh Pawar (P.W.14)
is not corroborated by relating panch witnesses of relating disclosure,
statements and seizure memo Bhuwanlal (P.W.1), Hemlal (P.W.3), Lalchand
(P.W.12) and Beniram (P.W.13). All these hostile declared panch witnesses
deposed that none of the appellants gave any previous information regarding
any recovery and in their presence, nothing was seized by the police from any
of the appellants. Thus, it is clear that on the point of relating recovery from
* Ithe appellants, the solitary evidence of I.0. Ashish Singh Pawar (P.W.14) is
» not supported by any of the panch witnésses. According to evidence of 1.0,
Ashish Singh Pawar (P.W. 14), an axe was'seized from appellant Somaji, a
, stick was seized from appellant Baton, a tangia was seized from appellant
' Sukhlal, another tangia and blood stained shirt were seized from appellant
Sakharam alias Bagad, an iron rod was seizedfrom appellant Bhaulal, a stick
was seized from appellant Shivlal, another iron rod was seized from appellant
Madhu and a stick was also seized from accused Shobhelal, but according to
F.5.L. report (Ex.P.53) blood was not found on any of the seized sticks, iron
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rods, axe and two tangias. According to evidence of Dr.GR.Brahma (P.W.4),

the recovered weapons of offence were not sent to him during investigation.

Thus, as blood was not found on any of the seized weapons, the evidence of
investigator Ashish Singh Pawar (P.W.14) relating to recovery of these articles

is unable to establish any connection between relating appellants and the

incident. Thus, the circumstantial evidence in the formdf above mentioned

seizure is inconclusive and immaterial in the case in hand. According to F.S.L.

report, blood was found on allegedly seized shirt of appellant Sakbaram alias

Bagad, but its source could not be identified in the laboratory. Thus, it is not

clear that the blood found on the shirt of appellant Sakharam alias Bagad was

human blood or blood from any other source as according to statement of
Sunil Kumar (P.W.6), before some days from the incident, appellant No.1

Sakharam alias Bagad had severed all the legs of their dog and thereafter,
killed their dog. Thus, allegedly found blood on the shirt could not establish

any connection between the relating appellant Sakharam alias Bagad and the

incident as blood source and its group could not be identified in the laboratory.

Thus, it is clear that the circumstantial evidence relating to various seizures

was unable to establish any link between any of the appellants and the incident

of murder of four above mentioned persons.

36.  Inthelight of the above mentioned referred citations, in our considered
opinion, the learned trial Court erred in placing reliance on totally infirm, self-
contradictory, exaggerated and unnatural evidence of child witness Sunil Kumar
(P.W.6) and thereby convicting and sentencing all the appellants. In our
considered opinion, no any framed charge was proved beyond reasonable
doubt against any of the appellants. Thus, the appeal filed by the appellants is
worthy of acceptance.

37. Intheresult, the appeal filed by the appellants is allowed and their
conviction and sentences recorded by the learned trial Court are set aside
and each present appellant is acquitted from the offences punishable under
Section 302/149 (on four counts) of the IPC and Section 148 of the IPC. All
the appellants who are serving their sentences as imposed by the trial Court
are directed to be released forthwith, if not wanted in any other case. A copy
of this judgment be immediately sent to the concerned Jail Superintendent.

Appeal allowed.
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APPELLATE CRIMINAL
Before Mr. Justice Hemant Gupta, Chief Justice &
Mr. Justice C. V. Sirpurkar
Cr A.No. 1085/2004 (Jabalpur) demded on 13 July, 2017

MAHESH SONI ...Appellant
Vs. ) .
STATE OF M.P. ' ...Respondent

Penal Code (45 of 1860), Section 302 — Murder — Conviction —
Circumstantial Evidence — Plea of Alibi — Burden of Proof — Appellant
+ convicted for murder of his wife — Held — Wife was killed by throttling
. durmg night hours in bed room of their house when she was sleeping
alongwith her husband (appellant) and minor chlldren—-Appellant found
missing in morning — Crime committed within four corners of house ~
Burden of explaining the circumstances wherein deceased was throttled
to death was on appellant but he utterly failed to discharge the same —
i No evidence in defence to establish plea of alibi — Deposition of

appellant’s son that appellant was at home at the night of incident, was
‘not challenged in cross-examination — Trial Court rightly convicted the
appellant—Appeal dismissed. : (Paras 19,22 & 25)
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Abhay Raj Singh Gaharwar, as amicus curiae for the appellant.
Manjeet P.S. Chuckal, P.L. for the respondent/State.

JUDGMENT

The Judgment of the Court was delivered by :
C.V. SIRPURKAR, J. :- This criminal appeal against conviction under Section
374 (2) of the Cr.P.C. filed on behalf of the appellant/accused Mahesh Soni is
directed against the judgment dated 29.05.2004 passed by the 2nd Additional
Sessions Judge, Satna in Sessions Trial No. 264/2003, whereby accused/
appellant Mahesh Soni was convicted under Section 302 of the LP.C. for
committing murder of his wife Kanchan Bai and was sentenced to undergo life
imprisonment and pay a fine in the sum of Rs.1,000/-. In default of payment
of fine, he was directed to undergo rigorous imprisonment for a further period
of six months.

2(a). The prosecution case before the trial Court may briefly be stated thus.
Accused Mahesh Soni was husband of the deceased Kanchan Bai. They had

four children. The eldest son Manoj (PW-3) was aged 13 years. The couple’

had three daughters including Roshni (PW-1), who was 11 years old. Suresh’
(PW-7) is brother of the accused Mahesh. At night on 25.02.2003; accused
Mahesh had slept along with Kanchan Bai in the bedroom of their house
along with his three daughters including Roshni (PW-1). Son Manoj (PW-3)
slept in the Varanda. At around 04:15 a.m. on 26.02.2003, daughter Priyanka
was calling her mother as she wanted to go to the bathroom; however, deceased
Kanchan did not respond; whereon, she called her brother Manoj. When
Manoj woke up, he found that his father was not in the room and his mother
was lying dead. There were throttling marks on her throat. Meanwhile, at
around 04:00 a.m., accused Mahesh went to his brother Suresh, who lived in
adjacent part of the house and told him that he had killed his wife and he was
going. He asked Suresh to look after his children. Thereafter, Suresh called
Heeralal and told him about the matter. They went together to Sarpanch,
Shivpal Singh (PW-4) and reported the matter to him. Sarpanch advised them
to lodge the FIR in the police station. Suresh and Heeralal returned and went
inside the accused Mahesh’s room and saw that the deceased Kanchan was
lying dead in the room. Villagers searched accused and he was found sitting
under a Peepal Tree in the Village; therefore, he was caught. Thereafter, Suresh
went with Brijraj Singh by Jeep to Police Station. Brijraj Singh lodged the
first information report at about 08:30 a:m.
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2(b). During post-mortem examination, it was found that the deceased had

" died as aresult of asphyxia caused by throttling. During investigation, six
stubs of Bidi, six burnt matchsticks and three pieces of broken bangles were
seized from the spot. A match box and nine Bidis were seized from the right
hand side pocket of the shirt of the accused appellant upon his arrest,

3. The trial Court held on the basis of the statements of the prosecution
" witnesses that on the eve of the incident, the accused had slept along with his
" daughters and wife in the same room. Next morning, he was found missing
and his wife was found dead having been throttled. Six stubs of smoked bidis
and six burnt matchsticks were recovered from the spot. Bidis and Match
, box of the same make were recovered from the possession of the appellant
+ accused at the time of the arrest; therefore, it was proved beyond reasonable
" doubt that in the night of the incident, the accused had slept with his wife and
children. Therefore, the burden was upon the accused to explain the
circumstance in which his wife had died; however, the accused had failed to
discharge that burden; therefore, he was conv1cted under Section 302 of the
, LP.C. for havmg throttled his wife to death.

4. The trial Court framed the charge under Section 302 of the I.P.C..

" Accused abjured the guilt and claimed to be tried. In the examination under
Section 313 of the' Cr.P.C., he had claimed that on the date of the incident, he
had gone to attend Klrtan and had stayed there overnight. He had returned
home only the next evening to discover that his wife had died. The witnesses
have falsely implicated him due to partisan politics in the village.

5. The findings recorded by the trial Court have been challenged before
us by the learned counsel for the appellant on the grounds that most of the
prosecution witnesses have turned hostile. The conclusion of the trial Court

. that the appellant was present with the deceased in the night of the incident, is
based upon sketchy and unreliable evidence; therefore, there was no burden
upon the appellant to explain the circumstances wherein, the deceased had -

. died. It has also been contended that the police had failed to lift the fingers
" print from the throat of the deceased,; therefore, a vital piece of evidence has

- been missed by the Investigating Officer. Moreover, if the appellant had
throttled the deceased and scratch marks and abrasions were found on her
throat, there would surely have been blood in the nails of the appellant;
however, there is no evidence that any such blood was found; therefore, it

- has been argued that the appellant deserves the benefit of doubt.
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6. Learned panel lawyer for the respondent State on the other hand has
supported the impuigned judgment,

7. On perusal of the record and due consideration of the rival contentions,
in our opinion, this criminal appeal against conviction must fail for the reasons

" hereinafter stated:

8. First of all, we shall consider, whether the deceased had died a
homicidal death by asphyxia as a result of throttling. Dr. V.P. Mishra (PW-9),
" who conducted the post-mortem examination on the dead body, found three
contusions and other marks of injury spread between median parts of the
neck and up to 2 c.ms. below ears. Thus, there was marks, which appeared
to have been created by thumb and fingers, Between contusions, there were
several abrasions under the préssure marks. At many places, muscles had
ruptured and blood clots were present. In the opinion of the doctor, the
deceased had died of asphyxia as a result of throttling. No serious challenge
has been mounted with regard to aforesaid finding; therefore, the prosecution
has succeeded in proving beyond reasonable doubt that the deceased had
died a homicidal death as a result of asphyxia caused by throttling.

*

9. Now the question that arises for consideration is whether the deceased
was throttled to death by the-appellant?

10.  There is no eye witness to the incident. The prosecution case is based .

entirely upon circumstantial evidence and presumption arising from the
circumstances proved. It is not in dispute that Roshni (PW-1) and Manoj
. (PW-3), who are daughter and son respectively of the ill fated couple, were
with their mother on the night of the incident. Suresh, who is brothcr of the
appellant, lived in adjacent part of the same house.

11.  Roshni (PW-1), who is 11 years old daughter of the deceased, has

stated that after taking their meals, they had slept. Her mother had died but
she did not know as to how she had died. Her father did not kill her mother.
When in the moming, she woke up, she found that her mother was lying dead.

. Her father was not at home on the date on which her mother had died. In the
same breath, she has stated that her father was at home that night.

12.  Manoj (PW-3), who is 13 years old son of the deceased, has stated
that on the night of the incident, he was sleeping separately. His mother and
sisters were sleeping together. His father was also sleeping. At about 12:00

.y
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a.m., his sister Priyanka got up to urinate. At that time, he learnt that his -
mother was lying dead and his father was not at home. He did not see any
injury on the person of his mother. He does not ]inow as to who had killed his
mother.

13.  Suresh Soni (PW-7), brother of the appellant has stated that the
incident occurred at about 03:00 a.m. on 26.02.2003; however, nothing
~ happened in his pesence (sic:presence) him. Three children of his brother

Mahesh were crying; therefore, he woke up. He does not as to how Mahesh's
wife had died.

14, Rani (PW-2) has stated that Veeru Soni’s father was shouting loudly;
therefore, she had woken her husband. Her husband went to Veeru’s house.
Her husband Heeralal had gone along with Veeru’s father. She has also stated
that she had told the police that Mahesh Soni had killed his wife.

15.  Heeralal (PW-5) has stated that he had visited the house of the appellant
on hearing commotion at about 03:30 a.m. in the night of the inicident. Several
persons from the nelghbourhood were present there. He saw that the appellant
Mahesh’s wife was lying dead.

16. Investigating Officer, Mohammad Irshad (PW-10) has stated that he -
had seized six stubs of smoked Bidis and six burnt matchsticks from the spot
and had prepared seizure memo (Ex.P/6). He had also seized nine un-smoked
Bidis and one matchbox from the pant pocket of the appellant and had prepared
seizure memo (Ex.P/7).

17."  Inthelight of the aforesaid evidence, the main question that arises for
consideration is whether the appellant was present with his wife and children
at his home in the night of the incident?

18.  Inthistegard, only two witnesses namely Manoj (PW-3) and Roshni
(PW-1) have partly supported the prosecution case. It may be noted here
that Manoj was 13 years old son and Roshni was 11 years old daughter of
the ill fated couple; therefore, their presence on the spot was most natural.

Their presence was also not challenged at any stage by the appellant. For
obvious reasons, they were not inclined to support the prosecution; yet, the
prosecution was able to coax certain information from them. Manoj (PW-3)
has stated that at the night of the incident, his mother and sisters were sleeping
at one place. He was sleeping at a different place and his father was also
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- sleeping, Thus, Manoj has clearly stated that his father was also sleeping in
the house along with himself, his mother and sisters that night. Likewise, Roshni
has at first denied that his father was not at home on the date on which her
mother had died but in the same sentence, she has stated that his father was at
home. Suresh (PW-7), brother of the appellant has turned hostile and has
given no indication as to whether or not the appellant was at his home on the
date of the incident. ' '

19.  Evenif we ignore the statement of Roshni (PW-1) because she blows
hot and cold in the same breath, it is clear that Manoj has unequivocally stated
that his father was at home. This part of his statement has not been challenged
in cross-examination at all. The defence of the appellant has been that he had
gone to attend Kirtan at the night of the incident and returned only the next
evening; however, no such suggestion has been given in the cross-examination
to any of the prosecution witnesses. The appellant has also not adduced any
evidence in defence to establish the plea of alibi taken by him in his examination
under Section 313 of the Cr.P.C. In these circumstances, it stands proved
that the appellant was present at home at the night of the incident along with
his wife deceased Kanchan, three daughters and a son. He was found missing
in the morning. In these circumstances, where the crime was committed within
the four corners of the house, the burden shifts upon the appellant to explain
the circumstances in which his wife was throttled to death; however, the
appellant has adduced no evidence to explain these circumstances.

20.  Instead, he has raised two more grounds. The first ground is that the
Investigating Officer had failed to lift the fingers print from the throat of the
deceased and get it matched with those of the appellant; therefore, a vital link
in the chain circumstance is missing. This argument is baseless because no
finger prints are to be found on the skin of the throat in the case of throttling.
Therefore, this argument is liable to be summarily dismissed.

21.  The second argument is that though six smoked stubs of Bidis and six
burnt matchsticks were found on the spot and a match box and a packet with
nine Bidis was recovered from the person of the appellant. There is nothing to
indicate that both the sets of stubs of Bidis and matchsticks belonged to the
same make or brand. This argument is liable to be accepted because no
investigation was conducted for the purpose of matching the two sets of Bidis
and matchsticks; therefore, there is nothing on record to indicate that both
sets belonged to the same source. However, even if we ignore this
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circumstances, there is enough evidence againét the appellant.

22.  Onthe basis of the statement of the appellant’s Son Manoj, it is proved
beyond reasonable doubt that on the night of the incident, the appellant had
slept in his house with his wife deceased Kanchan, three daughters and a son
and he was found missing the next morning. The dead body of his wife
Kanchan, who had been throttled to death was found in his house along with
his children. No attempt was made to break open the house and no article
was found to be missing. The deceased was a housewife with four children.
The eldest of them being 13 years old. It is inconceivable that she would have
any enmity with someone outside the house. In these circumstances, heavy
burden of explaining the circumstance wherein his wife had died had shifted
upon the appellant but he utterly failed to discharge the same; therefore, the
seeming absence of any motive or absence of evidence regarding blood in
finger nails of the appellant would not derail the prosecution case.

23.  In the case of Trimukh Maruti Kirak Vs State of Maharashtra
(2006) 10 SCC 681 the Supreme Court in respect an offence committed
within four wall of the home has held that:

"15. Where an offence like murder is committed in secrecy inside a
House the initial burden to establish the case would undoubtedly be upon
the prosecution but the nature and amount of evidence to be led by it to
establish the charge cannot be of the same degree as is required in other
cases of circumstantial evidence. The burden would be of a comparatively
lighter character. In view of Section 106 of the Evidence Act there will
be a corresponding burden on the'inmates of the house to give a cogent
explanation as to how the crime was committed. The inmates of the house
cannot get away by simply keeping quiet and offering no explanation on
the supposed premise that the burden to establish its case lies entirely
upon the prosecution and there is no duty at all on an accused to offer
any explanation.”

24.  Likewise in the case of Shambhunath Mehra Vs State of Ajmer,
AIR 1956 (SC) 404, has held that:

11. "This lays down the general rule that in a criminal case the burden -
of proof is on the prosecution and Section 106 is certainly not intended
to relieve it of that duty. On the p‘ontra?y, it is designed to meet certain
exceptional cases in which it would impossible, or at any rate
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disproportionately difficult for the prosecution to establish facts which

are ‘especially’ within the knowledge of the accused and which he could
prove without difficulty or inconvenience. The word 'especially’ stresses

that. It means facts that are pre-eminently or exceptionally within his

knowledge.”

25.  Thus, the trial Court has rightly concluded that the appellant is guilty
of committing murder of his wife Kanchan. Consequently, in our opinion, the
trial Court committed no error in convicting the appellant Mahesh Soni under
Section 302 of the LP.C. As such, no interference is warranted in the impugned
]udgment of conviction.

26.  Consequently, this criminal appeal fails. The impugned judgment
convicting the appellant Mahesh Soni under Section 302 of the I.P.C. and
sentencing him to undergo life imprisonment and to pay a fine in the sum of
Rs.1,000/-, is affirmed.

27.  Forthe able assistance rendered by Shri Abhay Raj Singh Gaharwar,
Advocate to this Court as amicus curiae, we direct the M.P. State Legal
- Services Authority to pay a sum of Rs.5,000/- (Rupees Five thousand) to
the learned amicus curiae as honorarium for defending the appellant in the
present appeal. -

Appeal dismissed.
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APPELLATE CRIMINAL
Before M. Justice S.K. Gangele & Mr. Justice Anurag Shrivastava
Cr.A. No. 407/2003 (Jabalpur) decided on 10 August, 2017

SANJU @ SANJAY © ...Appellant
Vs.
STATE OF M.P. " ...Respondent

(Alongwith Cr.A. No.-516/2003)

A Penal Code (45' of 1860), Sections 302, 302/34, 325 &
325/34 — Common Intention & Pre-meditation — Held — It is a case of
free fight — Appellants did not come on spot together — Every accused
liable for his individual act — No evidence of pre-concert of mind and
that appellants Sanju and Mukesh had common intention or has
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instigated or exhorted the main accused Gopi to kill the deceased —
They have not assaulted the deceased — Sanju only grappled with
deceased and Mukesh has assaulted the complainant whereas Gopi
~ gave knife blows to deceased - Conviction of Gopi u/S 325/34 TPC is
' set aside and is convicted u/S 302 IPC, Mukesh is acquitted u/S 302/34
and.is convicted u/S 325 IPC and Sanju is acquitted for charges u/S
302/34 and 325/34 — Appeal of Sanju allowed - Appeals of Gopi and
 Mukesh partly allowed. (Paras 20 to 25)
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doR — M vF gEw @ A A G
B. Penal Code (45 of 1860), Section 34 — Common Intention
" —Held — It is settled law that common intention can develop during
course of occurrence but there has to be cogent material on the basis
of which Court can arrive at that finding and hold an accused vicariously
liable for the act of other accused u/S 34 IPC, (Para 18)
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Cases referred:
AIR 1999 SC 3830, AIR 2003 SC 1014.

None, for the appellant.
B.D. Singh, G.A. for the respondent/State.
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JUDGMENT

The Judgment of the Court was delivered by :
ANURAG SHRIVASTAVA, J. :- These appeals under Section 374(2) of Cr.P.C.
have been preferred by the appellants/accused persons against the judgment
dated 28.02.2003, passed by learned Additional Sessions J udge, Sihora,
Jabalpur (MP), in 8.T. No.150/2000, whereby the appellants/accused Gopi
has been convicted under Section 302, 325/34 of IPC, Mukesh has been
convicted under Section 302/34 and 325 of IPC and Sanju has been convicted
under Section 302/34, 325/34 and each has been sentenced to undergo RI
for life with fine of Rs.1000/- and also imprisonment for 3 years with fine of
Rs.500/- respectively.

2. The-case of prosecution in brief is that in the Village Bachaiya the
appellant/accused Gopi Lal had developed a kitchen garden on the land on
backyard of hi¢ house. Adjoining of this land, there is the field of deceased
Vijay Kumar. Vijay Kumar claims that the accused Gopi had developed kitchen
garden (Baadij on encroaching upon his land. There were a dispute between -
the parties over this land prior incident. On the date of incident i.e. 13.11.1 999,
the complainant Mathura Prasad @ Gayalal Sharma lodged a report at about
1:30 pm at police station Majholi stating that at about 11:00 am, he was in his
field and his son Vijay Kumar was ploughing his field, adjacent to backyard of
house of accused Gopi by tractor. At the same time, the wife of Vijay Kumar
was coming to the field, when she reached near the Baadi of Gopi, shehad
some hot talks with Munni Bai, the wife of Gopi. Hearing the noise of quarrel,
Vijay Kumar went there to intervene and settle the dispute. Seeing him, the
appellant Sanju @ Sanjay and accused Rajendra Barman came there with
Lathi and caught hold of Vijay Kumar. Thereafter, appellant Gopi armed with
a knife and his son Mukesh armed with Lathi came there-and Gopi deait 2-3
blows of knife on the chest and abdomen of Vijay Kumar. His wife Urmila Bai
tried to save him, she was assaulted by Munni Bai and Ranu, the wife and
daughter of appellant Gopi. Seeing the incident, the complainant Mathura
Prasad @ Gayalal came on the spot to save his son, the appellant Mukesh
inflicted an injury by Lathi on his left hand. Vijay Kumar died on the spot.
After assaulting the complainant and deceased, the appellant and other accused
PErsons ran away.

3. The police recorded FIR Ex.P-9 and Marg intimation Ex.P-10 and
registered the offence against the accused persons. During inquest, the spot
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map Ex.P-7 and panchanama of dead body of deceased Vijay Kumar Ex.P-6
were prepared, the red earth, a case of knife, Lathi were seized vide seizure
memo Ex.P-2 from the spot. Gayalal was medically examined and the dead
body was sent for postmortem. On 17.11.1999, appellant Gopi was taken
ir;td custody and on his memorandum Ex.P-1, a knife was seized vide seizure
memo Ex.P-2. The statements of witnesses were recorded and after usual
investigation, the charge sheet has been filed against the Gopi, Mukesh,
Rajendra, Sanju, Ranu and Munni Bai. The accused Rajendra and Munni Bai
were absconding and Ranu being juvenile, she was tried before Juvenile Court.
The trial of appellants Gopi, Mukesh and Sanju was conducted in ST
No.150/2000. Accused Rajendra was arrested later on and he was tried
separately in ST No.363/2009 and acquitted by the trial Court vide judgement
dated 09.05.2013.

4, The trial Court has framed the charges of offence under Sections 148,
302/149 and 325/149 against the appellants. They abjured guilt and pleaded
innocence. It is pleaded by the appellants that they have been falsely implicated
in this offence. There is property dispute between the parties. They were not
present at the time of incident.

5. The trial Court, on appreciation of evidence, has arrived at the
conclusion that the appellants had formed a common intention to kill the
deceased Vijay Kumar and in furtherance of this, the appellant Gopi has
committed the murder of Vijay Kumar and appeliant Mukesh had assaulted
Gayalal and inflicted grievous injuries. Thus, the trial Court had found
appellants guilty for commission of offence as mentioned hereinabove in paral
and sentenced them.

6. In this appeal, it is argued by the learned counsel for the appellants
that the incident took place inside the Baadi of appellant Gopi. The deceased
Vijay Kumar and his wife came in the Baadi and assaulted the wife and
daughter of appellant. There was no untawful assembly constituted by the
appellant and family members. The trial Court had acquitted the appellants
for the offenee under Sections 148 and 149 of IPC. This shows that the
complainant and wife of deceased are trying to falsely implicate all family
members of the appellant. There are material contradictions and discrepancies
found in the statements of complainant and wife of deceased. There was
previous enmity between the parties, therefore, the statements of above -
witnesses cannot be relied upon without corroboration by independent
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witnesses. No independent witness has corroborated the case of prosecution,
The presence of appellants on the spot is doubtful. The trial Court, on erroneous
appreciation of evidence, has held the appellants guilty. There is no evidence
to show that the appellants have common intention to commit murder of the
deceased. The deceased and his wife were aggressor. In view of the conviction
and sentence inflicted by the trial Court is not sustainable.

7. Learned Panel Lawyer for the State has supported the findings recorded
by the trial Court and submitted that at the time of incident, the appellants
Mukesh and Sanju had caught hold of deceased and appellant Gopi inflicted
fatal injury on abdomren and chest of the deceased by knife. When complainant
tried to save his son, appellant Sanju caused him grievous injury. This shows
the common intention of appellants, The trial Court, on ri ght appreciation of
evidence, has found the appellants guilty for commission of aforesaid offences.
There is no infirmity or error in the findings recorded by the trial Court.
Therefore, the appeal may be dismissed.

8. Considering the rival contentions of the learned counsel for the parties
and on perusal of record, it appears that it is not disputed that the deceased
Vijay Kumar has died of injuries sustained by him at the time of incident. The

_ complainant Mathura Prasad (PW-4) has lodged the report of incident Ex.P-9
soon after the incident at police station Majholi. The police recorded Marg
intimation Ex.P-10 and the inquest has been conducted by SHO J.P. Mishra,
(PW-8). These facts have been established by the evidence of Mathura Prasad
@ Gayalal (PW-4), head constable Kamleshwar (PW-6) and 10 J.P. Mishra
(PW-8). It is also found that after preparing panchnama Ex.P-6.and spot map
Ex.P-7, the IO has sent the dead body for postmortem to government hospital -
Majholi. ' .

9. Dr. 8.S. Thakur (PW-7) deposed that on 13.11.1999 in Primary Health
Center, Majholi, he has performed the postmortem of body of deceased Vijay
Kumar and found following injuries:-

“(1)  Stab wound present at the level of 6th rib left side 1

inch left lateral to sternum margin clear cut. On probing the
wound 6th rib cut completely, margin of lungs also cut and left
ventricle of heart and its membrane cut. The profused blood
present in the thoracic cavity and heart, lungs. The size of
wound 1-1/2x 1/2 inch x deep to the heart.
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(2) - Stabwound present at upper part of abdomen left side
just below coastal margin and 2 inch below the first wound.
Margin of wound is clear cut. On exploration of wound, muscle
is cut omen-tum cut and lower boarder of right lobe of lever
cut through and through abdominal cavity failed with blood
size of wound 1-1/2x 1/2 inch x deep to the lever.

" (3) Incised (stab wound) present at lower side of left chest
7 inches lateral to sternum at the level of 9th rib size 1- 1/2 X
1/2 x 1 inches. "

It is opined by the doctor that the injuries are caused by hard, sharp
and pointed weapon and death is caused due to shock and bleeding are caused
by injuries. The evidence doctor is duly corroborated by postmortem report
Ex.P-16 and time is 24 hours from postmortem. The statement of doctoris .
not challenged in cr_oés-examination by the defence. :

10.  Thus, relying upon the statement of doctor and postmortem report
. Ex.P-16, itis rightly found proved by the trial Court that the deceased Vijay
. Kumar has died of the injuries 1nf11cted to him by hard and sharp object. The
death is homicidal.

11.  Nowthe question arises whether the appellants have formed a common
, intention to kill the deceased and in furtherance of this, the appellant Gopi
had inflicted the fatal injuries on the person of deceased and killed him? In
this regard, the trial Court has relied upon the statement of wife of the deceased
Urmila Bai (PW-3) and father Gayalal (PW-4), who are said to be eye- |
witnesses. Since, they are near relatives of the deceased, therefore, their
evidence has to be considered with caution.

, 12, Utmila Bai (PW-3) and Gayalal (PW-4) had admltted that thcrc was
a dispute between the parties prior to the incident in respect of Baadi raised’
by the appellant Gopi in backyard of his house. The witnesses claim that this

land belongs to them and the appellant has wrongly encroached upon their
land.

13.  UrmilaBai (PW-3) deposed that on 13.11.1999 at about 10:30-11:00
am, she went to her field alongwith her husband Vijay. Her husband was
going some 10-15 feets ahead of her, when he reached in the field, Urmila Bai
was standing near the bunds of field adjacent to Baadi of appellant. Meanwhile,

- N
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the appellants and accused persons Rajendra, Ranu and Munni Bai came
near and surrounded her. They asked about her husband. Accused Munni Bai
and Ranu Bai caught hold of her and other accused went near her husband
Vijay Kumar. Accused Sanju and Rajendra caught hold of the hands of Vijay
Kumar and accused Gopi dealt the blow of knife on the chest and abdomen
of the Vijay Kumar. Her father-in-law Gayalal arrived on the spot to intervene,
but he was assaulted by accused Mukesh by a Lathi on his left hand. Her
husband fell down on the ground, thereafter, accused persons ran away from
the spot. The witnesses Bhagwan Das (PW-1) and Munnanunia had seen the
incident.

14, There are some discrepancies found in the statement of Urmila Bai
and her police staternent recorded under Section 161 of Cr.P.C. (Ex.D-1). In
her police statement, she had stated that at the time of incident, her husband
had gone to his field earlier and engaged in ploughing of field by tractor. Urmila
Bai was going to field, when she reached near the Baadi she had hot talks
with Munni Bai and a quarrel took place there between the ladies. Hearing the
noise of quarrel, her husband Vijay Kumar came near the Baadi to intervene,
then, accused Rajendra Burman and Sanju came there armed with Lathi and
caught hold of her husband, then appellants Gopi and Mukesh came there.
This statement shows that all the accused persons including appellants did not
~ come on the spot, simultaneously and jointly, They came after some interval
on the spot. She had stated in Ex.D-1 that Ranu came on the spot after beating
of her husband by Gopi. Whereas, in court statement, she has deposed that
all the appellants and accused persons came together and Munni Bai and
Ranu canght hold of her. The same d15crepancles are also found in the statement
of Gayalal (PW-4) and his police statement Ex.D-2. Urmila Bai has stated
that her husband was going to his field with her whereas Gayalal has deposed
that deceased was already in the field and Urmila Bai was coming alone from
her house. In view of above contradictions and discrepancies, we cannot rely
upon the statements of Urmila Bai and Gayalal, which shows that all the
accused persons came on the spot together.

‘15. Gayalal (PW-4) also seems to make exaggerated statements he
deposed against Mukesh Soni to have assaulted the deceased by knife, but
there is omission in his police statement Ex.D-2 in this regard. He has also
denied his police statement that at the time of incident there was a quarrel
between Munni Bai and Urmila Bai and deceased went to intervene and prevent
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his wife to indulge in quarrel. There is omission in his police statement about
the fact that Munni Bai and Ranu Bai exhorted to.other accused persons to
kill the deceased. Thus, it appears that Gayalal‘and Urmila Bai are not stating
truly about genesis of occurrence.

16.  The other eye-witness Bhagwan Das (PW-1) deposed that at the time
of incident ploughing the field of deceased Vijay Kumar by tractor, There was

a hot talks going on between Gayalal and appellant Gopi on account of
destroying the Baadi of appellants by Urmila Bai and Vijay Kumar. Urmila
Bai told Gopi that he had encroached upon her land and raised the Baadi
therefore, she had rightly removed the Baadi from her land. A quarrel took
place between Gopi and Urmila and Urmila had assaulted Gopi by Lathi. -
Although this witness has been,deelared hostile by the prosecution, but his
statement indicates that there was a quarrel betweén Urmila Bai and Gopi on
account of damage of Baadi.

17._ Thus, from the evidence adduced by the prosecution, it appears that
there was a quarrel between Urmila Bai (PW-3) the wife of deceased and
'Munni Bai (wife of Gopi) over the damage of Baadi. This quarrel took place
near the Baadi when Urmila Bai was going to her field. Seeing the quarrel, the
deceased Vijay Kumar came there. Seeing Vijay in support of his wife Urmila
Bai, the appellant Sanju @ Sanjay came there and caught hold of Vijay Kumar.
‘It is possible that there would have been a scuffle between them. Seeing this,
the appellant Gopi came from his house armed with Knife and all of sudden,
he had assaulted the deceased giving blow of knife on his chest and abdomen.
Seeing the occurrence, complainant Mathura Prasad @ Gayalal, who was
present in nearby field, came there and he was assaulted by other appellant
Mukesh by Lathi. He sustained grievous injury on his left hand and his radius
and ulna bone were fractured. This fact is proved by MLC report Ex.P-15
! given by Dr.8.8. Thakur (PW-7) and X-ray report Ex.P-11. given by
.Radiologist Dr. M.M. Agrawal (PW-5). :

18.  Now the question arises whether the co-accused Sanju and Mukesh
had common intention with main accused Gopi to kill the deceased. It is settled
law that the common intention can develop during the course of occurrence,
but there has to be cogent material on the basis of which the Court can arrive

at that finding and hold an accused vicariously liable for the act of otheraccused
by invoking Section 34 of IPC. In the case of Ramashish Yadav Vs. State of
Bihar, reported in AIR 1999 SC 3830, the Apex Court has dgalt with the
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distinctive feature of Section 34 of the IPC and has observed thus:-

“3. ..o The common intention implies acting in concert,
existence of a prearranged plan which it to proved either from
conduct or from circumstances or from any incriminating facts.
It requires a prearranged plan and it presupposes prior concert.
Therefore, there musts be prior meeting of minds. The prior
concert or meeting of minds may be determined from the
conduct of the offenders unfolding itself during the course of
action and the declaration made by them just before mounting
the attack. It can also be developed at the spur of the moment
but there must be a prearrangement or premeditated concert.

19.  After having laid down the proposition of law as above, the Apex
Court found on facts in the said case that two accused persons viz., Ram
Pravesh Yadav and Ramanand Yadav, were found to have caught hold of one
Tapeshwar and thereafter, accused Samundar Yadav Sheo Layak Yadav came
there with Gandasa in their hands and gave blows to Tapeshwar, Having regard
to the above facts emerging from the evidence on record, the Apex Court
- held that it cannot be said that Ram Pravesh Yadav and Ramanand Yadav
shared the common intention with Samundar Yadav and also Sheo Layak
Yadav.

20.  Inthe present case, the whole incident took place because of trivial
incident and altercation between Munni Bai, the wife of appellant Gopi and
Urmila Bai, wife of deceased Vijay Kumar. This incident resulted in a quarrel
and deceased Vijay Kumar came on the spot to intervene. It is alleged by
prosecution witnesses that accused Sanju and Rajendra came there and caught
hold of deceased. But in separate trial, ST N0.363/2009, the trial Court has
acquitted Rajendra. This creates doubt about thé involvément of Rajendra in
commission of crime. Therefore, it cannot be believed beyond reasonable
doubt that Sanju and Rajendra had caught hold of deceased. Even if we presume
that Sanju had caught hold of deceased, but from the evidence, it appears that
he was not armed with any weapon and he had not inflicted any injury to
deceased. He simply grappled with the deceased, which may be for purpose
of preventing him to indulge in the quarrel of women. Since Sanju came alone,
therefore, it cannot be said that he had common intention to kill the deceased.
- The main accused Gopi cameon the spot armed with knife and directly inflicted
injuries on person of deceased. There is no evidence that other appellants
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Sanju-or Mukésh has exhorted or instigated Gopi to kill the deceased. There
is no pre-concert of mind. Similarly, other appellant Mukesh had assaulted
only the complainant Gayalal. He came after-wards on the spot. Mukesh and

. Sanju had not assaulted the deceased.

+ 21, Inview of the aforesaid facts, it appears that there was a free fight

between the parties. The trial Court has found there was no unlawful assembly
and acquitted the appellants of the charges of Section 148 and 149 of IPC.
The appellants did not come on the spot together. There is no evidence to
show pre-concert of mind, The main accused Gopi came from his house armed
with knife and directly assaulted the deceased. Therefore, in facts and *
circumstances of the present case, it cannot be inferred that the other appellants

.- Sanju and Mukesh had also shared common intention with main accused Gopi

to kill the deceased. In the case law Cherlopalli Cheliminabi Saheb and
another Vs. State of A.P. AIR 2003 SC 1014, an altercation started between
two ladies i.e. wife of deceased and wife of appellant in regard to taking
water from tap. The altercation turned out into fight in which the members of
both family joined and some body stabbed deceased. Fight not pre-planned.
There was no material available on record to show common intention. Hon'ble
ApeX Court held that the provision of Section 34 of IPC was not attracted.

22. Thus the trial Court on erronecus appre01at10n of evidence, has

- arrived at conclusion that appellants had shared common intention to kill the

deceased and assaulted the complainant. This is case of free fight. It is not
proved beyond reasonable doubt that the appellants Sanju and Mukesh had
‘common intention with main accused Gopi to kill the deceased and similarly
Gopi and Sanju had shared common intention to inflict grievous injury to the

‘complainant. In the case of free fight, every accused shall be liable for his

individual act. The trial Court has wrongly held appellant Sanju and Mukesh
guilty for the offence punishable under Section 302/34 of IPC. Similarly Gopi
and Sanju had been wrongly convicted under Section 325/34 of IPC.

23.  Thus, the appeals are partly allowed. The conv1ct10n and sentence
awarded by trial Court against the appellants Sanju @ Sanjay and Mukesh
for commission of offence under Section 302 r/w 34 of IPC is set aside and
similarly, the conviction and sentence of Gopi and Sanju @ Sanjay awarded
under Section 325 r/w 34 of IPC is set aside. The appellants are acquitted
from the charges of above offence.

I L
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24.  Itisproved that the appellant Gopi has committed murder of deceased
Vijay Kumar punishable under Section 302 of IPC and appellant Mukesh has
inflicted grievous injury to the complainant Gayalal punishable under Section
325 of IPC. The conviction and sentence awarded by trial Court against the
appellant Gopi under Section 302 of IPC and appellant Mukesh under Section
325 of IPC are affirmed and sustained. They have to undergo the sentence
imposed upon them under aforesaid offence. The appellant Mukesh is entitle
to set offin respect of the period already undergone in custody in view of
Section 428 of Cr.P.C.

25. The appeal of appellant Sanju @ Sanjay (Cr.A.No.407/2003) is
allowed and the appeal of appellant Gopi & Mukesh (€r.A.No.516/2003) is
partly allowed.

26. Theappellant Sanju @ Sanjay is acquitted and be set at liberty.

Order accordingly.
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APPELLATE CRIMINAL
Before Mr. Justice S.K. Seth & Smt. Justice Anjuli Palo
Cr.A. No. 803/1994 (Jabalpur) decided on 31 August, 2017

STATE OF M.P. ...Appellant
Vs. , )
KESHOVRAO ...Respondent

A Penal Code (45 of 1860), Section 326, Criminal
Procedure Code, 1973 (2 of 1974), Section 378 (3) —Acquittal Converted
to Conviction — Held — Supreme Court has concluded that if order of
acquittal has been made on improper and erroneous appreciation of
evidence, the same can be set aside by Appellate Court.  (Para 20)

@ TUS WIedT (1860 FT 45), &IV 326, 70 AfFaT WAL 1973
(1974 BT 2), GIvT 378(3) — 9T Ty 7 TRIYg — PR —
wared wararew % frsffa fear @ fs afy twfufy or atw wer 3
I @ eyl qemies w fsar war @, mmwmm
F IURd frar o gwar 2

B. Penal Code (45 of 1860), Section 326 & 324 — — Acquittal —
Appreciation of Evidence — Testimony of Eye Witnesses — Minor
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Contradictions — Held — Although proesecution failed to prove that
complainant sustained grievous injury but there are sufficient direct
. . evidence of complainant and eye witnesses available against accused which
were duly corroborated by medical evidence that simple injuries were
. voluntarily caused by accused using sharp cutting object — No material
contradiction between ocular and medical evidence — Thus offence u/S
326 IPC not made out but offence u/S 324 is made out and proved beyond
reasonable doubt — Finding of acquittal is hereby set aside — Accused
guilty of and is convicted for offence u/S 324 IPC. (Paras 21 to 23)

W §US GIEdT (1860 BT 45). ST 326 § 324 — QIWHled — WRA
FT qoaieT — wER wrter & gRarg — argelt iy — stiaifRa
— TEfy sft@iom, oifte o= ¥ fasa w1 % aRard 3 R 9 T A
ooeg AfBged @ faee wRard vd ageef wefmmr @ gafa goa e
Iude € Wit f5 Rifrcy wisy gr1 gwe w0 @ WY o f5 WERer 9
IRAT §NT TRER FTe et 9 $T ITANT S §F WIS FIRG 1
s of) — wegE v9 Tafecila wiew 3 wer w13 wiftes friamm @ — safag”
AR <3 Witar @ GRT 326 B A AT T TGl GGG GRT 324 D
i AR oTaT @ wuT gfiugen Wew ¥ W uifed gan ® — <iwgfa o
e wag grRT AU — aﬁgwmﬂha@'ﬂﬁmaﬁmaniﬁm
o 2q st aur <fyg fear T

C. Criminal Practice — Motive — Held — Case is based on
direct evidence and not on circumstantial evidence and hence it is not
compulsory for prosecution to prove motive of accused — Only for
absence of motive, direct evidence cannot be ignored. (Para 16)

' T gifew ygfo — 8g — sfEifRa — a&vor yoae e W
ameniyd @ aut 9 % uRfefe o ) w9 gafay aftmiss € fag
ARRIET FT 2 WG T AfER T8 ¥ — Sad 2y B aguiReiy @
fTe, Toud WIey &) aFewT Wl fHar W Wahdr|
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JUDGME N-T

The Judgment of  the Court was delivered by :
ANJULI PaLo, J. ;- This appeal has been filed by the State being aggrieved
by the judgment dated 4.1.1994 passed by the Chief Judicial Magistrate,
Betul in Criminal Case No.2371/1986, whereby the respondent/accused was
acquitted from the charge of offence under Section 326 of the IPC.

2. The prosecution case in short is that the complainant Bhimrao and the
respondent Keshorao are relatives. The complainant settled the marriage of
sister of the respondent with Sheshrao at village Bheempur, Doldhana District
Betul. On 2nd June, 1986, for celebrating the ring ceremony, the complainant
Bhimrao and the respondent/accused came to the village Umari to the house
of Nilamber, who is brother of the complainant Bhimrao. In the intervening
night of 1st & 2nd June, 1986, the complainant and the respondent were
sleeping side by side in the courtyard (Aangan). Suddenly, the }espondent
assaulted Bhimrao with a knife, caused injuries on his neck and back. The
complainant Bhimrao raised hue and ¢ry and caught hold of the respondent,
After hearing the noise of Bhimrao, Shivcharan came to the spot. He saw that
the respondent held a knife in his hand, Bhimrao who was griping with the
respondent. Shivcharan snatched the knife from the respondent. After hearing
the voice, so many persons namely Tenya, Mahadeo, Anandrao and Nilamber
assembled at the scene of occurrence, It was stated by Bhimrao to them that
the respondent assaulted him with a knife on his stomach, chest and neck. On
the report of Shivcharan, Police Station Athner District Betul registered a
case under Section 307 of the IPC against the respondent. After investigation,
charge sheet was filed before the competent Court. After committal the case,
trial was conduced (sic:conducted) by the learned trial Court. .

3. In the impugned judgment, learned tnal Court found that the evidence

adduced by the prosecution is not reliable and trustworthy. The respondent .

had no motive to commit the offence against the complainant. However, knife
was seized from the possession of respondent, but no blood stain was found
on the seized article. After considering the weakness of prosecution case,
learned trial Cours held that the prosecution has failed to prove the charge
levelled against the respondent beyond reasonable doubt.

4, Aforesaid finding has been challenged by the State on the grounds
 that evidence of prosecution witnesses Bhiimrao (PW-1) and Shivcharan (PW-2)

[x}
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ought to have been accepted as the same is in consistence with their previous
. version. The medical opinion also supports their version. Learned trial Court
has lost sight of the material aspect of the evidence. On the basis of minor
contradictions in the statement of witnesses who are villagers, learned trial
~ Court acquitted the respondent. It is alleged by the appellant/State that it is

very important to see that after long cross-examination, the witnesses could
not demolish the prosecution case. Hence, the judgment of acquittal passed
by the learned trial Court is liable to be quashed and set aside. It is prayed
_ that the respondent be punished in accordance with law.

5. Learned counsel for the respondent contended that the appellate Court
should not ordinarily set aside the judgment of acquittal in the case even though
two views are possible. The view of the appellate Court may be more probable
one. The trial Court, which has benefit of watching the manner of witnesses,
is best judge of the credibility of witnesses. The reliance has been placed in
the case of “Sunil Kumar Shambhudayal Gupta (doctor) Vs. State of
Maharashtra, 2010(13) SCC 657, “V.S. Achuthanan Vs. Balkrishna Pillai
(2011) 3 SCC 317” and “Raja Vs. State of Karnatka, (2016) 10 SCC
506.”

6. Having heard learned counsel for the parties at length and perused the
record. The question for consideration is that whether this Court can legally
reverse the acquittal of the respondent on the basis of evidence available on
record.

7. In Sheo Swarup v. King-Emperor [AIR 1934 PC 227 (2)] afford a
correct guide for the appellate Court's approach to a case in disposing of
such an appeal. The different phraseology used in the judgment of this Court
such as (I) substantial and compelling reasons (II) good and sufficiently cogent
reasons (III) strong reasons are not intended to curtail the undoubted power
of an appeal against acquittal to review the entire evidence and to come to its
own conclusion but it should not only evidence every matter onrecord having
a bearing on the question of fact and the reasons given by the Court below, In
support of its order of acquittal in its arriving at a conclusion on those facts,

‘but should also express these reasons in its judgment, which lead itto hold -
that the acquittal was not justified.

8. It is settled law that every accused is presumed to be innocent unless
his guilt is proved and that is presumption of his innocence gets re-enforced
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with his acquittal by the trial Court verdict. A judge presides over the trial not
only to ensure that no innocent is punished but also to see that guilty does not
escape. It is well settled principle of law that the appellate Court has full
power to review and consider the entire evidence on record on which the
order of acquittal is based, so as to arrive at finding as to whether the views of
the trial Court were perverse or otherwise unsustainable.

9. It is not in dispute that the complainant Bhimrao and respondent
Keshorao are near relatives to each other and they belongs to same village.
On 1st June, 1986 in the afternoon, they both came to the house of Nilamber
at District Betul for celebrating the ring ceremony of sister of respondent/
accused and they stayed there in the intervening night of 1st and 2nd June,
1986. It is also not in dispute that at the time of incident, both were sleeping
side by side in the open courtyard of Nilamber (PW-6). Aforesaid facts were
‘admitted by the respondent in accused statement in question nos.1,2 & 4. In
question no.10, he also admitted that at midnight, the complainant Bhirhrao
" raised hue and cry and caught hold of the respondent. The complainant Bhimrao
(PW-1) clearly stated against the respondent that the respondent caused said
injuries to him by a knife and during the incident, he caught hold of the
respondent with a knife and again the respondent inflicted three blows on his
back. '

10.  Itisalsonot in dispute that at the time of incident, Shivcharan (PW-2)
and Nilamber (PW-6) were present near the spot. They were sleeping there.
Shivcharap (PW-2) and Nilamber (PW-6) deposed that after hearing hue and
cry of the complainant Bhimrao, they came on the spot and saw that the
respondent was caught by the complainant Bhimrao along with a knife. Nilamber
(PW-6) further stated that in his presence, another blow was inflicted by the
respondent on the chest of complainant Bhimrao and thereafter, knife was
snatched by Shivcharan (PW-2) from the respondent. The said facts are very
important to implicate the respondent in crime, who attacked the complainant
by knife. It is also important that at that time, presence and act of Shivcharan
(PW-2) are unchallenged by the defence in accused statement. The respondent
has admitted that he was caught hold by the complainant Bhimrao and thereafter
by other persons who assembled there just after the incident.

11.  Head Constable-Deorao (PW-9) corroborated the testimony of
Shivcharan (PW-2), who registered the report of Shivcharan against the
respondent just after the incident on 2nd June, 1986 at about 9:20 p.m. in the
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police station situated about 40 kms. away from the spot. It cannot be -
presumed that the report could be lodged as an afterthought against the
respondent, who is also near relative of Shivcharan (PW-2). In para 4 of the

" cross-examination, he also stated that Bhimrao was brought by Shivcharan'in
unconscious condition and he was not fit to give his statement.

12.  Insequence of the incident, the testimony of Dr. S.K. Khandelwal (PW-
10) has not been challenged by the respondent, which established that at the time
of medical examination, the complainant sustained following injuries:-

() incised wound 1”x1/2”x1%, 1 c.m. deep in peritoneal
cavity 5 cm. below and lateral to the umbilicus

()  incised wound 1”x1/2”x1/2” over left supra clavicle
region with bleeding

All above injuries were caused by sharp cutting object. According to
the report, the injuries were caused by knife (article 'B"). There is no material
contradlctlon between ocular evidence and medical evidence. In these
circumstances, it is proved that in the presence of respondent, the complainant
sustained aforesaid injuries in the intervening night of 1st and 2nd June, 1986.

13. Head Constable Yashwant Rao (PW-15) seized knife (article 'B') from
the respondent. He found some blood stains in the knife during investigation.
He also seized one shirt, pyjama and baniyan etc. from the respondent on 3rd
June, 1986. Investigation officer Yashwant Rao found blood stains on the
clothes of the respondent. In the FSL report, human blood was found on the
clothes seized from the respondent. In the FSL report, blood of 'A' blood
group is found on the shirt of victim and on the shirt, pyjama and handkerchief
of the respondent and on other clothes of the complainant. It is a very important
piece of evidence which involves the respondent with crime.

14, Above relevant fact has been put up before the respondent during the
accused statement under Section 313 ofthe Cr.P.C. in question nos.42 & 43.
In question no.42, the respondent/accused has not explained why he had
knife in his hand, why he was caught hold by the complainant Bhimrao and
what happened at that night. At the time of incident, who was the other one -
who caused the injury to the complaint (sic:complainant), why respondent's
clothes were stained with blood. We are not satisfied with the explanation
given by the respondent/accused that he was caught by the complainant
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Bhimrao, hence, his clothes had blood stains. The complainant's blood was
found not only on the shirt of respondent but also on his baniyan, pyjama and
handkerchief. This evidence is corroborated by the testimony of Bhimrao (PW-
1), Shivcharan (PW-2) and Nilamber (PW-6). Learned trial Court has held
that because no blood stains were found on the knife as per Article 'B', hence
it is doubtful that the seized knife was used for committing the crime. It is not
a proper ground to ignore the evidence of eye witnesses.

15.  Tltis important that this case is not based on circumstantial evidence,

whereas it is based on the direct evidence of the complainant and other

eyewitnesses. Hence, only for such type of weakness, the testimony of Bhimrao

(PW-1), Shivcharan (PW-2) and Nilamber (PW-6) cannot be brushed aside

in the criminal trial. The maxim “falsus in uno, falsus in omnibus ' (false in
one thing, false in everything) would not be applicable.

16.  Thelearned trial Court acquitted the respondent on the ground that
the resporident/accused had no motive to commit crime. This case is based
on the direct evidence and not on the circumstantial evidence. Hence, it is not
compulsory for the prosecution to prove the motive of the accused. Only for
absence of motive direct evidence cannot be ignored. In case of “Saddik @
Lalo Gulam Hugsein Shaikh and others Vs. State of Gujrat 2017 Cr.L.J
149(SC) and “Yogesh Singh Vs. Mahabeer Singh and others 2017 Cr.L.J.
291 (SC),” it was held that: '

“Ttis settled legal position that even if the absence of motive, as alleged,
isaccepted that is of no consequence and pales into insignificance
when direct evidence establishes the crime. Therefore, in case there
is direct trustworthy evidence of witnesses as to commission of the
offene, the motive part loses its significance. Therefore, if the genesis
of the motive of the occurrence is not proved, the ocular testimony of
the witnesses as to the occurrence could not be discarded only on
the ground of absence of motive, if otherwise the evidence is worthy
ofreliance.”

17.  In the present case, Mahadeo (PW-4), Anandroa (PW—S), Ramji
(PW-7) and Tenya (PW-8) were also witnesses, who assembled on the spot
and they saw the respondent, who was caught hold by complainant Bhimrao.
At the time of incident, they also saw knife in hand of respondent/accused,
which was snatched by Shivcharan (PW-2). Testimony of these witnesses is
found natural and reliable. Under Section 6/8 of the Evidence Act, it is relevant
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“in ih,e present case. There is no reason as to why they would falsely implicate
* the respondent in this case. In case of “Netram Chena Baghel Vs. State of
UP” 2017 Cr.LT (NOC) 308 (All), it was held that: )

“Relevancy of facts forming part of same transaction- Facts,
though not in issue but so connected with issue, shall form
part of same transactions and also be relevant.”

18.  The conduct of Bhimrao (PW-1) is considerable because he is near
relative of the respondent and at that time, he stayed with the accused/
respondent at Nilamber's house then why they would falsely implicate the
respondent. He had no bad intention or rivalry with the accused/respondent.
Similar thought is also applicable for other witnesses namely Shivcharan
(PW-2), Mahadeo (PW-4), Nilamber (PW-6), Ramji (PW-7) and Tenya
(PW-8).

19.  Withregard to some contradiction in their evidence, we find that the
contradictions are not material in nature. In the case of “Unnikrishnan Vs.
State of Kerala, 2013 Cri.L.J. 2514”. It was held that:-

“In appreciation of evidence, minor discrepancies in statements
of witnesses occurring due to illiteracy of witness and long
gap between recording of testimony of offence, not ground to
discard evidence.” )

Some contradiction and omission are natural/normally occurred in the
evidence because the incident was occurred in the year 1986 and after two
or more years, their evidence was recorded in the trial Court. Hence, such
type of contradictions cannot be adversely effect and truthfulness of the
prosecution case. In case of “Mahaveer Singh Vs. State of M.P., 2013
Cri.L.J. 749”. It was held that: ' '

“It is duty of the Court to separate chaff from husk..... though
it is natural to state variant statement due to time gap. But if
such statement go to defeat core of prosecution then such
contradictions are material. It is settled principle of law that if
evidence of even single eyewitnesses, truthful, consistent and
inspiring confidence is sufficient for conviction of the accused.”

20.  After overall consideration and appreciation of evidence, we find
that learned trial Court failed to consider the above aspect in the prosecution”
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case and ignored the material facts, which were duly implicated the respondent/
accused with the crime. In case of “Anjan Das Gupta Vs. State of West
Bengal and others 2017 Cr.L.J. 529 SC”, the Supreme Court has held that
and it is well settled law that:-

“If order of acquittal has been made on improper and erroneous
appreciation of evidence, can be set aside by the appellate Court.”

In cases of “Bhagwan Jagannath Markad Vs. State of Maharashtra,
2017 Cri.L.J. 578 (SC) and “Mrinal Das Vs. State of Tripura, AIR 2011
SC3753”, itis held by the Apex Court that:-

“It is the duty of the appellate Court to marshal the entire evidence

on record and only by giving cogent and adequate reasons set

aside the judgment of aéquittal. If the order is clearly unreasonable,

itisa compelling reason for interference. When the trial Court has

ignored the evidence or misread the material evidence or has

ignored, the appellate Court is competent to reverse the decision
of the trial Court depending on the materials placed.”

21.  Wefind thatthe findings of learned trial Court were apparently perverse
or otherwise unsustainable. It is not a case where two views are possible. It is
a case where sufficient direct evidence is available against the respondent/
accused, which corroborated by the medical evidence also. It is true that, in
this case the prosecution failed to prove that the complainant sustained grievous
injuries because there is no evidence with regard to any fracture caused to the
complainant or he was treated in the hospital for 20 or more days. Hence,
offence under Section 326 of the IPC is not made out against the respondent/
accused. It is established by the prosecution that the injuries were voluntarily
caused by the respondent to the complainant. It is proved'beyond reasonable
doubt that injuries were simple in nature caused by sharp cutting object. Hence,
the offence under Section 324 of the IPC is duly made out against the
respondent. In case of “C. Ronald and another Vs. State of UT. Of
Andaman & Nicobar, 2012 Cri.L.J. 672, it is held that:- .

“There is no restriction on the powers of the appellate Court
to convert an order of acquittal into a conviction

22, Onthe basis of aforesaid discussion, we find that the findings of the
learned trial Court are perverse and against the evidence on record. Learned
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trial Court lost sight to consider material aspects of the evidence and comes
to the conclusion that the prosecution has failed to prove its case beyond
, reasonable doubt against the respondent. Therefore, the appeal presented by
. the State is hereby allowed. The findings of learned trial Court are hereby set
aside. We hold that the prosecution has successfully proved that the respondent
voluntarily caused simple injuries to the complainant Bhimrao in the intervening
night of 1st & 2nd June,1986.

23.  Theresultis appeal partly succeeds. We find the respondent is guilty
of the offence under Section 324 of the IPC. Hence, respondent is convicted
for offence under Section 324 of the IPC. With regard to the sentence, the
respondent is facing trial since the year 1986 for the offence under Section
326 of the IPC. He was in custody about 3 months & 26 days. Looking to
the facts and circumstances of the case, we sentence the respondent for offence
under Section 324 of the IPC with fine 0fRs.5,000/-. In default of payment
of fine, three months R.I. is awarded. If fine is deposited then, a sum of

Rs.3,000/- be provided to the complainant Bhimrao as compensation under
, Section 357 of the Cr.P.C.

24, Office is directed to transmit the record immediately to the trial Court
with a copy of this judgment. The respondent/accused shall appear before
the Trial Court on 15.09.2017. Upon his failure to do so, the Trial Court,
under intimation to registry, shall take forthwith necessary steps as per law to
see that order of this Court is duly carried out:

Ordered accordingly.

Appeal partly allowed.

LL.R. [2017] M.P., 2489
APPELLATE CRIMINAL
Before Mr. Justice S.K. Gangele & Mr. Justice Anurag Shrivastava
- Cr.A.No. 2173/2006 (Jabalpur) decided on 5 September, 2017

RAMANDA @ YASHVANT GOND ...Appellant
‘Vs. .
STATE OF M.P. o ...Respondent

A. Penal Code (45 of 1860), Section 302 and Evidence Act (I
of 1872), Section 32 — Murder — Conviction — Dying Declaration —
Appreciation of Evidence — Deceased was set ablaze on denial of giving
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money to appellant for liquor — Dying declaration recorded by Naib
Tehsildar — Held - Deceased was alive for 18 hours after recording dying
declaration and doctor also deposed that he was fully conscious and was
fit/capable of making statement — Dying declaration against appellant is
‘reliable and is fully corroborated by statements of eye witnesses —
Appellant rightly convicted - Appeal dismissed. (Paras 13 to 16 & 19)
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B. Criminal Practice — Eye Witnesses — Interested Witnesses
— Held — Although evidence of interested witness is to be considered
with care and caution but merely because eye witnesses are closely
related/interested to deceased, their. testimonies cannot be doubted
and their evidence does not necessarlly require corroboration before
acting upon. : : (Para16 & 17)
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Case referred:
(2012) 4 SCC 327.

None, for the appellant. .

Prakash Gupta, appointed as amicus curiae to appear on behalf of
appellant. )

Akshay Namdeo, G.A. for the respondent/State.
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JUDGMENT

The Judgment of the Court was delivered by :
ANURAG SIIRIVASTAVA, J. :~ This appeal under Section 374(2) of Cr.P.C.
has been preferred by the appellant/accused against the judgment and conviction
dated 30.08.2006, passed by Additional Sessions Judge, Sohagpur, District
Hoshangabad, in Sessions Trial No.236/2005, whereby the appellant has been
convicted for commission of offence under Section 302 of IPC with fine of
Rs.500/-, with default stipulation.

2. The case of prosecution in brief is that the deceased Prahlad Gond
was residing in Thakur Mohalla Bankhedi. In the intervening night of
07.05.2005 and 08.05.2005 deceased was sleeping in the courtyard of his
house. His son Pramod was also sleeping in the courtyard. At about 1:00
O’ clock in the night, the appellant Ramanda came there, he was keeping a
kerosine (sic:kerosene) lamp in his one hand and a steel jug on other hand.
He demanded Rs.50/- from the deceased to consume liquor. When deceased
refused to give him money, the appellant poured the kerosine (sic:kerosene) :
oil on the his person and dragged him to the Chabutra and set him ablaze.
Seeing the incident, the Pramod, the son of deceased and other relatives douse
the fire by pouring water on the deceased. The appellant ran away from the
spot. Deceased went to police station Bankhedi with his son Pramod and
daughter Lata Bai, and lodged the FIR Ex.P-4. Police registered the offence
and sent him for MLC and treatment to community health center Bankhedi. .
He was given first aid there, his dying declaration was recorded by Naib
Tahsildar and thereafter, he was referred to Jabalpur for further treatment.
The deceased was admitted in the medical college, Jabalpur where he expired
in the night. A Marg was registered in police station Gadha, Jabalpur and
inquest was conducted. The dead body of deceased was sent for postmortem.
The offence under Section 302 of IPC has been registered against the appellant
at police station Bankhedi and after completion of investigation, charge sheet
has been filed against the appellant.

3. The trial Court has framed the charges for the offence punishable under
Sections 302 of IPC. The appellant abjured guilt and pleaded innocence. The
prosecution has examined 13 witnesses in its support whereas the appellant
has not examined any witness in his defence,

4. Learned trial Court, 6n appreciation of evidence adduced by the
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parties, arrived at the conclusion that the appellant has demand the Rs.50/-
for consuming liquor from the deceased and on his refusal, he set him ablaze
by pouring kerosine (sic:kerosene) oil. Thus, the trial Court held the appellant
guilty for commission of offence punishable under Sections 302 of IPC and
sentenced him as mentioned herein above.

5. Heard arguments of learned counsel for the parties and perused the
record.

6. The defence has not challenged the death of deceased Prahlad due to
burn injuries sustained by him during the intervening night of incident. The
appellant has given suggestion in his defence that “at the time of incident, the
deceased was sitting in a water tank situated in the courtyard of his house, a
kerosine (sic:kerosene) lamp was also lit there. Accidentally, the lamp fell on
the deceased and he sustained injuries due to fire caused by lamp”. The doctor
S.K. Chandaiya (PW-12) deposed that on 08.05.2005, he had examined the
deceased Prahlad Singh at about 1:40 am in the community health center
Bankhedi and found about 80% superficial first to second degree burn on his
body. After giving first aid, he referred him to medical college Jabalpur. The
statement of doctor is corroborated by MLC report Ex.P-10 given by him.

7. The deceased has expired in the night in medical collegé, Jabalpur.

. Doctor Abhishek Singh (PW-6) deposed that he had performed the postmortem
of deceased in medical college Jabalpur and found superficial and deep burn
injuries on the person of body of deceased. The burn of all over the body. The
cause of death was shock due to burn injuries. The statement of doctor is
corroborated by postmortem report Ex.P-3. The appellant has not challenged
the findings of postmortem given by doctor in cross examination. Therefore,

-the trial Court relying upon the MLC report and postmortem report of the
deceased has rightly arrived at the conclusion that the death of deceased Prahlad
was caused due to burn injuries. The death is homicidal.

8. Now the question arises whether the appellant has set the deceased
on fire? In this regard, the prosecution has examined Pramod (PW-1) Lata
Bai (PW-2) and Munna (PW-4) as eye-witnesses of the incident. Pramod
and Lata Bai are children of deceased and Munna is his son-in-law, who were
present on the spot at the time of incident.

9. Pramod (PW-1) deposed that at the time of incident, in the night about
12-1:00 am, he was sleeping in the courtyard of his house. His father Prahlad was

L
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also sleeping near hint, the appellant Ramanda came there. He was keeping
kerosine (sic:kerosene) lamp in his one hand and a jug of kerosine (sic:kerosene)

' oil in his other hand. Appellant demanded Rs.50/- from the deceased to consume

liquor when deceased refused to give him money, appellant poured the kerosine
(sic:kerosene) oil on the deceased and set him ablaze by kerosine (sic:kerosene)
lamp. Seeing in the incident, Pramod tried to catch the appellant, but he ran away.
Pramod tried to douse the fire and he also sustained burn injuries. His sister Lata,
brother-in-law Munna and other witnesses Munna Mistri, Sukkhu etc also arrived
on the spot. He took his father to police station Bankhedi where his father lodged
the FIR. The police sent him and his father for treatment to CHC Bankhedi,
where Naib Tahsildar had recorded the statement of his father. The doctor had
medically examined the witness and his father, thereafter his father was referred to
medical college J abalpur for further treatment. His father has expired in the night
dunng treatment in thie medical college Jabalpur.

10.  Incrossexamination, this witness Pramod has not made any substantial
contradictory statement and has denied the suggestions given by defence that
the deceased was burnt due to accidental fire. The statement of Pramod is
duly corroborated by his sister Lata Bai (PW-2) and brother-m—law Munna
(PW-4)

11. Lata Bai (PW-2) and Munna (PW-4) depos-ed that at the time of
incident, they were sleeping in Dahlan (Porch) of the house, their father
Prahlad was sleeping in the courtyard. The appellant camé there and demanded
Rs.50/- for consuming liquor from Prahlad. When Prahlad refused to give him
money, the appellant poured the kerosine (sic:kerosene) oil on him and set
him ablaze by a kerosine (sic:kerosene) lamp, which he was carrying in his
hand. Lata, Munna and other witnesses doused the fire and took the deceased
Prahlad to police station where he had lodged the report.

* 12, Other prosecution witness Munna (PW-3) deposed that on hearing
. hue and cry from the house of deceased and on seeing the fire, he arrived on

the spot. He had seen the appellant running away also. The deceased told him
that the appellant has demanded Rs.50/- from hlm for consummg liquor and
set him ablaze.

13.  The statements of Pramod, Lata Bai and Munna are also corroborated
by the FIR Ex.P-4 lodged by the deceased himself and dying declaration
Ex.P-8 recorded by Nalb Tahsildar Sudheer Kumar Jain in the community
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health center Bankhedi.

14. - N.P. Parihar, ASI, police station Bankhedi (PW-8) deposed that on
08.05.2005 at about.1:30 am in the night, the deceased Prahlad came in police
station Bankhedi and lodged the FIR ExP-4 against the appellant. He was brought

_by his son Pramod, daughter Lata Bai, son-in-law Munna Lal and neighbour
Sukhlal. Hé had recorded the statement of deceased and above witnesses and
sent the deceased for medical examination and treatment to CHC, Bankhedi. In
the hospital, the dying declaration of deceased was‘also recorded by Naib Tahsildar
.onrequest of police. In cross examination, this witness has categorically deposed
that at the time of lodging of report and in the hospital, the deceased Prahlad was
fully conscious and capable of making statement.

15.  Naib Tahsildar Sudheer Kumar Jain (P W-1 1) deposed that on
08.05.2005 at about 1:55 am, he had reached to CHC Bankhedi and recorded
the dying declaration Ex.P-8 of Prahlad. As the hands of Prahlad were burnt
therefore, he had obtained the thump (sic:thumb) impression of him in the
dying-declaration. In cross examination, PW-11 further deposed that the
. deceased was fully conscious and capable of making statement. His mental
and physical condition and fitness was certified by the doctor also. This fact is
corroborated by Dr.S.K. Chandaiya (PW-12) who deposed that he had.
examined the deceased at the time of recorded of dying declaration and found
him fit to give statement. He had certified this fact on the dying declaration -
Ex.P-8 at C to C and D to D. Since deceased was alive for about 18 hours
after recording of dying declaration, he was conscious during his admission in
medlcal college hospital Jabalpur, therefore it can be believed that at the time
of recording of dying declaration he was fully conscious and the dymg
declaration made by him is reliable.

16.  In his dying declaration the deceased has clearly stated fh'at the
appellant had set him ablaze. This dying declaration is fully corroborated by
statements of eye witnesses Pramod (PW-1) Lata Bai (PW-2) and Munna
(PW-4). Although they are close relatives of deceased but merely on this
ground there (sic:their) testimonies can not be doubted. The incident occurred
in the court yard of the house of deceased during summer season. It is quite
natural that in the late hours of night the deceased and other members of -
family were sleeping in the courtyard. The presence of these witnesses in the
house is natural and belicvable. In the late hours of night we can not expect
the presence of any independent witness on the spot.
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17.  Itis settled law that merely because witnesses are closely associated
with or interested in the deceased, their evidence does not necessarily require
. corroboration before acting upon. Evidence of interested witness is to be
considered with care and caution. Evidence of a witness cannot be discarded
merely on the ground of his being an interested witness as a witness nonnally
would not leave the real culprits and rope in innocent persons. -

1 8 The Hon'ble Apex Court in the case of Bhajju v. State of M.P. [(2012)
4 SCC 327] in para 22 observed that '

“The law is very clear that if dying declaration has been
+ recorded in accordance with law, is reliable and gives cogent :
and possible explanation of occurrence of events, then the DD
can certainly be relied upon by the Court and could form the
sole piece of evidence resulting in the conviction of the accused”.

19.  Inview of aforesaid discussion in our considered opinion the trial Court
has rightly relied upon the dying declaration made by the deceased and also
.the evidence of prosecution witnesses Pramod (PW-1) Lata Bai (PW-2) and
Munna (PW-4) and arrived at the conclusion that the appellant has committed
murder of the deceased by setting-him ablaze. The trial Court on proper
-appreciation of evidence held the appellant guilty for commission of offence
punishable under section 302 of IPC and sentenced him accordingly.

20.  Thus, the appeal is devoid of merit and is hereby dismissed.

dppeal dismissed.

LL.R. [2017] M.P., 2495
APPELLATE CRIMINAL
Before Mr. Justice S.C. Sharma & Mr. Justice Alok Verma
Cr.A. No. 254/2008 (Indore) decided on 20 September, 2017

BHANWARLAL & ors. . _ ...Appellants
Vs. )
STATE OF M.P. ‘ : ...Respondent

(Alongwith Cr.A. No. 372/2008)

A.” Penal Code (45 of 18606), Section 302 — Murder —
Conviction — Testimony of witnesses — Close Relative — Ocular &
Medical Evidence ~ Absence of FSL Report — Effect — Held — Witnesses
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are close relatives of deceased, however their statements cannot be
doubted only because of this reason — When statement of two
prosecution witnesses were found reliable, there appears to be no effect
if some independent witnesses were not examined by prosecution and
on this ground no benefit can be given to appellants — Many injuries
were found on body of deceased, statement of witnesses that they did
not observe as to which side of axe was used, there appears to be no
discrepancies between ocular evidence and medical evidence —In the
present case, when ocular evidence is available, non-receipt of FSL
report does not affect the case adversely — Trial Court rightly convicted
- and sentenced the appellants — Appeal dismissed. (Parall & 12)
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B. Medical Jurisprudence — Rigor Mortis — Held — Incident
took place at 1:00 pm and as per the FIR, postmortem was conducted
about 3 hrs 15 minutes after the incident — In India, rigor mortis sets
after 3-6 hours — In the present case, there was no rigor mortis in the
body of deceased, there appears to be no reason to doubt the time of
incident. _ (Para 9)
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Virendra Sharma, for the appellants.
 H.Y. Mehta, for the respondent/State.

JUDGMENT

- l The Judgment of the Court was delivered by :
ALOK VERMA, J. :- This common judgment will dispose of Cr.ANo.254/2008
.and Cr.A.No.372/2008.

2. These appeals arises out of judgment of conviction and sentence passed
by the learned Additional Sessions Judge, Link Court, Mahidpur, Ujjainin .
S.T.No.196/2007 dated 14.02.2008, whereby the learned Additional Sessions
Judge held the appellants guilty under Section 147, 302 read with Section
149 of IPC and sentenced them to one year R.1. each under Section 147 of
IPC and life imprisonment with fine of Rs.10,000/- each under Section 302
tead with Section 149 of IPC alongwith ohe year additional R.I. each by way
of default stipulation. Learned trial Court directed to pay Rs.40,000/- to the
legal representatives of Banesingh by way of compensation under Section
, 357 of CrP.C. out of amount of fine.

3. According to the prosecution story, the incident took place on 09.05.2007.
The report was lodged by Karan Singh (PW-1). He is nephew of the deceased
Bane Singh. It was reported to the police that the accused persons were nurturing
grudge against the deceased, as he objected them to draw water froma Government
. Bore-well. On the date of incident, the deceased Banesingh alongwith his nephew
Karan Singh (PW-1) went to his well situated at his field and while they were
coming back, the accused persons Bhanwarlal, Nagji, Balaram, Niranjan,
Dayaram, Mukesh and Rakesh came thete and started beating thie deceased
Banesingh. Bhanwarlal, Nagji and Balaram were having axe by which they inflicted
injury on the body of the deceased. They kept on beating him and thereafter went

.- away. The deccased fell down. After the incident, this witness alongwith 4-5

villagers arranged a tractor trolly in which the deccased was being shifted to the
_ hospital. He succumbed to his injuries on the way and therefore, instead of taking
him to the hospital the dead body was taken to the Police Station Raghvi, district
Ujjain, where Karan Singh (PW-1) lodged a report Ex.P-7, on which crime
1n0.126/2007 was registered on 09.05.2007. The report was lodged at 2.05 PM.
while the incident allegedly took place at 1 P.M.. The distance from the spot to
the Police Station was 12 Kms. . )

4, The trial Court framed charges under Section 147,148 and 302 and
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in alternative under Section 302/149 of IPC and after recording evidence of
both the parties convicted and sentenced them as aforesaid. Aggrieved by the
aforesaid judgment, these appeals are filed on the following grounds:-

(i The trial Court failed to appreciate the oral evidence produced
by the prosecution.

. (i) The trial Court wrox‘lglyrp]aced reliance on the statements of
Karan Singh (PW-1), Afjunsingh (PW-2), Bane Singh (PW-5) and Omprakash
* Sharma (PW-6). :

@)  Thisapart the testimony of the Investi gating Officer Virendra
Singh Gurjar (PW-7) is also not reliable. Omprakash Sharma (PW-6) was
not an eye witness. He reached only after the incident was OVer. :

(v)  There are material contradictions between oral evidence of
Karan Singh (PW-1) and Arjun Singh (PW-2). According to them all the three
accused persons were having axe. They inflicted injuries on the deceased.
"However, no incised wound was found on the body of the deceased. All the
injuries were lacerated wound and due to these discrepancies between oral
evidence and medical evidence, their statements are unreliable,

(v) ©  Theprosecution witnesses are all close relatives of the deceased
and as such they were interested witnesses and statements of such witnesses
should not be relied upon.

(v  Itisalsoaground taken by the appellants that Dhapubai and

Saurambai allegedly saw the incident and were independent witnesses, but .

Wwere not examined by the prosecution. The spot of the incident is also doubtful.
In the FIR, it was written that incident took place near the well of Banesingh,
however in the FIR, the spot was stated to be Chowraha of the village.

(vil) The impugned judgment passed was on assumption and
surmises and therefore, these appeals be allowed and judgment be set aside.

(viii)  The FIR was anti-timed. The provision of Section 157 Cr.P.C
was not complied wiwa. The counter copies of FIR and Roznamcha Sanha
were not produced by the prosecution.

5. - Learned counsel appearing for the State supports the imi)ugned
judgment and pray that the same may be affirmed.

6. The FIR was lodged by Karaﬁ Singh (PW-1). He stated before the
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Court that he went with the deceased to his well for filling water and there the

appellants came and started beating the deceased. His statement was
-supported by Arjun Singh' (PW-2), who is son of the deceased. He was

examined as child witness, however, his age was mentioned as 17 years and

it is apparent that he is of such age, who could understand and depose about
* the incident quite well. Both these witnesses were asked as to which side of
the axes were used for causing injury on the deceased and both replied that
they did not see which side of the axes were used and therefore, they were
not in a position to say whether it was sharp side or from blunt side.

7. Learned counsel for the appellants submits that there was discrepancies
regarding the spot of the incident, however, from the spot map it is apparent
that the incident took place neara square ina village. The well and field of the
deceased is shown at serial no.2 and that place is not away from the spot of
incident. When cross examined, both the witnesses specifically stated that
they went to the well at 12.30 P.M. and when they were coming back the
incident took place and theréfore, so far as the spot is concerned, there appears
to be not much discrepancies in the statements of these witnesses.

8. Learned counsel for the appellants submits that in the postmortem
report the doctor observed that when postmortem was done at 4.15P.M. on
09.05.2007, the body of the deceased was cold but no rigor mortis was
present. Learned counsel referred to page 223 of 22nd Edition of Book written
by learned Author Shri Jaisingh P.Modi entitled “A Text Book of Medical
Jurisprudence and Toxicology™ and tried to impress upon the Court that incident
- took in the month of May when it was a very hot in middle part of India and
according to the opinion given by the learned Author, Dr. Dinesh Sisodia,
who is examined as (PW-3) in his statement in para 12 was confronted with
the opinion expressed by the learned Author and he remained firm in his opinion
that the body was cold at the time of post mortem. In 25th Edition of Book
written by learned Author Shri J aisingh P. Modi entitled “A Text Book of
Medical Jurisprudence and Toxicology.” at page 338 the opinion regarding
cooling of dead body was expressed. The Author opined as under:- .

Lo, (3)Cooling of the body- After death, the body
begins to lose its animal heat by-conduction, convection and
radiation and gradually attains the same temperature as its
surrounding medium similar to all inert objects. However, it
must be borne in mind that this loss of heat cannot be
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considered as a certain sign of death, until the body has lost
15 to 20 degrees of the normal heat; namely, 98.4°F; for a
rectal temperature of 90°F to 94°F may be observed in the
algid state or cholera and severe cases of collapse, and a much
lower temperature of 23°C or 24°C may be noted in cases of
long exposure to cold. Elevated rectal temperature have been
observed in cases of carbon monoxide poisoning, coronary
thrombosis and ruptured aortic aneurysms.

The rate of cooling is not uniform, but it is almost proportional
to the difference in the temperature between the body and its
surroundings. The rate is, therefore, rapid during the first few
hours after death, and is slow afterwards, as the temperature
of the body comes nearer to that of its surrounding. ........

..... Surrounding of the body- A dead body cools more slowly
when kept in a small room with still air, than when keptina
large room with access of cold droughts of air from outside.
Similarly a body covered with clothes and other coverings and
lying in bed, or in a cesspool or dung heap, cools less rapidly
than a naked body lying on a stone slab in the open air; while
a body immersed in water especailly in running water, cools
more rapidly than when exposed to the air. Cooling is delayed
when the temperature of the atmospheric air or water is high.
In icy weather of high altitude, the body may freeze and become
hard and may be well-preserved........ "

9. In the present case, the incident took place at 1 P.M. immediately
after the incident as it happened during the day time, inside the field, the
deceased was shifted in tractor attached with open trolly to hospital. However,
on the way he died so instead of taking him to the hospital, the dead body was
taken to the Police Station. There Panchayatnamalash was prepared by
Virendra Singh Gurjar (PW-7) while the body was still in the trolly and thereafter

.the dead body was transferred to the hospital for postmortem. If we accept
the time mentioned in the FIR, after the incident the postmortem was conducted
about 3 hours 15 minutes, according to the learned Author in India rigor mortis
sets after 3-6 hours. There was no rigor mortis in the body and therefore,
there appears to be no reason to doubt the time of incident.

10.  Ifincident took place at 1 P.M., the report was lodged at 2.05 P.M,,
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there appears to be no delay as distance from the spot to the police station is
stated to be 12 Kms. All the arguments in respect of FIR being anti-time or
time of the incident has been wrongly mentioned appears to be not acceptable
and has no force. ' '

11.  Coming to the statements of Karan Singh (PW-1) and Arjun Singh
(PW-2), it is apparent that they were close relatives of the deceased, however

" their statements cannot be doubted only because of this reason. The FIR was

promptly lodged. There were many injuries found on the body of the deceased.
His left and right tibia fibula bones of both legs were fractured, one of the
femur bone was fractured, 3 ribs were fractured and there was fracture on his
skull bone which was the main reason for his death.

11, Taking'these injuries and their statements that they did not observe as
to which side of the axe was used, there appears to be no discrepancies.
between ocular evidence and the medical evidence. :

12.  Learned counsel for the appellant submits that two independent
witnesses were not examined whose names were mentioned in the list of
witnesses by the prosecution. However, when the statements of two
prosecution witnesses were found reliable, there appears to be no effect if
some independent witnesses were not examined by the prosecutor, At the
most it may be said that there was a lapse on the part of the prosecutor as

. their ndies were mentioned in the list of witnesses. These witnesses were

Dhapubai and Saurambai. However, their names were not mentioned in the
trial programme by the prosecutor and therefore, no benefit can be givento
the appellants. He further submits that no human blood and similar group of
blood was found on the axe as no FSL report was filed by the prosecution
during the trial. However, in this particular case ocular evidence is available,
Non receipt of FSL report does not affect the case adversely.

In this situation in the considered opinion 6f; this Court, the statements
of prosecution witnesses Karan Singh (PW-1) and Arjun Singh (PW-2) are
reliable. As such, conviction and sentence passed by the learned trial Court

appears to be proper and based on cogent evidence. No interference in the

findings return by the trial Court is called for. This appeal is devoid of no.
force and liable to be dismissed and dismissed accordingly.

C.C.as per rules.

Appeal dismissed.
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LL.R. [2017] M.P., 2502
_ APPELLATE CRIMINAL
Before Mr. Justice Sheel Nagu & Mr. Justice GS. Ahluwalia
Cr.A. No. 635/2006 (Gwalior) decided on 25 September, 2017

PRATAP ’ ...Appellant
Vs. ' -
STATE OF M.P." ...Respondent

A. Penal Code (45 of 1860), Sections 84, 302, 307 & 309
and Criminal Procedure Code, 1973 (2 of 1974), Section 329 — Murder
— Conviction — Plea of Insanity — Burden of Proof — Appreciation of
~ Evidence—Appellant killing his two minor children and inflicted injuries
to wife— Held — Prosecution witnesses specifically stated that appellant
was of unsound mind and committed offence because of insanity and
these witnesses were not declared hostile — Non-filing of documents of
medical treatment of appellant prior to incidént is not fatal in light of
subsequent mental condition — Trial remained stayed for 10 yrs. u/S
329 Cr.P.C. as appellant was not able to enter his defence because of
unsound mind — Appellant succeeded in proving his defence and is
entitled for benefit u/S 84 IPC — Appellant acquitted of the charge u/S
302 & 307- Appeal allowed. ' . (Para 47)

@ 5US GI2GT (1860 BT 45), IRV 84, 302, 307 T 309 V9 0%
BT wiear, 1973 (1974 ®T 2), €RT 329 — 60T — QI9f¥leg — v—aar a7
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wrefnror 4 fafifise wu @ sum frar fo andreneft faga faea o a2m sw
IAT B BROT AW HIRa (Har ¢d g7 qrefhror & veetsy aifda &
farar a1 — wea1 @ qd anfiaeff 3 fafeear sTar @ TwEst @ uwd
&Y e W, grEad! st Refy @ arats § aas 7@ € - TS
ufirar wfear @) 9RT 320 @ Faud AR 10 967 9@ W@ BT FATE
Frea faaft & oror aflarefl auar qa@ owga o { wwef & or -
arfrareff e w=Te AT SRR ¥ Gwd T 9T AR 5ve givar @6
ORT 84 @ HeT @ BT §PaR € — adiarfl H AR 302 I 307 B
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B. Penal Code (45 of 1860), Section 309 — Medical Evidence
—Appreciation of Evidence — Held — Although one incised wound found
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on neck of appellant but there is no evidence on record that appellant
tried to commit suicide by causing injury to himself by cutting his neck
~Appellant acquitted of charge u/S 3091IPC. (Para 30)

@ TUS IeaT (1860 BT 45). GRT 309 — RISeAT wreq — wre
#7 geareT —afafeifa — gefy enfemefl 3 T W vE, e O arEn T
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C. Evidence Act (1 of 1 872), Section 145 and Criminal
Procedure Code, 1973 (2 of 1974), Section 154 & 161 — Held - Fact of
insanity not mentioned in FIR and case diary statements but witnesses
were not confronted with their previous statements u/S 145 of the Act of
1872 and even they were not declared hostile on the question of insanity —

"Ground taken by prosecution cannot be considered. (Para 43)

7 maﬂﬁw(mzzwr), &T 145 VT TU8 FHHaT 9idr,
1973 (1974 BT 2), &INT 154 T 161 — ARIERG — S=Taar @ a29 &7 g
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D. Criminal Practtce Medical Insamty & Legal Insamty -
Held —To prove insanity or unsoundness of mind of accused, his previous
as well as post mental status may be considered — Every insanity is not
legal insanity — Person may be suffering from medical insanity but it may
not be sufficient to treat the same as Iegal insanity. (Para 40)

174 TfsE gghr — ety g=raor 7 e ar — afafaffa
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Cases referred:

. (2002) 1 SCC 219, (2007).8 SCC 66, (2010) 10 SCC 582, (2011)
11 SCC 495, (2003) 12 SCC 587, AIR 1964 SC 1563, (1987) 3 SCC 480.
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Sudha Shrivastava, from Legal Aid Cell for the appellant.
Prakhar Dhengula, P.P. for the respondent/State.

JUDGMENT

The Judgment of the Court was delivered by :
G.S. AnLuwALIA, J. :- This Criminal Appeal under Section 374 of Cr.P.C.
has been filed against the judgment and sentence dated 17-6-2002 passed by
Special Judge and Additional Sessions Judge, Guna in Sessions Trial
No.149/1991, by which the appellant has been convicted under Section 302
(on two counts), Sections 307 and 309 of I.P.C. and has been sentenced to
undergo Life Imprisonment and a fine of Rs.500/- with default imprisonment
for offence under Section 302 of I.P.C.(on two counts for killing Ms. Rekhabai
and Rajesh}, under Section 307 of L.P.C. for rigorous imprisonment of 10
years and fine of Rs.500/= with default imprisonment and for offence under
Section 309 of I.P.C. for simple imprisonment of 6 months. All the sentences
have been directed to run concurrently.

2. The necessary facts for the disposal of the present appeal in short are ~
that on 7-4-1991, at about 10:45 A.M., an F.LR. was lodged by Gendalal

(P.W.1), alleging therein that at about 6 A.M., he was sleeping in his house

along with his wife. He heard the screaming and, theréfore, he and his wife

came out of the house and found that the appellant was assaulting his wife

Munnibai. When be and his wife Smt. Sumitra Bai, tried to save the injured

Munnibai, then the appellant ran after them. It was alleged that the appellant

Pratap had killed his own children Ms. Rekhabai and his son Rajesh by farsa
and has thereafter ran away from the spot. On the basts of the oral information
given by Gendalal (P.W.1), the police registered the F.I.LR. The dead bodies

of Ms. Rekhabai and Rajesh, were sent for postmortem. Spot map, Ex.P.5-
was prepared. Plain and blood stained earth was seized from the spot vide

seizure memo Ex. P.6, P.7 and P.8. The injured Munnibai was sent for treatment.

The appellant Pratap was arrested vide arrest memo Ex.P.23. The confessional

statement, Ex. P.24 was recorded. At the instance of appellant, one farsa and

one blood stained shirt was seized from the possession of the appellant vide

seizure memo Ex.P.13. After completing the investigation, the police filed the

+charge sheet against the appellant for offence under Sections 302,307 and

309 of I.P.C.

3. The Trial Court by order dated 17-5-1991, framed charges under
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Sections 362 (on two counts), 307 and 309 of LP.C. The appellant abjured
" his guilt and pleaded not guilty. :

4, The prosecution in order to prove its case, examined Gendalal (P.W.1),

Munnibai (P.W.2), Pemaram (P.W.3), Mishrilal (P.W.4), Kasiya (P.W.5),

* Sumitra Bai (P.W.6), Ramkobai (P.W.7), Bablu (P.W.8), Dr. Chakradhari
Varma (P.W.9), Gappalal (P.W.10), Sukua (P.-W.11), Radheshyam (P.W.12),

. Shishupal Singh (P.W.13), Dr. Rajendra Kumar Jain (P.W. 14), Lacchiram
(P.W.15), Balkrishan Arya (P.W.16) and Sunil Bhaskar Joshi (P.W.17). The
appellant did not examine any witness in his defence.

5. Dluring arguments, a defence was taken by the Appellant that he is of
unsound mind and the incident had taken place on account of insanity and
therefore, he may be acquitted.

6. ' The Trial Court after considering the evidence on record as well as
the defence of the appellant under Section 84 of I.P.C., convicted the appellant
for offence under Section 302 (on two counts), Sections 307 and 309 of
I.P.C..

- T Challenging the judgment and sentence passed by the Trial Court, it is
-submitted by the Counsel for the appellant that in fact the appellant was of
unsound mind and the offence was committed on account of i insanity. He not
only killed his two minor children Ms. Rekhabai and Master Rajesh but also
attempted to kill his wife Smt. Munnibai. It is further submitted that by causing
injury on his neck, it is alleged that the appellant also tried to commit suicide.

During the pendency of the Trial, the appellant was got examined by Doctor
who had specifically opined that the appellant is not able to understand the
“things and he is not capable of entering defence and accordingly, not only the
appellant was sent to mental asylum for treatment but the Trial Court had also

stayed the further proceedings under Section 329 of Cr.P.C.

8: Per contra, it is submitted by the Counsel for the State that there is
nothing on record to suggest that the appellant was insane at the time of incident.
Merely because he was treated for insanity at subsequent point of time, and
the proceedings were kept in abeyance by the Trial Court, would not mean
that the appellant was insane even at the time of incident, as no document has
been filed by the appellant to show that prior to incident, he was ever treated
for insanity. It is further submitted that all the eye witnesses, including Munnibai



2506 Pratap Vs State of M.P. (DB) LL.R.[2017]M.P.

(P.W.2) who was injured have specifically stated that the appellant had caused

injuries to the deceased Ms. Rekhabai and Rajesh and had also caused injuries

" to Munnibai. It is further submitted that subsequently, the appellant also tried
to.commit suicide by making an attempt to cut his neck. ’

9. Heard the learned Counsel for the parties.

10.  The first question for determination is that whether the deceased Ms.
Rekhabai and Rajesh died a homicidal death and whether the injured Munnibai
(P.W.2) sustained any injury or not?

11.  Dr. Rajendra Kumar Jain (P.W.14) had conducted the postmortem of
dead body of deceased Ms. Rekhabai, aged about 4 ycars and found the’
following injuries :

"(1) Incised wound 7 cm X 5 cm X bone deep on left side of
neck.

- (i1) Incised wound 4cm x 2cm x 2em on neck.
(ii1) Multiple abrasions on face of various size and shape."”

‘Cause of death of Haemorrhage shock due to injury on neck. The
postmortem report of the deceased Ms. Rekhabai is Ex. P.20.

12.  Dr. Rajendra Kumar Jain (P.W.14) had also conducted postmortem
of dead body of deceased Ra_]esh aged about 2 years and had found the
following injuries : . .

“(i)Incised wound on upper part and right side of neck.
(ii)Incised wound 3cm x 2¢m x 2 cm on left shoulder.”

Cause of death was Haemorrhage because of shock due to injury on neck.
The postmortem report of the deceased Rajesh is Ex. P.21.-

13.  Dr.Rajendra Kumar Jain (P.W.14) had also medic‘ally examined the
injured Munnibai and had found the following injuries on her body :

"(i)  Oneincised wound on back of right lower chest
2”X 1/2 !!x % . ”

(ii) One incised would (sic:wound) on back of left lower
chest2”x }2"x ¥ .”
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I v 7 Gi)  Incised would (sic: wound)on nght should 2”x2"x bone-
| ' deep.

~ -(iv) -Incised wound at back of r1ght upper chest 2”x
T 127X bone deep :

(v}  Multiple linear abrasions of vaﬁous size and shape on
back of right upper chest. .

(vi)  Crushinjury onright ring finger.
- (vii)  Incised wound on left index finger.

(viif) Incised wound at middle of phalanx of left rmddle
finger. ‘_

(ix) Abrasion onright ﬁontal reglon sxze 2%

The M L.C. report of injured Munnibai (P.W.2) is Ex. P/15. In x-ray
. Teport, fracture of middle phalanx left middle finger, fracture of Achyomian of
. scapular right side was found and Partial distal phalanx left ring finger was
| found missing. The x-ray report of injured Munnibai (P.W.2) is Ex.P.19.

14, The appellant has not challenged the injuries sustained by injured
Munnibai (P.W.2) as well as the injuries sustained by the deceased Ms. .
Rekhabai and Rajesh and cause of their death, therefore, it is held that the

| deceased Ms. Rekhabai and Rajesh had met with a homicidal death whereas
injured Munnibai (P.W.2) had sustamed multiple incised wounds on vital parts
of her body.

15.  Thenext question for determination is that whether the appellant had
: suffered any injury on his body or not?

16.  Dr. Chakradhari Sharma (P.W.9) has stated that on 7-4-1991, he'
| was posted in District Hospital Guna and examined the appellant Pratap and
.. had found the following injuries :=

"One incised wound 6cm x.6cm on'middle of neck.
Trachea was found cut. "
The M.L.C. report of the appellant Pratap is Ex.P.10.
17. Thus it is clear that appellant Pratap had also sustained mclsed wound
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on his neck and on internal examination, trachea was also found cut.

18.  Thenext question is that whether the appellant Pratap had attempted
to commit suicide by causing self inflicting injury on his neck or not and whether
he had caused murder of deceased Ms. Rekhabai ‘and Rajesh and had
attempted to murder his wife Munnibai (P.W.2) ?

19.  The prosecution has examined Gendalal (P.W.1), Munnibai
(P.W.2),Kasia (P.W.5), Sumitrabai (P.W.6) as eye witnesses. Gendalal (P.W.1)
had lodged the F.I.R. This witness has stated that on 7-4-1991 at about 6
‘A M. he had seen the appellant causing injuries to his wife Munnibai (P.W.2).
He saw that the appellant was causing injuries by means of farsa. When this
witness tried to save her, the appellant chased him. It is further submitted that
the appellant had caused injuries to his minor children Ms. Rekhabai and
Rajesh. He brought Munnibai (P.W.2) to his house and She was alive. She
had sustained injuries on her back, shoulder, waist etc. He also brought the
dead bodies of both the children. Thereafter he lodged the F.LR. in the police
station Myana, District Guna, which is Ex.P.1. In cross examination, this witness
has stated that the place of incident is adjoining to his house. The house of the
appellant and the witness are situated in the same premises however, both the
brothers i.e., the appellant and this witness reside separately. He has further
stated that he has no information that the appellant had also tried to commit
suicide. However, it was specifically stated by this witness, that the appellant
was of unsound mind and therefore, he was not knowing as to what he was
doing. This witness was not declared hostile by the prosecution on the question
of unsound mind of the appellant.

20.  Munnibai (P.W.2) has also stated that She and her children were
assaulted by the appellant. However, She has specifically stated in her
examination in chief, that about 2 years prior to the date of incident, the appellant
- bécame patient of unsoundness of mind and under the insanity, he had
committed the offence. It was further stated that prior to the incident also, he
was treated at Guna and Gwalior but his mental condition did not improve.
This witness was not declared hostile by the prosecution. In cross -examination,
this witness has further stated that the appellant had committed offence because
of unsoundness of his mind.

21.  Kasia (P.W.5) has also supported the prosecution case, but this witness
also stated that the appellant was of unsound mind and under the insanity, he
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_had committed the offence. This witness was declared hostile as he had not”
supported the prosecution case in its entirety. However, in cross examination
by the public prosecutor, this witness has stated with authority that the appellant’
‘was of unsound mind and he was also not cultivating the land because of
insanity. In cross-examination by the counsel for the appellant, this witness
further stated that the appellant was being treated for the last 2-3 years for
mental instability.

She has also stated that the appellant was of unsound mind and he was insane
for the last 2 years prior to the date of incident. This witness was declared
- hostile and was cross examined by the Public Prosecutor. In cross examination,
this witness has again stated that even at the time of incident, the appellant
was of unsound mind and in spite of regular treatment his mental condition did
not improve. '

'23.  Pemaram (P.W.3), Mishrilal (P.W.4), Ramko bai (P.W.7) have stated”
that the appellant was insane.

22, Sumitra Bai {P.W.6) has also supported the prosecution s%;ry, but

‘24. Bablu (P.W.8) is a child witness and is a hearsay witness.

25.  Gappalal (P.W.10) and Sukua (P.W.11) were the witnesses of oral
dying declaration and have not supported the prosecution case and were
declared hostile. X -

26.  Radheshyam (P.W.12) has stated that the appellant was admitted in
District Hospital, Guna. He was discharged from the Hospital on 16-4- .
1991.The appellant was already under arrest. The appellant made a
confessional statement and at his instance, one farsa and blood stained shirt
was seized from the possession of the appellant. The farsa was taken out by
the appellant from a place near Nala. Both the articles were seized by seizure
memo Ex.P.13. In cross examination, this witness has stqted that the
confessional statement of the appellant was already recorded by the
investigating officer on 9-4-1991. This witness denied the suggestion that the
appellant-was insane for about 2-3 years prior to the date of incident.

27. ﬁachhiram (P.-W.15) had prepared the spot map Ex. P.22.

28.  Balkrishna Arya (P.W.16) is-the mvest1gat1ng officer. who had
conducted the investigation.
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29.  Fromthe apprec1at10n of the evidence of Gendalal (P.W.1), Munmbal
(P.W.2), Kasia (P.W.5), Sumitra Bai (P.W.6), it is proved that the appellant
had caused fatal injuries to his minor children Ms. Rekhabai and Rajesh and
had also caused injuries to injured Munnibai (P.W.2). Munnibai (P.W. 2)isthe
wife of the appellant and mother of the deceased children. The F.I. R. was
lodged promptly. There is no reason to disbelieve the ocular evidence of injured
witness Munnibai (P.W.2). Even during arguments, the Counsel for the appellant
has not challenged the findings of guilt arrived at by the Trial Court. Accordingly,
it is held that the appellant had killed his two minor children, namely Ms.
Rekbabai and Rajesh and had caused such injuries to injured’ Munnibai (P.W.2)
which were sufﬁcwnt inthe ordmary course of its life to cause death.

30.  Sofarasthe charge under Section 309 of LP.C. is concerned, there is
no evidence on record that the appellant tried to commit suicide by causing
injury to himself by cutting his neck. The appellant was admitted by Police
Station Kotwali, Distt. Guna in District Hospital Guna, however, the
prosecution, for the reasons best known to it has not examined any witness to
show that under what circumstances, he was found by the Police Station
Kotwali, District Guna. Although the Doctor Chakradhari Sharma (P.W.9)
had found one incised wound on his neck, buti in absence of any specific proof
. that the appellant had himself caused the said i injury with an intention to commit
suicide, the conviction of the appellant under Section 309 of LP.C. is set
aside and he is acquitted of the charge under Section 309 of LP.C.

31. It was next contended by the Counsel for the appellant, that the
appellant had committed the offence on account of unsoundness of mind and
therefore, he is entitled for the benefit of Section 84 of LP.C.

32. Insupportof her contention, the Counsel for the appellant relied upon
the order-sheets of the Trial Court as well as on the evidence of Dr. Sunil
Bhasker Joshi (P.W.17), who has stated that on 7-8-1991, the appellant was
admitted in the mental ward of Central J ail, Gwalior and this witness had
medlcallykexamlned him. He had found that he was not capable of entering
defence and his observation report is Ex.C.1. He had treated the appellant
during his detention in the jail, but no improvement was found. He had treated
the appellant for a year and had given electric shocks but in spite of that his
mental condition did not improve. In cross-examination, this witness has
admitted that he is not in a position to state that since long the appellant was
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1nsane. This witness has also stated that it is possible that the appeliant rmght
be sufferm g from insanity for along time. ~

33.  From the order sheet dated 29-7-1991 of the Trial Court, it appears
that the Superintendent, Sub-Jail wrote a letter to the Ttial Court requesting
to send the appellant to Mental Hospital, Gwalior for treatment. The said
application was allowed'and it was directed by the Trial Court to send the
appellant to Mental Hospital, Gwalior for treatment. Thereafter as the-appellant
was not produced before the Trial Court, therefore, the evidence of some of
the witnesses could not be recorded. On 25-10-1991,-a reply was received
from the Superintendent Central Jail, Gwalior that due to non-availability of
the guard, he could not be produced and accordingly, the Reserved Inspector
was direécted to make the Guard available. Ultimately, the appellant was
produced in custody on 16-3-1992 and Balkrishna (P.W.16) was examined
and the case was adjourned to 30-3-1992 for cross-examination of
‘Radheshyam Sharma. On 30-3-1992, Radheshyam (P.W.12) was cross-
examined but a request was made by the counsel for the appellant, that the
appellant is insane and is not in a position to give his defence, therefore, his
'statement under Section 313 of Cr.P.C. may not be recorded. In the light of
the statement made by the Counsel for the appellant, the Trial Court thought
it proper to get the appeilant medically examined from a psychiatrist and it
was directed that after receiving the report from psychiatrist, his statement
r under Section 313 of Cr.P.C. would be recorded. On 9-5-1992, the report
of psychiatrist was received but since, the appellant was not produced
therefore, the case was adjourned. An application under Section 439 of Cr.P.C.
was filed for grant of bail which was rejected by order dated 22-5-1992.
Thereafter, on 2-6-1992,the appellant was produced in custody, however, an
observation report was sent by Central Jail Gwalior that the appellant is not
~ capable of entering defence, therefore, the Trial Court directed the jail
authorities to send the appellant to Mental Hospital, Gwalior. It appears.that
the appellant was released on bail, however, on 2-11-1992, the sureties filed
an application that they are not in a position to control the appellant, therefore,
the appellant may be taken back in custody. Accordingly, the appellant was
once again taken in custody and was sent to jail. On 2-11-1992, Dr. Sunil
Bhasker Joshi (PW-17) was examined on the que_stion of insanity of appellant.
Thereafter on 6-11-1992, the jail authorities were once directed to send the
appellant to Mental Hospital Gwalior for treatment. On 8-1-1993, a report
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was received that the appellant is not capable of entering defence. Thereafter
on certain dates, observation reports were submitted to the effect that the
appellant is not capable of entering defence and ultimately, the Counsel for the
appellant filed an application under Section 328,329 of Cr.P.C. for staying
the proceedings. After considering the various reports of the appellant, the
Trial Court by order dated 8- 6-1994 stayed thc further proceedings under‘
Section 329 of Cr.P.C,

34, The case was adjourned from time to time awaiting the improvement-
of mental condition of the appellant and ultimately, a report was received from
the Mental Hospital, Gwalior on 24-7-2001, that the appellant can be
discharged as.his mental condition has improved, However, as it was not
mentioned that whether the appellant is capable of entering defence or not,
therefore, further report was called. On 16-8-2001, again it was mentioned
by the Mental Hospital Gwalior, that the appellant is not capable of entering
defence. On 18-9-2001, the appellant was produced before the Trial Court
and it was observed by the.Trial Court, that the appellant does not appear to
be mentally sound and thérefore, report was called that whether the appellant
is capable of entering defence or not? Ultimately by order dated 9-3- 2002,
the trial resumed and the case was fixed for recording of accused evidence.
Thus, itis clear that the last prosecution witness was examined on 30-3-1992
but thereafter the trial could not proceed because of mental condition of the
appellant and ultimately, the Trial Court by order dated 8-6-1994 stayed the
further proceedings under Section 329 of Cr.P.C. which remained stayed till
9-3-2002. During this period, various reports were received with regard to
the insanity of the appellant and the appellant remained admitted in Hospital
or Mental Ward of jail. Thus, it is clear that the appellant was found incapable
of entering defence and therefore, the Trial was kept stayed for 10 long years
i.e., from 1992 till 8-6-1994, the case was adjourned and on 8-6-1994 the
Trial was stayed. Now, one fact is clear from record that immediately after the
incident, the appellant was found to be of unsound mind and his insanity was
to such an extent, that the Trial Court could not record his statement under
Section 313 of Cr.P.C. and the proceedmgs before the Trial Court were kept
in abeyance for 10 long years. Now, the sole question for determination is
that whether the appellant is entitled for the benefit of Section 84 of Indian
Penal Code or not?

35. Section 84 of Indian Penal Code reads as under :-
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""84. Act of a person of unsound mind.—Nothing is an
offence which is done by a person who, at the time of doing it,
by reason of unsoundness of mind, is incapable of knowing
the nature of the act, or that he is doing what is either wrong
or contrary to law."

36.  The Supreme Court in the case of T.N. Lakshmaiah Vs.State of
Karnataka, reported in (2002) 1 SCC 219 has held as'under :-

"7, Section 84 of the Indian Penal Code provides that nothing
is an offence which is done by a person who, at the time'of
doing it, by reason of unsoundness of mind, is incapable of
knowing the nature of the act, or that what he is doing is either
wrong or contrary to law. The section forms part of Chapter
IV dealing with general exceptions. The importance of the
: Chapter was highlighted by Lord Macaulay before the House
of Commons at the timé of introduction of the Bill as under:-

“This Chapter has been framed in order to obviate the necessity
of repeating in every penal clause a considerable number of
limitations. Some limitations relate only to a single provision,
or to a very small class of provisions.... Every such exception
evidently ought to be appended to the rule which it is intended
to modify. But there are other exceptions which are common
to all the penal clauses of the Code, or to a greater variety of
clauses dispersed over many chapters. it would obviously be
inconvenient to repeat these exceptions several times in every
page. We, have, therefore, placed them in a separate chapter
and, we have provided that every definition of an offence,
every penal provision, and every illustration of a definition or
penal provision, shall be construed subject to the provisions
conta.lned inthat chapter.” '

8. Thc principle embodied in the Chapter is based upon the '
maxim actus non facit reum, nisi mens sit reai.e. an act is
not criminal unless there is criminal intent.

9. Under the Evidence Act, the onus of proving any of the
exceptions mentioned in the Chapter lies on the accused though
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the requisite standard of proof is not the same as expected
from the prosecution. It is sufficient if an accused is able to
bring his case within the ambit of any of the general exceptions
by the standard of preponderance of probabilities, as a result
of which he may succeed not because that he proves his case

-to the hilt but because the version given by him casts a doubt
on the prosecution case.

10 In State of M.P. v. Ahmadulla AIR 1961 SC 998 this
Court held that the burden of proof that the mental condition
of the accused was, at the crucial point of time, such as is
described by the section, lies on the accused-who claims the
benefit of this exemption vide Section 105 of the Evidence Act
[Hlustration (a)]. The settled position of law is that every man
is presumed to be sane and to possess a sufficient degree of
reason to be responsible for his acts unless the contrary is
proved. Mere ipse dixit of the accused is not enough for availing
of the benefit of the exceptions under Chapter IV,

11. In a case where the exception under Section 84 of the
Indian Penal Code is claimed, the court has to consider whether,
at the time of commission of the offence, the accused, by reason

- of unsoundness of mind, was incapable of knowing the nature
of the act or that he is doing what is either wrong or contrary
to law. The entire conduct of the accused, from the time of the
commission of the offence up to the time the sessions
proceedings commenced, is relevant for the purpose of
ascertaining as to whether plea raised was genuine, bona fide
or an afterthought. Dealing with the plea of insanity, the scope
of Section 84 IPC, the attending circumstances and the burden .

- of proof, this Court in Dakyabhai Chhaganbhai Thakkar v.
State of Qujarat AIR 1964 SC 1563 held: (AIR pp. 1566-
67, para 5) '

“It is fundamental principle of criminal jurisprudence
that an accused is presumed to be innocent and,
therefore, the burden lies on the prosecution to prove
the guilt of the accused beyond reasonable doubt. The
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prosecution, therefore, in a case of hémicide shall prove
beyond reasonable doubt that the accused caused
death with the requisite intention described in Section
299 of the Indian Penal Code. This general burden-

never shifts and it always rests on the prosecution. But, -

Section 84 of the Indian Penal Code provides that
nothing is an offence if the accused at the time of doing
that act, by reason of unsoundness of mind was
incapable of knowing the nature of his act or what he
was doing was either wrong or contrary to law. This
being an exception, under Section 105 of the Evidence
Act the burden of proving the existence of
. circumstances bringing the case within the said
exception lies on the accused, and the court shall
: presume the absence of such circumstances. Under
. . Section 105 of the Evidence Act, read with the
definition of “shall presume’ in Section 4 thereof, the
court shall regard the absence of such circumstances
. asproved unless, after considering the matters before
-1t, it believes that the said circumstances existed or
. their existence was so probable that a prudent man
" ought, under the circumstances of the particular case,

~ to actupon the supposition that they did exist. To put

it in other words, the accused will have to rebut the
presumption that such circumstances did not exist, by
placing material before the court sufficient to make it
consider the existence of the said circumstances so
probable that a prudent man would act upon them.
The accused has to satisfy the standard of 2 ‘prudent
man’. If the material placed before the court, such as
oral and documentary evidence, presumptions,
-admissions or even the prosecution évidence, satisfies
the test of ‘prudent man’ the accused will have
discharged his burden. The evidence so placed may
not be sufficient to discharge the burden under Section
105 of the Evidence Act, but it may raise a reasonable
-doubt in the mind of a Judge as regards one or other
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of the necessary ingredients of the offence itself. It may,
for instance, raise a reasonable doubt in the mind of
the Judge. whether the accused had the requisite

. intention laid down in Section 299 of the Indian Penal

Code, If the Judge has such reasonable doubt, he has

‘to acquit the accused, for in that event the prosecution
. will have failed to prove conclusively the guilt of the

accused. There is no conflict between the general
burden, which is always on the prosecution and which
never shifts, and the special burden that rests on the
accused to make out his defence of insanity.”

12. After referring to various textbooks and the earlier
pronouncements of this Court, it was further held: (AIR p.
1568, para 7)

. .“7. The doctrine of burden of proof in the context of

the plea of insanity may be stated in the following
propositions: (1) The prosecution must prove beyond
reasonable doubt that the accused had committed the
offence with the requisite mens rea; and the burden of
proving that always rests on the prosecution from the
beginning to the end of the trial. (2) There isa rebuttable

_presumption that the accused was not insane, when he

committed the crime, in the sense laid down by Section
84 of the Indian Penal Code: the accused may rebut it
by placing before the court all the relevant evidence
— oral, documentary or circumstantial, but the burden
of proof upon him is no higher than that rests upon a
party to civil proceedings. (3) Even if the accused was
not able to establish conclusively that he was insane at
the time he committed the offence, the evidence placed
before the court by the accused or by the prosecution
may raise a reasonable doubt in the mind of the court
as regards one or more of the ingredients of the offence,
including méns rea of the accused and in that case the
court would be entitled to acquit the accused on the

. ground that the general burden of proofresting on the

/

/

/
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prosecution was not. discharged ” -

13. To the same effect is the _]udgment in thkarz v. State of
U.P. AIR 1966 SC 1."

37.  The Supreme Court in the case of Bapu alias Gu]raj Smgh Vs. State
of Rajasthan, teported in (2007) 8 SCC 66 has held as under:-

"7.Section 84 lays down the legal test of responsibility in cases
of alleged unsoundness of mind. There is no definition of
*“unsoundness of mind” in IPC. The courts have, however,
mainly treated this expression as equivalent toinsanity. But
the term “insanity” itself has no precise definition. Itis a term
used to describe varying degrees of mental disorder. So, every
person, who is mentally diseased, is not ipso facto exempted
from criminal responsibility. A distinction is to be made between
legal insanity and medical insanity. A court is concerned with

. legal insanity, and not with medical 1nsan1ty The burden of
proof rests on an accused to prove his insanity, which arises
by virtue of Section 105 of the Evidence Act, 1872 (m short
“the Evidence Act”) and is not so onerous as that upon the
prosecution to prove that the accused committed the act with
which he is charged. The burden on the accused is no higher
than that resting upon a plaintiff or a defendant in a civil -
proceeding. (See Dahyabhai Chhaganbhai Thakkar v. State
of Gujarat AIR 1964 SC 1563 ). In dealing with cases
involving a defence of insanity, distinction must be made
between cases, in which insanity is more or less proved and
the question is only as to the degree of irresponsibility, and

_ cases, in which insanity is sought to be proved in respect of a
person, who for all intents and purposes, appears sane. In all
cases, where previous insanity is proved or admitted, certain
con31derat10ns have to be borne in mind. Mayne summanses
them as follows:

" “Whether thiere was deliberation and preparation for the
act; whether it was done in a manner which showed a
desire to concealment; whether after the crime, the
offender showed consciousness.of guilt and made efforts
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to avoid detections, whether after his arrest, he offered
false excuses and made false statements. All facts of this
sort are material as bearing on the test, which Bramwall,
submitted to a jury in such a case: ‘Would the prisoner
have committed the act if there had been a policeman at
his elbow?’ It is to be remembered that these tests.are
good for cases in which previous insanity is more or less
established.”

These tests are not always reliable where there is, what Mayne
calls, “inferential insanity”.

8. Under Section 84 IPC, a person is exonerated from liability
for doing an act on the ground of unsoundness of mind if he, at
the time of doing the act, is either incapable of knowing (a) the
nature of the act, or (b) that he is doing what is either wrong or
contrary to law. The accused is protected not only when, on
account of insanity, he-was incapable of knowing the nature of
the act, but also when he did not know either that the act was
wrong or that it was contrary to law, although he might know
the nature of the act itself. He is, however, not protected if he -

" knew that what he was doing was wrong, even if he did not
know that it was contrary to law, and also if he knew that what
he was doing was contrary to law even though he did not know
that it was wrong. The onus of proving unsoundness of mind is
on the accused. But where during the investigation previous
history of insanity is revealed, it is the duty of an honest
investigator to subject the accused to a medical examination
and place that evidence before the court and if this is not done,
it creates a serious infirmity in the prosecution case and the
benefit of doubt has to be given to the accused. The onus,
however, has to be discharged by producing evidence as to
the conduct of the accused shortly prior to the offence and his
conduct at the time or immediately afterwards, also by evidence
of his mental condition and other relevant factors. Every person
is presumed to know the natural consequences of his act.
Similarly every person is also presumed to know the law. The
prosecution has not to establish these facts.
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9. There are four kinds of persons who may be said to be non
compos mentis (not of sound mind) i.e. (1) an idiot; (2) one
made non compos by illness; (3) a lunatic or a mad man; and
(4) one who is drunk. An idiot is one who is of non-sane
memory from his birth, by a perpetual infirmity, without lucid
intervals; and those are said to be idiots who cannot count
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twenty, or tell the days of the week, or who do not know their _ ‘
fathers or mothers, or the like, (see drchbold’s Criminal

Pleadings, Evidence and Practice, 35th Edn., pp. 31-32;

Russell on Crimes and Misdemeanors, 12th Edn., Vol.1, p.-

105; 1 Hale s-Pleas of the Crown 34). A person made non
compos mentis by illness is excused in criminal cases from

‘such acts as are committed while under the influence of this

disorder, (see 1 Hale PC 30). A lunatic is one who is afflicted
by mental disorder only at certain periods and vicissitudes,
having intervals of reason, (see Russell, 12th Edn., Vol. 1, p.

103; Hale PC 31). Madness is permanent. Lunacy and

madness are spoken of as acquired msanlty, and idiocy as
natural insanity. :

10. Section 84 embodies the fundamental maxim of criminal
law i.e. actus non reum facit nisi mens sit rea (an act does
not constitute guilt unless done with a guilty intention): In order
to constitute an offence, the intent-and act must concur; but in
the case of insane persons, no culpability is fastened on them
as they have no free will (furios is nulla voluntas est).

Hkkk K R R

13. The standard to be applied is whether according to the
ordinary standard, adopted by reasonable men, the act was
right or wrong. The mere fact that an accused is conceited,
odd, irascible and his brain is not quite all right, or that the

- physical and mental ailments from which he suffered had

rendered his intellect weak and had-affected his emotions and

. will, or that he had committed certain unusual acts in the past,

or that he was liable to recurring fits of insanity at short
intervals, or that he was subject to getting epileptic fits but
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there was nothing abnormal in his behaviour, or that his
behaviour was- queer, -cannot be sufficient to attract the
application of this section.” :

38. The Sﬁpr'eine’(llou'rt in the case of Sudhakaran Vs. State of Kerala,
reported in (2010) 10 SCC 582 has held as under :-

""33. This Court has on several occasions examined the
standard of proof that is required to be discharged by the
appellant to get the benefit of Section 84 IPC, We may make
a reference here to the observation made in Dahyabhai
Chhaganbhai Thakkar v. State of Gujarat4. The relevant
aspects of the law and the material provisions relating to the
plea of insanity were noticed and considered as follows: (AIR
pp. 1566-67, para 5)

“S. ... Penal Code

“299. Culpable homicide.—Whoever causes death by
doing an act with the intention of causing death, or with the
intention of causing such bodily injury as is likely to cause
-death, or with the knowledge that he is likely by such act
to cause death, commits the offence of culpable homicide.

‘84. Act of a person of unsound mind.—Nothing is an
-offence which is done by a person who, at the time of
doing it, by reason of unsoundness of mind, is incapable of
knowing the nature of the act, or that he is doing what is
either wrong or contrary to law.’ :

Evidence Act

*105. Burden of proving that case of accused comes
within exceptions.—When a person is accused of any

- offence, the burden of proving the existence of
circumstances bringing the case within any of the General
Exceptions in the Indian Penal Code (45 of 1860), or within

- any special exception or proviso contained in any other
part of the same Code, orin any law defining the offence,

is upon him, and the court shall presume the absence of
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such circumstances.’ .

. “Shall presume’ —Wf-lene_ver itis directed.by this

Act that the court shall presuine a fact, it shall regard such
fact as proved unless and until it is dlsproved >

l‘3 “Proved ”.—A fact is said to be proved when, after

considering the matters before it, the court either believes
it to exist, or considers it$ existence so probable that a
prudent man ought, under the circumstances of ‘the
 particular case, to act upon the supposition that it exists.

"Disproved —Afact is said to be dlsproved when, after
* considering the matters before it, the court either believes

that it does not exist, or considers its non- existence so
probable that a prudent man ought, under the circutnstances
of the particular case to act upon the supposmon that it
docs not exist.’

101. Burden of proof —Whoever desires any court to

.. give judgment as to any legal right or liability dependent

on the existence of facts which he asserts, must prove that
those facts exist. 2 :

" When a'person is bound to prove the exlstence of any

fact, itis said “that the burden of proof lieson that person

Itisa fundamental prmcxple of criminal jurisprudence

: that an accused is presumed to be innocent and, therefore,
- the burden lies on the prosecution to prove the guilt of the
-accused beyond. reasonable doubt. The. prosecution,
- therefore, in a case of homicide shall prove beyond

reasonable doubt that the accused caused death with the

. Tequisite intention described.in Section 299 of the Penal

Code. This general burden never shifts and it always rests
on the prosecution, But, Section .84 of the Penal Code
provides that nothing is an offence if the accused at the
time of doing that act, by reason of unsoundness of mind
was mcapable of knowing the nature of his act or what he
“ was doing was either wrong or contrary to law. This bemg

2521
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an exception, under Section 105 of the Evidence Act the
burden of proving the existence of circumstances bringing
the case within the said exception lies on the accused, and
the court shall presume the absence of such circumstances.
Under Section 105 of the Evidence Act, read with the
definition of *shall presume’ in Section 4 thereof, the court
shall regard the absence of such circumstances as proved
unless, after considering the matters before it, it believes
that the said circumstances existed or their existence was
s0 probable that a prudent man ought, under the
circumstances of the particular case, to act upon the
supposition that they did exist. To put it in other words,
the accused will have to rebut the presumption that such
circumstances did not exist, by placing material before the
court sufficient to make it consider the existence of the
said circumstances so probable that a prudent man would
act upon them. The accused has to satisfy the standard of
a ‘prudent man’. If the material placed before the court,
such as, oral and documentary evidence, presumptions,

- admissions or even the prosecution evidence, satisfies the
test of ‘prudent man’ the accused will have discharged his
burden. The evidence so placed may not be sufficient to
discharge the burden under Section 105 of the Evidence
Act, but it may raise a reasonable doubt in the mind of a
Judge as regards one or other of the necessary ingredients
of the offence itself. It may, for instance, raise a reasonable
doubt in the mind of the Judge whether the accused had
the requisite intention laid down in Sectiori 299 of the Penal
Code. Ifthe J Lfdge has such reasonable doubt, he has to
acquit the accused, for in that event the prosecution will
have failed to prove conclusively the guilt of the accused.
There is no conflict between the general burden, which is

- always on the prosecution and which never shifts, and the
special burden that rests on the accused to make out his
defence of insanity.”

34. Thereafter, upon further consideration, this Court defined
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e ) The prosecutxon must prove,beyond reasonable.

. doubt that the [appellant] had committed the offence with.
. the requisite mens rea; and the burden of proving that..-
always rests-on the prosecution from the beginning to the -
.end ofthetrlal T T N

*"(2) There'isa rebuttable presumptlon that the [appellant]

: was not insane, when hé committed the ¢fime; in the sense

: laid down'by- Section'84 of the Penal Code: the [appellant]
may rebut it by placing before the court all the relevant *
evidéncé — oral; documentary or circumstaritial, but the

- buirden of proof upon him isno hlgher than that rests upon

-a party to civil proceedlngs

' l (3 ). Even if the [appellant] was not able to estahhsh
concluswely that he was insane at the time he commiitted -
the.offence, the ev1dence placed] before the court by the .
[appellant] or by the prosecutlon may raise a reasonable
" doubt in the mind of the court as regards one or more of '
 the ingredients of the offence, incliding mensrea of the **

,[appellant] and in that.case the court-would be entitled to' ¢

_ acquit the [appellant] on the ground that the gener_aIAburden

. of proof resting on the prosecution-was not discharged‘ Z

| ) of timé for ascertammg the existence of c1rcumstances bnngmg
‘ the caseé within the purvxew of Section 84 is the'time when the
offeric€'is comm1tted "We may notice here the observat1ons
made by this Céurt in Ratan“'Lal v. State of M P (1970) 37
SCC 5331971 8€cC (Crz)) 139 .In'para 2 of the aforesaid

S I

IUdgment itisheld as follows: (SCCp 533)a m T

. “It 1s now well settled that the crucxal pomt of hme at whmh
unsoundness of mmd should be estabhshed isthetime when :

111'
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the crime is actually committed and the burden of proving
this lies on the [appellant].”

39.  The Supreme Court in the case of Surendra Mishra Vs. State of
Jharkhand reported in (2011) 11 SCC 495 has held as under :-

"11. In our opinion, an accused who secks exoneration from
liability of an act under Section 84 of the Penal Code is to
prove legal insanity and not medical insanity. Expression
“unsoundness of mind” has not been defined in the Penal Code
and it has mainly been treated as equivalent to insanity. But the
term “insanity” carries different meaning in different contexts
and describes varying degrees of mental disorder. Every person
who is suffering from mental disease is not ipso facto exempted
from criminal liability. The mere fact that the accused is
conceited, odd, irascible and his brain is not quite all right, or
that the physical and mental ailments from which he suffered
had rendered his intellect weak and affected his emotions or
indulges in certain unusual acts, or had fits of insanity at short
intervals or that he was subject to epileptic fits and there was
abnormal behaviour or the behaviour is queer, are not sufficient
to attract the application of Section 84 of the Penal Code.

12. The next question which needs consideration is as to on
whom the onus lies to prove unsoundness of mind.

13. In law, the presumption is that évery person is sane to the
extent that he knows the natural consequences of his act. The
burden of proof in the face of Section 105 of the Evidence Act
is on the accused. Though the burden is on the accused but he
- is not required to prove the same beyond all reasonable doubt,
but merely satisfy the preponderance of probabilities. The onus .
has to be discharged by producing evidence as to the conduct
of the accused prior to the offence, his conduct at the time or
immediately after the offence with reference to his medical
condition by production of medical evidence and other relevant
factors. Even if the accused establishes unsoundness of mind,
Section 84 of the Penal Code will not come to its rescue, in
case it is found that the accused knew that what he was doing
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was wrong orthat it was contrary to law. In order to ascertain

that, it is imperative to take into consideration the circumstances .

and the behaviour preceding, attending and following the crime.
Behaviour of an accuséd pertaining to a desire for concealment
of the weapon of offence and conduct t6 avoid detection of
crime go a long way to ascertain as to whether, he knew the
consequences of the act done by him.”

14, Reference in this connection can be made to a decision of
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this Court in T N. Lakshmaiah v. State of Karnataka (2002) -

1 SCC 219, in which it has been held as follows: (SCC p.
224, paras 9 11)

“9, Under the Evidence Act, the onus of proving any of
the exceptions mentioned in the Chapter lies on the accused
though the requisite standard of proof is not the same as
- expected from the prosecution. It is sufficient if an accused
is able to bring his case within the ambit of any of the
general exceptions by the standard of preponderance of
probabilities, as a result of which he may succeed not

because that he proves his case to the hilt but because the

version given by him casts a doubt on the prosecution case.

10.In State of M.P. v. Ahmadulla AIR 1961 SC 998 this

Court held that the burden of proofthat the mental condition

of the accused was, at the crucial point of time, such as is
described by the section, lies on thé accused who claims

the benefit of this exemption vide Section 105 of the -
Evidence Act [Illustration (@)]. The settled position of law

is that every man is presumed to be sane and to possess a

sufficient degree of reason to be responsible for his acts .

unless the contrary is proved. Mere ipse dixit of the

.accused is not enough for availing of the benefit of the -

exceptions under Chapter IV,

11. In a case where the. exccptlon under Scctlon 84 of
the Indian Penal Code is claimed, the court has to consider

whether, at the time of commxssmn of the offence, the

accused, by reason of unsoundness of mind, was mcapable
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~of knowmg the nature of the act or that he is doing what is |
erther Wrong or contrary to law The entrre conduct of the -
accused from the ttme of the commission of the offence.
up to the tlme the sessions proceedmgs commenced is,.

" Televant for the purpose of ascertaining as to whether pleah
ralsed was genuine, bona ﬁde or an afterthough »

40, Thus, it is clear that the burden to prove that the oﬁ'ence was comrmtted
on account of insanity is on the accused/appellant The Crucial point of
ascertaining ex1stence of i 1nsamty is the time when the offence is commrtted
Absence of motive to commit offence cannot bea ground to prove 1nsamty
To prove the insanity or unsoundness of the mind of the accused his previous
as well as post mental status may be considered. Further every insanity is not
legal insanity and there may be a case, where aperson may be suffering from
Medical insanity but it may not be sufficient to treat the same as legal insanity -
. so asto give beneﬁt of Sectron 84 of LP.C. - 3 :

41. If the facts of thé case are cons1dered then 1t would be clear that the
witnesses namely Gendalal (P W.1), Munmbar (P.W.2) KaSIa (P.W.5),

" Surnitrabai (P.W.6) Ramkobar ®. W.7). have spec1ﬁcally stated that the applicant

was suﬁ'ermg from mental drsorder for near about 2. years pnor to the date of
mcrdent, but surpnsmgly, the Public Prosecutor decrded not to declare Gendalal
(PW-1) and Munnibai (PW-2) hosfile o this issue. The Trial Coutt in para2l
of the judgment has held that as these . witnesses had not-stateéd about the
insanity of the appellant either in the ELR.or in their case diary statements,
therefore, it appears that they are not telling the truth before the Court. Section -
145 of Evidence Act requires, that the witness has to be ¢onfronted with his/
her previous statement and-in absence of wh1ch any omissionin the previous
statement cannot be taken into consideration. = . * s s

42, The Supreme Court in'the case of Karan Smgh Vs State of M.P.
reported i in (2003) 12 SCC 587 has held as uuder -

"S. When a prevrous statement istobe proved asan ad.mlssmn
the statement as such should be put to-the witness and if the
witness denies having given sucha statement it does not amount
to any admission and if it is proved that he had glven sucha
statement the attention of thé witnéss must be drawn to that
statement Sectron 145'of the Evrdence Acti is clearon thrs

1.
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" -aspect. The object is to give the witness a chanée'of explaining
= the discrepancy or inconsisténcy and to clear up the particular .
- point of ambiguity or dispute. In'the instant case, Ext. D-4
* statément as such was not put-to thé witness nor was the
- witness given an opportunity to explain it. Therefore, Ext. D-4
- statement, even if it is assurhed to be a statement of PW 1
. Hari Singh, that is of no a351stance to the appellants to’ prove -
- their case of pnvate defence."” :

. 43,  The Public Prosecutor relied upon the J udgment'passed by the Supreme
Court in the case of Dahyabhaz Chhaganbhm Thakkar Vs. State of
Gujarat reported in AIR 1964, SC 1563, submltted that when the witnesses
had not stated in thejr case dlary statements w1th regard to the i insanity of the
appellant then it should be presumed that the appellant was not insane either
priorto mcldent or at the time of incident. The submlssmn made by the Counsel
for the State cannot be accepted fora smgle reason, that in the said case, the
witnesses were, confronted with their previous statements whereas in the
' present case, Gendalal (PW—I) and Munn1ba1 (PW-2) were not declared
hostile.on the questlon of insanity of the appellant. The Supreme Court in the )
case of Dahyabhat Chhaganbhaz Thakkar (Supra) has held as under :-

8. Now we come to the merits of'the case. Ordinarily this

: Court in exercise of its Jurisdiction-under Art. 136 of the

. ‘Constitution accepts the findings of fact arrived at by the High
Court. But after having gone throuigh'the judgments'ofthe

" learned Additional Sessions Judge and the High Court, we
‘are satisfied that this is an exceptional case to depart from the

~ said practice. The learned Additional Sessions Judge rejected

- -the evidence of the prosecution witnesses on the ground that

»  their version was a subsequent developnient designed to help

“the accused. The'learned Judges of the High Court-accepted

- theirevidence for two different reasons. Raju, J.; held that 2

" court can pernnt a party calling a witness to put questions

- under S: 154 of the Evidence Act only-in the examination-in-

chief of the witness; for this'conclusion, he has given the
following two reasons: (1) the wording of Ss. 137 and 154 of

. the Evidence Act indicatesit; and (2) if he is permitted to put

" questions in the nature of cross-examination at the stage of
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re-examination by the party, the adverse party will have no
chance of cross-examining the witness with reference to the
answers given to the said questions. Neither of the two reasons,
in our view, is tenable. Section 137 of the Evidence Act gives
only the three stages, in the examination of a witness, namely
examination-in-chief, cross-examination and re-examination.

"This is a routine sequence in the examination of a witness. This

has no relevance to the question when a party calling a witness
can be permitted to put to him questions under S. 154 of the

_Evidence Act: that is govérned by the provisions of S. 154 of

the said Act, which confers a discretionary power on the court
to permit a person who calls 2 witness to put any questions to
him which might be put in cross-examination by the adverse
party. Section 154 does not in terms, or by necessary implication
confine the exercise of the power by the court before the
examination-in-chief is concluded or to any particular stage of
the examination of the witness. It is wide in scope and the

discretion is entirely left to the court to exercise the power

when the circumstances demand. To confine this power to the

stage of examination-in-chiefis to make it ineffective in practice.

A clever, witness in his examination-in-chief faithfully conforms
to what he stated earlier to the police or in the committing
court, but in the cross-examination introduces statementsin a
subtle way contradicting in effect what he stated in the
examination-in-chief. If his design is obvious, we do not see

_why the court cannot, during the course of his cross-

examination, (sic-re-examination) permit the person calling him
as witness to put questions to him which might be put in cross-
examination by the adverse party. To confine the operation of
S. 154 of the Evidence Act to a particular stage in the

. &xamination of a witness is to read words in the section which

are not there. We cannot also agree with the High Court that if
a party calling a witness is permitted to put such questions to
the witness after he has been cross-examined by the adverse
party, the adverse party will not have any opportunity to further
cross-examine the witness on the answets ¢licited by putting
such questions. In such an event the court certainly, in exercise

3]
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of its discretion, will permit the adverse party to cross-examine
the witness on the answers elicited by such questions. The
court, therefore, can permit a person, who calls a witness, to
put’ questions to him which might be put in the cross-
examination at any stage of the examination of the witness,
provided it takes care to give an opportunity to the accused
to cross-examine him on the answers elicited which do not
find place in the examination-in-chief, In the present case what

. happened was that some of the witnesses faithfully repeated
what they had stated before the police in the examination-in-
chief, but in the cross-examination they came out with the story
of insanity of the accused. The court, at the request of the
Advocate for the prosecution, permitted him to cross-examine

the said witnesses. It is not suggested that the Advocate

.appearing for the accused asked for a further opportunity to
cross-examine the witnesses and was denied of it by the court,

The procedure followed by the learned J udge does not conflict

" with the express provisions of S. 154 of the Evidence Act.

Mehta. J., accepted the evidence of the witnesses on the ground

' that the earlier statements made by them, before the police

did not contradict their evidence in the court, as the non-

mention of the mental state of the accused in the earlier

_statements was only an omission. This reason given by the

learned Judge is also not sound. This Court in Tahsildar Singh

v. State of U. P. (1959) Supp (2) SCR 875 at p. 903 : (AIR

. 1959 SC 1012 at p. 1026) laid down the following text, for

' ascertaining under what circumstances an alleged omission can
be relied upon to contradict the positive evidence in court:

-.-(3) though a particular statement is not expressly recorded,

" a statement that can be deemed to be. part of that expressly
recorded can be used for contradiction, not because it is an
_omission strictly so-called but because it is deemed to form
part of the recorded statement; (4) such a fiction is permissible
by constructlon only in the followmg three cases: (i) whena
recital is necessanly implied from the recital or recitals found

in the statement ... . : (if) a negative aspect of a positive recital
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in a statement ......, and (iii) when the statement before the
police and that before the Court cannot stand
together......"Broadly stated, the position in the present case
is that the witnesses in their statements before the police
. attributed a clear intention to the accused to commit murder,
but before the court they stated that the accused was insane
and therefore, he committed the murder. In the circumstances
.it was necessarily implied in the previous statements of the
witnesses before the police that the accused was not insane at
the time he committed-the murder. In this view the previous
statements of the witnesses before the police can be used to
contradict their version in the court. The judgment of the High
. Court, therefore, in relying upon some of the important
prosecutlon withesses was vitiated by the said errors of law. i
We would, therefore, proceed to consider the entire evidence
. “for ourselves.

9 When a plea of legal 1nsan1ty is set up, ‘the court has to
consider whether at the time of commission of the offence the
accused, by redson of unsoundness of mind, was mcapable of
knowing thé nature of the act ot that he was doing what was
either wrong or contrary to law. The crucial point of time for
h ascertalmng the state of mind of the accused is the time when
"the offence was committed. Whether the accused was in such
a state of mind as to be entitled to ‘the benefit of S. 84 of the
" Indian Penal Code can only be established from the
clrcmnstances which preceded attended and followed the
" crime.” :

44, Further, the Trial Court has disbelieved the defence of the appellant
under Section 84 of LP.C., on the ground that in his statement under Section
313 of Cr.P.C., he had not taken a specific stand that the offence was committed
on account of insanity. This singular circumstance by itselfis not sufficient to
discard the defence of the appellant. Another reason for discardiné the defence
of the appellant is the recovery of blood stained farsa and shirt. As per F.S.L.

report Ex.P.25, blood was found on farsa and shirt but there is no evidence
on record that whether the blood was human blood and what was the blood

group. i

-
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~:The Supréme Court in the case of Kansa Bekera Vs: State of Orzssa
: reported in (1987) 3 SCC 480 has held asunder:<.. 2% 7 Lo

eyt T

"12 As regards the recovery of a sh1rt of A dhot1 w1th bloodstams ,
whrch accordmg to the serologrst sreportwere starned w1th human :
e * "Blood but there isno ewdence inthe report of the serologlst about -
" the group of the blood and therefore it could not posmvely be y
" connected w1th the deceased In the evrdence of the Inveshgatmé
N Ofﬁcer or iri the report 1t is not clearly mennoned asto what - ’
" werg the dlmensmns of the stams ofblood Fe ew srnall bloodstams
“onthe clothes of apersonmay even be of hisown bIood especxally
' .. :_"1f itisa vﬂIager puttmg on these clothes and hvmg in v111ages 'Ihe
f evrdence about the bIood group is only concluswe to connect the
bloodstams w1th the deceased That ev1dence is absent andin _ s
thls v1ew of the matter in our oplmon “even this i 1s not a .- .-

bt Sierimstaince on the Basis ofwhrch any j mference couId be drawn." .

|, 46, Therefore inabsence of any, ev1dence to prove t that humanpblood-was .
I Yfgind of the farsa as weII as on the Shrrt recovered from the possessron of -
the appellarit, it cannot bé said that the prosecutlon has proved beyond
. reasonable doubt:that the seizéd fafsa is'the. weapon-of offence and‘the
appellant was wearing the same shirt at the time of incident. In the present
case, one important aspect of the mattet, is. that the appellant had alsg sustained
incised wound therefore, "his shirt was bound to be stained withi blood. Thus,
it was obligatory on the part of the prosecution to prove that the shirt and the
farsa were stained with human blood and further what was the blood group?
As already mentioned, as per the F.S.L. report Ex. P.25 only blood was found
- on these-two:articles.The réport is not clear'that whether the'blood was
"human blood or not: Therefore; the recovery of blood stained farsa and Shirt
- cannot be consrdered to be an mcnmmatmg (;Ircumstance

4

47 -If the'facts and circumstances of the case are con51dered in the: hght of
the evidence of Gendalal (P.W.1), Munnibai (P.W:2)Kasid (P.W.5), Sumitrabai
(P.W. 6) Ramkobai (P.W. 7) 1t is clear that these witnésses have - specifically
stated that thie appellant was of unsound mmd for. the last near about 2 years
‘prior t6 the incident and he had' comrmtted the oﬁ'ence on account of msamty
and these witnesses were either not declared hostile on this i 1ssue or nothing
could be elicited from their evidence which may indicate that the'appellant
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was not of unsound mind. Further, under the facts and circumstances of the
cas¢, non-filing of the medical documents showing the treatment of the appellant
prior to incident doesnot appear to be fatal in the light of the subsequent
mental condition of the appellant, as deposed by Dr. Sunil Bhaskar Joshi
(P.W.17) as well as the fact that even the Trial had remained stayed for near
about 10 long years under Section 329 of Cr.P.C. Thus, in the considered
opinion of this Coirt, the appellant has succeeded in proving his defence that
he had committed the offence ori account of i insanity and therefore, it is held
* that the appellant is entitled for the benefit of Section 84 of LP. C. As nothing
is an offence if it is committed, if by reason of unsoundness of mind, the accused
was 1ncapable of knowing the nature of the act, or that he is doing what is
either wrong or contrary to law; therefore, the appellant is acquitted of charges
under Sections 302 (on two counts) and 307 of LP.C. As already held that
the prosecution has failed to prove that the appellant had tried to commit
suicide by causing self—lnﬂlcted injury on his neck, therefore he is also.acquitted
- of charge under Section 309 of I. P c.

"48.  Thejudgment and sentence dated 17-6-2002 passed by Additional
Sess1ons Judge, Guna in S.T. No.149/ 1991 is hereby set aside. -

49.  The appellant is not on bail, therefore, he be released nnmedlately, if
not required in-any other case.

50. " The appeal succeeds and is hereby allowed. ’ _
. Appeal allowed,
Per :Sheel Nagu, J o '

1.. I am in full agteement with the view taken and the foundatlonal reasons
assigned by my learned brother while acquitting the appellant.

2. ° However, ] am compelled to write a few words to express by anguish
 arising from the disturbing fact of appellant having to suffer 26 (twenty six)
long years-of i 1nca:cerat10n before bemg acqultted

3. 'Iin my usual nonchalance can very well turn a Nelson's eye towards -
* this disturbing feature by terming it to be a systermc defect but my conscience
“unpels me to do otherwxse

4. Itis forthe executive and as welI the judiciary to take remedial steps
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!, to prevent recurrence of such instances where rendering of judgment becomes

a source for remorse rather than relief. Appellant Pratap was arrested in April,

. 1991. Pratap faced a long drawn prosecution, interspersed by repeated stay

of trial which concluded in June 2002 by convicting him whereafter this appeal
took 15 (fifteen) long years to culmmate into this _]udgment upholdlng the
defence.of innocence.

5. I hope, trust and pray. to God that we judges, the executive and
legislative functionaries of the State and the Union get strength and inclination
to come out from our comfort zones and become more sensitive towards the
grievance of the persons like appellant Pratap by making the necessary changes
on the legislative, executive and JudlClal front to prevent another Pratap to
crop up and shake our-conscience again.

LL.R. [2017] M.P., 2533
ARBITRATION CASE
Before Mr. Justice Prakash Shrivastava -
Arb.C. No. 14/2015 (Indore) decided on 1 August, 2017

INDIAN CONSTRUCTION CO.(GUJ ) LTD. B ‘ ...Applicant
Vs. S
INDORE MUNICIPAL CORPORATION & anr, Non-applicahts

A MadhyasthamAdhtkaranAdhimyam, M.P. (29 of 1983),
Section 2(1)(g) ‘Chapter 36 — Public Undertaking — Any Government

' Company includinga Corporatlon & Statutory authority satisfying the

conditions of definition isa public undertaking — Municipal Corporation
is substantially controlled by the State Government therefore it is 2
public undertaking— No separate notification for public undertaking
required. : ' (Para 15 & 16)

- ey AT AT, #y (1983 BT 29), aer 2{1)(cA1)

— ETY 36 — @iF GIHH - Big W FE e fm @ s

wiftrew wifE &, w‘tﬁwﬁwaﬁm’raﬁv@wzmﬁ w aF
9Um 2 _m‘ﬁmmmﬁmmmﬁnﬁaamw
s ate SUmT ¢ - dtw Suma @ frg 1 qurs aftrpE-antitve 5w

B.  Madhyastham Adhikaran Adhiniyam, M.P. (29 of 1983),
Section 2 (1)(i) - Agreement for execution of works contract - Applicant

r
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..having remedy-to approach Arbitration Tribunal under section 7(1) of
.the Madhyastham ‘Act — Application under-section 11(6) of the
:- Arbitration and: Conclllatlon Act, 1996 not.maintainable -Appllcatlon
rejected A S (Para18)

" er 3 Waﬁ?ﬁwmﬁww 77, (1983 #7 29), 577?7'2(1)(37739
— @19 G & Fragres 3 Ry aviv— mwﬁmmaﬁm
aﬁamrh)a*araﬂamwafﬁaww%mmﬁmw@—
e AR ow aftifrm, 1996 B TR 11(e)$ a‘cm‘a :mﬁa-vr Iﬁwn'u
CTEY @ anﬂaam#’mrm

LIS

Cases referred e

A - v L,

2013 (3)MPLJ 434 (2016) 4 8CC 750, AIR 1991'MP. 233, (2009)
2 SCC 486.

nLo ISP N
" K.G Sukhwani, ‘fé"r tﬁe apfaii(:aﬁt' FRRE
AmkerNaik for- the non- apphcams S TR AL

- P
cyorn b Lo LS

ORDER

ey

PRAKASH SIIRIVASTAVA, J. - By th1s arbltratron case filed under

. Section 11(6) of the Arbltratlon and Conciliation Act, 1996 a prayer has beén

made by the applicant for appomtmg the mdependent arbltrator for resolvmg
«thédispute between the: partles DO ak et Llrnnsiind

ratrl T Tyl e e FR Rodh Y " H - a

’ 2 tThe case of the apphcant is, that the Respondent- Indore Munwlpal

Corporatlon had awarded the contract to the apphcant for constructlon of -

overflow splllway across rrver Gambhlr and the work order dated 18 4.2007
) was 1ssued with strpulated penod of 24 months The completron of the work
' was delayed for certain reasons and the completlon certificate was ﬁnalIy
" isstied on 30.9.2012. Certain amount was withheld by the respondent-

. Municipal Corpcration, therefor, the’ applicant had s sent the letter dated -

. 21.5.2012-a1id 26.9.2012; The defect llablhty period of 24 months’ explred
" oni 30.9.2014; therefore, vidéletter dated 13.10.2014 a reqtiest was made
by the dpplicant for rétaining Rs.20-Lakhs and releasing the balance difiotint
* “but the respondent-Muniicipal Corporation Tetained'more than the said’ amouint
and had released only Rs.45,32,727/-., . According to the.applicant, he s entitled
to a sum of Rs 5 75 74 381 50 The apphcant had seryed the notice dated

[}
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21.4.2015 on the Commissioner and made unsuccessful attempt to serve notice
dated 21.4.2015 and 15.5.2015 to the Englneer-m-charge and the Pl‘Q]CCt .
Oficet. Théreafter Hotice dated 2: 7. 201 5 was sent to appomt the panel of

 arbitrator in térms'of the arbrtratlon clause ‘Slnce no actron was taken by the

respondents ‘therefore, present arbitration case 1s ﬁled T

R O L Y J‘e-‘.'l.;.’.. e

3. The respondents have filed the reply takmg the stand that the. work

' awarded o the applicant was'in the nature .of Works Contract and _the:

. respondent—Indore Municipal Corporation is a public undertaking, therefore,

the apphcant has remedy to seek arbitration under the M.P; Madhyastham:

) AdhlkaranAdhnnyam 1983 (E or _shqrtﬁ“Madhyas._tham Act”) and the present :

application is not maintainablé and that the bills-of:the applicant have been -
settled and the claim has now become time barred. e

LN
PR

4. . Corei 1ssue is as to.whether the:Indore Municipal Corporatlon isa~
pubhc undertaklng as def' ned in Section 2(1) (g) of the Madhyastham Act-.
and apphcant has remedy before the Madhyastham Tribupal? - YT

5. = »TCoursel for both the partles have rehed upon the Judgments of thrs

"Couttas'well 4s the-Hon’ble SupremeCourt in support of thelr submrssron

In order to: find out if the aforesaid i issuei§ concluded by any of them these

judgriiénts are examrned at the ﬁrst mstance ety e
\ !r"ic-"_""rl" B AP ‘--."__

i N LR i -

6. Learned counsel for the respondents has referred to the Full Bench

! |udgment of this Court in the matter of' GulabBai wd/é Shriram Chandra

Sanotia and others Vs..Subhash Chandra reported in 2013(3) MPLJ
434 but the said Judgrnent was. deh\_{e__re_d in- _dtfferent,context wherein the .
issue was in respect of the.entitlement of.a landlord, who. was a retired
employeelo_f—the Municipal Corporation, to.approach the Rent.Controlling
Authority under Section 23-A of the M.P..Accommodation Control Act.
In the-definition of landlord under ‘Section 23-J, retired servant of a
Company- owned and ‘cosifrolled” “either by the Central or, State
Governmert; ate covered. The said deﬁnrtron is materrally dlfferent from
the definitiofi- 6f publié undertaklng glven 1n Sectlon 2(1)(g) ‘of the
Madhyastham Act. Even othérwise in thé matter Of Subihash Chandra

:Vs. Gulab Bai and.others. reported in:(2016):4 SCC 750,:the Hon’ble

Supreme Court has referred the matter:to the:larger-bench for

.

mterpretatmn of Sectron 23 {J )(n) of the M P Accommodatron Control

il [ r'l
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7. In another judgment in the matter of 4 dmzmstrator Mumczpal
Corporation, Drug and others Vs. M/s. Janico Des:gners and Executors,
Drug reported in AIR 1991 M.P. 233 before the Full Bench of this Court
issue of arbitrability by Madhyastham Tribunal had come up, wherein the _
Municipal Corporation was superseded and administrator was appointed,
therefore, the full bench had taken the view that for the dispute between the
administrator and contractor executing the municipal work, the Madhyastham
Tribunal was competent to adjudicate, but in that case the issue if the Municipal
Corporation is a Public Undertaking either owned or controlled by the
Government within the meamng of Sectlon 2( 1)(g) of the Madhyastham Act,
was left open.

8. Leamed counsel for the applicant has placed reliance upon the judgment
of the Supreme Court in the matter of Om Construction Company Vs.
Ahmedabad Municipal Corporation and Another reported in (2009) 2 SCC
486, wherein in reference to the Gujarat Public Works Contracts Disputes
Arbitration Tribunal Act, 1992, the Ahmedabad Municipal Corporation has
not been held to be a Public Undertaking on the ground that the notification in
that regard under Section 2(1)(i) of the Gujarat Act was not pubhshed Section
2(1)(i) of the Guj arat Act defines Publlc Undertaking as under:-

“Public Undertakmg means:-

(i) any cOmpany as defined in section 3 of the
Companies Act, 1956 in which not less than fifty-one per cent
of the paid up share capital is held by the State Government or
any company which is a subsidiary (within the meanmg of the
Act) of the first mentioned company. '

(ii) any corporation (not being a company as
defined in section 3 of the Companies Act, 1956 or a local
authonty) established by or under a Céntral Act or a State Act
and owned or controlled by the State Government.

(iif) such class of local authorities as the State
Government may, by notification in the Offictal Gazette, specify.

“In terms of sub-section (iii) above separate notlﬁcatlon for local
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' authoritiés is necessary. Though sub-section (ii) is in respect of Corporation -

' but local authorities are expressly excluded. The language of Séction 2(1)(g)
of the Madhyastham Act is different, therefore, the present issue can not be
held to be concluded by above Judgment and benefit of above Judgment cannot
be granted to the apphcant :

9. Since no authoritative pronouncement on the issue involved has been :
pointed out, therefore, the issue is examined in the light of the prov1smns of
Madhyastham Act and the Municipal Corporation Act.

10.  Areference under the Madhyastham Act ¢an be made to the tribunal
under Section 7(1) by a party to a works contract, which reads as under:-

| 1. Reference to Tribunal.-

(1) Either party to a works contract shall irrespecti\?e ofthe
fact whether the agreement contains anarbitration clause or
not, refer in writing the d1Spute to the Tribunal.

l 11.  Itisnotindispute in the present ¢dsé that the work awarded to the

appltcant was in the nature of Works Contract but the only dlspute raised by
the applicant is that the Indore Municipal Corporation is not a public
undertaking for the purpose of Madhyastham Act.- :

12.  The contention of learned counsél for the appllcant is that for

 approdching Madhyastham Tribunal under Sécion 7(1) as against Municipal

Corporation, a separate notification under Section 2(1)(1) of the Act for the
Municipal Corporatlon isrequired. - -

13. - Section 2(1)(i) defines works contract and re'a'ds as under:-

Section 2(1 )i) :-

_ “Works Contract” means an agreement in writing for :

_ the execution of any work relating to-construction, repair or *
maintenance of any building or superstructure, dam, weir, canal; - -
reservoir, tank, lake, road, well, bridge, culvert, factory, work- : -

. .shop, powerhousé, transformers or such other works ofthe . = -
... State Government or Public Undertaking as the State *
Government may, by notification, specify in this behalf at any
of its stages, entered into by the State Government or by an
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.+ official of the State Government or Publi¢ Undertaking or its
.. official for and on behalf of such -Public Undettaking and
- includes an agreement for the supply of' goods or material and
-all.other matters relating to thc execution‘of any of the sard- '
work.” 3 S

14. - A minute examination of above definitionreveals that the présence of
followmg ingredients is necessary for holdmg an agreement to be d Works _
Contract:- o : '

PR

~{(a) - There should b‘eanagre’em‘ent in writing. =
(b)) Thé agreement should be for the execution of any work '
relating to construction, repair of maintenance of'a any ’
. building or superstructure, dam, weir, canal, reservoir,
' tank, lake road, well, bridge, culvert factory, work-
shop, powerhouse transformers

.. (€ = The agreement can also be for such other works of the -
' “  State Government or Pubhc Undertakmg as the State .
! Government by notrﬁcatron speclfy at any ofits stages .

(d) The agreement. should be‘entered into. by the State a
) Govemment or an official of the State Government or
o Pubhc Undertakmg orits ofﬁc1al for and on behalf of .
such Pubhc Undertakmg

LE)

(e) Such agreement also mcludes an agreement-for supply -
. of goods and material and 511 matters relating to the -
“execution of the said work.

15. ° The phrase “such other works of the Staté Government or Public
Undertaking as tli€ State Government may; by notification, spécify in this behalf
atany of its stages” is-a single-phrase and notification mentioned therein is
referable to the work to be executed under the-agreeiment and hot to the
Public Undertaking, meaning thereby, by riotification the State Government
can specify other works-also at-any stage to be covered by the definition. If
the petitioner’s contention that the notification in above definition refers to the
Public Undertaking is accepted, then the phrase “at any of its stages” becomes
otiose. On reading the aforesaid definition as a whole, it is clear that no separate
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Notification for Public Undertaking is required. '

16.  Sucha submission can not be accepted also becﬁuse Section é(l)(g)
'of the Madhyastham Act separately defines Public Undertaking as under:~

_ “Public Undertaking” means a Government Company
. within the meaning of Section 617 of the Companies Act, 1956
(No.1 of 1956) and includes a Corporation or other statutory
body by whatever name called in each case, wholly or
substantially owned or controlled by the State Government.”

Any Government Company including a c_o'rpdration and statutory
authority satisfying the conditions of above definition, is a Public Undertaking
for the purposes of the Madhyastham Act. Under above definifion clause a
Corporation or other statutory body substantially controlled by the State
Government falls within the net of public undertaking.

,17.. To examine the issue if Indore Municipal Corporation is substantiélly
controlled by the State Government, the provisions of Municipal Corporation
* Act, 1956 (for short “the Act”) need to be looked into.

18.  Therespondent-Municipal Corporation Indore has been constitiited
under the provisions of the Act. Chapter 36 of the Act deals with the control
 of the State Government on the Municipal Corporation. Section 417 of Chapter
l 36 empowers the State Government to require the Commissioner to furnish
" the return or to call for and examine the record of any case pending before or
disposed of by the Commissioner, the Corporation or the Mayor-in-Council.
Section 417-A empowers the Government to depute officers to make enquiry
| into the affairs of the Corporation or inspection or examination of any
, department, office, service, work or thing under the control of any Corporation
' authority and to report to it the result of such enquiry, inspection or examination.
Section 418 gives power to the State Government to require Municipal
Authority to take action. Section 418-A gives power to the State Government
to issue directions to the Municipal Corporation for implementation of welfare
measure. Under Section 419 the Government is empowered to appoint a
person if the Corporation fails to take action within stipulated period on the
order issued under Section 418 or directions issued under Section 418-A. If
the Government feels that any officer or servant of the Corporation is negligent

’.
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in the discharge of his duty, it can require the Corporation to suspend, fine or
otherwise punish him Under Section-420. Section 421 empowers the
Government to suspend any resolution or order of the Corporation and Section
422 empowers the State Government to dissolve the Corporation on certain
contingencies. Under Section 423 on dissolution of the Corporation, the
administrator can be appointed by the Government. Section 425 empowers
the Government to enforce its order if the Corporation makes default in carrying
out them. In terms of Section 425-A authorized officials of the State Government
are entitled to attend any meeting of the Corporation or Mayor-in-Council
and address it on any matter concerning the work of his department. Section’
426 empowers the Government to make rules authorizing inspection by
" servants of the Government, of Institution and works which are under the
management and control of the Corporation and regulating such inspection.
Section 426-A authorises the Government to remove any difficulty which arises
in giving effect to the provisions of the Act, ‘

19.  Theaforesaid provisions make it clear that the Municipal Corporation
is substantially controlled by the State Government, therefore, it is a public
undertaking under Section 2(1)(g) of the Madhyastham Act.

20.  Therecord further reveals that in the matters relating to Works Contract
with the Municipal Corporation, other aggrieved parties are approaching the
~ Madhyastham Tribunal and such references are being entertained and
adjudicated by the Tribunal. Along with the additional reply one such award
passed by the Madhyastham Tribunal has been placed on record.

21.  Havingregard to the aforesaid analysis, [ am of the opinion that the
Municipal Corporation, Indore being substantially controlled by the State
Government, is a Public Undertaking within the meaning of Section 2(1)(i) of
the Madhyastham Act and since undisputedly the agreement was for execution
of Works Contract, therefore, the applicant has a remedy to approach the
statutory Arbitration Tribunal constituted under the Madhyastham Act and the
present application under Section 11(6) of the Arbitration and Conciliation
Act, 1996 is not maintainable, which is accordingly rejected.

Order accordingly.
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; CIVIL REVISION
| : Before Mr. Justice S.K. Awasthi
C R. No. 114/201 6 (Gwahor) decided on 18 May, 2017

DURGESH SINGH & ors. . ..-Applicants
Vs, :
NARENDRA KANTE ...Non-applicant

A. Civil Procedure Code (5 of 1908), Order 11 Rule 12 &
21 — Eviction Suif — Declaration regarding Possession of Documents
—Held — The party concerned, which is confronted with an application
under Order 11 Rule 12 CPC is required to give declaration as to the -
status of possession of documents —In present case, respondent/plaintiff
has accordingly declared the status regarding possession of document
—Provision under Order 11 Rule 21 is not attracted for non-preduction
of documents — Revision dismissed. . (Paras 12 to 14)
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B. Civil Procedure Code (5 of 1908); Order 11 Rule 12 &

.13 — Nomenclature of Document — Applicant’s contention that affidavit
' is captioned as one under Order 11 Rule 13 CPC which cannot be given
colour of one under Order 11 Rule 12 CPC — Held — Nomenclature of

* document is of no significance and contents of the document are to be
considered to ascertain the nature of the same. (Para13)
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E.C. Chandil, for the applicants.
B.B. Shukla, for the non-applicant.

ORDER

S.K. AwasrHi, J. :- The instant civil revision has been preferred to
challenge the order dated 14.07.2016 passed in Civil Suit No.94A/2016 by
the Court of XIVth Civil Judge Class II, Gwalior by which the application
under Order X1 Rule 21 of the Civil Procedure Code (for brevity 'CPC") filed
by the present applicants/defendants has been dismissed.

2. The facts necessary for adjudication of the present case are that, the
respondent/plaintiff filed a suit for eviction, recovery of arrears of rent and
mesne profit with respect to the suit property, more particularly described in
para 1 of the plaint (Annexure P-2). The present respondent/plaintiff filed a
list of documents which are relied upon by him in order to establish his case.
The trial Court invited defendants to file their written statement. However, the
defendants/applicants moved an application under Order X1 Rules 12, 14
read with Section 151 of CPC, on the ground that the list of documents
indicated in the table termed as “list of reliance’ refers to several documents,
however, their copies have not been supplied to the defendants. Further, it
has not been indicated whether the respondent/plaintiff is in possession of
these documents or not. Due to these contingencies, the present applicants/
defendants are unable to file their written statement.

3. The application came for consideration on 7.5.16 and on such date, -

the same was partly allowed and the present respondent/plaintiff was directed
to furnish description of the documents referred to in the table termed as “Iist
of reliance” as also to indicate whether the documeiits are in his possession or
not. The respondent/plaintiff was further directed to supply the copy of the

documents to the applicants/defendants in order to enable the defendants to
" file their written statement,

1
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4.  The present respondent/plaintiff obeyed the direction issued by the
court below on 7.5.16 and furnished an affidavit alongwith the description of
the documents. The perusal of the affidavit indicates that the respondent/ plaintiff
declared as to which are the documents those are in possession of the
respondent/plaintiff, - N

5. The present applicants/defendants being dissatisfied with the steps
taken by the respondent/plaintiff, in compliance of the order dated 7.5.16
passed by the trial Court, an application under Order XI Rule 21 of CPC
was preferred to seek dismissal of the suit for non-compliance of the order
dated 7.5.2016. This application by the applicants/defendants suffered
rejection vide impugned order dated 14.7.16 as according to the view of the
trial Court, the respondent/pldintiff substantially complied with the order dated
7.5.16. In this backdrop, the applicants/defendants have moved this Court.

6. The learned counsel for the applicants/ defendants submitted that the
order dated 7.5.16 is unambiguous and clearly directs the respondent/plaintiff
to provide for complete description of the documents relied upon by him

1indicated in the “list of reliance”. However, the respondent has not complied

with the order dated 7.5.16 in‘letter and spirit which mandates supply of '
" certified copiesof the said documents. In order to substantiate this contention,
the learned counsel has relied upon the observation made by the court in the

_concluding paragraph of the order dated 7.5.16 whereas the respondent/

plaintiff has evaded the order dated 7.5.16 by not furnishing the certified
copies of the documents relied upon him rather the respondent/plaintiff has
flagrantly violated the order dated 7.5.16 by mentioning that the documents
shall be supplied as and when found necessary during the pendency of the
suit, Moreover, it was also contended that the affidavit which was filed on
22.6.16 was clearly captioned as “ under Order XI Rule 13 of CPC”. Thus, .
the court below erred in ignoring the fact that there was no affidavit filed with
respect to the Order XI Rule 12 of CPC. Therefore, in sum and substance,
the contention of the learned counsel for the applicants/defendants is that the
documents were also directed to be supplied for enabling the defendants to
file their written statement which has remained non-complied. Further, the
declaration in terms of Order XI Rule 12 of CPC is not sufficient.

7. - Percontra, the learned counse] for the respondent/plaintiff submitted
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that the applicants/defendants are not considering the domaln of Order XI
Rule 12 of CPCas the same does not include non-production of the documents
“within its ambit. Further, the declaration mandated by the Order XI Rule 12

of CPC is only with respect to the status of possession of the documents -

sought to be discovered. The respondent/plaintiff has duly complied with the
- portion of the order dated 7.5.16 and fulfilled the scope of Order XI Rule 12
of CPC. Consequently, it was contended that the trial Court has not committed
" any error inrejecting the application under XI Rule 21 of CPC preferred by
the applicants/defendants, -

8. In the light of the above, the questions which arise for consideration
by this Court are that firstly, whether the non-production of the documents by
plaintiff is fatal and will the suit suffer the consequences provided under Order
XIRule 21 of CPC or not. Secondly, whether the affidavit furnished by the
respondent/plaintiff on 22.6.16, is sufficient compliance of the mandate
provided under-Order XI Rule 12 of CPC or not. Thirdly, whether the trial
Court committed error in dismissal of the application under Order XI Rule 21
of CPCor not.

9. Before recordmg findings of this Court with respect to the case at
hand itis app051te to deal with the question framed hereinabove.

10.  The first question relates to the ambit under Order XI Rule 21 of CPC
vis-a-vis non-production of documents. In this regard, it is appropriate to
refer to the judgment of this Court in case of Archdiocese of Bhopal vs.
Hasan Kabir, 2009 (4) M.P.L.J 530, in which while dealing with the aforesaid
question of non-protuction, the Division Bench of this Court has recorded its
observation in the following manner :-

8. A bare reading of Rule 21 of Order 11, Civil Procedure
Code makes it clear that the provision entails non-compliance
of the order to answer interrogatories. Interrogatories are dealt
with under Rule 1 to Rule 11 of Order 11. Rule 12 of Order
11, Civil Procedure Code deals with application for discovery
of documents. Inspection of the documents which is referred
" toinRule 21 is again dealt with in Rule 15 to 18 of Order 11,
Civil Procedure Code. The Order 11 Rule 1, Civil Procedure
Code enables party to a.suit to make discovery by

i
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| interrogatories by leave of Court. Rule 2 of Order 11 , Civil
Procedure Code provides that particular interrogatories to be
! submitted to the Court, and factors to be taken into
consideration. Order 11 Rule 11 provides that when any person
omits to answer or answer insufficiently the Court may on
application, direct to answer or further answer. The Court
orders discovery of document under Rule 12 of Order 11,
Civil Procedure Code. The Rule 18 of Order 11, Civil
Procedure Code provides that where the party served with.
notice under Rule 15 omits to give such notice of a time for
inspection or objects to give inspection, or offers inspection
elsewhere than at the office of his pleader, the Court may, on
the application of the party desiring it, make an order for
inspection in such place and in such manner as it may think fit,
In case plaintiff fails to comply with any order to answer
interrogatories, or for discovery or inspection of documents,
be liable to have his suit dismissed for want of prosecution. In
case of defendant not complying with the provision, his defence
_can be struck off and he may be placed in the same position
as if he had not defended. It is further required that party
interrogating or seeking discovery or inspection may apply to
the Court for an ordér to that effect and by way of amendment
which has been inserted with effect from 1-2-1977 the order
may be made under Order 11, Rule 21, Civil Procedure Code
after notice to the parties and after giving them reasonable
‘opportunity of being heard. The sine qua non for exercising
the power under Rule 21 is failure to answer the interrogatories,
order of discovery or inspection of documents, Non-
compliance of Rule 14 which is with respect to production of
document is not covered under Rule 21, Civil Procedure Code.
Legislature has thought it appropriate in case of plaintiff if he
fails'to comply with the order relating to interrogatories,
discovery or inspection of documents a suit be dismissed or in
case of defendant his defence may be struck off. Legislature
in its wisdom has not included in Rule 21 of Order 11, Civil
Procedure Code such a penal consequence due to non- -
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compliance of order passed under Order 11, Rule 14 Civil
Procedure Code. Moreover, in the instant case, it is not in
dispute that no application was filed for dismissal of sujt under
order 11, Rule 21, Civil Procedure Code which is condition
precedent for exercise of the power under the aforesaid
provision, thus, even assuming for a moment that aforesaid
provision was applicable, it was not open for the trial Court to
have passed the order dismissing the suit. An order under Order
11, Rule 21, Civil Procedure Code can be passed only on an
application and that too after giving notice to the parties and
giving them reasonable opportunity of being heard. It is also
provided. in sub-rule (1) of Rule 21 of Qrder 11, Civil
'Procedure Code, the plaintiff shall be precluded from bringing
a fresh suit on the same cause of action. This dire consequence

" is not provided with respect to non-compliance of Order, 11
Rule 14, Civil Procedure Code.

15. Inview of above, we hold that due to non-compliance of
provision under Order XI Rule 14 of CPC suit cannot be
dismissed under Order X1 Rule 21 of CPC. It can be dismissed
only in the exigencies such as due to noncompliance of orders
interrogatories, discovery or inspection as envisaged under
Order XTI Rule 21 of CPC. .

11.  The perusal of the reproduced portion of the judgment needs.no iota
of doubts that the contention of the learned counsel for the applicants/
defendants is misplaced and deserves to be repelled.

12. . Thenext question is with respect to the affidavit filed on 22.6.16 by
the respondent/ plaintiff as to whether the same fulfills the mandate under
Order XI Rule 12 of CPC. The perusal of the Order XI Rule 12 of CPC
indicates that the party concerned, which is confronted with an application
under Order XI Rule 12 of CPC, is required to give a declaration as to the
status of the possession of the documents. In this context, if para 2 of the
affidavit dated 22.6.16 is considered, then the only logical conclusion which
can be drawn is that the plaintiff/respondent has discharged its obligation in
terms of Order XI Rule 12 of CPC by declaring that the documents are not in

1+
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. possession on the date of subinission of the affidavit and the same are in

custody of the Court and that, he would furnish the same by procuring the
certified copy of the documents. Consequently, the outcome of the questlon
also goes against the appllcants/defcndants

13. Lastly, with regard to the question as to whether the contention of the
applicants/ defendants that the affidavit is captloned as one under Order 11

. Rule 13 of CPC and therefore, the same cannot be given a colour of the one

under Order 11 Rule 12.of CPC, suffice it to observe that the law is well
settled that nomenclature of the document is of no significance and the contents
of the document are to be considered to ascertain the nature of the document.
In this regard, Hon'ble Supreme Court in the case of Prakash Roadlines (P)
Lid. vs. Oriental Fire & General Insurance Co. er (2000) 10 SCC 64
held in the following manner :-

3. Itis settled law that a document has to be interpreted not
by its nomenclature but what is contained in the said document.
A reading of the document shows that it was a deed of
assignment in favour of the Insurance Company. We are,
therefore; in agreement with the view taken by the High Court.
Consequently, we do not find any merit in the appeal. It is
accordingly dismissed. There shall be no order as to costs.

14.  Taking this view of the matter, it is only a formality to observe that the
trial Court has not committed any error in rejecting the application under Order
11 Rule 21 of CPC as for the non-production of the documents, the provision
under Order 11 Rule 21 of CPC is not attracted and that the affidavit furnished
on 22.06.2016 by the plaintiff is a substantial compliance of the mandate .
provided under Order 11 Rule 12 of CPC. Further, the nomenclature of the
affidavit pales into significance in the light of the settled posmon of law
mentloned herein above.

15.  Resultantly, the instant revision petition filed by the apphcants ishereby

dismissed. No order as to costs.

Revision dismissed,
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CIVIL REVISION
Before Mr. Justice Sujoy Paul
‘C.R. No. 161/2008 (Jabalpur) decided on 14 September, 2017

_ SANGAM SAHAKARI GRIH NIRMAN SAMITI MYDT. ...Applicant
Vs. , ' _ _
SMT. JETHIBAI PURUSHWANI & ors. ...Non-applicants _

Y

A. Civil Procedure Code (5 of 1908), Order 9 Rule 13 —
Maintainability of Application —Suit decreed against respondent No.2/
defendant No.1 — He filed an appeal where applicant/defendant No.2
was not made a party ~ Appeal was also dismissed — Applicant filed an
application under Order 9 Rule 13 CPC which was dismissed —
‘Challenge to — Held — Trial Court passed a decree against respondent
No.2/defendant No. 1 and not against the applicant — As per the
provision, a defendant against whom an ex-parte decree is passed may
apply to Court for setting it aside — Present application not maintainable
— Revision dismissed. (Para 10 & 12)

B ﬁﬁamwﬁm(moaaﬂ's) R 9 9% 13 — FrdgT
a:?w‘wﬂaar 915, et w. 2/ 9RE w1 @ Reg Raw - s el
wga & o smdss /vRErd . 2 o wEer T8 99T 7@ of — sl
S W ERe B g — I e o Py 13 Riv Y. @ swa @ e
wga fFar R wRe e ™ — & g9k — afifeiRe - faaror
W#Mﬂiz/gﬁﬁmiﬁ.1$ﬁﬁﬁi%:ﬂﬁqﬁﬁﬁﬁaﬁ?ﬁﬁi
e & fawg — S @ IER, 1P wREd), e Reg ey feal
TR @ 7€ @, 9% IV AURA B G ANEY B AT TN WHAT § —
Fdar g gl Td — gEdEer iR | §

B. . Civil Procedure Code (5 of 1908), Order 9 Rule 13 Second

- Proviso — Setting Aside of Ex-parte Decree — Ground — Held — Ex-parte
decree cannot be set aside on mere allegation of irregularity of service of
summons —In present case, record shows that summons were duly served
on correct address of the applicant society. ) (Para 13 & 14)
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Shobhitaditya, for the applicant.
Pranay Verma, for the non-applicant No.1.
Ashok Lalwani, for the non-applicants No. 1(ii) & 2(iii).

ORDER"

Suioy Pauw, J. :- This revision filed under Section 115 of the Code
of Civil Procedure is directed against-the order dated 01.03.2008, passed in
MCA No.14/2007, by the learned VIth Addl. Sessions Judge, Bhopal,
whereby the order passed by the learned trial Court in MJC No.21/2002
dated 16.11.2006 was affirmed by the Court below. ’

2. Briefly stated, the facts are that the respondent No.1/plaintiff filed a

_ civil suit (RCS No.36-A/2000) on 28.11.1995 for declaration of title and

perpetual injunction by contending that plot bearing No. A/91 was purchased
by her husband Late Thalumal Purushwani by registered sale deed dated
24.08.1887 and respondent No.1 is owner of the said land. The plaintiff
contended that respondent No.2/defendant No.1 unauthorizingly encroached
upon the said land and constructed his house. In the-aforesaid civil suit the
respondent No.2/defendant No.1 filed a written statement contending that

_ Vice President of applicant's Society never authorizes anybody to sell the

land and the land in question (Plot No. A/91) was initially sold to some other

"member. This is also not in dispute that respondent No.1/plaintiff preferred

an application under Order 1 Rule 10 CPC dated 25.06.1998, whereby the
present applicant was permitted to be added as defendant No.2 in the said
civil suit. The trial Court after inclusion of the name of present applicant in the
array of the defendants, issued notices to the present applicant on 25.06.1998.
Thereafter, the trial Court heard the matter and decide the same by judgment
and decree dated 25.09.2001. The case of present applicant is that the
defendant No.1 feeling aggrieved by the said judgment and decree preferred
an appeal before the first appellate Court. The counsel appearing for the
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appellant therein informed the counsel for the present applicant that against
the judgment and decree dated 25.09.2001, defendant No.1 has preferred
an appeal. As per applicant's contention, when he gathered knowledge about
filing of said appeal and passing of judgment and decree by the trial Court on
04.05.2002, on the very same date, the present applicant filed an application
under Order 9 Rule 13 CPC before the trial Court (Annexure-A/7). The trial
court after hearing both the parties rejected the said application on 16.11.2006.
Aggrieved, the applicant preferred an appeal before the appellate Court whlch
was also dismissed on 01.03.2008 (Annexure-A/8).

3. Mr. Shobhitadtiya, learned counsel for the applicant submits that the
present applicant was a necessary party and therefore plaintiff’s application
under Order 1 Rule 10 CPC was allowed by the Court below. However, the
Court below did not ensure that the notices issued to the present applicant are
" served or not. The Court below has not given any finding whatsoever that
notices issued by the Court below are served on the present applicant. Mr.
Shobhitadtiya, referred to the order-sheet of trial Court dated 01.12.1999
which shows that one Shri R.B. Pandey (proposed party) appeared in person.
In this order it is mentioned that the notices could not be served on the present
applicant. Thereafter on 18.01.2000, one Shri Rajput, Advocate appeared
before the trial Court on behalf of said proposed party and submitted an
application seeking time to file written statement. Learned counsel for the
applicant submits that Vakalatnama of Shri Rajput, Advocate is available in
the record shows that he was engaged by the defendant No.3. Shri Rajput,
Advocate was not representing the present applicant, Learned counsel for the
applicant by placing reliance on the entire order-sheets of trial Court:submits
that the Court below has not recorded any finding that the present applicant
was served.

4. Mr. Shobhitadityd] criticized the order dated 16.11.2006, wherein the
trial Court rejected the application on the presumption that Shri Rajput,
Advocate was representing the present applicant. In para 10 of the order
dated 16.11.2006 the trial Court opined that Shri Rajput, Advocate appearing
on behalf of the proposed parties, whereas it is clear from the Vakalatnama
that he entered appearance only for the defendant No.3. Thus, the trial Court
rejected the application on incorrect and irrelevant reasons.

5. Learned counsel for the applicant assailed the order of appellate Court
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by submitting that one Shri MP Padmanabhan, entered into witness box on
behalf of the applicant and made it clear that the notices of civil suit was not
served on him. The lower appellate Court has committed an error iri givinga
finding that Shri Padmanabhan put his signatures on the acknowledgment and
in view of address of Society mentioned in the acknowledgment, it is clear
that notices were served on the present applicant, In addition, the Court opined
that the present applicant is not adversely affected by the judgment and decree.
The plaintiff has not claimed any relief against the present applicant. The trial
Court has not passed any judgment and decree against the present applicant.
Mr. Shobhitaditya, submits that since notices were not duly served, the Courts
below have erred in rejecting the application and appeal preferred by the
present applicant. Reliance is placed on 1998 (2) JLJ 344, [Satish
Construction Co. (M/s) v. Allahabad Bank], 2004 (3) MPLJ 632,

" {Nagarjuna Construction Co. Ltd. Hyderabad vs. R.K. Maheshwari,

Bhopal], AIR 2002 SC 2370, [Sushil Kumar Sabharwal vs. 'Gurpreet
Singh & other].

6. Per-contra, Mr. Ashok Lalwani, and Mr. Pranay Verma, Advocates
for the other side supported the impugned order. Mr. Pranay Verma, submits
that a plain reading of Order 9 Rule 13 CPC makes it clear that the defendants

_can apply for setting aside a decree passed ex-parte, provided such deciee

is passed 'against the defendant'. It is urged that in the present case, the
judgment and decree was not passed against the present applicant. The
applicant was only a formal party. Since judgment and decree cannot be said
to be 'against the present applicant’ the application under Order 9 Rule 13
CPC is not maintainable. Mr. Verma, further contends that acknowledgment
of notices of civil suit (Ex.D/1) shows that it was served on Society. In view
of statement of Shri Padmanabhan, one thing is crystal ¢lear that address of
Society is correct. Thus, whether or not Shri Padmanabhan admits his si gnature,
fact remains that notices were served at correct address to some responsible
person of the Society. Mr. Verma, further submits that as per the deposifion
of Shri Padmanabhan, it is clear that at the time of issuance of alleged service
of notice, Shri Padmanabhan was not working as President/office bearer of
the Society. Thus, Society should have produced competent person who was
office bearer at the relevant point of time when notices were allegedly served
on the present applicant. In absence thereto, there is no reason to disbelieve
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. the service of notice which is evident from Ex.D/1.

7.
- 8.
9.

No other point has been pressed by the learned counsel for the parties.
I have heard the parties at length and perused the record.

, .
Before dealing with the rival contentions, I deem it proper to refer to

Rule 13 of Order 9 CPC, which reads as follows:

10.

“13. Sefting aside decree ex parfe against dgfend&nts.- In any

© case in which a decree is passed ex parte against a defendant, he

may apply to the Court by which the decree was passed for an
order to set it gside; and if he satisfies the Court that the summons
was not duly-served, or that he was prevented by any sufficient
cause from appearing when the suit-was called on for hearing,
the Court shall make an order setting aside the decree as against

- him upon such terms as to costs, payment into Court or otherwise

as it thinks fit, and shall appoint a day for proceeding with the
suit:

‘Provided that where the decree is of such a nature that it cannot

be set aside as against such defendant only it may be sent aside as
against all or any of the other defendant also:

Provided further that no Court shall set aside a decree passed ex
parte merely on the ground that there has been an irregularity in

the service of summons, if it is satisfied that the defendant had

notice of the date of hearing and had sufficient time to appear
and answer the plaintiff’s claim.

Explanation : Where there has been an appeal against a decree
passed ex parte under this rule, and the appeal has been disposed
of on any ground other than the ground that the appellant has

- withdrawn the appeal, no apphcanon shall lie under this rule of

setting aside the ex parte decree.”
' [Emphasis Supplied]

A plain reading of this provi'sion shows that a deféndant agaiast whom

ex-parte decree is passed may apply to the Court for setting it aside. Since,
objection raised by Mr. Pranay Verma, goes to the root of the matter i.e.
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regarding maintainability of application filed by present applicant, I deem it

" proper to deal with this aspect at the out set, Admittedly, the present applicant
! was defendant No.2 before the trial Court. It is also not in dispute between

the parties that the judgment and decree was passed against the defendant
No.1 and not against the defendant rio.2/applicant. Thus, the spinal issue is
whether the application preferred by the applicant/defendant No.2 under Order
9 Rule 13 CPC was tenable. This aspect was dealt with by Delhi High Court
in the case reported in AIR 1977 Delhi 110 /Smt. Santosh Chopravs. Teja
Singh & another], the Court opined as under:

“Indeed, even a person who is formally a party but against whom

nothing is said in the operative portion-of the decree or who has

been expressly exempted from a decree cannot apply under the
- Rule to set aside an ex parte decree. ” '

[Emphﬁsfs Supplied]

11, This Judgment was follov_ved by Madras High Court in the case reported

in 2001 SCC Online Mad 160, [Muthlingam vs. Gangai Ammal]. The
Apex Court in 2008 (13) SCC 466 [Bank of India vs. Mehta Brothers ]
opined that “a reading of Order 9 Rule 13 of the Code would clearly show
that under this provision it was clarified that an ex parte decree was ordinarily
to be set aside only against the defendant against whom the decree was passed

' ex parte and the suit was to be revived only qua the said defendant applying

for setting aside the ex parte decree. It is true that the heading of Order 9
Rule 13 of the Code starts with the expression “setting aside an ex parte
decree”. But if we examine this provision under Order 9 Rule 13 of the Code
as well as its proviso in depth and in detail, it would not be difficult for us to
come to a conclusion that under Order 9 Rule 13, it has been clarified that an
ex parte decree is ordinarily to be set aside only as against the defendants
against whom the decree has been passed ex parte and the suit is to be
revived only qua the defendant who applied for setting aside the ex parte
decree”. In the same judgment it was further held that the only requirement
Jfor applicability of this order is that the decree should be ex-parte against -
the defendant applied to for its setting aside. -

12.  Inthelight of aforesaid judgment, in my view, the objecfion raised by. .
M. Pranay Verma has substantial force. The present application under Order
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9 Rule 13 CPC on behalf of present applicant was not entertainable because
* the ex-parte decree was not passed by trial Court against the applicant/
defendant No.2.

13.  The second proviso to Rule 13 of Order 9 further shows that an ex-
parte decree shall not be set aside on the ground that in service of summons,
there has been irregularity. If the Court is otherwise satisfied that notice was
served and defendant had sufficient time to appear and answer the claim, the
decree cannot be set aside. '

14.  Inthe present case, the trial Court has certainly committed an error in
assuming that Shri Rajpoot, Advocate filed 'vakalat' and appeared on behalf
of present applicant, whereas it is satisfactorily established before this Court
that said counsel appeared for the defendant No.3. Thus, thé trial Court has
committed an error in this regard. However, this error is not at all useful for
the present applicant because Ex.D/1 is an acknowledgment of notice served
on the defendant No.2. In order to dispute the service of notice through .
Ex.D/1, one Shri Padmanabhan entered into the witness box. The lower
appellate Court considered his statement in great detail. The appellate Court
recorded that this witness has admitted that earlier address of defendant No.2
was 64/5 South TT Nagar, Bhopal and summons were issued on this address.
The acknowledgment (Ex.D/1) shows about this address only. The Court below
further opined that although Shri Padmanabhan denied the acknowledgment
contains his signature, fact remains that acknowledgment contains a signature
which establishes service of notice on the Society. Shri Padmanabhan failed
to establish that when Ex.D/1 was served, he was President of the Society.
The acknowledgment (Ex.D/1) contains the signature of the person who has
received the notice. Thus, the lower appellate Court opined that notice was
served on the Society. In my view, there is no perversity or illegality in the said
finding, The lower appellate Court has taken a plausible view which does not
warrants any interference from this Court. As per second proviso of Order 9
Rule 13, the aforesaid decree cannot be set aside on mere allegation of
irregularity in service. As held above, the application under Order 9 Rule 13
CPC at the behest of defendant No.2 was not tenable. The lower appellate
Court has given proper finding about service of notice on the defendant No.2.
In this back drop, the judgments cited by the applicant which are based on
different factual back drop are not applicable in the aforesaid case.
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i"l gerhat iIn view of aforesald analysxs, no fauIt can be found m the 1mpugned
“order dated 01.0%" 2008 passed 1n MCA No 14/2007 and 1nrorder dated
16112006 passed in MJC No. 2172002. Resultantly, the révision fails and i is
+ hereby dismissed. No costivsy wanns Jwiid 0 o0l v
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. 1Before. Mr. Justtce S K.rSeth & Sint. Justice Anjuli. Palo e
Cr. R. No. 928/2017 (Jabalpur).decided-on-8 August, 2017 = .3

SHOBHA JAIN (SMT.) ' v+ .5 Applicait
Vs. T g Dl QP U Tl AT o
‘STATE OF Mp, < A1 308 Je mers dlh Non—apphcant

A. Prevention of Corruptton Act (49 of 1988), Section 8 &

. 12 ~ Revision Against frammg of Charge - Ingredlents — After
reee:vmg the bribé amount, the main "accused handed over the amount
to his wife (applicant) on the spot and thereafter they were trapped
‘and brlbe amount was recovered from appheant Held It cannot be
the recewer publlc servant (huéband) wnthout any galn of herself -She

- :accepted the bnbe through her husband She is hable for trlal uIS 8
'and 12 of the Act of 1988 e (Para 15)

T EISHHE TRTE BT Ol RN R
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Sig !

VisS

ey *Bus o Criminal Procedure Code,’1 9753 (2 of 1974), Sectwn 228'=-
-Friming of Chairge =Appreciation of Evidence —Held' <At the stage of

Araming of-charge; Court-has to. prlma facie consider Wwhether theéré'is
sufficient ground for proceedmg agamst accused Court is not required
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to appreciate the evidence and arrive at conclusion that material produced
are sufficient for conviction — If court is satisfied that prima facie case is
made out, then charge has to be framed. (Para 16)

o TV HIHAT GIRAT, 1973 (1974 BT 2) GWr 228 — Y
1T (3T ST — Wrew @7 FowrsT — afPEiRT — sty Rt fpa)
aﬁa%umw.wmmaﬁumggmwﬁmmﬂﬂ%qﬁﬁm
AT 7 frog sHdTh @ o wafw a2 — AT gRT e @
Wmmamwmﬁmﬁfumaaﬁwmﬂqﬁﬁ{ﬁq
waia 2, anifdg Y @ — afy wrArew W 2 5 vum gar yewor
AT ', a1 IRV faxfaa fad wm

Cases referred :

1999 Cr.L.J. 3967 : AIR 1999 SC 2556, AIR 2000 SC 665, AIR
1979 SC 366.

Ruchika Gohil, for the applicant.
Pankaj Dubey, for the non-applicant/SPE Lokayukt.

ORDER

The  Order of * the Court was passed by :°
ANJULI PaLo, J. :- This criminal revision has been filed by the petitioner
under Section 397 read with Section 401 of the Code of Criminal Procedure
for revising and setting aside the order dated 26.08.2016 passed by the
Learned Special Judge (Prevention of Corruption Act, 1988), Chhindwara in
Special Case No. 04/2016.

LY

2. Heard learned counsel for the parties at length. Perused the record.

3. The main contention of learned counsel for the petitioner is that the
prosecution could not establish as to how the petitioner was involved in the
crime under Section 8 and 12 of the Prevention of Corruption Act, 1988
(hereafter referred to as the “Act 1988”).

4. As per the prosecution story, the complainant Sumran Markam was
posted as Secretary Gram Panchayat, Jogimuar, Tamia. Main accused Mahavir
Prasad Jain (husband of the petitioner) was posted as Chief Executive Officer
in the Janpad Panchayat, Tamia, District Chhindwara. He issued a notice to
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the complamant with regard to inspection of records of the gram panchayat.
After receiving the report from the officer, Mahavir Prasad Jain demanded a
bribe of Rs. 50,000/- from the complainant to protect him. It is alleged that
due to the inability shown by the complainant Sumran to pay Rs. 50,000/-,
Mabhavir Prasad Jain agreed to receive Rs. 20,000/-.

5. On the basis of complaint of Sumran Markam, the co-accused Mahavir
Prasad was trapped by the Lokayukt police on 03.12.2014. After receiving
the bribe of Rs. 20,000/, accused Mahavir Prasad Jain handed over the
bribe money to his wife petitioner Shobha Jain on the spot. Itis further alleged
that the sodium carbonate test was found positive for both the accused persons
i.e.the petitioner and her husband Mahavir Prasad Jain. The bribe money was
recovered from petitioner, hence, case was registered under Section 8 and
12 of the “Act 1988” against the petitioner.

6. Learned counsel for the petitioner contended that, in the FIR it is not

mentioned that the petitioner was demanding money. In the negotiation with

| regard to bribe money by Mahavir Prasad, nowhere the petitioner was involved

1n the alleged crime. She was just present on the spot at the time of trap and

she merely collected the money from her husband. There was no conspiracy

between the petitioner and the co-accused Mahavir Prasad Jain in the alleged

crime. Hence, it is contended that the charges framed by the learned Trial

| Court under Section 8 and 12 of the “Act 1988 against the petitioner is
. baseless and the same be quashed.

7. Respondent counsel vehemently opposed the contention of the learned
counsel for the petitioner He supported the order passed by the Trial Court.

. 8. In this regard, firstly we shall see the ingredients of Section 8 and 12
+ of the “Act 1988”.

Section 8: Taking gratification, in order, by corrupt or illegal
means, to influence public servant. —Whoever accepts or
obtains, or agrees to accept, or attempts to obtain, from any
person, for himself or for any other person, any gratification
whatever as a motive or reward for inducing, by corrupt or
illegal means, any public servant, whether pamed or otherwise,
to do or to forbear to do any official act, or in the exercise of

the official functions of such pubhc servant to show favour or
e
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N +-disfavour to any person, or torender or attempt to render any .
. service or-disservice: to. ariy person with. the- Centralr Lt
g Government orany State Goverriment or Parliament-orthe . .
-t Legrslature of any State or with any local duthority, corporatlon o
or Government company referred to in. clause (¢) of section 2, - -
..ot wrth any public servant, whether named or otherwise, shall
be punlshable withi 1mpr1sonment for: a tenn “Which shall be not
less than siX months but which 1 may extend to ﬁve years and
o shaJl also be liablé to ﬁne

ST Sectton 12: Pumshment for abetment of offences definedin ~ + -
+ . -section 7 or 11.—Whoever abets any offence punishable under. -
+. | .section 7orsection 11-whether or not that offenceis committed.
in consequence of that abetment;.shall be punishable with :
imprisonment for a term which shall be not less than six months
] ‘but which may extend to ﬁve years and shall also be hable to
,.j:ﬁl}‘e" - . R R LT : TR .
9. Learned counseI for the applicant contended that the mandatory
requrrement to establish 'abetment' sg as to constitute offence under Section
.7 of the Act 1988 (public.servant takmg gratification other than 'legal
‘remuneration' in respect of an official act) and under Section 11 of the Act
1988 (public servant obtaining valuable things without ‘consideration
from person concerned in proceeding or business transacted by such public
servant) i 1s prima facie not made out by the prosecution and nelther has

‘there been any substantral matenal avarlable in thrs regard

L

10. Smce the word abetrnent' has not been deﬁned in the “Act 1988”
“hence, we may proﬁtably refer to its exhaustive definition as provrded under
Section 107 of the Indian Penal Code. As per Section 107 of IPC, a person
abets the_doing of a thing when he.does. any of the acts mentroned in the
following three clauses: « --.-- . . .. :

(1) mstzgates any person fo do tkar thmg, or

‘(n) engages with one or. more: other person or- persons in
" any conspiracy for the a'omg of that thmg

L'I'he ﬁrst and second clauses are not germane n thrs context and third

NES

'
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clause alone is requrred to berlooked into Wthh is. reproduced hereunder i

e ot R - 3 “+

(m) Inrenrzonally azds by any acf) or zllegal gmtssron, -
LA T HERAEI Al (IS SR I
the domg of rhat rht ng.. ' e .

Myen, Ry HEREI P T U AT ML STCE o s SO '-;r;'- AR
The word 'aids' has been clanﬁed in Explanatton—2 of Sectton 107:0f
IPC WthhT reads as under .

ey R T ST SRR I ACITL T
o Whoever either.prior-to or at the:time of the commission
of an act, .does anything. in..order. to.facilitate ‘the
commission.of that act; thereby facilitates,the commi._s'sion

thereof, is said to aid. the=doing‘of that act.™ - +.vi v 5+

S

PRI J’l

11.  The wordmgs of’ Sectlon 109 of IPC also relates to commlssron of
offence of the- br1bery in consequence of the abetment and as such it has

“been strenuously argued that when offence has not been comnutted no question

of abetment comes 1n The abetment under the “Act 1988"’ now is pumshable
even if the offericé is not complete in consequence of such ab etment. Keeping
in view the Explanatlon-Z 1n Sectlon 107 of IPC 1t 1s thus clear that under the
3rd Clause’ when a person abets by aldmg, the act so aided. should have been
committed i 1n order to make such a1d1ng an offence. C B

LS TRLANH [ S LA A T Y TL ey

12 In the case of PNaIIammal Vs. State [1 999 Cr L J 3967 AIR 1999
SC 2556], the Apex Court held as under: RV

it ndf ahnon-publzc..s:erqanr..has abetted: any.of the offences
raf wwhich the public servant commits; suchmon-public servant- . ...
L 18 also-liable«to be.tried alongwirh‘the'pub!ic servant. ", T

1 3t It i$notin dlspute fhat merely grvmg help w1ll not rnake the abetment
of offence if' the person who | gave the help d1d not know that an offence was
bemg comm1tted or contemplated “The 1ntent10n should be o help an offence
or to facilitate the comrhission of crime. Theré is prima facie evidence on
record for offence unider Section:120-B of IPC of the: meeting.of minds for
acceptance of moneybetween Mahavir Pr'asad/husband‘ and his‘wife/pet‘itionef
145y the present case the petrtroner 1s, 'prIOthO‘n or' at the \tlrlr'hlrec of
dommmission of z act apparently support her husbahd the prune accused in order
to facilitate the'c comm:ssron of crimé of takmg brlbe Hence she abet her

husband for the cornrmsswn ‘of offence trider Sectlon 107 of IPC. As the W1fe
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of the accused Mahavir Prasad Jain it is presumed that she knows what is
bribe and what is legal remuneration. Her husband Mahavir Prasad Jain is the
main accused charged under Section 7 and 13(1)(d) of “Act 1988”. Section
7 of the “Act 1988” corresponds to Section 161 of IPC with some
modification. Section 161 of IPC reads as under :

“Whoever, being, or expecting to be a public servant,
accepts or obtains or agrees to accept or attempts to obtain
from any person, for himself or for any other person, any
gratification whatever, other than legal remuneration, as
a motive or reward for doing or forbearing to do any official

" act or for showing or forbearing to show, in the exercise
of his official functions, favour or disfavour to any person
or for rendering or attempting to render any service or
disservice to any person, with the Central Government or
any State Government or Parliament or the Legislature of
any State or with any local authority, corporation or
.Government company referred to in Section 21 or with
any public servant, or with any public servant, as such,
shall be punishable with imprisonment of either description
for a term which may extend to three years, or with fine,
or with both.”

15.  Withregard to Section 7 of “Act 1988, the term remuneration’ would
mean money paid for a work or a service. As per Section 7 of the “Act
1988”, the receipt of any remuneration other than the legal remuneration alone
is offence. It cannot be presumed that wife who merely acts as a channel

between the bribe giver and the receiver public servant (husband) without any

gain of herself. She accepted the bribe through her husband. Therefore, she is
also liable for trial under Section 8 and 12 of the “Act 1988

16.  Inthisrevision the petitioner has challenged the charges framed against
her. It is settled law that at the state (sic:stage) of framing of charge the Court
has to prima-facie consider whether there is sufficient ground for proceeding
against the accused. The Court is not required to appreciate the evidence and
arrived at the conclusion that the material produced are sufficient or not for
convietion of the accused. If the Court is satisfied, prima-facie case is made

1
*

1
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rout for proceeding further, then chargre has to be framed, as held in the cases
rof State of M.P. Vs. S.B. Johri and Ors, (AIR 2000 SC 665), Union of
India Vs. Prafulla Kumar Samal and Ors. (AIR 1979 SC 366).'

17." Inlight ofthe above analysis of facts and the legal aspects, this criminal
revision is liable to be dismissed. Accordingly, the same is dismissed.

Revision dismissed.
I.L.R. [2017] M.P., 2561
- CRIMINAL REVISION

Before Mr. Justice Sushil Kumar Palo
Cr.R. No. 1796/2016 (Jabalpur) decided on 13 September, 2017

SOOMA DEVI : ' . --.Applicant
Vs. - _ i '
RAMKRIPAL MISHRA - ...Non-applicant

A. Protection of Women from Domestic Violence Act (43 of
2005), Section 12 & 2(f) — Maintenance — Eligibility — Relationship in
Nature of Marriage — Held — Petitioner was aware that respondent
was married man with wife and children, before commencement of their
relationship — Status of petitioner is that of concubine or mistress who -

~ entered into relationship not in the nature of marriage — Concubine

cannot maintain relationship in the nature of marriage because such

. relationship will not have exclusivity and will not be monogamous in

character - “Domestic Relationship” discussed and explained -
Domestic Violence Act 2005 does not take care of such relationship—~
Petitioner not entitled for any relief under the Act of 2005 — Petition

dismissed. . (Para 10 & 11)

# . g foar @ wfdarat T wveer 3T (2005 FT 43), e
12 7 2(7%) — sRorgigr — yrFar — farE 7 W@y o7 999 — afutaiia -
arht Bt goefl © | owe Wdg aRT B9 gd |/ Sy off 5 ueeft
famfea gog a1 e o=l ©@ ar=t off — 7l 9 g suosh a1 @«
@t B fat a1 Weg 9 W A $ Wey 91 98 — Sugoh, faw @
WU $T 94y T v god) @ifey 89 w9g ¥ argar 596 gl @R e
Tl URRT BT T8 & — “ue Wau fafia W@ W far war — we
fEur afafm, 2005 ¢ 999 €71 fPgem 98 awar — arh 2005 & afafrm
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- “B; . “Profection-of Women from Dortestic V‘olence Act (43 of
2005), Section 12~ sze-m-relatmnshw Presumptmn  Rebuttal — Held
—Continuous cohabitation of man and woman as husband and wife may:

. raise presumption of marriage but the.presumption drawnfrom: long:
cohabitation is a rebuttable one and if there are circumstances which
weaken'aind desfroy the presumption, Court cannot ignore them —In instant
case, there is a rebuttal of presumption.: £: 3 . (Para?7)

. 4 H?ql%m#a@mmiwmmaiﬂﬁw(zaaswa)w
12—@1?—-3?—1’?6‘97?!3711 evmvwr 'as':r'arhﬁa'i‘ﬁa Ty, aite ol
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%maﬂwﬁﬁmﬁnﬁmm%aﬂvuﬁﬁwﬁm
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o — A Y6 ¥, SUEROT $T e gt 210 - L U e o 4
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(2013) 15 SCC 755 (2010) IO SCC 469 (1978) 3 SCC 527 (2008)
4 SCC 520 Lo
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Sh:vam Mishra, forthe apphca.nt RSN\ TS SO MV SRR P TS %!
.-K.K.-Pandey, for.the non-apphcant No . el arns oo
VT 4l o sl RO ENE ‘:."_‘-‘1‘ R L I 31 SN
e e T ORDER )
Ta T Lhae TRIL e '.'!‘..13?.‘.a LK l 1.5 qu{r{p;ih' E

oS, K PALO, J. :~ This. revision. under sectlon 397 read with section
401 of the Code of Criminal Procedure ‘has been filed: by-the petitioner/:
complamant assailing the order.dated 14.1:2016 passed by Additional Sessions-
Judge, Kotma, District Anuppur in Criminal Appeal No.62/2015 whereby:the:
ordér dated 10.6.2015 passed by Judicial Maglstrate First Class, Kotma in
M: Cr C No 126/20 14 under sectlon 12 of the Protectlon of Women from

.....

rf

mamtenance of Rs: 2500/- to the petltloner has been set asxde o

2.- g n Brref facts requIte for the dlsposal ofithis petmon aré that the petltloner
had filed a  complaint under section 12,0 DV.Act, 2005 claiming maintenarice
to.the.tune of Rs.- 10,000/- from the respondent The.Judicial Magistrate Flrst

o



w

-IL'R-[=201'7]M’Pn Sosma’ Deyi_Vs: Ramkripdl Mishra 2563

! Class after hearing the parties allowed the. interim maintenanée to the.ture of:

Rs. 2500/- per month. The same was challenged before the Additional Sessions:
Judge, Kotma wherein the Additional Sessioris Judge held that underthe.
deﬁnmon providedin section 2(f) of DV Act 2005 holding that the petitioner,
isnot "1n the domestic relatrons,'f is not ent1tled for' any malntenance The
petrtroner has preferred thrs rev1sron challenglng the order of the Addltronal
Sessions Judgeon the ground that the; ﬁndmg of the Addltlonal Sessrons Judge
is wholly illegal and ‘conttary to thé provision of the'Act, It 1s not necessary
that the applicant should be the legally wedded wife. The prov1srons 'of the
Act apply to other persons:who include the relationship:in the nature of
marriage, consanguinity, adoption or are family members living together asa
joint famrly, Therefore -theorder of Addltlonal Sessrons Judge suffered from
illegality. - , R e T LA T L e

- PRV e
3. Learned counsel for the r'esfnondent "veheémently opposed the
contentions and submitted that the petitionieris not the legally wedded wife of
the responderit and hence; the provisions of DV Act, 2005 -are'not’ apphcable ‘
to the petitioner. A R S AT

4. Perused.the record: The évidence available on:the récord show that
the’ petxtloner wasliving with the respondent for qurte long years. The reply
dated 12.3.2015.filed by.the respondent needs mention fere: The respondent
admitted that the petitioner.came to him i in the year 1970 and lived with him
as a concubine. After living happily; she started quarrelling: Thereafter, she
left the place and for 16-17 yedrs she lived:with someone else. Twodaughters
were born to her. Who is father of these two daughters is not known. After
living separately from him, the tthd daughter was, born to the petltroner The
respondent alIowed the petmoner to 11ve wrth him thmklng that future of her
three daughters should not be sporled In the landed property and re51dent1al
house srtuated at vrllage Khudn hlS marned wife of the respondent and his
children aré living ‘affer takmg partltlon It is also clear from the reply that the
respondent is receiving pension apart “from his ancestral property The
respondetit has also admitted that hlS daughters Sushrla ‘Rarnlali and Preeti
have been married....v =i 5 \“ TR O B e R AR

i P LA .'-z'h\'\'\
5. The words "domestlc relatlonshlp“ means arelattonslhp between two

persons who live or have at any pomt of tlrne, llved together m a share
household when they are related by consangulmty, marriage, or through a

.
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relationship in the nature of marriage, adoption or are family members living
together as a joint family. The words “through a relationship in the nature of
marriage" include a person living in relationship for a considerable long period.

6. In the case of Indra Sarma vs. VK.V Sarma, reported as(2013) 15
SCC 755 the Apex Court has given guidelines for testing under what
circumstances, a "live in relationship" will fall within the expression "relationship
in the nature of marriage" under section 2(f) of the DV Act. According to the
Supreme Court :-

"(i)  Duration of period of relationship: Section 2()
of the DV Act has used the expression "at any point of
time", which means a reasonable period of time to maintain

- and continue a relationship which may vary from case to
case, depending upon the fact situation.

(i)  Share household: The expression has been defined
under Section 2(s5) of the DV Act and hence, needs no
further elaboration.

(i)  Pooling of resourcesand financial arrangements:
Supporting each other,; or any one of them, Sinancially,
sharing bank accounts, acquiring immovable properties
in joint names or in the name of the woman, long term
investments in business, shares in separate and joint names,
s0 as to have a°long—sranding relationship, may be a guiding
factor. :

(v) Domestic arrangements: Entrusting the
responsibility, especially on the woman to run the home,
do the household activities like cleaning, cooking,
maintaining or upkeeping the house, etc. is an indication
of a relationship in the nature of marriage.

(v)  Sexual relationship: Marriage-like relationship
refers to sexual relationship not Just for pleasure, but for
emotional and intimate relationship, for procreation of
children, so as to give emotional support, companionship
and also material affection, caring, elc,

ot
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(vi)  Children: Having children is a-strong indication .
of a relationshp in the nature of marriage. The parties,

therefore, intend to have a long-standing relationship.

Sharing the responsibility for bringing up and supporting
them is also a strong indication.

(vii)  Socialisation in public: Holding out to the public
and socialising with friends, relations and others, as if they
are husband and wife is a strong circumstances to hold
the relationship is in the nature of marriage.

(viii) Intention and conduct of the parties: Common
intention of the parties as to what their relationship is to
be and to involve, and as to their respective roles and
responsibilities, primarily determines the nature of that.
relationship. Intention may be expressed or implied and
what is relevant is their intention as to matters that are
characteristices of a marriage.”

7. Though these parameteré are not exhaustive, but will definitely give

- some insight to such relationship, observed by the Supreme Court. In the

present case, the petitioner admittedly entered into "live in relationship" with
the respondent but with the knowledge that the respondent is a married man.
The generic proposition that where a man and a woman are proved to lived
together as husband and wife, the law presumes that they are living together
in consequence of a valid marriage. Hence, the relation of the petitioner and
the respondent was not a relation in the nature of marriage. The status of the

- petitioner is, therefore, was of a concubine. A "concubine" cannot maintain

relations in the nature of marriage. Because, such a relaiton (sic:relation) will .
not have exclusivity and will not be monogamous in character. The continuous
cohabitation of man and woman as husband and wife may raise the presumption

. of marriage, but the presumption which may be drawn from long cohabitation

is arebuttable one and if there are circumstances which weaken and destroy
that presumption, the Court cannot 1gnore them.In the instant case, there is
rebuttal of the presumption.

8. Learned counsel for the respondent has also placed reliance on the



2566:  .Sooma Devi Vs.;Ramkripal Mishra. LE:R:[2017]M:P.

case of Indra Sarma [(supra) which has-been:cited by the pétitionér also. In
that case, the petitioner therein filed an application before the Judicial Magistrate
First Class to.pass protection order.and residence order under sections 18
and 19 of the DV Actand also to-pass mandatory order under-section 20 and
compensation.order under section 22 and: ex parte interim order under section
23 of DV Act dxrectmg the respondent to pay Rs 75 000/- towards the .
opposed thie same and admltted that he had co habltated w1th the petltroner :
since 1993; though hé was riarried and had two chlldren whrch are known to
the petitioner. Pregnancy'to the | petitioner was tétminated with her ¢ consent.
The respondent also spentlarge‘arountfor medical treatment: The respondent
also sent cheque'of Rs:2,50,000/- for medical expenses: -.: -« '+ wras

9. Judlcral Maglstrate F1rst Class took the view that the plea of domestrc
violence has been establlshed and dlrected the respondent to pay Rs 18 ,000/-
per month as mamtenance 'from the date of petltlon Subsequently, the
respondert preferred ah appeal ahder. sectron 29 of the DV Adt. The learned
appellate Court observing that the petltloner IIVBd with the respondent for14 .
long years and ¢onsidered to be:alived in refation for considérablé ‘period,’
and that non maintenance of the petitioner would ammount to domestic violencei®
held that thé respondentiis legally.obliged to:maintain hiér and ¢onfirmed the”
order passed-by. the Judicial Magistrate:First ¢lass. The respondent then:
preferred an appeal before the High Court.‘The High-Court has held that
respondent being marriediperson, having two-childrer; yet-the.petiiones:
(sic:petitioner) developéd relation with the respondent.inspite of opposition’
raised by the wife of thie respondent and parents of the appellants: Relying on’
the decisionin the-case of D.Velusamy vs..D.Patchaidammal, (2010) 10
SEC 469 the Court held that the relationship.between the parties would fiot*
fall within the ambit:of "relationship in the nature:of marriage"”; set aside the -
order passed by.the Courts bélow: Aggrieved by the same, the petitioner filed:
an appeal before the Apex.Court. The Apex Court after discussing the:aspect

elaborately. propounded the guldehnes mentioned:above and affirmed the order’
of the High Court. N LI T

10.  Therespondent is a married man. In the applfédﬁon under section 12°
of DV Act; 2005 the petitionerhas accepted in'paragraph 2.that the responden?
is a married man having 5 daughters and 3 sons. Two sons are living at village
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Kihurdiz: This indicatés: that ipelitioner: has: knowledge’ ofimarriage-of
X

-respoiident.-Therefore, the:petitioner énterediinto live inrélationship'with the

respondent Kriowing that he was married person’With wifeand childes. Hence;
generic propdsition laid down that where'a man‘and a Wwoman are proved:to
have lived fogether as husband and wife; the law presumes that they aré living
together in‘consequence.of avalid marfiagewill fiot apply in'the Present case
and’hence; rélatior between the petitioner and the respondent was not 4
relationship in'the natureof marriagé and the'status of the pétitionet wasthat
ofa concubine: The toncubine.cannot mairitain rélationship in thie nature of
marriage:Because such rélationship will hot have'exclusivity and will riot be
monogamous in character. In this regard, reference may be made to the'cases
‘o‘\_f.'.Bgdr;i_Rrasad vs, Director of Consolidation, (1978) 3 SCC 527 and

1

Tulsa ys. Durghatiya; (2008) 4 SCC.520," "

e PR LT

Iy ~iAs the petitioner-Was aware that the Téspotiderit was the tiarried fian
even before ﬂl&'coinméﬂcemé‘xitrof—t}i‘éir-felatib"ﬁshipg‘hcnce,? the status-6f thé
petitioneris that of 'concubine'¥or niistress, Who entetedinto rélatibn'shija‘ not
i the nature of martiage:Long standing telations as concibine, though relations
is'not in the hature of nidrriagé, of course; may attimes, deserve protection
betause that wottian might fiot have finaficial iridependericé; but the DV Act
2005°does riot ‘take care of'siich:rélatiotiship. Hende, the petitivner is not

- entitled for the'felief under the' DV Act, 2005 That being'so, thé petitiomis
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M.Cr.C. No. 5761/2016 (Jabalpur) decided on 18 April, 2017

SAIYAD ASFAQALI& ors. . .
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KAISAR BEGUM OWAISI - ) _.-.Non-applicant
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Penal Code (45 of 1860), Sectign 379 & 498.4 and Criminal
Procedure Code, 1973 (2 of 1 974), Section 482 — Quashment of
Criminal Proceedings — Wife left matrimonial house alleging dowry
demands and cruelty by husband and mother-in-law — She lodged FIR
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/S 498-A, filed complaint case under Domestic Violence Act and also
filed a case seeking maintenance — Subsequently, in-laws also filed a
complaint case u/S 379 XPC against wife, her father and her cousin
alleging that while leaving matrimonial house, wife took all ornaments
with her — Cognizance taken and summeons issued — Challenge to ~
Held - It is a matrimonial/civil dispute, daughter-in-law taking her
belongings /ornaments is not an act of theft — No evidence that
ornaments were not stridhan — No FIR was lodged by respondent —
Criminal case u/S 379 IPC filed as a counter blast —~ Proceedings against
applicants is abuse of process of Court/law — Proceedings quashed —
Application allowed. _ (Para5 & 7)

TUs GIRT (1660 BT 45), €INT 379 T 498—T TT TS HfFAT AR,
1973 (1974 PT 2), ST 482 — zIPew srdarfeal & FfrafET Far arar
— gt 3 Tfy @ O g 2w @ ara SR amedr o Ihwua 5| g
Y P BieT — U ORT 498—T ¥ JAd WP AT ghideT g5t
frar, e Rwr afifram @ savg aRars o owd -fear o
AOOTAEYT GTEd EU UF WARET Hl Ud FRAr — qeuean, WG9 aen |
# 7=h, sud fiar ik R &1 w1 @ fwg Arda gvs wiear #1 o
_a7e @ Fava UREE IHIT uxga fhar R afwem fear o 6
I Prary Bise w9d, 9l AU 9Tl WO TS | T — WE
forar AT Ty W Wk far mr — & gEkf - afifeiRe - aw
Raiee /Fofre R 2, 95 gRT aw 9wy /ArEer @ W A o
a;waﬁé—wﬁﬁmaﬁﬁw,ﬁ%mmaﬁ—umaﬂm
#1¥ vom g whaed g @ frar T - andE Ioe Wiwar @ A
370 @ AT VS YIROT T TATHAY @ ©9 A ugd fear wam -
FTAwETor @ Rreg sHarea <y /Rty 1 ufirar @1 gewEtT @ -
prdafea afrEfea - AT T9R!

Cases referred:

. (2002) SCC OnLine Cal 382:(2003) 1 Cal LJ 582, (2014) 7 SCC
215. ' ' ‘

' Shashank Shekhar, for the applicants.
" None, for the non-applicant.

»
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ORDER

J.P. Gupra, J. :- This petition has been preferred under section 482
of the Cr.P.C against the impugned order dated 07/09/2015 passed by the
Judicial Magistrate First Class, Rewa in Criminal Case No. 3010/2015
whereby the complaint case under section 379 of the IPC has been registered
against the applicants. o

2, In brief, relevant facts of the case are that the respondent son Dr.Shad
F. Zaman Owaisi marriage was solemnized with the applicant no.3 on
14/04/2012 at district Indore as per muskim customs and rituals. Applicant
no.! is the father of the applicant no.3 and applicant no.2 is the ¢ousin of
applicant no.3. After the marriage, applicant no.3 went to the matrimonial
house of respondent situated at Rewa. Thereafter respondent and her son

started demand of dowry and harassed and tortured the applicant no.3. On

19/04/2015 respondent and her son/husband of the applicant no.3 brutally
beaten the applicant no.3 and caused severe injury on her left ear. Then the

. applicant no.3 informed his father applicant no.1 who send applicant no.2 to
| Rewa and thereafter she came back to Indore along with the applicant no.2
© 0n21/04/2015 and lodged an FIR against the respondent and his son/husband

of the applicant no.3 on 23/04/2015 in Mahila Thana Indore, which was
registered as Crime No.28/2015 under section 498A, 323, 506/34 of the
IPC and under section 4 of the Dowry Prohibition Act and also filed complaint
under Protection of Woman from Domestic Violence Actand have also filed
the petition under section 125 of the Cr.P.C for maintenance. When the
respondent and his son came to know about the fact that aforesaid FIR has
been registered against them then respondent in order to dissolve the case

, filed against them on 18/06/2015 filed a complaint stating that on 21/04/2015

applicant no.3 and her cousin brother applicant no.2 dishonestly took out
ornaments worth Rs.10 lacs from the house. On the aforesaid complaint, after
enquiry learned JMFC have taken cognizance for offence under section 379
of the IPC and the summons have been issued to the applicants, therefore this
petition has been filed. :

3. It is submitted that the allegation in the complaint case does not
disclose any criminal offence committed by the appli¢ants. The complaint case
is bereft of any details showing the role of the applicants and consisting of .
vague allegations and are so absurd and inherently improbable that on the
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same no prudent person can ever reach'to a just conclusion that there is
.sufﬁment ground for proceeding against the applicants. Even the allegation if
) taken on thelr face value accepted entlrely do not prima facie constitute any
; offence or make out a case against the.applicants. The aforesaid criminal
proceedmg is manifestly attended with malafide or maliciously instituted with
"an ulterior motive for wreaking vengeance on the applicants. In the present
case applicants would be put to severe hardship if they continue to face full
ﬂedged trial. The continuation of criminal proceedmg amounts to an abuse of
the process of law and deserve to be quashed. In thi's regard leached coutsel
for the applicants placed reliance on the judgmerit in  the case of Manju Rani

- Gharamz Vs Stare of West Bengal (2002) SCC Oane CaI 382 (2003) 1

ey

LT

6. . Commg about the questlon to consider- whether the _
‘ allegatlon raised has disclosed an offence punishable under -
... section380IPC, itis to be noted that under the defination of
e _‘the offence theft contained in Section 378 IPC, the prosecution - -
S must establish that there was a taking away of a movable, .
. ... jproperty, out of a possession of another, without his consent
and such _takmg away was with the intention to take the same
, dishonestly. Section 24 of the IPC defines'dishonestly'inthe - .
following manner. "Whoever does anything with the intention
. of eadsiqg wrongful gain to one person or wrongful loss.to
. . -another person is said to do that thing 'dishonestly’. 'Wrongful
., gain'and 'wrongful loss' have been defined in Section 24-of -
' theAct in the following manner. "Wrongful gain' is gainedby. . -
. lawful means.of property to which the person gaining is not -
. legally entitled. 'Wrongful loss'is the loss by unlawful means of
‘ - propert_y to which the person losing it is legally entitled.

'’y .
Pl

7+ ¢ In the'instant case, the wholé allegation is that the “ )
v petitionér the wife of the'defacto-¢omplainant while leaving” =~
the house took, away some ornaments without the corisent of
v .. . the defacto-complainant and in the petition of complaint there
) ) was no allegation that the gold ornaments.belonged to the .
: defacto—complamant exclusively. The admitted back-ground,
in this case is that the petitioner/wife who solong lived with the-, -

t )

»
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husband.and who also was in’ possessmn of those gold
ornaments along with the husband left the house with those
gold ornaments. In that background, it cannot be said that the
action on the part of the wife was to cause wrongful gain to
her or wrongful loss to defacto-complainant, the husband. It
is well established that before the offence of theft is made out,
it has to be show that (1) the accused was not legally entitled
to the property alleged to be stolen and that (2) the complainant
was wrongfully deprived of the property. Considering all these
it can be said clearly that in the facts and circumstances of the
case one of the most important ingredients of the theft, namely,
intending to take dishonestly any movable property, is absent
and therefore prima facie there cannot by any allegation
punishable under Section 379 or under Section 380 of the

Indian Penal Code.
4, On behalf of the respondent none was present.
| 5. Considering the contention of the parties and on perusal of the record

of the complaint case, it appears that on 21/04/2015 applicant no. 3 left
matrimonial house with her cousin applicant no.2 and it is alleged that sometimé
keys of almirah was handed over to the respondent. Later on 05/05/2015, it

: was found that lot of ornaments kept in the almirah were not found and enquu'y
" was made on phone from the applicant no.3, the applicant no.3 admitted that

she and her cousin brother applicant no.2 on direction of applicant no. 1 took
out all the ornaments. Later on applicant no.1 also admitted the facts on
telephone and also stated that if respondent son will divorce the applicant
no.3 they will return the ornaments otherwise the applicant no.3 will take it in
her use. From the averments in the complaint, prima facie it appears that this
is not a case of theft, it is a matrimonial dispute in which daughter-in-law took
with her the ornaments kept in the matrimonial house. There is no prima
facie evidence to establish the fact that the property was not "stridhan" or
was the property of the exclusive ownership of the respbndent. The applicant
no.3 has left the house in the circumstances when she was beaten therefore,
taking her belonging with her along with her ornaments or other articles of her
matrimonial house cannot be said to be an act of theft. This is a dispute of civil
nature and definitely it is filed as a counter blast after lodging of the FIR
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against the respondent and his son with regard to property and demand of
dowry with the applicant no.3. Apart from it, as per the allegation in the
complaint no one has seen to take away the ornaments by the applicantno.1
and 2. Near about 15 days the ornaments found missing no complaint has
been lodged, no specific date and telephone number have been mentioned to
make query with the applicant no.3 and applicant no.1. After refusal of the
return of ornaments, no written notice has been given no complaint to the
police was lodged or no protest has been lodged against none recording of
FIR by the police till more than one month. In such circumstances, no prudent
man can belief that the allegations be considered prima facie toreachto a
such conclusion that there is a sufficient ground for proceeding against the
applicants.

6. The scope of section 482 of Cr.P.C. has been discussed by the Apex

court in the case of Rishipal Singh Vs. State of Uttar Pradesh and another,
reported in (2014)7 SCC 215 extensively. The relevant paras are reproduced
herein :-

10.  Before we deal with the respective contentions”
advanced on either side, we deem it appropriate to have a
thorough look at Section 482 CrPC, which reads:

"'482. Saving of inkerent powers of High Court-Nothing
in this Code shall be deemed to limit or affect the inherent
powers of the High Court to make such orders as may be
necessary to give effect to any order under this Code, or to
prevent abuse of the process of any court or otherwise to secure
the ends of justice." :

A bare perusal of Section 482 CrPC makes it crystal clear
that the object of exercise of power under this section is to
prevent abuse of process of court and to secure ends of Jjustice.
There are no hard-and-fast rules that can be laid down for the
exercise of the extraordinary jurisdiction, but exercising the
same is an exception, but not a rule of law, It is no doubt true
that there can be no straitjacket formula nor defined parameters
to enable a court to invoke or exercise its inherent powers. It
will always depend upon the facts and circumstances of each
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case. The courts have to be very circumspect while exercising
jurisdiction under Section 482 CrPC.

11.  This Court in Medchl Chemicals & Pharma (P) Ltd.

V. Biological E. Ltd. [(2000) 3 SCC.269 : 2000 SCC (Cri)
615] has discussed at length about the scope and ambit while
exercising power under Section 482 CrPC and how cautious
and careful the approach of the courts should be. We deem it
apt to.extract the relevant portion from that J judgment, which
reads: (SCC p. 272, para 2)

2. Exercise of jurisdictionunder the inherent power as

envisaged in Section 482 of the Code to have the complaint

or the charge-sheet quashed is an exception rather than a rule

.and the case for quashing at the initial stage must have to be

treated as the rarest of rare so as not to scuttle the prosecution.
With the lodgement of first information report the ball is set to
roll and thenceforth the law takes its own course and the
investigation ensues in accordance with the provisions of law.
The jurisdiction as such is rather limited and restricted and its

" undue expansion is neither practicable nor warranted. Inthe

event, however, the court on a perusal of the complaint comes

. t6 a conclusion that the allegations levelled in the complaint or

charge-sheet on the face of it does not constitute or disclose

any offence as alleged, there ought not to be any hesitation to
‘rise up to the expectation of the people and deal with the
situation as is required-under the law. Frustrated litigants ought

not to be indulged to.give vent to their vindictiveness through
a.legal process and such an investigation ought not to be

.allowed to be continued since the same is opposed to the
concept of justice, which is paramount".

'12.  This Court ina plethora of judgments has Jaid down

the guidelines with regard to exercise of jurisdiction by the
courts under Section 482 CiPC. In State of Haryana v.
Bhajan Lal [1992-Supp (1)'SCC-335:1992.8CC (Cri)426]
this Court has listed the categories.of cases when the power
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under Section 482 can be exercised by the Court. These
principles or the guidelines were reiterated by this Court ind( 1)
CBI'v. Duncans Agro Industries Lid [(1996) 5 SCC 591 :
1996 SCC (Cri) 1045], (2) Rajesh Bajaj v. State (NCT of
Delhi) [(1999) 3 SCC 259 ; 1999 SCC (Cri) 401] and (3)
Zandu Pharmaceutical Works Lid. V Mohd. Sharaful
Hagque [(2005) 1 SCC 122 : 2005 SCC (Cri) 283]. This Court
in Zandu Pharmaceutical Works Ltd. [(2005) 1 SCC 122
2005 SCC (Cri) 283] observed that:

The power under Section 482 of the Code should be used
sparingly and with circumspection to prevent abuse of process
of court, but not to stifle legitimate prosecution. There can be
no two opinions on this, but, if it appears to the trained judicial
mind that continuation of a prosecution would lead to abuse of
process of court, the power under Section 482 6f the Code
must be exercised and proceedings must be quashed.

Also see Om Prakash v. State of Jharkhand [(2012) 12
SCC 72:(2013) 3 SCC (Cri) 472], SCC p. 95, para 43.

13. - Whatemerges from the above judgments is that when
a prosecution at the initial stage is asked to be quashed, the
test to be applied by the court is as to whether the
uncontroverted allegations as made in the complaint prima facie
establish the case. The courts have to see whether the
continuation of the complaint amounts to abuse of process of
law and whether continuation of the criminal proceeding results
in miscarriage of justice or when the court comes to a
conclusion that quashing these proceedings would otherwise
serve the ends of justice, then the court can exercise the power
under Section 482 CrPC. While exercising the power under
the provision, the courts have to only look at the uncontroverted
allegation in the complaint whether prima facie discloses an
offence or not, but it should not convert itselfto that of a trial
court and dwell into the disputed questions of fact.

7. In the light of the aforesaid discussion, it is clear that the continuance
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i of the proceedings against the applicants on the basis of complaint made by
the respondent with regard to commission of offence under section 379 of
IPC would be not justifiable and it would amount to an abuse of the process
of the court hence the proceeding deserves to be quashed. Accordlngly this
petition is allowed.

Application’allowed.

LL.R. [2017] M.P., 2575
MISCELLANEOUS CRIMINAL CASE
Before Mr. Justice Rajendra Malhajan
M.Cr.C. No. 1310/2016 (J abalpur) declded on 1 May, 2017

, RAKESH SAHU _ ...Applicant
Vs.
SMT. MAMTA SAHU ...Non-applicant

Protection of Women from Domestic Violence Act (43 of 2005),
Sections 2(o), 12, 18, 28(1) & 31 and Protection of Women from
Domestic Violence Rules, 2006, Rule 6(5) — Maintenance Order &
Protection Order — Enforcement — Wife filed application u/S 31 of the
Act of 2005 for recovery of arrears of maintenance amoint from
applicant — Bailable warrant issued — Challenge to — Held — As per
Section 18 r/w Section 2(o) of the Act of 2005, order of granting .
maintenance is not a Protection Order and non-payment of same would
not attract Section 31 of the Act — Impugned order quashed — Further
held — Rule 6(5) of Rules of 2006 provides enforcement of order of
Magistrate as provided in Section 125 Cr.P.C., hence Magistrate
directed to treat the application filed u/S 31 as if filed under Rule 6(5)
of the Rules of 2006 .and proceed giving opportunity of hearing to
applicant - Application partly allowed. (Paras5to 7)

¥R fowr § #fearal’ &1 avavr aftfaay (2005 @7 43), ey
2(ar), 12, 18, 28(1) T 31 V7 Ry ey & wfewrent &1 9w a7, 20086,
9% 6(5) — FYOrITOr FIGI T YT FIKYT — ¥ITT — Ul 7 ARIH
¥ TR B AR B qHT B qen 2 2005 F M WY anT 31
# siaa ARET TET e — sy aRe i R R - w gt
— afifaifRa — 2005 3 FfFRE 81 arr 18 weuldd garr 2() B
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 ITHR AROINT YE $ER FT AT TP QYA AR T 2 qoT 9ad
BT I ARUPET B arT 31 B ey T s — o fw sty
aURd — art afafeifa — frag 2006 &1 Praw e(5) T ufar wivar a1
ORT 125 ¥ 3 T Suey JAqUR IRRLe @ ey HT yadT Susha
aYar 8, gHfay abRg T $t aRT 31 @ Fadd gwga arded & Yur W
a ¥ 99 f5 98 fraw 2006 3 P 6(5) @ afwfa wwga fear T4 @
AT AETHE B YA FT J9ER 2D g A B @ fow, RN =
fear T — smdET v weR|

Case referred:

2008 (4) MPLI (SC) 455.

Pal Singh Yadav, for the applicant.
None, for the non-applicant-though properly represented.

ORDER

RAJENDRA MAHAJAN, J. :- The applicant has filed the petition under
Section 482 of the Cr.P.C. for quashment of the orders dated 27.04.2015
“and 27.11.2015 passed by the Judicial Magistrate First Class BhopalinR.T.
No. 12543/15 titled Smt. Mamta Sahu Vs. Rakesh Sahu.

2. The brief background facts of the case for adjudication of the petition
are as follows:- ‘

2.1 On12.01.2009, respondent Smt. Mamta Sahu filed
an application before the court of Judicial Magistrate

. First Class Bhopal under Section 12 of the Protection
of Women from Domestic Violence Act 2005 (for short
"the Act") against applicant Rakesh Sahu and others
seeking various reliefs from them. Thereupon, Misc.
Criminal Case No. 519/08, Smt. Mamta Sahu Vs.
Rakesh Sahu and others was registered, In that case,
on 04.09.2014, The learned IMFC passed the final
order, directing the applicant to pay the respondent a
total of Rs. 7,000/- per month towards her personal
maintenance and taking a house on.rent from the date
of filing the application with a direction that the interim

- maintenance allowance shall be adjusted. Feeling

L)
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aggrieved by the order; the applicant filed Criminal
Appeal No. 943/14, Rakesh Sahu Vs. Smt. Mamta
Sahu under Section 29 of the Act. Vide the judgment
dated 22.07.2015, the learned Appellate Judge
reduced the maintenance from Rs. 7,000/- to Rs.
5000/- per month.

2.2 Thereafter, on 23.03.2015 the respondent filed an
application under Section 31 of the Act along with her
affidavit for the recovery of arrears of the maintenance
amounting to Rs. 49,000/~ due as on 23.03.2015 from
the applicant. On 27.04.2015, the learned JMFC has
ordered to register the application under the aforesaid
Section. Thereupon, the application is registered first
as MIC No. 627/15, later as R.T. No.12543/15. On
27.11.2015, the learned JMFC passed an order,
directing to secure the presence of applicant inthe case
by issuing a bailable warrant of arrest in the sum of Rs. .
5000/- and fixed the case for his presence. Hence, the
petition. -

3. Having taken this court through the order dated 04.09.2014 passed
in M.Cr.C. No. 519/08 and the judgment dated 22.07.2015 passed in Criminal
Appeal No. 943/14, the learned counsel for the applicant submits that both
the courts have not passed the Protection Order in terms of Section 18 of the
Act against the applicant. Therefore, the application filed by the respondent
under Section 31 of the Act is not maintainable and the learned JMFC has
committed legal errors by registering the application vide order dated
27.04.2015 and directing vide order dated 27.11.2015 to secure the presence
of the applicant in the case by means of bailable warrant of arrest. Thus, both
the.orders passed in R.T. No. 12543/15 are liable to be set aside by this
court in exercise of powers under Section 482 Cr.P.C. He also submits that
the applicant has alfeady paid the maintenance to the respondent up to May,
2017. In support of this contention, he has drawn the attention of this court
towards the statement of accounts prepared by him. ' .

4, I have earnestly considered the submissions made by the learned



2578 Rakesh Sahu Vs. Smt. Mamta Sahu LL.R.J2017]M.P.
counsel for the applicant and perused the entire material on record.

5. From the order dated 04.09.2014 passed in M.Cr.C. No. 519/08
and the judgment and order dated 22.07.2015 passed in Criminal Appeal

No.943/14, itis crystal clear thatneither the learned JMFC nor the learned
Appellate Judge has passed the Protection Order in terms of Section 18 of ,

the Act against the applicant, On a plain reading of Section 18 of the Act in
the light of definition of "Protection Order" given in Section 2 (0) of the Act, it
" could be definitely said that the order of granting maintenance is not Protection
Order and non-payment of the same will not attract the provisions of Section
31 ofthe Act. Thus, the learned JIMFC has committed legal errors in passing
the order dated 27.04.2015 for the registration of the application under Section
31 of the Act and the order dated 27.11.2015 for securing the presence of the
applicant through the execution of bailable warrant of arrest in R.T. No.
12543/15. In conclusion, both the impugned orders are quashed.

6. It is pertinent to merition herein that the sub-rule 5 of rule 6 of the
Protection of Women from Domestic Violence Rules 2006 (for short the Rules
2006") provides that the orders of Magistrate shall be enforced in the same
manner as laid down in Section 125 Cr.P.C. Thus, if any person so ordered to

pay the maintenance fails to comply with the order the Magisterial Court of

the competent jurisdiction is bound to issue warrant for levying the amotnt
due in the manner for levying fines as per Section 421 Cr.P.C and may send
the defaulter respondent to civil prison as per the procedure contemplated
under Section 125 Cr.P.C. Section 28 (1) of the Act provides that the provisions
of Section 12, 18 to 23 and 31 of the Act shall be governed by the general

provisions of the Cr.P.C. In this view of the matter, the learned JMFC ought

to have registered the application filed by the respondent herein, under sub-
rule 5 of rule 6 of the Rules 2006, notwithstanding that the respondent has
filed an application under Section 31 of the Act in view of the law laid down
by the Supreme Court in the case of T'Nagappa Vs. Y.R.Muralidhar [2008
(4) MPLJ (SC)455], wherein it is held that mere wrong mentioning of provision
of law in an application would not be of any relevance, if the court concerned
has the requisite jurisdiction to pass an order on it. Admittedly, the learned
JMFC has jurisdiction to pass an order for recovery of the arrears of
maintenance allowance against the applicant, )

7. In view of the foregoing discussion, this petiﬁon is partly allowed and

ETS
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orders dated 27.04.2015 and 27.11.201 S passed in R.T. N0.12543/15 are
quashed with a direction to the learned IMFC to treat the application which
the respondent filed under Section 31 of the Act, as if it was filed under sub-
ule 5 of rule 6 of the rules 2006 and if necessary change the nomenclature of
the case-file from R.T. to Miscellaneous Criminal case. The learned IMFC is
also directed to give an opportunity to the applicant to prove his claim that he
has already paid the maintenance to the respondent up to May, 2017, The
applicant is directed to appear before the concerned JIMFC court on or before

27.06.2017. If the learned JMFC takes him into custody for any reason

whatsoever, then he be released upon his furnishing the personal bond in the

sum of Rs. 40,000/-.

8. A copy of this order be sent to the court of learned JIMFC concerned.
9. In the aforesaid terms and conditions, this M.Cr.C. is finally disposed of.
Certified copy as per rules.

. Application partly allowed.

LL.R. [2017] M.P., 2579
MISCELLANEOUS CRIMINAL CASE
Before Mr. Justice S.K. Seth & Smt. Justice Anjuli Palo
M.Cr.C. No. 7959/2017 (Jabalpur) decided on 31 August, 2017

" RABIYABANO . -~ ...Applicant
Vs. . :
‘RASHIDwKHAN & anr. . ...Non-applicants

A. Penal Code (45 of 1860), Sections 363, 366, 376(2)(1)
and Protection of Children from Sexual Offences Act, (32 of 2012),
" Section 3/4 —Held — Prosecutrix and her parents have not deposed the
exact date of birth — Documentary evidence do not establish that age
of prosecutrix was less than 18 yrs — No ossification test conducted —
Date of birth recorded by mother in school record is based on
presumption and is not reliable — No conclusive evidence regarding
age of prosecutrix — Story told by prosecutrix is unnatural and doubtful
— Delayed FIR — As per niedical opinion, prosecutrix habitual to
intercourse — No external or internal injury found on prosecutrix —
Accused deserves benefit of doubt — Application dismissed.
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(Paras 9, 10, 13 to 17, 20 & 23)

& TvE Wiear (1860 &7 .45), €IV 363, 366, 376(2)I) vT

d%m#mwmms@ﬁw (2012 BT 32), G 3/4 —

affEfRa — aftaissfi v swe wrar-fyar 3 fifma o=y e1 .
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arg 18 9% | ®u oft — g ARy fer o Warfag T fHAr TET
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ameRe 2 aoT Rewhy T8 2 - afaie) @ ag @ d9g F B9
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WeETee & — e T wRdew § fide — fufea sager, afvateh
gt @ ot @ — sftmEd ) SiY 9 a1 dEe A @ o T
~ gftmee w3 & o R S 9 @ - e 'Rl

B. Juvenile Justice (Care and Protection of Children) .

Rules, 2007, Rule 12— Proof of Age — Applicability of Rules — Held —
Apex Court has concluded that Rule 12 of the Rules of 2007 though
strictly applicable to a child in conflict with law, would be applicable to
determine the age of a child who is a victim of crime — Rule 12(3) is
applicable for determmmg the age of prosecutrix. (Para 11)

& ﬁﬂﬁvw(ma‘?a‘aﬁ?aaﬁ?wm%wzaor
Paw 12 — arg w1 wga — P’ & yaivgar — afsteiRa - walt=
e 3 wE st fear 2 % 2007 @ fraw &7 w12 aafy fafy
.3 freg T 99, W SOl & o, §har 2, S9 9@ B Ay JeuiRa
W @ fv gatsy sh et e &1 fifgw @ — P 12(3) e
A Arg T AqERT FW B fag vAiw B

C. Criminal Procedure Code, 1973 (2 of 19 74), Sectwn
378(3) — Leave to Appeal against Acquittal — Grounds & Practice —
Held —Apex Court has concluded that in appeal against acquittal, two
views are possible and the one which goes in favour of acquittal has-to
be adopted — Further held — Even otherwise, it is settled law that
appellate Court may only interfere in appeal against acquittal where
there are substantial and compelling reasons to do so.(Para 21 & 22)

T gV Fiear afedr, 1973 (1974 PT 2), &IRT 378(3) — gregfaT
# frve afia @vd 8g Jgaty — amee 7 ygfo — afafeiRa — gal=a
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Cases referred:

2013 (7) SCC 263, 1988 Supp. SCC 604, 2017 SCC OnLine Del
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1318, 2017 CrL.J. 732 (SC), 2017 Cr.L.J. 749 (SC), AIR 1934 PC 227
(2), AIR 1963 SC 200, (2003) 8 SCC 180.

-

~ Sanjay Patel, for the applicant.
None, for the non-applicant No. 1.
+ Akshay Namdeo, G.A. for the non-applicant No. 2/State.

ORDER

The . Order of the. Court was: passed by :
ANJULIPALO, J. :- This application under Section 378 (3) of Code of Criminal

. Procedure has been filed by the prosecutrix for leave to appeal being aggrieved

by the judgment dated 10.4.2017 passed by the 7th Additional Sessions Judge,
Bhopal in Sessions Trial No.196/15, whereby the learned trial Court has

. acquitted the respondent No.1 for the offencespunishable under Sections

363,366, 376 (2) (I) of IPC and Section.3/4 Protection of Children from
Sexual Offences Act, 2012.

2. Asperthe prosecution case, the prosecutrix who was aged about 15

years was residing with her parents. On 11.2.2015 at about 10.00 pm when

the prosecutrix was in front of herhome, the accused came there and closed

hermouth and took her to the roof of her house and committed rape with her.

On 16.2.2015 when her father returned back to home from Bombay, the

prosecutrix narrated the incident to her parents. Thereafter she lodged the

FIR at the police station, Shyamla Hills against the respondent No.1. An offence

under Sections 363, 366, 376 (2) (I) of IPC and Section 3/4-Protection of
Children from Sexual Offences Act, 2012 has been registered against him,

After completing the investigation, the police filed a charge sheet before the.
concerned magistrate and the same was committed to the trial Court.

3. The learned trial Court framed the charges against the respondent
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No.1 under Section 363, 366, 376 (2) (I) of IPC in alternate under Section 3/
4 Protection of Children from Sexual Offences Act, 2012. The respondent
No.1 abjured his guilt and stated that he was falsely implicated by the
complainant family to create pressure on him to marry with the prosecutrix .
In this regard defence witnesses also produced by the respondent No.1.
Further the respondent No.1 also took plea of alibi.

4, After appreciation of evidence on record, the learned trial Court found
that the prosecution has failed to establish that the prosecutrix was minor at
the time of incident and the respondent No.1 committed rape on her, It was
also found that the prosecutix was 26 years of age and her conduct was
unnatural. The incident was narrated by her to the parents after 5 days of the
incident. The FIR was delayed, therefore, the respondent No.1 has been
acquitted from the offences punishable under Sections 363, 366, 376 (2) (1)
of IPC in alternate under Section 3/4 Protection of Children from Sexual
Offences Act, 2012,

5. The prosecutrix has submitted that the findings of the learned trial Court
are illegal and contrary to law. The learned trial Court committed error in
holding that the prosecution failed to prove the allegation without proper
appreciation of the medical material available on record.

6. Heard and perused the record.

7. Learned GA has opposed the above grounds and submitted that the
findings of the trial Court is based on the evidence on record,.hence, no
interference is called for in the findings of the learned trial Court.

8. Two questions arise for our consideration :-

(1)  Whether the trial Court was correct in conctuding that it cannot
be assumed that the age of the prosecutrix was less than 18 years on the date
of incident 7

(2)  Whether the trial Court erred in discarding the testimony of

the prosecutrix which could be made sole basis for convicting the accused ? -

9. With regard to the age of the prosecutrix at the time of offence, the
prosecutrix (PW1) herself has not stated about her date of birth. At the time
of incident she was student of 7th Class. Her father Abdul Mazid (PW2) and

\
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her mother Rajio Bano (PW3) both of them have also not deposed the date
of birth of the prosecutrix. Abdul Mazid {PW2) has explained that the
prosecutrix is her elder daughter. In paragraph 10 he explained that he had
not gone to the School for admission of the prosecutrix. The prosecutrix was
admitted in school by her mother. In paragraph 8 Rajio Bano (PW3) her
mother explained the date of birth was recorded by her on the basis of mark
sheet. In the last part of paragraph 8, she again explained that she has no
document with regard to date of birth of her daughter.

10.  Prashant (PW6), Principal of Public Higher Secondary School in his
cross-examination has admitted that he had no birth certificate or other
document with regard to ascertain the exact date of birth of the prosecutrix.

From his testimony, it seems that he was not able to say that the date of birth

registered in the school record is right or wrong. The aforesaid evidence is
not the conclusive evidence to prove the date of birth of the prosecutrix as
10.6.2000. No ossification test was conducted by the doctor which would
establish the characteristic, fusion of bones, proof of date of birth, ete. to
determine the age of the prosecutrix. Hence we find that the date of birth of
the prosecutrix was recorded by her motherin school record is based only on
presumption, hence it is not found reliable.

11. - The Apex Court in the case of Jarnail Singh Vs. State of Hariyana
[2013 (7) SCC 263] has held that Rule 12 of the Juvenile Justice (Care-and
Protection of Children) Rules, 2007 though strictly applicable to a child in
conflict with law, would also be applicable to determine the age of a child
who is a victim of a crime. Accordingly, Rule 12(3) is applicable for determining
the age of the prosecutrix, which reads as under:

“12.Procedure to be followed in determination of Age:-
3. In every case concerning a chile or juvenile in conflict with
law, the age determination inquiry shall be conducted by the
Court or the Board or, as the case may be, the committee by
speaking evidence by obtaining:-

(a)(1) the matriculation or equivalent certificates, if availé'ble;
and in the absence whereof;

(ii) the date of birth certificate from the school (other than a
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play school) first attended; and in the absence whereof;

(iii) the birth certificate given by:a corporation or amunicipal
.authority or.a panchayat;

(b) and only in the absence of either (i), (i) or (iii) of clause (a)
_above, the medical opinion will be sought from a duly constituted
Medical Board, which will declare the age of the juvenile or
child. In case exact assessment of the age cannot be done, the
Court or the Board or, as the case may be, the Committee, for '
the reasons to be recorded by them, may, if considered
‘necessary, give benefit to the child or juvenile by considering
his/her-age on lower side within the Ihargin of one year and,
while passing orders in such.case shall, after taking into
consideration'such-evidence as may be available, or the medical
opinion, as the case may be record a finding in respect of his
age and either or the evidence specified in any of the clauses
(a)(1), (ii), (iii) or in the absence, whereof, clause (b) shall be
the conclusive proof of the age as regards such child or the
juvenile in conflict with law.” )

12.  Atthe same time, it has also been held in Blrad Mal Smghw V. Anand
Purohit, 1988 Supp. SCC 604 (Paragraph 15) that an entry relating to date
of birth-made in a school register is not- much evidentiary value to prove the
" -age of the person in the absence of the material on which the age was recorded
[See also State (Govi. of NCT of Delhi) V. Charan Singh, 2017 SCC
OnLine Del 8186 (paragraphs 16-21);.and State (GNCT of Delhi} V. Mohd.
Irfan, 2017 SCC OnLine Del 9111 (paragraphs 12-15)].

13.  Accordingly, the documents on record could not be'relied upon.and
prove that the age of the prosecutrix was less than 18 years.at the time of

incident. Thus, the ingredients of Section 361 of IPC are not established by

the prosecution.

14. In the case of State of M.P. Vs. Munna 2016 (1) SCC 696, the
Supreme Court has held:as.under :-

“The.age of the prosecutrix not proved -beyond reasonable
.doubt to be less than 16 years of age at the time of incident,

N
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therefore, the High Court was right in holding that the
prosecutrix was more than 16 years of age and was competent
to give her consent.”

15.  The prosecutrix (PW1) has stated that the incident was took place at
about 10.00 PM and at that time her mother, brother, rea] aunty and uncie
were present in the home. It cannot be possible for the respondent No.1,
without the consent of prosecutrix, he abducted her and took her on the roof
of the house through the stairs. The story told by the prosecutrix that due to
fear of the respondent No.1 she could not raise the alarm seems to be unnatural

~-and doubtful because the respondent No.1 was bare handed. A fter the said
incident, the prosecutrix kept mum for about 4-5 days. She could-have told

the incident to hermother and brothers, who were present in home at that
time. She also stated that she js more closureto her mother than her father.
Then why she waited up to 4-5 days for her father, not immediately narrated
the incident to her mother

16.  Dr.Dipti Pawar (PW8) in the medical examination of prosecutrix found
her secondary sex character was well developed.and hymen was.old and

. healed. Doctor not found any internal or external injury over the body of the

prosecutrix. No definite opinion was given by her.about intercouse with the
prosecutrix. '

17. The medical opinion also indicates that the prosecutrix was found
habitual to have intercouse. It seems that due to pressure of her family
members, she lodged the report against the respondent No.1. Hence delayed

. FIR hasalso great importance, which Creates reasonable doubt to the testimony

of the prosecutrix, hence the ‘benefit of doubt be given to the respondent

' No.l. The defence taken by the respondent No.1/accused seems to be

reasonable and plausible. Prior to the incident both of them known to-each
other very well. : S

18.  Samsher (DW1) deposed that-prior-to the incident, father of the
prosecutrix came to his home with the proposal of marriage for the prosecutrix
with the respondent No.1. Mohd Arshad (DW2) deposed that at thetime of
incident, respondent No.1 was present with him at Lalghati. Chouraha upto
12.30 PM. Thereafter the respondent No. 1 went'tohis home. The value of
defence witness is equal to the prosecution witnesses, which Creates reasonable
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doubts about the story of prosecution. Therefore, due to above mentioned
weaknesses of testimony of the prosecutrix, the defence evidence cannot be
ignored superficially.

19. On the above ground, it could be interfered that the resp ox_ldent No.l/
accused would not have forcibly had sexual intercourse with the prosecutrix
(PW1).

20.  The circumstances lead us to the conclusion that she freely, voluntarily
and consciously consented for having sexual intercourse with the respondent
No.1. She did not resist the respondent No.1.

21.  Inthe cases of Ghurvey Lal Vs. State of U.P. [ AIR 2009 SC (Supp)
1318) Madarthi Narayan Vs. State of Kerala [ 2017 Cr.L.J. 732 (SO)]
and Mahaveer Singh Vs. State MP [ 2017 Cr.L.J. 749 (SC)], the Apex
Court has held that in appeal against acquittal of two views are possible. View
which goes in favour of the acquittal has be adopted. '

72, Even otherwise, it is settled law that the appellate court may only
interfere in an appeal against the acquittal where there are substantial and
compelling reasons to do so, as held in cases of Sheo Swarup Vs. King
Emperor [AIR 1934 PC 227 ()], M.G. Agrawal Vs. State of Maharashtra
[ AIR 1963 SC 200] and State of Rajasthan Vs. Rajaram [ (2003) 8 SCC
180]. '

23.  Inthe above circumstances, we are of the considered opinion that no
interference is warranted in the impugned judgment. Heénce leave is not granted
in favour of the appellant to file appeal against acquittal. Accordingly, the
application is dismissed.

74.  Letthe record be sent back to the trial Court alongwith a copy of this
order.

- Application dismissed.
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